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Explanatory Note Regarding Amendment No. 1

This Amendment No. 1 to the Annual Report on Foi@rKT (“Amendment No. 1”) of InspireMD, Inc. (the ‘@npany”)for the transitio
period ended June 30, 2012 pbeing filed for the purpose of including theuks of operations for the twelve month periodezhdune 30, 201
included in “Part Il—Item 7. Management’s Discugsiand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft©perations’and audited financi
statements for the twelve month period ended JOn2@L2, filed as Exhibit 99.1 to this Amendment Mo

In accordance with Rule 1215 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 198tcomplete text of the items amended by this Amerd No
1 are set forth herein. This report speaks asebtiginal filing date of the Annual Report and mag been updated to reflect events occu
subsequent to the original reporting date. Accaiginin conjunction with reading this Amendment Ng.you should also read all other filii
that we have made with the Securities and Exch&ugemission since the date of the original filindl ghare numbers in this Amendment
1 have been changed to reflect the one-for-fouensystock split that was effected by the Companpecember 21, 2012.
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PART |

In this Transition Report on Form 10-K/T, unless ttontext requires otherwise, all references to™Waur” and “us” for periods prio
to the closing of our share exchange transactiondarch 31, 2011 refer to InspireMD Ltd., a privatenpany incorporated under the laws of
the State of Israel that is now our wholly-ownefsidiary, and its subsidiary, and references to,aur” and “us” for periods subsequent to
the closing of the share exchange transactions t@fespireMD, Inc., a publicly traded Delawaremoration, and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, including InspireMD Ltd.

Item 1. Business.
History

We were organized in the State of Delaware on Fepr9, 2008 as Saguaro Resources, Inc. to engafge acquisition, exploration
and development of natural resource propertiesM@rch 28, 2011, we changed our name from “Saguaso&ces, Inc.” to “InspireMD, Inc.”

On March 31, 2011, we completed a series of sharieamge transactions pursuant to which we issuedhiareholders of InspireMD
Ltd. 12,666,665 shares of common stock in exchémgell of InspireMD Ltd.’s issued and outstandimglinary shares, resulting in the former
shareholders of InspireMD Ltd. holding a contrajlimterest in us and InspireMD Ltd. becoming ouolifrowned subsidiary.

Immediately following the share exchange transastiove transferred all of our pre-share exchangeatimg assets and liabilities to
our wholly-owned subsidiary, Saguaro Holdings, lacDelaware corporation, and transferred all @udao Holdings, Inc.’s outstanding
capital stock to Lynn Briggs, our then-majorityatbolder and our former president, chief executifficer, chief financial officer, secretary-
treasurer and sole director, in exchange for thhealation of 7,500,000 shares of our common stedll by Ms. Briggs.

After the share exchange transactions and thetiivwesof our pre-share exchange operating assetdiabilities, we succeeded to the
business of InspireMD Ltd. as our sole line of bhess, and all of our then-current officers andadmes resigned and were replaced by some o
the officers and directors of InspireMD Ltd.

On June 1, 2012, our board of directors approveltbage in our fiscal yeand from December 31 to June 30, effective Jun@@D2
This Transition Report on Form IT reports our financial results for the six mop#riod from January 1, 2012 through June 30, 2@hith
we refer to as the “transition period” throughdustreport. Following the transition period, weile annual reports for each twelve month
period ended June 30 of each year beginning wéhwtielve month period ended June 30, 2013.




Overview

We are a medical device company focusing on theldpment and commercialization of our proprietagnsplatform technology,
MGuard™. MGuard™ provides embolic protection iarging procedures by placing a micron mesh slegee @ stent (see photograph below
of an MGuard™ Stent). Our initial products are nedekl for use mainly in patients with acute cororsmydromes, notably acute myocardial
infarction (heart attack) and saphenous vein g@inary interventions (bypass surgery). Accordmthe TYPHOON STEMI trial (New
England Journal of Medicine, 2006) and the SOS Svi@ (Journal of the American College of Cardiofp8009), of patients with acute
myocardial infarction and saphenous vein graft narg interventions, 7.5% to 44% experience majeeesk cardiac events, including cardiac
death, heart attack and restenting of the artetyeW\performing stenting procedures in patients adtlite coronary symptoms, interventional
cardiologists face a difficult dilemma in choosinetween bare-metal stents, which have a high fatestenosis (formation of new blockages),
and drug-eluting (drug-coated) stents, which hakigh rate of late thrombosis (formation of clotenths or years after implantation), require
administration of anti-platelet drugs for at leasé year post procedure, are more costly thanibatat stents and have additional side
effects. We believe that MGuard™ is a simple amhdess solution for these patients. For the simths ended June 30, 2012, our total
revenue was approximately $2.1 million and ourlogs was approximately $7.1 million.

MGuard ™ Sleeve — Microscopic View

We intend to study our MGuard™ technology for usa broad range of coronary related situationshicivcomplex lesions are
required and intend to seek to make it an industaipdard for treatment of acute coronary syndroiesbelieve that patients will benefit from
a cost-effective alternative which we believe \pilbve to have a superior clinical efficacy and sapeofile than other stent technologies. We
believe that with our MGuard™ technology, we ardl wesitioned to emerge as a key player in the glabent market.

We also intend to apply our technology to develdgitional products used for other vascular procesiuspecifically carotid (the
arteries that supply blood to the brain) and peniph(other arteries) procedures.

In October 2007, our first generation product,M@uard™ Coronary, received CE Mark approval foatneent of coronary arterial
disease in the European Union. CE Mark is a mamgatinformance mark on many products marketederBihropean Economic Area and
certifies that a product has met European Uniorseorer safety, health or environmental requireméfitssbegan shipping our product to
customers in Europe in January 2008 and have sixg@nded our global distribution network to Sougtiéesia, India, Latin America and
Israel.

Our initial MGuard™ products incorporated a stasslateel stent. We replaced this stainless stabph with a more advanced
cobalt-chromium based platform, which we refergdvGuard Prime™. We believe the new platform withye to be superior because cobalt-
chromium stents are generally known in the indusirgrovide better deliverability and possibly exsereduction in major adverse cardiac
events. In particular, according to Jabara, e(AlThird Generation Ultra-thin Strut Cobalt Chramm Stent: Histopathological Evaluation in
Porcine Coronary Arteries,” Eurolntervention, Novamm 2009), due to its greater density, cobalt-clwomenables the construction of stents
that have both thinner struts and similar radiaregth as stainless steel, with its thicker strmts$urn, Jabara, et. al. found that the reduced
thickness of the struts provides more flexibilityddower crossing profiles, thereby reducing tHeammatory response and neointimal
thickening, potentially lowering restenosis andj&irvessel revascularization rates.




MGuard Prime™ received CE Mark approval in the pean Union in October 2010 for improving luminamiieter and providing
embolic protection. We believe we can use and yeeMGuard™’s clinical trial results to market M@i@rime™. However, we face a
number of challenges to the further growth of MGi¥r For example, we face competition from numenghermaceutical and biotechnology
companies in the therapeutics area, as well as efitiop from academic institutions, government ages and research institutions. Most of
our current and potential competitors have, antasihtinue to have, substantially greater finandethnological, research and development,
regulatory and clinical, manufacturing, marketimgl g&ales, distribution and personnel resourcesweado. In addition, none of our product:
currently approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Adstiation. Clinical trials necessary to supportemarket approval application to the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration for our MGuard™ stetilt be expensive and will require the enrollmehedarge number of patients, and
suitable patients may be difficult to identify ametruit, which may cause a delay in the developraadtcommercialization of our product
candidates. Furthermore, our rights to our intéllacproperty with respect to our products coulatballenged. Based on the prolific litigation
that has occurred in the stent industry and thetfet we may pose a competitive threat to songeland well-capitalized companies that own
or control patents relating to stents and their osnufacture and delivery, we believe that itasgible that one or more third parties will as
a patent infringement claim against the manufactuse or sale of our MGuard™ stent based on omeooe of these patents. Additionally,
there is a strong preference to use drug-elutieigtstin some countries. Over the last decade, tteesdeen an increasing tendency to use dru
eluting stents in percutaneous coronary intervantiRCI), commonly known as angioplasty (a therapgurbcedure to treat narrowed coronary
arteries of the heart found in patients with hdé&ease), with a usage rate of drug-eluting st@rfCl approaching 70-80% in some countries,
even though drug-eluting stents do not addressrthus management in acute myocardial infarctiono Alse use of other bare-metal stents is
preferred over the use of MGuard™ products in geacumstances, such as when placing the steheatntrance to large side branches,
known as “jailing large side branches.” Unless otlige indicated, in this Transition Report on FAt@K/T, references to MGuard™ are to
both our initial product, MGuard™, and MGuard Pritheas applicable.

Our principal executive offices are located at 4nbkat Hamaor St., Tel Aviv, Israel 67448. Our pélene number is 972-3-691-
7691. We make available free of charge throughnabsite at www.inspire-md.com our annual repontg&orm 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendsrnthese reports. You may also obtain any nadtewe file with, or furnish to, the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on its ileeswww.sec.gov.

Business Segment and Geographic Areas

For financial information about our one operatimgl aeportable segment and geographic areas, cefBatt [I—Item 7.
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations” and “Part |l-adticial Statements and
Supplementary Data—Note 13. Entity Wide Disclostires

Our Industry

According to Fact Sheet No. 310/June 2011 of thelddealth Organization, approximately 7.3 millipaople worldwide died of
coronary heart disease in 2008. Physicians andrgatimay select from among a variety of treatmenggldress coronary artery disease,
including pharmaceutical therapy, balloon angioglastenting with bare metal or drug-eluting steatsd coronary artery bypass graft
procedures, with the selection often depending uperstage of the disease. A stent is an expantsda&old-like” device, usually constructt
of a stainless steel material, that is insertedl @mt artery to expand the inside passage and iragriood flow.

According to the January 3, 2011 2011 MEDTECH OUTIOproduced by the Bank of Montreal Investment Bagkzroup, known
as BMO Capital Markets, after registering a complmthannual growth rate from 2002 to 2009 of appnately 13%, revenues from the gla
coronary stent market is predicted to remain neddfi constant, although in volume of stents thekmtis predicted to continue to grow. The
growth in volume is due to the appeal for less & percutaneous coronary intervention procedamesadvances in technology coupled with
the increase in the elderly population, obesitggand advances in technology.




Coronary artery disease is one of the leading caofdeath worldwide. The treatment of coronargm@grtisease includes alternative
treatment methodologies, that is, coronary artgpabs grafting or angioplasty (percutaneous coxoiméervention) with or without stenting.
According to the January 3, 2011 2011 MEDTECH OUTIOproduced by the BMO (Bank of Montreal) InvestmBanking Group, the
percutaneous coronary intervention procedures vivglstents are increasingly being used to treaira@ry artery diseases with an 88.3%
penetration rate in 2009.

Our Products

The MGuard™ stent is an embolic protection deviagelnl on a protective sleeve, which is construchtdfoan ultra-thin polymer
mesh and wrapped around the stent. The protedéeeesis comprised of a micron level fiber-knittedsh, engineered in an optimal geometric
configuration and designed for utmost flexibilithie retaining strength characteristics of the ffibaterial (see illustration below). The sleeve
expands seamlessly when the stent is deployedoutitiffecting the structural integrity of the steantd can be securely mounted on any tyg
stent.

MGuard ™ Deployed in Artery

The protective sleeve is designed to provide séeérécal benefits:

« the mesh diffuses the pressure and the impactpbdgment exerted by the stent on the arterial wadl reduces the injury to the
vessel,

« itreduces plaque dislodgement and blocks delwia fntering the bloodstream during and post praeetballed embolic showers);

« in future products, when drug coated, the meshkpee&ed to deliver better coverage and uniform dlisgribution on the arterial wall
and therefore potentially reduce the dosage o&thige ingredient when compared to approved -eluting stents on the market; a

« it maintains the standards of a conventional saedttherefore should require little to no additidn@ining by physicians.
MGuard ™ — Coronary Applications

Our MGuard™ Coronary with a bio-stable mesh and our MGua@oronary with a drug-eluting mesh are aimed atrs@tment of
coronary arterial disease.




MGuard ™ Coronary and MGuard Prime™ with a bio-stable mestOur first MGuard™ product, the MGuard’ Coronary with a
bio-stable mesh, is comprised of our mesh sleeapped around a bare-metal stent. It received Ci Bigproval in October 2007 and, in
January 2008, we started shipping this producugtaeners and distributors in Europe. MGuard PrimeitH a biostable mesh is comprised
our mesh sleeve wrapped around a cobalt-chromient.stn comparison to a conventional bare-metaitsive believe the MGuard
Coronary and MGuard Prime™ with a bio-stable mesivide protection from embolic showers. Resultslufical trials on the MGuard'
Coronary stent, including the MAGICAL, PISCIONE aMd>uard international registry (iMOS) clinical tisadescribed below (see “Business -
Product Development and Critical Milestones - Corigoen of Clinical Trial Results to Date with Resulchieved Using Bare Metal or Drug-
Eluting Stents in the STEMI population” below), icate positive outcomes and safety measures, daiesg below (see “Business — Product
Development and Critical Milestones - ComparisoCifical Trial Results to Date with Results AchéevUsing Bare Metal or Drug-Eluting
Stents in the STEMI population” below). The resuif these clinical trials for the MGuardCoronary stent suggest higher levels of
myocardial blush grade 3 (occurrence in 73% ofgpasiin the MAGICAL study and 90% of patients ie fISCIONE study, for the MGuard
Coronary stent) and lower rates of 30 day and t yegor adverse cardiac event rates, (2.4% and 5@8pectively, for the MGuard
Coronary stent), as compared to the levels and oitether bare-metal and drug-eluting stentseperted by Svilaas, et. al. (“Thrombus
Aspiration during Primary Percutaneous Coronargrirgntion,”"New England Journal of Medicin&/olume 358, 2008). As reported in the
study by Svilaas, et. al., myocardial blush grade@urred in 32.2% of patients with a bare-methisand 45.7% of patients with a bare-metal
stent preceded by an aspiration procedure, an8Qitay and 1 year major adverse cardiac eventwaes 9.4% and 20.3%, respectively, for
patients with a bare-metal stent and 6.8% and 16té8pectively, for patients with a bare-metal sprrceded by an aspiration
procedure. Furthermore, results from a recent HRORISAMI trial demonstrated that 1 year major adverseliee event rates were 10.9%
patients with drug eluting stents. Myocardial blggade refers to a 0-3 grade scale given to thquaty of perfusion and blood flow through
an area served by a coronary artery; the longebltish persists, the poorer the blood flow andakesr the myocardial blush grade. Ndrept
et. al. ("5-Year Prognostic Value of No-Reflow Pharenon After Percutaneous Coronary Interventio®dtients With Acute Myocardial
Infarction,” Journal of the American College of Cardiologyolume 55, Issue 21, 2010) reported that high caydial blush grades correlate
with higher survival rates among affected patier8sstained performance by the MGuar@oronary stent with respect to contributing to
higher levels of myocardial blush grade 3 and lovages of 30 day and 1 year major adverse cardiacteates would differentiate the MGui
™ Coronary stent from other bare-metal and drug+edusitents that do not offer such benefits.

MGuard ™ Coronary with a drug eluting bio-absorbable mesHBased upon the clinical profile of MGuafdCoronary, we anticipat
that the MGuard" Coronary with a drug-eluting bio-absorbable meshafier both the comparable myocardial blush gradevels and 3@ay
and 1-year major adverse cardiac event rates ad@eard" Coronary with a bio-stable mesh, as described alzmata comparative
restenosis rate, which is the rate at which patierperience formation of new blockages in thaeras, when compared to existing drug-
eluting stents. The bio-absorbability of MGuar€oronary with a drug eluting bio-absorbable meshtianded to improve upon the bio-
absorbability of other drug-eluting stents, in ligii the large surface area of the mesh and thdé dimeneter of the fiber. We intend to study
whether the protective sleeve on the MGua@oronary with a drug-eluting bio-absorbable meshiogprove uniform distribution of the
applied drug to the vessel wall for improved dragrapy management compared to other drug-elutergsstwhere the drug is distributed on
the struts only. If this intended result is achigwath respect to the improved and uniform disttid of the applied drug to the vessel wall, the
total dosage of the medication potentially coulddmuced while increasing its efficacy. MGuar€oronary with a drug-eluting bio-
absorbable mesh is expected to promote smoothtabie £ndothelial cell growth and subsequent attectt to the lumen of the vessel wall,
which is essential for rapid healing and recovdryaddition, we believe bio-absorbable drigting mesh may enable the use of more effe
drug therapies that presently cannot be effectizebted on a metal-based stent due to their pffoisitin capabilities. Because the drug-
eluting bio-absorbable mesh will be absorbable, we anticipate that the mesh will cotepfalissolve after four months, which we expedt
result in fewer of the chronic long term side ef§athat are associated with the presence of thg dru

MGuard ™ — Carotid Applications

We intend to market our mesh sleeve coupled wiblfaexpandable stent (a stent that expands withalldon dilation pressure or
need of an inflation balloon) for use in carotichhpations. We believe that our MGuard design will provide substantial advantages over
existing therapies in treating carotid artery sgsngblockage or narrowing of the carotid arteriék® conventional carotid stenting and
endarterectomy (surgery to remove blockage), gikiersuperior embolic protection characteristicsiegsed in coronary arterial disease
applications. We intend that the embolic protectidlhresult from the mesh sleeve, as it traps elirdtcheir source. In addition, we believe
that MGuard™ Carotid will provide post-procedure protection agaiembolic dislodgement, which can occur immedjatéter a carotid
stenting procedure and is often a source of pastgatural strokes. Schofer, et. al. (“Late cerebnalbolization after emboli-protected carotid
artery stenting assessed by sequential diffusicigited magnetic resonance imaginggurnal of American College of Cardiology
Cardiovascular InterventionsVolume 1, 2008) have also shown that the majarftthe incidents of embolic showers associatetl watrotid
stenting occur immediately post-procedure.




MGuard ™ — Peripheral Applications

We intend to market our mesh sleeve coupled wiblfaexpandable stent (a stent that expands withalldon dilation pressure or
need of an inflation balloon) for use in periphexpplications. Peripheral Artery Disease, also known as periphaxrstular disease, is usually
characterized by the accumulation of plaque inrigden the legs, need for amputation of affectedts or even death, when
untreated. Peripheral Artery Disease is treatdgbeby trying to clear the artery of the blockageby implanting a stent in the affected area tc
push the blockage out of the way of normal bloogfl

The Peripheral Artery Disease market consistsraftisegments: Aortic Aneurysm, Renal, lliac an@fgiland Femoral-Popliteal
procedures. Aortic Aneurysm is a condition in whibe aorta, the artery that leads away from tlaethdevelops a bulge and is likely to
burst. This condition often occurs below the kighén the abdomen. Renal, lliac and Bilary praced refer to stenting in the kidney, iliac
arteries (which supply blood to the legs) and livespectively. Femoral-Popliteal procedures medtenting in vessels in the legs.

As in carotid procedures, peripheral procedureshagacterized by the necessity of controlling elistshowers both during and post-
procedure. Controlling embolic showers is so imgarin these indications that physicians oftenamesred stents, at the risk of blocking
branching vessels, to ensure that emboli doesatidhfo the bloodstream. We believe that our Mf@uadesign will provide substantial
advantages over existing therapies in treatingoperial artery stenosis (blockage or narrowing efgaripheral arteries).

Product Development and Critical Milestones

Below is a list of the products described above @mdprojected critical milestones with respectéeh. As used below, “Q” stands
for our fiscal quarter. While we currently antiatp seeking approval from the U.S. Food and Drugifgtration for all of our products in the
future, we have only outlined a timetable to seeR.WFood and Drug Administration approval for ouGMard™ Coronary plus with bio-stable
mesh product in our current business plan. Theotifee term “to be determined” in the table belwith regard to certain U.S. Food and Drug
Administration trial milestones indicates that #ahievements of such milestones is unable to berasdy predicted as such milestones are to
far in the future.

Start European FDA
Product Indication  Developmen CE Mark Union Sales Approval U.S. Sales
MGuard™ Coronary Plus Bio-Stable Mesh Bypass/ 2005 Oct. 2007 Q1-2008 Q4-2015 2016
Coronary
MGuard™ Peripheral Plus Bio-Stable Mesh Peripheral Q1-2011 Q4-2012 To be To be To be
Arteries determinec determinec determinec
MGuard™ Carotid Plus Bio-Stable Mesh Carotid Q1-2011 Q4-2012 To be To be To be
Arteries determinec determinec determinec
MGuard™ Coronary Plus Bio-Absorbable Drug-Elutii Bypass/ To be To be To be To be To be
Mesh Coronary  determinec  determinec determinec determinec determinec

With respect to MGuard™ Carotid Plus Bio-Stable Mege have determined that the expected commenderhsales in the
European Union can not be accurately predictecesive have delayed the development of this produtittadditional funding for its
development is secured.




We anticipate that our MGuardCoronary plus with bio-stable mesh product willdssified as a Class |l medical device by the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration.

Pre-Clinical Studies

We performed laboratory and animal testing priosubmitting an application for CE Mark approval éar MGuard™ Coronary with
bio-stable mesh. We also performed all CE Markiiregl mechanical testing of the stent. We condupte-clinical animal trials at Harvard
and MIT Biomedical Engineering Center BSET labufy2006 and August 2007. In these animal triafsaverage, the performance of the
MGuard™ Coronary with bio-stable mesh was comparable highgerformance of control bare-metal stents. Agislglso indicated that in
these animal trials the mesh produced levels tdrimhation comparable with those levels producedthgdard bare-metal stents. No human
trials were conducted as part of these pre-clirtitalls.

The table below describes our completed and plapredlinical trials. The use of the term “To beatenined”in the table below wit
regard to milestone dates in our pre-clinical #adndicates that we have not yet decided whenhedile such milestones.

Stent Approval
Product Platform Requirement Start of Study End of Study
IMGuard™ Bare-Metal Stent Plus Bio-Stable CE Mark (European Union + |Q4-2006 Q3-2007
Coronary Mesh Rest of World)
Drug-Eluting Mesh (Bare-Metal Stent PIJCE Mark (European Union + [To be determined |To be determined
Drug-Eluting Mesh) Rest of World)
FDA (U.S.) To be determine To be determine
Cobalt-Chromium Stent Plus Bio-Stable |[FDA Q2-2011 Q4-2015
IMesh
MGuard™ Self Expending System Plus Mesh CE Mark (European Union + |N/A N/A
Peripheral/Caroti Rest of World)
|MGuardTM Carotid [Self Expending System Plus Mesh FDA (U.S.) To be determined

With respect to the preclinical studies for MGuat€oronary, the drugluting mesh trials have been indefinitely susperdiee to ou
determination to focus our time and resources bardtials at this time.

With respect to the preclinical studies for MGuBetipheral/Carotid, the start of study of the &ipending System Plus Mesh trial
has been delayed from our previously announceetalge to a delay in our receipt of anticipatedifog.

Clinical Trials

The table below describes our completed and planlgidal trials. The use of the term “To be detared” in the table below with
regard to milestone dates in our clinical trialdigates that we have not yet decided when to s¢bedich milestones. All milestone dates set
forth in the table below are our best estimatesdhapon the current status of each clinical trial.




Study Status

Stent Clinical Follow-up Start End
Product  Platform Trial Sites Requirement Obijective No. of PatientsEnrollment  Enrollment  End of Study
Germany—two sites |12 months 41 Q4-2006 Q4- 2007 Q2-2008
Brazil — one site 12 months 30 Q4-2007 Q1-2008 Q2-2009
Poland- four sites 6 months 60 Q2-2008 Q3-2008 Q2-2009
International MGuard’|
Observational Study -[12 months 1,000 Q1-2008 Q4-2013 Q4-2013
worldwide - 50 sites Study to
Israeli MGuard™ evaluate safet
Observational Study -|6 months and 100 Q2-2008 Q3-2011 Q3-2012
Israel- 8 sites performance g
BareMeta[Master randomized MGuard™
Stent Plusicontrol trial - System
Bio-Stabld® countries, 50 center{12 months 433 Q2-2011 Q2-2012 Q2-2013
Mesh in South America,
Europe and Isra¢
Brazil — 25 sites 12 months 500 Q3-2010 'dro be . To be .
eterminec  |determinec
Pilot study to
MGuard™ evaluate safet
Coronar : and
y LFJDSA Study - 40 sites, 12 months performance d975 Q4-2012 Q2-2014 Q4-2015
.S. and out of U.S. MG ™
uard
system for
FDA approval
8-12 months [Pilot study to
South America evaluate safet 500 To be To be To be
and Europe — 10 sites and determined |determined [determined
Elrug_ performance g
Stlejzg?g 12 months MGtuardfTM . . .
. system for o be 0 be o be
&3:{:" U.S. - 50 sites FDA and CE [2000 determined |determined  [determined
Stent + Mark approva
Drug Evaluation of
Eluting safety
Mesh) Rest of World as a 8-12 months anq 100 To be _ To be _ To be _
registry study efficacy for determined |determined |determined
specific
indications
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Study Status
Stent Clinical Follow-up No. of Start End
Product Platform  Trial Sites Requirement Objective  Patients  Enrollment Enrollment End of Study
Pilot study to
evaluate
Self . safety and
. |South Americd
[IMGuard™ Peripheral E;g%nrg'zg and Europe — [12 months g?&%?::;?ﬁ 50 To be To be To be
M four sites determined|determined |determined
esh system for
CE Mark
approval
Evaluation of
Self safety and
IMGuard™ carotid Expanding Rest of World efflca_u;y for
System + as a registry |9 months _spgcnﬁp 150 To be _ To be _ To be .
Mesh study indications determined|determined |[determined
post-
marketing

Each of the patient numbers and study dates détifothe tables above are management’s best dstihéhe timing and scope of
each referenced trial. Actual dates and patiemtbmrs may vary depending on a number of factocfydiing, without limitation, feedback
from reviewing regulatory authorities, unanticightielays by us, regulatory authorities or thirdtypaontractors, actual funding for the trials at
the time of trial initiation and initial trial refts.

The MGuard™ Coronary clinical trials for the drug-eluting stérave been delayed from our previously announaegtalue to a
delay in our receipt of anticipated funding.

With respect to the MGuard Peripheral clinical trial for the self expandingsgm + mesh, the start date has been delayed filom o
previously announced start date due to a delayiinexeipt of anticipated funding.

With respect to the MGuard Carotid clinical trial for the self expanding syste mesh, the number of patients has been decreasec
due to feedback from the clinical trial leaderd thamaller patient population would be sufficiéartthis clinical trial.

Completed Clinical Trials for MGuard ™ Coronary Bare-Metal Stent Plus Bio-Stable Mesh

As shown in the table above, we have completeddiwécal trials with respect to our MGuard Coronary with bio-stable mesh. Our
first study, conducted at two centers in Germangluided 41 patients with either saphenous veirt gabnary interventions or native coronary
lesions treatable by a stenting procedure (blockadeere no bypass procedure was performed). TheawG' Coronary rate of device
success, meaning the stent was successfully depioytbe target lesion, was 100% and the rate @fqutural success, meaning there were no
major adverse cardiac events prior to hospitalhdisge, was 95.1%. At six months, only one paii2ri% of participants) had major
myocardial infarction (QWMI) and 19.5% of particiga had target vessel revascularization (an inegsiecedure required due to a stenosis il
the same vessel treated in the study). This dgpcsts MGuard"” ’s safety in the treatment of vein grafts and reteronary legions.

Our 2007 study in Brazil included 30 patients whergvcandidates for a percutaneous coronary intdoreangioplasty) due to
narrowing of a native coronary artery or a bypasdtgin all patients, the stent was successfullgldyed with perfect blood flow parameters
(the blood flow parameter is a measurement of tast/the blood flows in the arteries and the mi@rougation system in the heart). There were
no major cardiac events at the time of the follqw30 days after the deployment of the stents.
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The study in Poland included 60 patients with a@lfesegment elevation myocardial infarction (the mesese form of a heart atta
referred to as “STEMI”). The purpose of the stuehs to evaluate the clinical performance of MGuar@®fonary with bio-stable mesh when
used in STEMI patients where percutaneous coronéeyention is the primary line of therapy. Petfblood flow in the artery was achieved
in 90% of patients, perfect blood flow into the tigauscle was achieved in 73% of patients and cetapkstoration of electrocardiogram
normality was achieved in 61% of patients. Theltatajor adverse cardiac events rate during thergixth period following the deployment of
the stents was 0% and after a three-year period @&8%6.

Ongoing Clinical Trials for MGuard ™ Coronary Bare-Metal Stent Plus Bio-Stable Mesh

Our ongoing observation study in Europe is an apgistry launched in the first fiscal quarter oD20 This registry is expected to
enroll up to 1,000 patients and is aimed at evadgahe performance of MGuard™ Coronary with biab#¢ mesh in a “real worldjopulation.
To date, the primary countries to join are Aust@iagech Republic and Hungary. The primary endpdiat this registry will evaluate is the
occurrence of major adverse cardiac events at sixtins following deployment of the stent, and thirical follow-up will continue for a period
of up to one year per patient. As of Septembe0122550 patients of the prospective 1,000 have beeolled in 28 sites.

Our ongoing observational study in Israel is anmopistry launched in the fourth fiscal quarte609. This registry is expected to
enroll up to 100 patients. The purpose of thislglis to support local Israeli regulatory approvidie primary endpoint that this registry will
evaluate is the occurrence of major adverse camliants at 30 days following deployment of the tstand the clinical follow-up will be
conducted at six months following deployment of skent. As September 1, 2012, 86 patients of thegarctive 100 have been enrolled.

In the third fiscal quarter of 2010, we launchdglrazilian registry to run in 25 Brazilian sites agwtoll 500 patients. The primary
endpoint that this registry will evaluate is thewaence of major adverse cardiac events at sixmsdollowing the deployment of the stent,
and the clinical follow-up will continue for a ped of up to one year per patient. As of Septemb@012, 24 patients of the prospective 500
have been enrolled.

In the second quarter of 2011, we began the MGimardcute ST Elevation Reperfusion Trial (MASTERAT), a prospective,
randomized study in Europe, South America and Iscagompare the MGuard™ stent with commerciallprayed bare-metal and drug-
eluting stents in achieving better myocardial rgpgon (the restoration of blood flow) in primarggioplasty for the treatment of acute STE
The MASTER Trial enrolled 433 subjects, 50% of whaere treated with an MGuard™ stent and 50% of whare treated with a
commercially-approved bare-metal or drug-elutirepstThe study was designed to evaluate the MGuaditblic protection stent compared
to commercially-approved bare metal or drug-elusitents in heart attack patients undergoing prirpargutaneous coronary intervention. On
August 17, 2012, we were advised that initial iatiiens showed a positive result for the MASTER ITNde expect detailed results of the st
will be released in October 2012.

Comparison of Clinical Trial Results to Date with Results Achieved Using Bare Metal or Drug-Eluting Stnts in the STEMI population

We conducted a meta-analysis of data from fouiadirtrials in which MGuard" was used:

« The MAGICAL study, a single arm study in which &ute ST-segment elevation myocardial infarctibe (host severe form of a
heart attack, referred to as STEMI) patients wetfslthan 12 hours symptom onset were enrolle@pasted in “Mesh Covered Stent
in ST-segment Elevation Myocardial Infarct” in Eurolnterventior, 2010;

« the PISCIONE study, a single arm study in which SAE&EMI patients were enrolled, as reported in “Nbglbtre Experience with
MGuard Net Protective Stent in ST-elevation Myodgarthfarction: Safety, Feasibility, and Impact btyocardial Reperfusion” in
Catheter Cardiovasc Intel, 2009;

» the iIMOS study, a Registry on MGuard™ use in tlealtworld” population, from a study whose data waspublished; and
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the Jain study, which looks at a small group oSFEMI patients, as reported in “Prevention of Thbaus Embolization during
Primary Percutaneous Intervention Using a NoveltMésvered Ste” in Catheter Cardiovasc Inter, 2009.

Our meta-analysis included data from the followtirigls:

The CADILLAC (Controlled Abciximab and Device Int@gation to Lower Late Angioplasty Complications)dy, which found that
primary stent implantation is a preferred stratéathe treatment of acute myocardial infarctios r@ported in “A Prospective,
Multicenter, International Randomized Trial CompagriFour Reperfusion Strategies in Acute Myocarltifdrction: Principal Report
of the Controlled Abciximab and Device Investigatio Lower Late Angioplasty Complications (CADILLACTrial in Journal of
American College of Cardiolog, 2001;

The EXPORT trial which was a randomized open-latadly whose primary endpoint was to evaluate fimywrovement in AMI
patients using either conventional stenting orrasipin followed by stenting, as reported in “Sysédim Primary Aspiration in Acute
Myocardial Percutaneous Intervention: A MulticerlR@ndomised Controlled Trial of the Export AspioatiCatheter” in
Eurolnterventior, 2008;

The EXPIRA trial which was a single-center studyedl to explore pre-treatment with manual thrombegtas compared to
conventional stenting, as reported in “Thrombusisdipn During Primary Percutaneous Coronary Inéation Improves Myocardial
Reperfusion and Reduces Infarct Size: The EXPIRArgmbectomy with Export Catheter in Infarct-relaetiery During Primary
Percutaneous Coronary Intervention) ProspectivadBaized Tric” in Journal of American College of Cardiolo, 2009;

The REMEDIA trial, whose objective was to assessshfety and efficacy of the EXPORT catheter foortibus aspiration in STEMI
patients, as reported in “Manual Thrombus-Aspiratimproves Myocardial Reperfusion: The Randomizedlation of the Effect of
Mechanical Reduction of Distal Embolization by Timlous-Aspiration in Primary and Rescue AngioplaRENMEDIA) Trial” in
Journal of American College of Cardiolo, 2005;

The Horizons-AMI (Harmonizing Outcomes with RevdaciZzatiON and Stents in Acute MI), which is thedast randomized trial
which compared DES to BMS in MI patients, as regih “Paclitaxel-Eluting Stents Versus Bare-M@&#tdnts in Acute Myocardial
Infarctior” in New England Journal of Medicir, 2009; and

The TAPAS Trial which showed that thrombus aspirathefore stenting benefits Ml patients, as replirtie'Thrombus Aspiration
During Primary Percutaneous Coronary Interver’ in New England Journal of Medicit, 2009.

The meta analysis of MGuardoutcomes in STEMI population show comparable rafeerombolysis in myocardial infarction

(TIMI) 3 flow with no significant difference of theistorical control as compared to MGuarqs8.5% and 91.7%, respectively), while the rate
of myocardial blush grade score 3 (37.3% for tistdnical control and 81.6% for MGuard) and ST segment resolution>70% (53.6% for the
historical control and 79.1% for MGuard) are statistically significantly better with theGQward™ . MGuard™ also appears consistently
superior at the 30 days major adverse cardiac €8etf% for the historical control and 2.4% for M@aid') and 1 year major adverse cardiac
event (13.3% for the historical control and 5.9%NtGuard™ ) endpoints. The data appears in the followingesbl
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NAME OF STUDY

MAGICAL PISCIONE iMOS Jain Average
Number of Patient 60 100 203 51 414 (Total)
Thrombolysis in myocardial infarctior-1,% 0 0 1.2 0 0.6
[Thrombolysis in myocardial infarction 3, 90 85 93.5 100 91.7
Myocardial blush grade-1,% 3.3 0 — — 1.2
Myocardial blush grade 3, 73 90 80 — 81.6
ST segment resolution>70%, 61 90 — — 79.1
ST segment resolution>50%, 88 — 85.4 96 87.6
30 day major adverse cardiac even 0 2.2 3.2 — 2.4
6 month major adverse cardiac event 0 4.5 6.0 — 4.6
1 year major adverse cardiac event — 5.6 6.0 6.0 5.9
1 year target vessel revascularizai — 2.3 2.3 6.0 2.8
Acute Binary Resteonosis 6M, — — 19.0* — 19.0

THREE YEAR FOLLOW UP STUDIES

NAME OF STUDY

MAGICAL PISCIONE iMOS Jain Average
Number of Patient 57 out of 6C 39 — — —
Cardiac death at 3 7% 2.2% — — —
Non Cardiac death at 3 1.8% 6.8% — — —
Re-MI at 3Y 0% 7.9% — — —
TLR at 3Y 1.8% Not Reportec  |— — —
TVR at 3Y Include TLF 3.6% 4.5% — — —
Stroke 1.8% Not Reportec  |— — —
Stent thrombosis Definite / Probal 0% 2.2% — — —
IMACE (Cardiac death, F-MI, TLR) 8.8% 10.1% — — —
IMACCE (All death, target vessel MI, TVR, Strok [10.5% Not Reportet  |— — —

Trial CADILLAC Hogi,fﬂcl’“f' HOIS,\ZA‘?”" TAPAS | TAPAS | EXPORT| EXPORT| EXPIRA | EXPIRA |REMEDIA|REMEDIA c';'ff}g'ﬁ:g MGuard s||§?1\|/f?c| :r: .
Group At?é&?r;;b BMS DES ;2;?:2535 control control TA control Zzg?gggf ;2;?:2535 control | Average | Average

Number of Patient 524 749 2257 535 536 129 120 87 88 50 49 |5124 (total] 414 (total)
oo, Moo — — — — — 3.9 24 11 0 — — 21 0.6
L’;;?ggg'ésf; 0 TTS7Ee S 96.9 87.6 89.8 86 825 76.9 82 = = = = 88.5 91.7
Myocardial blush grade-1,% 48.7 — — 17.1 26.3 31.6 27.6 40.2 11.4 32 55.1 35.2 1.2 *
Myocardial blush grade 3, 17.4 — — 45.7 32.2 25.4 35.8 — — — — 37.3 81.6 *x
ST segment resolution>70%, 62 — — 56.6 44.2 — — 39.1 63.6 58 36.7 53.6 79.1
ST segment resolution>50%, — — — — — 71.9 85 — — — — 78.2 87.6
28;:1&:%/cmajor adverse cardi 4.4 o o 6.8 9.4 o o o o 10 10.2 8.4 24 o
gvrrelgpst‘rgﬁmajor adverse cardi 10.2 . . . . . . . . . . 10.2 46
;Vyeenat;;;aim adverse card — 13.1 10.9 16.6 20.3 — — — — — — 133 5.9 *
JAcute Binary Resteonosis 208 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 208 19.0
month,%
rovascularzalor — | a4 2o | w2 | — | — | — | — | — | — | — | —
A::rt’e%Binary Resteonosis . 21 8.3 . . . . . . . . 115 .
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Future Clinical Trials for MGuard ™ Coronary

We anticipate that additional studies will be coctéd to meet registration requirements in key ceesitparticularly the U.S. We
have currently budgeted $13 million for the U.So&@and Drug Administration trial. We expect thaspmarketing trials will be conducted to
further evaluate the safety and efficacy of the M@ Coronary with bio-stable mesh in specific dadions. These trials will be designed to
facilitate market acceptance and expand the utieegfroduct.

We also plan to conduct a large clinical studyJos. Food and Drug Administration approval in th&UWNe expect that this study
will be a prospective, multicenter, randomized ickhtrial. Its primary objective will be to compathe safety and the effectiveness of the
MGuard™ stent in the treatment of de novo sterleions in coronary arteries in patients undergginigary revascularization (a surgical
procedure for the provision of a new, additionalangmented blood supply to the heart) due to aoytecardial infarction with the MultiLink
Vision stent system from Abbott Vascular. We expetil enroliment of approximately 957 subjectsj@ato 60 sites throughout the U.S. and
Europe. The combined primary endpoint of this stisdyptended to demonstrate the MGuard™ stent'&isapty in the occurrence of
myocardial reperfusion, which measures that blagaply to the heart muscle, and its non-inferionitghe occurrence of target vessel failure (
composite endpoint of cardiac death, reoccurrefieegheart attack and the need for a future invagireeedure to correct narrowing of the
coronary artery), as compared to other stents. fhidy is expected to start in the fourth quarfetGi2, and the enrollment phase is expect
last 18 months. We expect that subjects will biofeed for 12 months with assessments at 30 daysneinths and 12 months, with
angiographic subgroup analysis occurring afterlth® month. This plan is tentative, and is subject tangfe to conform with U.S. Food and
Drug Administration regulations and requirements.

In other countries outside of the U.S., we belidhat we generally will be able to rely upon the K&rk approval of the product, as
well as the results of the U.S. Food and Drug Adstriation trial and MASTER Trial in order to obtdocal approvals.

Planned Trials for future MGuard ™ Peripheral and Carotid Products

As shown in the table at the beginning of thisise¢twe also plan to conduct clinical trials foradditional products in development
in order to obtain approval for their use. We @iptite that local distributors in the countriesvinich such trials will take place will support
many of these studies.

Growth Strategy

Our primary business objective is to utilize oungmietary technology to become the industry stashdiar treatment of acute coronary
syndromes and to provide a superior solution tactiremon acute problems caused by current stentoaegdures, such as restenosis, embolic
showers and late thrombosis. We are pursuingalf@ifing business strategies in order to achieigdbjective.

»  Successfully commercialize MGuai™ Coronary with bio-stable mesh.We have begun commercialization of MGuar@oronary
with a bio-stable mesh in Europe, Asia and Latinefica through our distributor network and we argragsively pursuing additional
registrations and contracts inther countries such as Russia, Canada, South KBedgium, the Netherlands and certain smaller
countries in Latin America. By the time we begiarketing this product in the U.S., we expect toehimroduced the MGuard
technology to clinics and interventional cardiokigiaround the world, and to have fostered branter&cognition and widespread
adoption of MGuard" Coronary. We plan to accomplish this by partidipgin national and international conferences, cmtidg anc
sponsoring clinical trials, publishing articlesscientific journals, holding local training sesssand conducting electronic media
campaigns
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+  Successfully develop the next generation of MGui™ stents. While we market our MGuard' Coronary with bio-stable mesh, we
intend to develop the MGuardCoronary with a drug-eluting mesh. We are alsokimgr on our MGuard" stents for peripheral and
carotid, for which we expect to have CE Mark apptdyy the fourth quarter of 2012. In addition, reéeased our cobalt-chromium
version of MGuarc™ , MGuard Prime™, in 2010, which we anticipate wéplace MGuar(™ over the next few year

« Continue to leverage MGuard' technology to develop additional applications fortérventional cardiologists and vascular
surgeons. In addition to the applications described abovepelgeve that we will eventually be able to utiliaer proprietary
technology to address imminent market needs forpr@guct innovations to significantly improve pati€ care. We have secured
intellectual property using our unique mesh tecbgglin the areas of brain aneurism, treating béted blood vessels and a new
concept of distal protective devices. We belidwese areas have a large growth potential giveoyiiview, that present solutions are
far from satisfactory, and there is a significaatndind for better patient care. We believe thajpatents can be put into practice and
that they will drive our growth at a later sta

+  Work with world-renowned physicians to build awaress and brand recognition of MGuard portfolio of products. We intend to
work closely with leading cardiologists to evaluatel ensure the efficacy and safety of our produdts intend that some of these
prominent physicians will serve on our Scientifidvsory Board, which is our advisory committee thdvises our board of directors,
and run clinical trials with the MGuard Coronary stent. We believe these individuals, amwevinced of the MGuard Coronary
stent’s appeal, will be invaluable assets in faatilig the widespread adoption of the stent. kfitawh, we plan to look to these
cardiologists to generate and publish scientifimdm the use of our products, and to present tinglings at various conferences they
attend. Dr. Gregg W. Stone, director of CardiouésmcResearch and Education at the Center fordetgional Vascular Therapy of
New York Presbyterian Hospital/Columbia Universitedical Center and the -director of Medical Research and Education at The
Cardiovascular Research Foundation is the studyroba for the MASTER Trial. Dr. Donald Cutlip, Extive Director of Clinical
Investigation at the Harvard Clinical Researchitat, will provide scientific leadership of the®l.Food and Drug Administration
trials. On October 4, 2011, InspireMD Ltd., ouralt-owned subsidiary, entered into a clinical ksarvices agreement with Harvard
Clinical Research Institute, Inc., pursuant to Whitarvard Clinical Research Institute, Inc. willhcluct a study entitled “MGuard
Stent System Clinical Trial in Patients with Aclgocardial Infarction” on our behalf. We will payativard Clinical Research
Institute, Inc. an estimated fee of approximatel@ #illion for conducting the study, subject towsiment dependent upon changes ir
the scope and nature of the study, as well as otists to be determined by the part

« Continue to protect and expand our portfolio of maits. Our patents and their protection are critical to ©uccess. We have filed
nine separate patents for our MGuartechnology in Canada, China, Europe, Israel, In8@jth Africa and the U.S. We believe tf
patents cover all of our existing products, and lmamiseful for future technology. We intend totamme patenting new technology as
it is developed, and to actively pursue any infeimgnt upon our patents. On October 25, 2011, baargatent applications, U.S.
patent application 11/582,354, was issued as lhA®&nP8,043,32:

As noted above, we previously filed patents for M@uard™ technology in China, as part of our intended grostthtegy. However,
upon further consideration of the cost and resaurequired to achieve patent protection in Chiraglected to prioritize our pursuit of growth
opportunities in other countries and, as such, ltaased our growth efforts in China for the curtame period. We intend to reevaluate our
strategy towards commercialization of our MGuartechnology in China in the future.
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Competition

The stent industry is highly competitive. The baretal stent and the drug-eluting stent markethénJ.S. and Europe are dominated
by Abbott Laboratories, Boston Scientific CorporatiJohnson & Johnson and Medtronic, Inc. Due tgorg consolidation in the industry,
there are high barriers to entry for small manufets in both the European and the U.S. marketsveider, we believe that the European
market is somewhat more fragmented, and small ctropgeappear able to gain market share with gresdse.

In the future, we believe that physicians will lamknext-generation stent technology to competh wiitrrently existing
therapies. These new technologies will likely irie bio-absorbable stents, stents that are cusabieifor different lesion lengths, stents that
focus on treating bifurcated lesions, and stents superior polymer and drug coatings. Some ottrepanies developing new stents are The
Sorin Group, Xtent, Inc., Cinvention AG, OrbusNegi8fiotronik SE & Co. KG, Svelte Medical Systems;.IrReva Inc. and Stentys SA, amc
others. To address current issues with drug-ejugtants, The Sorin Group and Cinvention AG haweliged stents that do not require a
polymer coating for drug delivery, thereby expagdine types of drugs that can be used on theientsie stents. OrbusNeich has addressed
the problem differently, developing a stent coatéith an antibody designed to eliminate the needafor drug at all. Xtent, Inc. has been
concentrating on a stent that can be customizétiddferent sized lesions, so as to eliminate mieed for multiple stents in a single
procedure. Biotronik SE & Co. KG is currently diang bio-absorbable stent technologies, and Abbott Labdestds currently developing
bio-absorbable drug-eluting stent. These aregdstv of the many companies working to improve tignprocedures in the future as the
portfolio of available stent technologies rapidigieases. As the market moves towards next-gémeistenting technologies, minimally
invasive procedures should become more effectieing the growth of the market in the future. \plan to continue our research and
development efforts in order to be at the forefifithe acute myocardial infarction solutions.

According to the January 3, 2011 2011 MEDTECH OUTQOproduced by the BMO (Bank of Montreal) InvestmBanking Group
the worldwide stent market is dominated by fourangjayers, with a combined total market shareppiraximately 96%. Within the bare me
stent market and drug-eluting stent market, thed@ap companies have approximately 92% and 98%eftarket share, respectively. These
four companies are Abbott Laboratories, Bostonr8ifie Corporation, Johnson & Johnson and Medtrphic. To date, our sales are not
significant enough to register in market share.sidsh, one of the challenges we face to the fughewth of MGuard™ is the competition
from numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology @omigs in the therapeutics area, as well as corgrefiom academic institutions,
government agencies and research institutions.t bfasur current and potential competitors, inchglbut not limited to those listed above,
have, and will continue to have, substantially tgeéinancial, technological, research and develpregulatory and clinical, manufacturing,
marketing and sales, distribution and personneuess than we do.

In addition to the challenges from our competitors,face challenges related specifically to oudpats. None of our products is
currently approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Adstiation. Clinical trials necessary to supportermarket approval application to the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration for our MGuard™ stetilt be expensive and will require the enrolimehtdarge number of patients, and
suitable patients may be difficult to identify aretruit, which may cause a delay in the developraadtcommercialization of our product
candidates. Furthermore, our rights to our intéllal property with respect to our products cowdcthallenged. Based on the prolific litigation
that has occurred in the stent industry and thetfext we may pose a competitive threat to songeland well-capitalized companies that own
or control patents relating to stents and their osnufacture and delivery, we believe that itdsgible that one or more third parties will as
a patent infringement claim against the manufactuse or sale of our MGuard™ stent based on omeooe of these patents.

We note that an additional challenge facing oudpots comes from drug-eluting stents. Over thedastde, there has been an
increasing tendency to use drug-eluting stent&nsytaneous coronary intervention (PCI), with agesate of drug-eluting stents in PCI
approaching 70-80% in some countries, even thougg-€dluting stents do not address thrombus managtemacute myocardial infarction. A
recent HORIZONS-AMI trial that compared drug-elgtistents to bare-metal stents in STEMI patientedaio show any benefit of drugjuting
stents as compared to bare-metal stents with regaraffety (death, re-infarction, stroke, or stanbmbosis), but showed the 1 year target
vessel revascularization (TLR) rate for drug-elgtstent patients was only 4.6%, as compared to Todfatients with bare-metal stents.
However, based on data from over 350 patients a¢hose clinical trials, the TLR rate for MGuardvas 2.8%. (This data is comprised of: (i)
a TLR rate of 2.3% for a 100-patient study, as regubin “Multicentre Experience with MGuard Net Rrctive Stent in ST-elevation
Myocardial Infarction: Safety, Feasibility, and lagt on Myocardial Reperfusion” Batheter Cardiovasc Intery2009; (ii) a TLR rate of 2.3t
for a sub-group of 203 STEMI patients from the in&tional MGuard"” Observational Study; and (iii) a TLR rate of 6.086 & group of 51
heart attack patients, as reported in “Preventfofhoombus Embolization during Primary Percutanelogsrvention Using a Novel Mesh
Covered Stent” irCatheter Cardiovasc Intery2009).
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Another challenge facing the MGuafdproducts is that placing the stent at the entraméarge side branches, known as jailing large
side branches, is not recommended with the MGUaBronary stent, because there is risk of thrombdaiting requires the need to cross the
stent with guidewire and to create an opening thithballoon to allow proper flow, which can be asteid with lower risk by using other bare-
metal stents.

Research and Development Expenses

During each of the six months ended June 30, 2d2te twelve months ended December 31, 2011, 28ad®009, we spent
approximately $2.6 million, $2.5 million, $1.3 mdh and $1.3 million, respectively, on research dedelopment.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and Marketing

In October 2007, MGuard Coronary with a bicstable mesh received CE Mark approval in the Ewaopénion, and shortly thereaf
was commercially launched in Europe through logstrithutors. We are also in negotiations with diddial distributors in Europe, Asia and
Latin America and are currently selling our MGuar€oronary with a bio-stable mesh in more than 3htges.

Until U.S. Food and Drug Administration approvalooir MGuard™ Coronary with a bicstable mesh, which we are targeting for 2
we plan to focus our marketing efforts primarily Barope, Asia and Latin America. Within Europe, hieare focused on markets with
established healthcare reimbursement from loca¢igowents such as Russia, Italy, Germany, Fran@gd8r Austria, Hungary, Poland,
Slovenia, Czech Republic and Slovakia.

In addition to utilizing local and regional distitor networks, we are using international tradeaghand industry conferences to gain
market exposure and brand recognition. We plamaik with leading physicians to enhance our markgéfforts. As sales volume increases,
we may engage in direct sales in certain geographikets.

Product Positioning

The MGuard™ Coronary has initially penetrated the market byeenty market segments with indications that prebégtt risks of
embolic dislodgement, notably acute myocardialrictfan and saphenous vein graft coronary interegisti The market penetration of the
MGuard™ Coronary in 2011 was minimal, with total salestia twelve months ended December 31, 2011 of appeiriy $6 million
representing less than 1% of the total sales ofitiite myocardial infarction solutions market amelarket penetration for the six months
ended June 30, 2012 was also minimal, with totaksa the six months ended June 30, 2012 of appadrly $2.1 million representing less
than 1% of the total sales of the acute myocarmdfatction solutions market.

When performing stenting procedures in patientt wé@ute coronary symptoms, interventional cardistsgface a difficult dilemma i
choosing between bare-metal stents, which havgharhie of restenosis, and drelgiing stents, which have a high rate of latetdtetombosis
require administration of anti-platelet drugs fotemst one year post procedure and are more dbstiybare-metal stents. We are marketing

our platform technology, MGuard , as a superior and cost effective solution todglesrently unmet needs of interventional carditsitsy We
believe our MGuard" technology is clinically superior to bare-metalngsebecause it provides embolic protection during post-

procedure. We believe our MGuatdechnology is clinically superior to drug-elutingsts, due to its lower stent thrombosis rate and
protection from embolic showers during and postepdure.
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In addition to the advantages of the MGu&rtechnology that we believe to exist, the MGudrtbchnology maintains the
deliverability, crossing profile, and dilatationgssure of a conventional stent, and interventioaediologists do not have to undergo extensive
training before utilizing the product.

Insurance Reimbursement

In most countries, a significant portion of a patie medical expenses is covered by third-partyopsy Thirdparty payors can incluc
both government funded insurance programs andtprimaurance programs. While each payor develogsraintains its own coverage and
reimbursement policies, the vast majority of paywase similarly established policies. All of the@ard™ products sold to date have been
designed and labeled in such a way as to faciliteeutilization of existing reimbursement codes] ae intend to continue to design and label
our products in a manner consistent with this goal.

While most countries have established reimbursermaes for stenting procedures, certain countrigg raquire additional clinical
data before recognizing coverage and reimbursefoettie MGuard" products or in order to obtain a higher reimbursenpeice. In these
situations, we intend to complete the requiredicdinstudies to obtain reimbursement approval intges where it makes economic sense to
do so.

In the U.S., once the MGuardCoronary with bio-stable mesh is approved by th®. Bood and Drug Administration, it will be
eligible for reimbursement from the Centers for litade and Medicaid Services, which serve as a beadhfor all reimbursement
codes. While there is no guarantee these codenatithange over time, we believe that the MGuawill be eligible for reimbursement
through both governmental healthcare agencies arsd pnivate insurance agencies in the U.S. oniseapproved by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration.

Intellectual Property
Patents

We have filed nine patent applications in the UWhi&ates (including one that is still in the Pat&abperation Treaty international
phase) covering aspects of MGuard™ technology. We filed corresponding patent applications in @an&hina, Europe, Israel, India and
South Africa, for an aggregate total of 35 pataems pending applications. These patents cover fareaus therapy, knitted stent jackets, ster
and filter assemblies, in vivo filter assembly,inpzed stent jackets, stent apparatuses for trestaia body lumens and methods of use, stent
apparatuses for treatment via body lumens and rdstbbmanufacture and use, and stent apparatusgsdtment of body lumens, among
others. In lay terms, these patents generally cowveparts of our products: the mesh sleeve, withwithout a drug, and the delivery
mechanism of the stent. On October 27, 2010, atery application pertaining tetent apparatus for treatment via body lumens agtthod of
use”, South Africa patent application 2007/1075asvssued as South Africa patent 2007/10751. Oak@ci25, 2011, our patent application
pertaining to “in vivo filter assembly”, U.S. pateapplication 11/582,354, was issued as U.S. P&643,323. On June 13, 2012, our patent
application pertaining to “filter assemblie€hina patent application ZL200780046659.9, waseidsaas China patent ZL200780046659.9. N
of the other patents has been granted to datebalieve these patents, once issued, will covesfalur existing products and be useful for
future technology. We also believe that the paterd have filed, in particular those covering tke af a knitted microfevel mesh sleeve ov
a stent for various indications, would create aiicant barrier for another company seeking to sigglar technology.

To date, we are not aware of other companies tina patent rights to a micron fiber, releasablét&difiber sleeve over a
stent. However, larger, better funded competitova patents relating to the use of drugs to trestenosis, stent architecture, catheters to
deliver stents, and stent manufacturing and cogtingesses as well as general delivery mechanisemtsdike rapid exchange. Stent
manufacturers have historically engaged in sigaiftditigation, and we could be subject to clairhiéringement of intellectual property from
one or more competitors. Although we believe thmgt such claims would be un-founded, such litigatimuld divert attention and resources
away from the development of MGuardstents. Other manufacturers may also challengimtiiectual property that we own, or may own in
the future. We may be forced into litigation to ofththe validity of the claims in our patent pofitip an uncertain and costly process.
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Trademarks

We use the InspireMD and MGuard trademarks. We hegistered these trademarks in Europe. The trad@anaae renewable
indefinitely, so long as we continue to use thelniaiEurope and make the appropriate filings wheguired.

Government Regulation

The manufacture and sale of our products are sutgigegulation by numerous governmental authaitigincipally the European
Union CE Mark, the U.S. Food and Drug Administratand other corresponding foreign agencies.

Sales of medical devices outside the U.S. are sutmdoreign regulatory requirements that vary elydfrom country to country. The
laws and regulations range from simple productstegfion requirements in some countries to complearance and production controls in
others. As a result, the processes and time pergopisred to obtain foreign marketing approval rbaylonger or shorter than those necesse
obtain U.S. Food and Drug Administration markethautzation. These differences may affect the edficiy and timeliness of international
market introduction of our products. For countife¢he European Union, medical devices must displ®E Mark before they may be impor
or sold. In order to obtain and maintain the CElViave must comply with the Medical Device Direi93/42/EEC and pass an initial and
annual facilities audit inspections to 1ISO 134&mdards by an European Union inspection agencyhdVe obtained ISO 13485 quality sys
certification and the products we currently disitédinto the European Union display the required\GEK. In order to maintain certification,
we are required to pass annual facilities audjiéations conducted by European Union inspectors.

As noted below, we currently have distribution &agnents for our products with distributors in thBdi@wing countries: Italy, German
Austria, Czech Republic, Slovakia, France, Slove@igece, Cyprus, Portugal, Spain, Poland, Hundgstgnia, Lithuania, Ukraine, United
Kingdom, Holland, Russia, Latvia, Brazil, Chile, €t@ Rica, Mexico, Argentina, Colombia, India, Sainka, South Africa, Pakistan, Israel,
Uruguay, Venezuela, Ireland, Belarus and Egypt.ai¢esubject to governmental regulation in eacthe$é countries and we are not permitted
to sell all of our products in each of these caestrWhile each of the European Union member c@asméccepts the CE Mark as its sole
requirement for marketing approval, some of theaetries still require us to take additional staperder to gain reimbursement rights for our
products. Furthermore, while we believe that eddh@abovdisted countries that is not a member of the Euaopénion accepts the CE Mz
as its primary requirement for marketing approeakh such country requires additional regulatoguirements for final marketing approval
for MGuard Prime™. Additionally, in Canada, we egquired to pass annual facilities audit inspediparformed by Canadian inspectors.
Furthermore, we are currently targeting additiarmlintries in Europe, Asia, and Latin America. Whdwe that each country that we are
targeting also accepts the CE Mark as its primaguirement for marketing approval. We intend thatresults of the MASTER Trial will
satisfy any additional governmental regulatory iegraents in each of the countries where we culyetiitribute our products and in any
countries that we are currently targeting for exgiam However, even if all governmental regulat@guirements are satisfied in each such
country, we anticipate that obtaining marketingrappl in each country could take as few as threathmor as many as twelve months, due tc
the nature of the approval process in each indalidauntry, including typical wait times for apmtion processing and review, as discussed il
greater detail below.
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MGuard Prime™ received CE Mark approval in the pesm Union in October 2010 and marketing appravédrael in September
2011. We are currently seeking marketing appramaMGuard Prime™ in Brazil, Malaysia, Mexico, Russberbia, Singapore, Argentina,
India, Sri Lanka, Pakistan, South Korea, UkrainelaBus and Canada. We are focused on seeking rimaylegtproval in these countries bece
we believe that these countries represent thegstropportunities for us to grow with respecttio sales. We have determined that other
countries with better organized and capitalizedtheare systems may not present us the same opatufor growth due to the lack of use of
stents in treatment of cardiac episodes and lesnéageous healthcare reimbursement policies, amthray reasons. While each of the
countries in which we are seeking marketing apdrimraMGuard Prime™ accepts the CE Mark as its priyrequirement for marketing
approval and does not require any additional testsh country does require some additional regylagmuirements for marketing approval.
More specifically, for the approval process in Maia, we need to submit an application for reguiatpproval, which we anticipate will be
granted in three months. For the approval proged4eixico, we need to submit an application for tatary approval, which we anticipate will
be granted in twelve months. For the approval me@e Serbia, we need to submit an applicatiomefigulatory approval, which we anticipate
will be granted in four months. For the approvalgass in Singapore, we need to submit an applicédioregulatory approval, which we
anticipate will be granted in ten months. For thpraval process in Argentina, we need to submégplication for regulatory approval, which
we anticipate will be granted in approximately tiveeinonths. For the approval process in India, vegine submit an application for regulatory
approval, which we anticipate will be granted inddmber or December 2012. For the approval proceSsiiLanka, we need to submit an
application for regulatory approval, which we aiptite will be granted in six to twelve months. Boe approval process in Pakistan, we ne:
submit an application for regulatory approval, vitige anticipate will be granted in six to twelvemttts. For the approval process in South
Korea, we need to submit an application for regquiagpproval, which we anticipate will be grantadwo years. For the approval process in
Ukraine, we need to submit an application for ratpry approval, which we anticipate will be grantedix months. For the approval process
in Belarus, we need to submit an application fgutatory approval, which we anticipate will be gigghin six months. For the approval proc
in Canada, we need to submit an application fouleggry approval, which we anticipate will be greshin twelve months. In Israel, where we
received marketing approval in September 2011, Wldbe subject to annual renewal of our marketipgraval. Regulators in Israel may
request additional documentation or other matedatsresults of studies from medical device marufacs such as us as part of the renewal
process. Generally, however, the annual renewalasketing approval is given automatically, barranmaterial change in circumstances or
results. In Russia, we received market approvikinruary 2012. In Chile, we received market apfrforaour previous distributor in
December 2010. We have terminated our relationsfilpour previous distributor in Chile and once aréer into a relationship with a new
distributor, we will be required to submit a newphgation for regulatory approval in Chile, whictevanticipate will be granted twelve months
after our submission for approval.

For the approval process in Brazil, we must comyith Brazilian Good Manufacturing Practice, or GMality system
requirements. ANVISA, Brazil's regulatory agenoyist conduct an inspection of MGuard Prime™ toreitee compliance with Brazil GMP
regulations. Upon successful completion of antaddiVISA will then issue the GMP certificate nesasy to register a medical device in
Brazil. Once we receive the necessary GMP ceatificwe can apply for regulatory approval. Wedcipdite that the approval process in Brazil
will take between one and two years.

Please refer to the table below setting forth thygravals and sales for MGuard™ and MGuard Prime™ oauntry-by-country basis.

Approvals and Sales of MGuard™ and MGuard Prime™ ona Country-by-Country Basis

c . MGuard™ [MGuard™ M(_Suaiﬂ MGua:ﬂ . MGuard™ [MGuard™ MGua:ﬂ M(_Suaiﬂ
ountries Approval [Sales Prime Prime Countries Approval [Sales Prime Prime
Approval [Sales Approval [Sales

Argentina Y Y N N Italy Y Y Y Y
Austria Y Y Y Y Latvia Y Y Y Y
Brazil Y Y N N Lithuania Y Y Y N
Chile N(1) Y N N Malaysia N N N N
Colombia Y Y N N Mexico Y Y N N
Costa Rice Y Y N N Pakistar Y Y N N
Cyprus Y Y Y N Poland Y Y Y Y
Czech Rej Y Y Y N Portugal Y Y Y N

UK Y N Y N Russia Y Y Y Y
Estonia Y Y Y Y Serbia N N N N
France Y Y Y Y Singapore N Y(2) N N
Germany Y Y Y Y Slovakia Y Y Y N
Greece Y Y Y Y Slovenia Y Y Y Y
Holland (Netherlands Y Y Y Y South Africa Y Y N N
Hungary Y Y Y Y Spain Y Y Y Y
India Y Y N N Sri Lanka Y Y N N
Israel Y Y Y Y Ukraine Y Y N N
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1We terminated our relationship with our previoustrdbutor in Chile and we will be required to olstaegulatory approval upon our selection
of a new distributor in Chile.

2 At time the sales were made, we satisfied the stgry requirements in Singapore. The regulatoryiregents in Singapore were
subsequently changed and we no longer meet thgsgements.

In the U.S., the medical devices that will be mawtiired and sold by us will be subject to laws l@galilations administered by the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, including redigdas concerning the prerequisites to commerciaketiang, the conduct of clinical
investigations, compliance with the Quality Systeegulation and labeling. We anticipate that ourddf ™ Coronary plus with bio-stable
mesh product will be classified as a Class |1l mabdevice by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration

A manufacturer may seek market authorization foeaw medical device through the rigorous Premarkgiréval application process,
which requires the U.S. Food and Drug Administratio determine that the device is safe and effedtiv the purposes intended.

We will also be required to register with the UF8od and Drug Administration as a medical devicaufacturer. As such, our
manufacturing facilities will be subject to U.S.deéband Drug Administration inspections for comptianwith Quality System Regulation.
These regulations will require that we manufactureproducts and maintain our documents in a pitestimanner with respect to design,
manufacturing, testing and quality control actasdti As a medical device manufacturer, we will fartbe required to comply with U.S. Food
and Drug Administration requirements regardingrédpeorting of adverse events associated with thefiear medical devices, as well as
product malfunctions that would likely cause or trifiute to death or serious injury if the malfuctiwere to recur. U.S. Food and Drug
Administration regulations also govern product latgeand prohibit a manufacturer from marketing edical device for unapproved
applications. If the U.S. Food and Drug Administratbelieves that a manufacturer is not in compiéawith the law, it can institute
enforcement proceedings to detain or seize prodissise a recall, enjoin future violations and ass#vil and criminal penalties against the
manufacturer, its officers and employees.

Customers

Our customer base is varied. We began shippingmguct to customers in Europe in January 2008hawe since expanded our
global distribution network to Southeast Asia, lndiatin America and Israel. For the six monthseshdune 30, 2012, 75% of our revenue wa
generated in Europe, 8% of our revenue was gemkiratéentral America, 6% of our revenue was geeerat South America, 6% of our
revenue was generated in Asia with the remainingpb®ur revenue generated in the rest of the world.

Our major customers in the six months ended Junp2@I2 were Bosti Trading Ltd., a distributor ire tRussian Federation that
accounted for 22% of our revenues, Euromed DewtadhGmbH, a distributor in Germany that accounted.#% of our revenues, and Kardia
Srl, a distributor in Italy that accounted for 9%war revenues. Our agreement with Bosti Tradingy grants Bosti Trading Ltd. the right to be
the exclusive distributor of MGuard products in the Russian Federation until May 2@isject to the achievement of certain order
minimums. Under our agreement with Bosti Tradind.|.Bosti Trading Ltd. is required to purchase 8,5&ents from us in 2012, 6,000 sten
2013 and 4,000 stents in the first six months di4Q@t a price per stent of 560 Euros, for totalimum order values of 1,960,000 Euros,
3,360,000 Euros and 2,240,000 Euros, respecti@ly.agreement with Euromed Deutschland GmbH gifantemed Deutschland GmbH the
right to be the exclusive distributor of MGuardroducts in Germany until May 2013. Our agreematti Wardia Srl grants Kardia Srl the
right to be the exclusive distributor of MGuarcroducts in Italy until August 2013.
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Our major customers in the twelve months ended Déee 31, 2011 were Kirloskar Technologies (P) Laddjstributor in India that
accounted for 18% of our revenues, Tzamal Jacobistthpa distributor in Israel that accounted f@f4 of our revenues, and Izasa
Distribuciones Tecnicas SA, a distributor in Sphiat accounted for 9% of our revenues. Our agreemith Kirloskar Technologies (P) Ltd.
grants Kirloskar Technologies (P) Ltd. the righb®the exclusive distributor of MGuartproducts in India until May 2013, subject to
achievement of certain order minimums. Under gueament with Kirloskar Technologies (P) Ltd., Kgkar Technologies (P) Ltd. was
required to purchase 15,000 stents from us in 2Bitllis required to purchase 20,000 stents from @912, at a price per stent of $600, for
total minimum order values of $9,000,000 in 201d &t62,000,000 in 2012, respectively. Kirloskar fiaogies (P) Ltd. will also be eligible
to receive free stents representing 15% or 20%efdtal value of stents purchased, depending thmannual volume of the purchases of our
stents. Although Kirloskar Technologies (P) Ltil dot achieve its order minimum for 2011, we dat terminate either our agreement with
Kirloskar Technologies (P) Ltd. or Kirloskar Techogies (P) Ltd.’s right to be the exclusive distiibr of MGuard™ products in India. Our
agreement with Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd. grants Tzdewibsohn Ltd. the right to be the exclusive distdr MGuard™ products in Israel until
December 2012, subject to achievement of certalaraninimums. Under our agreement with Tzamal@sabn Ltd., Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd.
must achieve at least 85% of the following ordemimums: 1,400 stents during the twelve months epiarch 31, 2012 and 1,600 stents
during the twelve months ending March 31, 2013 ptice per stent, per an oral agreement, of 400 ¢or total minimum order values of
560,000 Euros and 640,000 Euros, respectivelymatdacobsohn Ltd. will be granted options to paseh2,029 shares of our common stock
for each $100,000 in sales upon achievement abither minimums. Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd. did not ritsetrder minimum for the twelve
months ended March 31, 2012 and, accordingly, tioapwere granted to Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd. uddelgreement. Our agreement with
Izasa Distribuciones Tecnicas SA grants Izasa iDistiones Tecnicas SA the right to be the excludig&ibutor of MGuard" products in
Spain until May 2012, subject to achievement ofaiterorder minimums. Under our agreement withdzAastribuciones Tecnicas SA, Izasa
Distribuciones Tecnicas SA was required to purcHa8@0 stents from us in 2011, at a price per sief00 Euros, for a total minimum order
value of 2,800,000 Euros in 2011. Izasa Distribnes Tecnicas SA did not achieve its order mininien2011 and was not eligible to receive
free stents pursuant to its agreement; howevedisvaot terminate either our agreement with Izasdribuciones Tecnicas SA or Izasa
Distribuciones Tecnicas SA'’s right to be the exidleglistributor of MGuard" products in Spain. In addition, pursuant to anraaingent to our
agreement with Izasa Distribuciones Tecnicas SésdzDistribuciones Tecnicas SA, through its subsil, was required to purchase 500
MGuard Prime™ stents from us at a price per stei#00 Euros in February 2011. Izasa Distribuciohesnicas SA met its purchase
requirement in February 2011 and received a boh8®free stents. Izasa Distribuciones TecnidaslSo agreed to partner with us in a
study to be conducted in Spain entitled MGuard Erimplementation in STEMI (acute myocardial infaootwith ST elevation). In addition,
other current significant customers are in Germamgentina, and Brazil.

Our major customer in 2010 was Hand-Prod Sp. ZaoRxlish distributor, that accounted for 29% af @venues. We have an
agreement with Hand-Prod Sp. Z 0.0 that grants Hemed Sp. Z 0.0 the right to be the exclusive thistor of MGuard™ products in Poland
until December 2012, subject to achievement ofagexrder minimums. Under our agreement with HRBnold Sp. Z 0.0, Hand-Prod Sp. Z 0.0
was required to purchase 1,500 stents from us1i 20d must purchase 2,500 stents from us in 20X2price per stent of 400 Euro, for total
minimum order values of 600,000 Euro in 2011 ar@,000 Euro in 2012, respectively. Hand-ProdZSp.o did not achieve its order
minimum for 2011 and therefore did not receive fipg stents in 2011, but will be eligible to reaeB00 free stents in 2012 if it achieves the
minimum order values for that year. Although HdPrdd Sp. Z 0.0 did not achieve its order minimum2@11, we did not terminate either our
agreement with Hand-Prod Sp. Z 0.0 or Hand-ProdZSpo’s right to be the exclusive distributor ofadard™ products in Poland. In additic
in 2011, we granted Hand-Prod Sp. Z 0.0 an optiquutchase 12,174 shares of our common stock asdesation for its assistance in
promoting our business in Poland. In May 2012, HBnold Sp. Z 0.0 sent us a termination notice, affedecember 2012, that notified us t
it would not be renewing its exclusive distributiagreement due to an organizational restructuring.
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Manufacturing and Suppliers

We manufacture our stainless steel MGuamstent through a combination of outsourcing andrabseat our own facility. Third
parties in Germany manufacture the base stentaheéter materials, and we add our proprietary méesve to the stent. Our current exclusive
product supplier is QualiMed Innovative Medizinpute GmbH. QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte Gmisth specialized German stent
manufacturer that electro polishes and crimps tiwet ®nto a balloon catheter that creates the foasir MGuard™ stents. QualiMed
Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH has agreed to tasponsibility for verifying and validating the @etstent system by performing the
necessary bench test and biocompatibility testinging the production process, QualiMed Innovatitedizinprodukte GmbH is responsible
for integrating the mesh covered stent with théveey system, sterilization, packaging and labeli®@gr manufacturing agreement with
QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH expiresSieptember 2017, unless earlier terminated byreitiety in the event of breach of
material terms of the agreement, liquidation ofdtteer party, our failure to receive requested pobslfor more than 60 days, a substantiated
intellectual property claim is brought against ttieer party or the development agreement betweepdhies is terminated. The manufactu
agreement provides for a rebate program that resmasdor increases in sales of our products. Cypnmtary mesh sleeve is supplied by
Biogeneral, Inc., a San Diego, California-basecshey polymer manufacturer for medical and engrivegapplications. Natec Medical Ltd.
supplies us with catheters that help create the fmasour MGuard” stents. Our agreement with Natec Medical Ltd. civlihay be terminated
by either party upon six months notice, calls fon+binding minimum orders and discounted cathatpon reaching certain purchasing
thresholds.

Our MGuard Prime™ cobatthromium stent was designed by Svelte Medical 8ystac. We have an agreement with Svelte Me
Systems Inc. that grants us a non-exclusive, wadewcense for production and use of the MGuaichB™ cobalt-chromium stent for the life
of the stent’s patent, subject to the earlier taation of the agreement upon the bankruptcy okeiplarty or the uncured default by either part)
under any material provision of the agreement. 1©yalty payments to Svelte Medical Systems Ine.d&termined by the sales volume of
MGuard Prime™ stents. We will pay a royalty of 786all product sales outside of the U.S. and pimducts sales within the U.S., a rate of
7% for the first $10 million of sales and a ratel6%6 for all sales exceeding $10 million. We walko share with Svelte Medical Systems Inc.
in the cost of obtaining the CE Mark approval, waitlr costs not to exceed $85,000, and the U.S. Baddrug Administration approval, with
our costs not to exceed $200,000. We have mutdahinification obligations with Svelte Medical Sysis Inc. for any damages suffered as &
result of third party actions based upon breaclespesentations and warranties or the failungetdorm certain covenants in the license
agreement, and Svelte Medical Systems Inc. witl aldemnify us for any damages suffered as a reétiftird party actions based upon
intellectual property or design claims againstif@uard Prime™ cobalt-chromium stent.

Our MGuard Prime™ cobalt-chromium stent is beinguafactured and supplied by MeKo Laserstrahl-Maliegarbeitung. Our
agreement with MeKo Laserstrahl-Materialbearbeittorghe production of electro polished L605 baretah stents for MGuard Prime™ is
priced on a pestent basis, subject to the quantity of stentsredie The complete assembly process for MGuardd®Mirincluding knitting an
securing the sleeve to the stent and the crimpiiigeosleeve stent on to a balloon catheter, i ddrour Israel manufacturing site. Once
MGuard Prime™ has been assembled, it is sentdaitization in Germany and then back to Israelffioal packaging.

MGuard™ is manufactured from two main components, the stedtthe mesh polymer. The stent is made out ofless steel or
cobalt chromium. Both of these materials are tgaiailable and we acquire them in the open markie¢ mesh is made from polyethylene
terephthalate (PET). This material is readily Elde in the market as well, because it is usedrfany medical applications. In the event that
our supplier can no longer supply this materidiber form, we would need to qualify another supplwhich could take several months. In
addition, in order to retain the approval of the Ka&rk, we are required to perform periodic auditthe quality control systems of our key
suppliers in order to insure that their productehmir predetermined specifications.

Distributors

We currently have exclusive distribution agreeménmtour CE Mark-approved MGuard™ Coronary with btable mesh with
medical product distributors based in Italy, Gergakustria, Czech Republic, Slovakia, France, Shi@eGreece, Cyprus, Portugal, Spain,
Poland, Hungary, Estonia, Lithuania, Ukraine, Ushikengdom, Holland, Russia, Latvia, Brazil, Chi@gsta Rica, Mexico, Argentina,
Colombia, India, Sri Lanka, South Africa, PakistBeJarus, Croatia, Ireland and Israel. We areenily in discussions with multiple
distribution companies in Europe, Asia, and LatmeXica.
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Current and future agreements with distributonsuséite that while we are responsible for trainimgviding marketing guidance,
marketing materials, and technical guidance, dhistars will be responsible for carrying out locagjistration, marketing activities and sales. Ir
addition, in most cases, all sales costs, includadgs representatives, incentive programs, ankatiag trials, will be borne by the
distributor. Under current agreements, distribsifmirchase stents from us at a fixed price. Oueatiagreements with distributors are for a
term of approximately three years and automatiaaihew for an additional three years unless matlifig either party.

Employees

As of September 1, 2012, we had 65 full-time emeésy Our employees are not party to any colleti@rgaining agreements. We
consider our relations with our employees to bedg®de believe that our future success will depém@art, on our continued ability to attract,
hire and retain qualified personnel.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

There are numerous and varied risks, known andawknthat may prevent us from achieving our goétsi should carefully consider
the risks described below and the other informaitietuded in this Transition Report on Form 10-Kifi¢luding the consolidated financial
statements and related notes. If any of the follgwisks, or any other risks not described belatyally occur, it is likely that our business,
financial condition, and/or operating results cooddmaterially adversely affected. In such cdsetrading price and market value of our
common stock could decline and you may lose paallaf your investment in our common stock. Thes and uncertainties described below
include forward-looking statements and our actaaults may differ from those discussed in thesedod-looking statements.

Risks Related to Our Business

The report of our independent auditors contains arplanatory paragraph as to our ability to continwes a going concern, which could
prevent us from obtaining new financing on reasonakierms or at all

Because we have had recurring losses and negatteflows from operating activities and have sigaift future commitments, the
report of Kesselman & Kesselman, our independedit@ns, with respect to our financial statementduate 30, 2012, December 31, 2011 and
2010, and for the six month period ended June @02 2nd for the years ended December 31, 2011, 28d @009, contains an explanatory
paragraph as to our potential inability to contiasea going concern. This opinion indicates thatandlitors believe that substantial doubt e:
regarding our ability to remain in business. Suclopinion may adversely affect our ability to obtaew financing on reasonable terms or at
all.

We have a history of net losses and may experigntére losses.

To date, we have experienced net losses. A sulatpottion of the expenses associated with ourufeanturing facilities are fixed in
nature (i.e., depreciation) and will reduce ourrafieg margin until such time, if ever, as we doéedo increase utilization of our capacity
through increased sales of our products. The dinitals necessary to support our anticipated gnomill be expensive and lengthy. In
addition, our strategic plan will require a sigoéit investment in clinical trials, product devetegnt and sales and marketing programs, whic
may not result in the accelerated revenue grovahwhe anticipate. Furthermore, we have signifiéature commitments with respect to our
convertible debentures. Since we expect to confimugring negative cash flows from operations anlight of the potential cash requirement
in connection with our convertible debentures, ¢h@an be no assurance that we will ever generatastial revenues or sustain profitability.

We expect to derive our revenue from sales of ouBivard ™ stent products and other products we may develdpve fail to generate
revenue from this source, our results of operatiossd the value of our business would be materiadlyd adversely affected.

We expect our revenue to be generated from salesrdflGuard™ stent products and other products ag develop. Future sales of
these products, if any, will be subject to the igicef regulatory approvals and commercial and ratdkcertainties that may be outside our
control. If we fail to generate such revenues,restlts of operations and the value of our busiaesl securities could be materially and
adversely affected.

If we are unable to obtain and maintain intellectl@roperty protection covering our products, othersy be able to make, use or sell ¢
products, which would adversely affect our reven

Our ability to protect our products from unauthedzor infringing use by third parties depends sarislly on our ability to obtain ai
maintain valid and enforceable patents. Due tdvivg legal standards relating to the patentahiltlidity and enforceability of patents
covering medical devices and pharmaceutical ineestand the scope of claims made under these patemtability to enforce patents is
uncertain and involves complex legal and factuastjons. Accordingly, rights under any of our pegdatents may not provide us with
commercially meaningful protection for our productsafford a commercial advantage against our caitopg or their competitive products or
processes. In addition, patents may not be isBoadany pending or future patent applications odvhg or licensed to us, and moreover,
patents that may be issued to us in the future moape valid or enforceable. Further, even ifdaid enforceable, our patents may not be
sufficiently broad to prevent others from marketprgducts like ours, despite our patent rights.

25




The validity of our patent claims depends, in pantwhether prior art references exist that desasibrender obvious our inventions
of the filing date of our patent applications. Way not have identified all prior art, such as W&d foreign patents or published applications
or published scientific literature, that could achady affect the patentability of our pending patgpplications. For example, patent
applications in the U.S. are maintained in confaefor up to 18 months after their filing. In sonsses, however, patent applications remain
confidential in the U.S. Patent and Trademark @ffiar the entire time prior to issuance as a Uafemt. Patent applications filed in countries
outside the U.S. are not typically published uatileast 18 months from their first filing dateim8arly, publication of discoveries in the
scientific or patent literature often lags behiwtlal discoveries. Therefore, we cannot be cettaihwe were the first to invent, or the first to
file patent applications relating to, our stenttealogies. In the event that a third party hase éiled a U.S. patent application covering our
stents or a similar invention, we may have to pgudite in an adversarial proceeding, known as nfarence, declared by the U.S. Patent anc
Trademark Office to determine priority of inventionthe U.S. It is possible that we may be unsssfte in the interference, resulting in a loss
of some portion or all of our position in the U.Bhe laws of some foreign jurisdictions do not pabtintellectual property rights to the same
degree as in the U.S., and many companies haveieteced significant difficulties in protecting addfending such rights in foreign
jurisdictions. If we encounter such difficultiesare otherwise precluded from effectively protegtour intellectual property rights in forei
jurisdictions, our business prospects could betankially harmed

We may initiate litigation to enforce our patemghis on any patents issued on pending patent afiplis, which may prompt
adversaries in such litigation to challenge théditgl, scope or enforceability of our patents.al€ourt decides that such patents are not valid,
not enforceable or of a limited scope, we may rasehthe right to stop others from using our inva@mgi Also, even if our patents are
determined by a court to be valid and enforcedhky may not be sufficiently broad to prevent ashfeom marketing products similar to ours
or designing around our patents, despite our paiggmis, nor provide us with freedom to operatemyeded by the patent rights of others.

We also rely on trade secret protection to pratectinterests in proprietary know-how and for pissees for which patents are difficult
to obtain or enforce. We may not be able to ptatec trade secrets adequately. In addition, wear non-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with employees, consultants and otligepéo protect, in part, trade secrets and gtheprietary technology. These agreements
may be breached and we may not have adequate esfediany breach. Moreover, others may indepethdédevelop equivalent proprietary
information, and third parties may otherwise gainess to our trade secrets and proprietary knowleday disclosure of confidential data i
the public domain or to third parties could allommpetitors to learn our trade secrets and usenfbemiation in competition against us.

We have limited manufacturing capabilities and mafaecturing personnel, and if our manufacturing fadiies are unable to provide an
adequate supply of products, our growth could bmited and our business could be harmed.

We currently manufacture our MGuard™ stent at agilities in Tel Aviv, Israel, and we have contedttvith QualiMed Innovative
Medizinprodukte GmbH, a German manufacturer, tesagsproduction. If there were a disruption tr @xisting manufacturing facility, we
would have no other means of manufacturing our M@Utastent until we were able to restore the martufarg capability at our facility or
develop alternative manufacturing facilities. K were unable to produce sufficient quantitieswfiMGuard™ stent for use in our current and
planned clinical trials, or if our manufacturingopess yields substandard stents, our developmedntanmercialization efforts would be
delayed.
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We currently have limited resources, facilities axgerience to commercially manufacture our prodaadidates. In order to prodi
our MGuard™ stent in the quantities that we angitgpwill be required to meet anticipated market aedy we will need to increase, or “scale
up,” the production process by a significant facteer the current level of production. There aehhical challenges to scaling-up
manufacturing capacity, and developing commeraalesmanufacturing facilities will require the irsiment of substantial funds and hiring
and retaining additional management and techne@gnnel who have the necessary manufacturing iexgger We may not successfully
complete any required scale-up in a timely mannatall. If unable to do so, we may not be ablproduce our MGuard™ stent in sufficient
guantities to meet the requirements for the lawfdhe product or to meet future demand, if at #llwe develop and obtain regulatory
approval for our MGuard™ stent and are unable toufecture a sufficient supply of our MGuard™ stentr revenues, business and financial
prospects would be adversely affected and we miigraeputational harm, which could further advéyssfect our revenues, business and
financial prospects. In addition, if the scaledpupduction process is not efficient or producests that do not meet quality and other
standards, our future gross margins may declinleo,Aur current and planned personnel, systerosepgures and controls may not be
adequate to support our anticipated growth. laneunable to manage our growth effectively, owiress could be harmed.

Additionally, any damage to or destruction of oet Aviv facilities or its equipment, prolonged pawamitage or contamination at our
facility would significantly impair our ability tproduce MGuard™ stents.

Finally, the production of our MGuard™ stent mustuar in a highly controlled, clean environment tmimize particles and other
yield and qualit-limiting contaminants. In spite of stringent gtatontrols, weaknesses in process control or iimpurities in materials
may cause a substantial percentage of defectivdupt®in a lot. If we are unable to maintain gtent quality controls, or if contamination
problems arise, our clinical development and conerazation efforts could be delayed, which woubttin our business and results of
operations.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration may not app® our investigational device exemption applicatifor a pivotal trial of our MGuard
Coronary with bio-stable mesh, which would preverst from conducting our clinical trials in the Unité States, and even if the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration does grant such approvaljioclinical trials may be more costly and burdenserthan we currently anticipate,
which would limit or delay our ability to completdinical trials and ultimately market our MGuard Cmnary with bio-stable mesh in the
United States.

In connection with our efforts to seek approvabof MGuard Coronary with bio-stable mesh by the. B &d and Drug Administration, we
filed an investigational device exemption applioatwith the U.S. Food and Drug Administration dgrthe summer of 2012 to conduct a
pivotal trial. On August 29, 2012, the U.S. Food &rug Administration issued us a letter disappngvdur investigational device exemption
application due to insufficient data to supportitiigation of a human clinical study. More specéily, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
cited numerous deficiencies in our application whitay require, amongst other things, new and/ceateul testing in order to resolve. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to resbkse deficiencies and secure approval of ourstiagional device exemption application
from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. If t€5. Food and Drug Administration does not apprmweinvestigational device exemption
application, we would be unable to conduct a piMoial of our MGuard Coronary with bio-stable metiereby preventing us from marketing
MGuard Coronary with bio-stable mesh in the UniBdtes. Not being able to market MGuard Coronatli hio-stable mesh in the United
States would have an adverse effect on our busivesgover, even if the U.S. Food and Drug Admiisbn approves an investigational
device exemption application to conduct a pivatal tthe clinical study we conduct may have un@ptted complications and delays, may be
more costly than we currently anticipate, and/oy figél to achieve the primary or secondary endmoifte U.S. Food and Drug Administrat
may approve our investigational device exemptigoliagtion with conditions relating to the scopedesign of our clinical trials for which we
have not planned. These conditions may require gsltect additional data, enroll more patientgrspmore time and expend more resources
than we currently anticipate, and these conditinag make a clinical trial in the United States moostly and time consuming than we
currently plan. Any unanticipated costs and lerafth). S. clinical trials, along with our failure &xhieve primary or secondary endpoints woul
delay, if not prevent, our ability to market our M&d Coronary with bio-stable mesh in the Uniteat&t, which would harm our business.

Clinical trials necessary to support a praarket approval application will be lengthy and expsive and will require the enrollment of a lar
number of patients, and suitable patients may b#idult to identify and recruit. Any such delay dailure of clinical trials could prevent us
from commercializing our stent products, which wabinmaterially and adversely affect our results oferptions and the value of oL
business.

Clinical trials necessary to support a pnarket approval application to the U.S. Food andgDkdministration for our MGuard™ ste
will be expensive and will require the enrollmefiedarge number of patients, and suitable patierayg be difficult to identify and recruit,
which may cause a delay in the development and aiaiization of our product candidates. Clinigals supporting a pre-market approval
applications for the Cypher stent developed by dohr& Johnson and the Taxus Express2 stent devkmpBoston Scientific Corporation,
which were approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Adstriztion and are currently marketed, involved gratipopulations of approximately
1,000 and 1,300, respectively, and a 12-monthviolip period. In some trials, a greater numberatifegmts and a longer follow up period may
be required. The U.S. Food and Drug Administraticay require us to submit data on a greater numheait@nts or for a longer follow-up
period than those for pmearket approval applications for the Cypher stewtthe Taxus Express2 stent. Patient enrollmediirircal trials an
the ability to successfully complete patient folloyw depends on many factors, including the sizéefatient population, the nature of the
protocol, the proximity of patients to clinicalest the eligibility criteria for the clinical tri@nd patient compliance. For example, patients ma
be discouraged from enrolling in our clinical tsidf the trial protocol requires them to undergteesive post-treatment procedures or follopv-
to assess the safety and efficacy of our prodocttiey may be persuaded to participate in conteamgmus clinical trials of competitive
products. In addition, patients participating urr alinical trials may die before completion of thial or suffer adverse medical events unrel
to or related to our products. Delays in patiewbment or failure of patients to continue totpg@pate in a clinical trial may cause an incre



in costs and delays or result in the failure ofcheical trial.

In addition, the length of time required to comelelinical trials for pharmaceutical and medicalide products varies substantially
according to the degree of regulation and the tgpmplexity, novelty and intended use of a prodact can continue for several years and
millions of dollars. The commencement and comepfetf clinical trials for our products under dey@izent may be delayed by many factors,

including governmental or regulatory delays andhges in regulatory requirements, policy and gurdsdior our inability or the inability of al
potential licensee to manufacture or obtain froirdtparties materials sufficient for use in prewal studies and clinical trials.
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Physicians may not widely adopt the MGuard™ stemiess they determine, based on experience, -term clinical data and published peer
reviewed journal articles, that the use of the MGuld™ stent provides a safe and effective alternativeother existing treatments for
coronary artery disease.

We believe that physicians will not widely adope tiGuard™ stent unless they determine, based ceriexge, long-term clinical
data and published peer reviewed journal artithest,the use of our MGuard™ stent provides a safleedfective alternative to other existing
treatments for coronary artery disease, includimgigary artery bypass grafting balloon angioplalstye-metal stents and other drug-eluting
stents, provided by Johnson & Johnson, Boston 8fiteGorporation, Medtronic Inc., Abbott Laborates and others.

We cannot provide any assurance that the datactediérom our current and planned clinical trialf e sufficient to demonstrate
that the MGuard™ stents are an attractive altereati other procedures. If we fail to demonstsatiety and efficacy that is at least
comparable to other drug-eluting stents or bareahst¢nts that have received regulatory approvélthat are available on the market, our
ability to successfully market the MGuard™ stenit @ significantly limited. Even if the data cedited from clinical studies or clinical
experience indicate positive results, each physigiactual experience with our MGuard™ stent walty. Clinical trials conducted with the
MGuard™ stent have involved procedures performeghygicians who are technically proficient and laigh-volume stent
users. Consequently, both short-term and long-tesults reported in these clinical trials may igmigicantly more favorable than typical
results of practicing physicians, which could nagdy affect rates of adoptions of our productse ¥fso believe that published peer-reviewed
journal articles and recommendations and suppoifyential physicians regarding our MGuard™ steiit be important for marke
acceptance and adoption, and we cannot assurdgbwe will receive these recommendations and stpmothat supportive articles will be
published.

In addition, currently, physicians consider drugtielg stents to be the industry standard for treatrof coronary artery
disease. While we believe that the MGuard™ steatsafe and effective alternative, it is not ayeluting stent, which may further hinder its
support and adoption by physicians.

Our products are based on a new technology, andhaee only limited experience in regulatory affairgshich may affect our ability or the
time required to navigate complex regulatory regaeiments and obtain necessary regulatory approvdlsuch approvals are received at
all. Regulatory delays or denials may increase aasts, cause us to lose revenue and materially addersely affect our results of
operations and the value of our business.

Because our products are new and long-term suceeasures have not been completely validated, regylagencies, including the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, may take a digant amount of time in evaluating product appiay@plications. For example, there are
currently several methods of measuring restenoslsage do not know which of these metrics, or coration of these metrics, will be
considered appropriate by the U.S. Food and DrugiAtration for evaluating the clinical efficacy stents. Treatments may exhibit a
favorable measure using one of these metrics ammhfavorable measure using another metric. Anyglan the accepted metrics may result
in reconfiguration of, and delays in, our clinit@hls. Additionally, we have only limited expemiee in filing and prosecuting the applications
necessary to gain regulatory approvals, and onicell, regulatory and quality assurance personmetarrently composed of only 9
employees. As a result, we may experience a legglatory process in connection with obtaining tatpury approvals for our products.

In addition, the products we and any potentialigses license, develop, manufacture and marksuaject to complex regulatory
requirements, particularly in the U.S., Europe Asd, which can be costly and tineensuming. There can be no assurance that sucvaiy
will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. Fagtmore, there can be no assurance of continuegl@zoroe with all regulatory requirements
necessary for the manufacture, marketing and $akegroducts we will offer in each market wheuels products are expected to be sold, or
that products we have commercialized will contitmeomply with applicable regulatory requiremenifsa government regulatory agency w
to conclude that we were not in compliance withliapple laws or regulations, the agency could togtiproceedings to detain or seize our
products, issue a recall, impose operating reiirist enjoin future violations and assess civil arichinal penalties against us, our officers or
employees and could recommend criminal prosecutifanthermore, regulators may proceed to ban,quest the recall, repair, replacemen
refund of the cost of, any device manufacturedott by us. Furthermore, there can be no assuthatall necessary regulatory approvals
be obtained for the manufacture, marketing andisad@y market of any new product developed or &mgt potential licensee will develop
using our licensed technology.
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Even if our products are approved by regulatory hatities, if we or our suppliers fail to comply viitongoing regulatory requirements, or
we experience unanticipated problems with our pratly these products could be subject to restricsiam withdrawal from the market.

Any product for which we obtain marketing approwathe U.S., along with the manufacturing procespest-approval clinical data
and promotional activities for such product, wil subject to continual review and periodic inspetdiby the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration and other regulatory bodies. Intigaitar, we and our suppliers will be required tamply with the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration’s Quality System Regulation for timanufacture of our MGuard™ stent, which coversmieg¢hods and documentation of the
design, testing, production, control, quality aasiee, labeling, packaging, storage and shippirengfproduct for which we obtain marketing
approval in the U.S. The U.S. Food and Drug Adstration enforces the Quality System Regulationufh unannounced inspections. We
and our third-party manufacturers and suppliereh®t yet been inspected by the U.S. Food and Bdiginistration and will have to
successfully complete such inspections before weive U.S. regulatory approval for our productsilife by us or one of our suppliers to
comply with statutes and regulations administengthie U.S. Food and Drug Administration and otlegutatory bodies, or failure to take
adequate response to any observations, could iesalinong other things, any of the following egfment actions:

« warning letters or untitled letters;

« fines and civil penalties;

« unanticipated expenditures;

« delays in approving, or refusal to approve, oudputs;

- withdrawal or suspension of approval by the U.Sd~and Drug Administration or other regulatory hesi
o product recall or seizure;

« orders for physician notification or device repaéiplacement or refund,;
« interruption of production;

« operating restrictions;

« injunctions; and

- criminal prosecution.

If any of these actions were to occur, it couldnhaur reputation and could cause our product saldsprofitability to
suffer. Furthermore, key component suppliers naycarrently be or may not continue to be in corpdie with applicable regulatory
requirements.

Even if regulatory approval of a product is grantethe U.S., the approval may be subject to litiotes on the indicated uses for
which the product may be marketed. If the U.S.d~and Drug Administration determines that our prior@l materials, training or other
activities constitutes promotion of an unapproved,ut could request that we cease or modify @initng or promotional materials or subject
us to regulatory enforcement actions. It is alsssible that other federal, state or foreign ergforent authorities might take action if they

consider our training or other promotional matarial constitute promotion of an unapproved useckvhould result in significant fines or
penalties under other statutory authorities, suclaas prohibiting false claims for reimbursement.
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Moreover, any modification to a device that hagiesd U.S. Food and Drug Administration approvat ttould significantly affect it
safety or effectiveness, or that would constituteagor change in its intended use, design or matwfe, requires a new approval from the (
Food and Drug Administration. If the U.S. Food @wdg Administration disagrees with any determioatby us that new approval is not
required, we may be required to cease marketirig mcall the modified product until approval igaibed. In addition, we could also be
subject to significant regulatory fines or penaltie

Additionally, we may be required to conduct cogttyst-market testing and surveillance to monitorghfety or efficacy of our
products, and we will be required to report advensents and malfunctions related to our productder discovery of previously unknown
problems with our products, including unanticipadelyerse events or adverse events of unanticigatestity or frequency, manufacturing
problems, or failure to comply with regulatory rgg@ments, such as Quality System Regulation, msyltrén restrictions on such products or
manufacturing processes, withdrawal of the prodfiota the market, voluntary or mandatory recailse$, suspension of regulatory approvals
product seizures, injunctions or the impositiortiefl or criminal penalties.

Further, healthcare laws and regulations may chaiygéficantly in the future. Any new healthcaasvks or regulations may adversely
affect our business. A review of our businessdayrts or regulatory authorities may result in sedeination that could adversely affect our
operations. In addition, the healthcare regulagmyironment may change in a way that restrictsoparations.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval in foreign jisdictions will prevent us from marketing our pragtts in such jurisdictions.

We intend to market our products in internationafkets. In order to market our products in otloeeifyn jurisdictions, we must
obtain separate regulatory approvals from thoseioéd in the U.S. and Europe. The approval pragedaries among countries and can
involve additional testing, and the time requiredbtain approval may differ from that requiredttain CE Mark or U.S. Food and Drug
Administration approval. Foreign regulatory apmboprocesses may include all of the risks assatiaith obtaining CE Mark or U.S. Food
and Drug Administration approval in addition to ethisks. We may not obtain foreign regulatoryrapgls on a timely basis, if at all. CE
Mark does not ensure approval by regulatory autilesrin other countries. We may not be able ®ffif regulatory approvals and may not
receive necessary approvals to commercialize amduyats in certain markets.

We operate in an intensely competitive and rapidhanging business environment, and there is a salpsial risk our products could
become obsolete or uncompetitive.

The medical device market is highly competitivee @mpete with many medical service companiesanlls. and internationally in
connection with our current product and productdenrdevelopment. We face competition from numepheamaceutical and biotechnology
companies in the therapeutics area, as well as efitiop from academic institutions, government ages and research institutions. When we
commercialize our products, we expect to face sgesompetition from Cordis Corporation, a subsidiErJohnson & Johnson, Boston
Scientific Corporation, Guidant, Medtronic, Inchott Vascular Devices, Terumo and others. Mostufcurrent and potential competitors,
including but not limited to those listed aboveyéaand will continue to have, substantially greéiteancial, technological, research and
development, regulatory and clinical, manufacturimgrketing and sales, distribution and persoresdurces than we do. There can be no
assurance that we will have sufficient resourcesittcessfully commercialize our products, if anéwthey are approved for sale. The
worldwide market for stent products is charactetipg intensive development efforts and rapidly axvag technology. Our future success
will depend largely upon our ability to anticipated keep pace with those developments and advafeesent or future competitors could
develop alternative technologies, products or nitethat are more effective, easier to use or ,mopmnomical than what we or any potential
licensee develop. If our technologies or prodbetsome obsolete or uncompetitive, our related moskles and licensing revenue would
decrease. This would have a material adversetaffeour business, financial condition and resofltsperations.
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We may become subject to claims by much larger batter capitalized competitors seeking to invaligatur right to our intellectual
property.

Based on the prolific litigation that has occuriedhe stent industry and the fact that we may @osempetitive threat to some large
and well-capitalized companies that own or conpadknts relating to stents and their use, manukaetod delivery, we believe that it is
possible that one or more third parties will asagratent infringement claim against the manufagtuse or sale of our MGuard™ stent based
on one or more of these patents. It is also ptesHilat a lawsuit asserting patent infringement r@hated claims may have already been filed
against us of which we are not aware. A numbéehede patents are owned by very large and weltalggd companies that are active
participants in the stent market. As the numberoofipetitors in the stent market grows, the polisilaf patent infringement by us, or a patent
infringement claim against us, increases.

These companies have maintained their positiohemtarket by, among other things, establishingl@tiial property rights relating
to their products and enforcing these rights agively against their competitors and new entramtis the market. All of the major companies
in the stent and related markets, including Bo&oientific Corporation, Johnson & Johnson and Mwdt, Inc., have been repeatedly invol
in patent litigation relating to stents since asie1997. The stent and related markets haveiexged rapid technological change and
obsolescence in the past, and our competitors $tameg incentives to stop or delay the introducttbnew products and technologies. We
may pose a competitive threat to many of the corggan the stent and related markets. Accordingigny of these companies will have a
strong incentive to take steps, through patemaiton or otherwise, to prevent us from commerziadj our products.

If we fail to maintain or establish satisfactory agements with suppliers, we may not be able to wbiaaterials that are necessary to deve
our products.

We depend on outside suppliers for certain raw rizdée These raw materials or components may Imatys be available at our
standards or on acceptable terms, if at all, andag be unable to locate alternative suppliersrodypce necessary materials or components c
our own.

Some of the components of our products are cugr@ntivided by only one vendor, or a single-sourgepsier. We depend on
QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH, which méactures the body of the stent, MeKo Laserstrabtévialbearbeitung for the laser
cutting of the stent, Natec Medical Ltd. for thgpgly of catheters and Biogeneral Inc. for the fib&e may have difficulty obtaining similar
components from other suppliers that are acceptalilee U.S. Food and Drug Administration or foreiggulatory authorities if it becomes
necessary.

If we have to switch to a replacement supplierwileface additional regulatory delays and the imgption of the manufacture and
delivery of our MGuard™ stent for an extended pabtime, which would delay completion of our atial trials or commercialization of our
products. In addition, we will be required to abtprior regulatory approval from the U.S. Food @rdig Administration or foreign regulatory
authorities to use different suppliers or compos¢hat may not be as safe or as effective. Asualtrgegulatory approval of our products may
not be received on a timely basis or at all.

We may be exposed to product liability claims andurance may not be sufficient to cover these claim

We may be exposed to product liability claims basedhe use of any of our products, or productsriparating our licensed
technology, in clinical trials. We may also be esgd to product liability claims based on the sélany such products following the receipt of
regulatory approval. Product liability claims cdide asserted directly by consumers, hegdite- providers or others. We have obtained pr
liability insurance coverage; however such insueamay not provide full coverage for our future ial trials, products to be sold, and other
aspects of our business. We also have liabilgyriance for our ongoing clinical trial in Europ@surance coverage is becoming increasingly
expensive and we may not be able to maintain cuo@rerages, or expand our insurance coverageshadia future clinical trials or the sale of
products incorporating our licensed technology é@frketing approval is obtained for such products, mgasonable cost or in sufficient amounts
to protect against losses due to product liabdityat all. A successful product liability claim series of claims brought against us could result
in judgments, fines, damages and liabilities tlatld have a material adverse effect on our busjriesscial condition and results of
operations. We may incur significant expense itigaing and defending these claims, even if theyat result in liability. Moreover, even if
no judgments, fines, damages or liabilities aredsgal on us, our reputation could suffer, which ddwdve a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat
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We may implement a product recall or voluntary matkwithdrawal due to product defects or product emtements and modifications,
which would significantly increase our costs.

The manufacturing and marketing of our MGuard™ tspeaducts involves an inherent risk that our piidumay prove to be
defective. In that event, we may voluntarily impkama recall or market withdrawal or may be reqlibeedo so by a regulatory authority. A
recall of one of our products, or a similar prodeatnufactured by another manufacturer, could imgals of the products we market as a
result of confusion concerning the scope of thalter as a result of the damage to our reputgtioguality and safety.

The successful management of operations dependsumability to attract and retain talented personhe

We depend on the expertise of our senior manageamehtesearch personnel, which would be diffiauitaplace. The loss of the
services of any of our senior management could comjse our ability to achieve our objectives. Rarmore, recruiting and retaining
qualified personnel will be crucial to future susse There can be no assurance that we will betalsitract and retain necessary personnel ol
acceptable terms given the competition among med@ace, biotechnology, pharmaceutical and healtacompanies, universities and non-
profit research institutions for experienced mamaget, scientists, researchers, and sales and rimgyleetd manufacturing personnel. If we are
unable to attract, retain and motivate our key qamegl, our operations may be jeopardized and @uitseof operations may be materially and
adversely affected.

We are an international business, and we are exgbs®evarious global and local risks that could hamematerial adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operation:

We operate globally and develop and manufacturdymts in our research and manufacturing facilitiesultiple
countries. Consequently, we face complex legalragdlatory requirements in multiple jurisdictiomjich may expose us to certain financial
and other risks. International sales and operstize subject to a variety of risks, including:

« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

greater difficulty in staffing and managing foreigperations;

« greater risk of uncollectible accounts;

- longer collection cycles;

« logistical and communications challenges;

« potential adverse changes in laws and regulat@gtiges, including export license requirementsidrarriers, tariffs and tax laws;
« changes in labor conditions;

« burdens and costs of compliance with a varietyoofifyn laws;

« political and economic instability;

- increases in duties and taxation;

« foreign tax laws and potential increased costscatam with overlapping tax structures;

« greater difficulty in protecting intellectual prape and
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« general economic and political conditions in thfeseign markets.

International markets are also affected by econgressure to contain reimbursement levels andhezatk costs. Profitability from
international operations may be limited by riskd ancertainties related to regional economic cdéonkt, regulatory and reimbursement
approvals, competing products, infrastructure dgwalent, intellectual property rights protection @l ability to implement our overall
business strategy. We expect these risks wiltimse as we pursue our strategy to expand operattonsew geographic markets. We may
succeed in developing and implementing effectiviecigs and strategies in each location where welgonhbusiness. Any failure to do so may
harm our business, results of operations and finhnondition.

If we fail to obtain an adequate level of reimbursent for our products by third party payors, theneay be no commercially viable marke
for our product candidates or the markets may be ¢chismaller than expectec

The availability and levels of reimbursement by gianmental and other third party payors affect tlaek®t for our product
candidates. The efficacy, safety, performancecastieffectiveness of our product candidates and ofcamypeting products will determine -
availability and level of reimbursement. Reimbuneat and healthcare payment systems in internatinagkets vary significantly by country,
and include both government sponsored healthcat@i@vate insurance. To obtain reimbursement @iy approval in some countries, we
may be required to produce clinical data, which imaplve one or more clinical trials, that compattes cost-effectiveness of our products to
other available therapies. We may not obtain mggonal reimbursement or pricing approvals imaety manner, if at all. Our failure to
receive international reimbursement or pricing appts would negatively impact market acceptanocguofproducts in the international mark
in which those approvals are sought.

We believe that future reimbursement may be sulbgeicicreased restrictions both in the U.S. anidt@rnational markets. There is
increasing pressure by governments worldwide tdasorealth care costs by limiting both the coveragd the level of reimbursement for
therapeutic products and by refusing, in some casgsovide any coverage for products that haweoren approved by the relevant regulator
agency. Future legislation, regulation or reimeuarent policies of third party payors may adversélgct the demand for our products
currently under development and limit our abilibysell our product candidates on a profitable bakisaddition, third party payors continually
attempt to contain or reduce the costs of healéhbgrchallenging the prices charged for healthpamducts and services. If reimbursement fol
our products is unavailable or limited in scopeount or if pricing is set at unsatisfactory lsyeharket acceptance of our products would b
impaired and future revenues, if any, would be asbklg affected.

In the U.S., our business could be significantly dadversely affected by recent healthcare reformiséation and other administration ani
legislative proposals.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act Hiedlth Care and Educational Reconciliation Actia U.S. were enacted into law
in March 2010. Certain provisions of these act$ mot be effective for a number of years and tteeemany programs and requirements for
which the details have not yet been fully estalelisbr consequences not fully understood, anduihddear what the full impacts will be from
the legislation. The legislation does levy a 2 &Rise tax on all U.S. medical device sales begmm 2013. If we commence sales of our
MGuard™ stent in the U.S., this new tax may maligrend adversely affect our business and restltperations. The legislation also focu
on a number of Medicare provisions aimed at imprg\quality and decreasing costs. It is uncertathia point what negative unintended
consequences these provisions will have on padiergss to new technologies. The Medicare prossimciude value-based payment
programs, increased funding of comparative effectdss research, reduced hospital payments foraheideadmissions and hospital acquirec
conditions, and pilot programs to evaluate altévegbtayment methodologies that promote care coatitin (such as bundled physician and
hospital payments). Additionally, the provisionslude a reduction in the annual rate of inflaionhospitals starting in 2011 and the
establishment of an independent payment advisasydoto recommend ways of reducing the rate of gnawtMedicare spending. We cannot
predict what healthcare programs and regulatiofideiultimately implemented at the federal orestatvel in the U.S., or the effect of any
future legislation or regulation. However, any rhes that lower reimbursements for our producteduce medical procedure volumes could
adversely affect our business and results of ojpeisat
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Our strategic business plan may not produce theeimied growth in revenue and operating income.

Our strategies include making significant investtaen sales and marketing programs to achieve tevgnowth and margin
improvement targets. If we do not achieve the etgubbenefits from these investments or othervagidd execute on our strategic initiatives,
we may not achieve the growth improvement we agetang and our results of operations may be aeheedffected.

In addition, as part of our strategy for growth, mvay make acquisitions and enter into strategiarales such as joint ventures and
joint development agreements. However, we maypeatble to identify suitable acquisition candidatesnplete acquisitions or integr
acquisitions successfully, and our strategic atégsnmay not prove to be successful. In this regamguisitions involve numerous risks,
including difficulties in the integration of the epations, technologies, services and productsectiguired companies and the diversion of
management’s attention from other business concektieough our management will endeavor to evauhe risks inherent in any particular
transaction, there can be no assurance that wenejtlerly ascertain all such risks. In additiocgusitions could result in the incurrence of
substantial additional indebtedness and other esqsear in potentially dilutive issuances of eqgsiygurities. There can be no assurance that
difficulties encountered with acquisitions will neave a material adverse effect on our businessnéial condition and results of operations.

We may have violated Israeli securities law.

We may have violated section 15 of the Israeli 88ea Law of 1968. Section 15 of the Israeli S@oes Law of 1968 requires the
filing of a prospectus with the Israel Securitiestifority and the delivery thereof to purchasersdannection with an offer or sale of securities
to more than 35 parties during any 12 month perltt allegedly issued securities to more than 8Bstors during certain 12-month periods,
ending in October 2008. Our wholly-owned subsidigmspireMD Ltd., a private company incorporatedier the laws of the State of Israel,
applied for a no-action determination from the ési@ecurity Authority on February 14, 2011 in coctien with the foregoing. To date, the
Israel Securities Authority has not responded spireMD Ltd.’s application for no-action determiizet and we are unable to predict when a
response will be received. The maximum penaltesiblating section 15 of the Israeli Securitiemna_of 1968 are as follows: imprisonment of
5 years; a fine of up to approximately $317,00Be@aid by management of the violating company;afide of up to approximately
$1,590,000 to be paid by the violating company, afimwhich penalties could result in a material adeeeffect on our operations. We believe
that it is not likely that we will be subject tanés or other penalties on an individual or compawgl.

We will need to raise additional capital to meetrdausiness requirements in the future and such capiraising may be costly or difficult to
obtain and could dilute current stockholders’ owrsdrip interests.

We will need to raise additional capital in theui®t, which may not be available on reasonable temas all. At September 1, 2012,
we had cash on hand of approximately $8.6 millind expect that such funds, together with our incomik be insufficient to fully realize all
of our business objectives. For instance, weng#d to raise additional funds to accomplish thieviong:

. pursuing growth opportunities, including more ragighansion;

. acquiring complementary businesses;
. making capital improvements to improve our infrasture;
. hiring qualified management and key employees;

. developing new services, programming or products;

. responding to competitive pressures;
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. complying with regulatory requirements such asrgieg and registration; and
. maintaining compliance with applicable laws.

Any additional capital raised through the saleandity or equity backed securities may dilute curgnckholders’ ownership
percentages and could also result in a decreabe imarket value of our equity securities.

The terms of any securities issued by us in futaygtal transactions may be more favorable to megstors, and may include
preferences, superior voting rights and the issei@afievarrants or other derivative securities, whitdly have a further dilutive effect on the
holders of any of our securities then outstanding.

Furthermore, any additional debt or equity finagdat we may need may not be available on ternwédhble to us, or at all. If we
are unable to obtain such additional financing ¢simaly basis, we may have to curtail our develophaetivities and growth plans and/or be
forced to sell assets, perhaps on unfavorable temmish would have a material adverse effect onbasiness, financial condition and result
operations, and ultimately could be forced to didicme our operations and liquidate, in which eveist unlikely that stockholders would
receive any distribution on their shares. Furtiarmay not be able to continue operating if wendbgenerate sufficient revenues from
operations needed to stay in business.

In addition, we may incur substantial costs in ping future capital financing, including investmduainking fees, legal fees,
accounting fees, securities law compliance feestipg and distribution expenses and other co¥fe. may also be required to recognize non-
cash expenses in connection with certain secukitessue, such as convertible notes and warrahish may adversely impact our financial
condition.

Risks Related to Operating in Israel

We anticipate being subject to fluctuations in caemcy exchange rates because we expect a substartidion of our revenues will be
generated in Euros and U.S. dollars, while a sigo#dnt portion of our expenses will be incurred indW Israeli Shekels

We expect a substantial portion of our revenuekhgilgenerated in U.S. dollars and Euros, whilgaificant portion of our expenses,
principally salaries and related personnel expensgmid in New Israeli Shekels, or NIS. As a iesue are exposed to the risk that the rate of
inflation in Israel will exceed the rate of devaioa of the NIS in relation to the Euro or the Udsllar, or that the timing of this devaluation
will lag behind inflation in Israel. Because inftai has the effect of increasing the dollar andokasts of our operations, it would therefore
have an adverse effect on our dollar-measuredtsesiibperations. The value of the NIS, againstBhm, the U.S. dollar, and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other thimhanges in Israel’s political and economic comals. Any significant revaluation of the
NIS may materially and adversely affect our casiw§, revenues and financial condition. Fluctuationthe NIS exchange rate, or even
appearance of instability in such exchange rateldcadversely affect our ability to operate ouribass.

If there are significant shifts in the political, @nomic and military conditions in Israel and itsaighbors, it could have a material adver
effect on our business relationships and profitaibjl

Our principal executive offices and our key persrare located in Israel. Our business is diregflgcted by the political, economic
and military conditions in Israel and its neighb@sce the establishment of the State of Isra&bB, a number of armed conflicts have
occurred between Israel and its Arab neighbordafeof hostility, varying in degree and intenshgs caused security and economic problem
in Israel. Although Israel has entered into peagaties with Egypt and Jordan, and various agretnveith the Palestinian Authority, there has
been a marked increase in violence, civil unredttasstility, including armed clashes, between ttateSof Israel and the Palestinians, since
September 2000. The establishment in 2006 of argowvent in the Gaza Strip by representatives oHamas militant group has created
heightened unrest and uncertainty in the regiomith2006, Israel engaged in an armed conflict wiizbollah, a Shiite Islamist militia group
based in Lebanon, and in June 2007, there wascafaéen in violence in the Gaza Strip. From Decen2008 through January 2009, Israel
engaged in an armed conflict with Hamas, which ined missile strikes against civilian targets imioas parts of Israel and negatively affec
business conditions in Israel. Recent politicaisipgs and social unrest in Syria are affectingdbtical stability, which has led to the
deterioration of the political relationship betwegyria and Israel and have raised new concernsdiegesecurity in the region and the poter
for armed conflict. Similar civil unrest and patisil turbulence is currently ongoing in many cowttiin the region. The continued political
instability and hostilities between Israel andnigsghbors and any future armed conflict, terraaigttvity or political instability in the region
could adversely affect our operations in Israel atdersely affect the market price of our sharesoofimon stock. In addition, several count
restrict doing business with Israel and Israeli pames have been and are today subjected to ecomaydotts. The interruption or curtailm
of trade between Israel and its present tradinthpes could adversely affect our business, findrciadition and results of operations.

Our operations could be disrupted as a result oétbbligation of certain of our personnel residing israel to perform military service.

Many of our executive officers and key employeesde in Israel and may be required to perform ahmiigtary reserve duty.
Currently, all male adult citizens and permanestdents of Israel under the age of 40 (or oldepedeing on their position with the Israeli
Defence Forces reserves), unless exempt, are it perform military reserve duty annually anel subject to being called to active duty at
any time under emergency circumstances. Our opesatould be disrupted by the absence for a sagmifiperiod of one or more of our
officers or key employees due to military servigay such disruption could have a material advefexton our business, results of operation:
and financial conditior



We may not be able to enforce covenants not-to-cetepunder current Israeli law.

We have non-competition agreements with all ofemployees, all of which are governed by Israeli.[&ivese agreements generally
prohibit our employees from competing with us orrkinag for our competitors for a specified periodldaving termination of their
employment. However, Israeli courts are reluctardrtforce non-compete undertakings of former eng#syand tend, if at all, to enforce those
provisions for relatively brief periods of timeiiestricted geographical areas and only when thda@me has unique value specific to that
employer’s business and not just regarding thegssibnal development of the employee. Any suchilihato enforce non-compete covenants
may cause us to lose any competitive advantagétiresfrom advantages provided to us by such canfital information.

It may be difficult for investors in the United Stas to enforce any judgments obtained against usoy of our directors or officers

All of our assets are located outside the UnitedeStand we do not currently maintain a permanlecef business within the Unit:
States. In addition, three of our directors anadtiur officers are nationals and/or residentsafntries other than the United States, and all o
a substantial portion of such persons’ assetsoaetdd outside the United States. As a resultait be difficult for investors to enforce within
the United States any judgments obtained against asy of our non-U.S. directors or officers, imtihg judgments predicated upon the civil
liability provisions of the securities laws of thimited States or any state thereof. Additionaiynay be difficult to assert U.S. securities law
claims in actions originally instituted outsidetbé United States. Israeli courts may refuse to Bad S. securities law claim because Israeli
courts may not be the most appropriate forums iichvto bring such a claim. Even if an Israeli ccagtees to hear a claim, it may determine
that the Israeli law, and not U.S. law, is applieab the claim. Further, if U.S. law is found te aépplicable, certain content of applicable U.S.
law must be proved as a fact, which can be a toresuming and costly process, and certain matfggsoedure would still be governed by
Israeli law. Consequently, you may be effectivalgyented from pursuing remedies under U.S. federdlIstate securities laws against us or
any of our non-U.S. directors or officers.

The tax benefits that are available to us require to continue meeting various conditions and maytbeminated or reduced in the future,
which could increase our costs and taxes.

The tax benefits that are available to us requsreolcontinue meeting various conditions and matebminated or reduced in the
future, which could increase our costs and taxespite Ltd. has been granted a “Beneficiary Entsgfistatus by the Investment Center in the
Israeli Ministry of Industry Trade and Labor whiatade us eligible for tax benefits under the Israal for the Encouragement of Capital
Investments, 1959. In order to remain eligibletfar tax benefits of a “Beneficiary Enterprise”, me@st continue to meet certain conditions
stipulated in the Israeli Law for the EncouragenwdCapital Investments, 1959 and its regulati@ssamended, which may include, among
other things, making specified investments in figsdets and equipment, financing a percentagesé timvestments with our capital
contributions, filing certain reports with the Irstment Center, complying with provisions regardimgllectual property and the criteria set
forth in the specific certificate of approval isdugy the Investment Center or the Israel Tax Autholf we do not meet these requirements,
tax benefits could be cancelled and we could baired to refund any tax benefits that we receivethe past. Further, in the future, these tax
benefits may be reduced or discontinued. If thagdenefits are cancelled, our Israeli taxablernmeovould be subject to regular Israeli
corporate tax rates. The standard corporate teXeoatisraeli companies in 2011 was 24% of theiakde income and was increased to 25% in
2012. In the future, we may not be eligible to reeedditional tax benefits under the Israeli Lawthe Encouragement of Capital Investme
1959. The termination or reduction of these taxefiesnwould increase our tax liability, which wouleduce our profits.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Our Common Sick
We are subject to financial reporting and other ngigements that place significant demands on our oesces.

On March 31, 2011, we became subject to reportimgadher obligations under the Securities Exchakgeof 1934, as amended,
including the requirements of Section 404 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002. Section 404 requiresousohduct an annual management
assessment of the effectiveness of our internatalgrover financial reporting and to obtain a nefxy our independent auditors addressing
these assessments. These reporting and othertaiigplace significant demands on our managenaeimjnistrative, operational, internal
audit and accounting resources. Any failure to nadineffective internal controls could have a miateadverse effect on our business, oper:
results and stock price. Moreover, effective indkigontrol is necessary for us to provide relidgbiancial reports and prevent fraud. If we
cannot provide reliable financial reports or preveaud, we may not be able to manage our busiageffectively as we would if an effective
control environment existed, and our business apdtation with investors may be harmed.

There are inherent limitations in all control systes, and misstatements due to error or fraud mayurcand not be detected.

The ongoing internal control provisions of Sectitfi# of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 require udeatify of material weaknesses
in internal control over financial reporting, whitha process to provide reasonable assurancelirgdhe reliability of financial reporting for
external purposes in accordance with accountimgpmies generally accepted in the U.S. Our managgnreluding our chief executive offic
and chief financial officer, does not expect that imternal controls and disclosure controls withyent all errors and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operai@u provide only reasonable, not absolute, asserduat the objectives of the control
system are met. In addition, the design of a cosirstem must reflect the fact that there are nesooonstraints and the benefit of controls 1
be relative to their costs. Because of the inhdnanitiations in all control systems, no evaluatmincontrols can provide absolute assurance the
all control issues and instances of fraud, if anygur company have been detected. These inhengitations include the realities that
judgments in decisic-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can doeoause of simple errors or mistakes. Furtheitralsncan be
circumvented by individual acts of some persons;dilusion of two or more persons, or by managerogatride of the controls. The desigr
any system of controls is also based in part upotain assumptions about the likelihood of futurergs, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its statedgaader all potential future conditions. Over tiraecontrol may be inadequate because of
changes in conditions, such as growth of the compaimcreased transaction volume, or the degremwipliance with the policies



procedures may deteriorate. Because of inhereitations in a cost-effective control system, mis=taents due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected.

In addition, discovery and disclosure of a matesiehkness, by definition, could have a materiakasky impact on our financial
statements. Such an occurrence could discouratgrceustomers or suppliers from doing businesk w#, cause downgrades in our debt
ratings leading to higher borrowing costs and affesv our stock trades. This could in turn negayiadfect our ability to access public debt or
equity markets for capital.
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Because we became public by means (‘reverse merger,” we may not be able to attract @tention of major brokerage firms.

There may be risks associated with us becominggthobugh a “reverse merger” with a shell compahiyhough the shell company
did not have recent or past operations or assetsvarperformed a due diligence review of the stfhpany, there can be no assurance th:
will not be exposed to undisclosed liabilities déiag from the prior operations of the shell compaS8ecurities analysts of major brokerage
firms and securities institutions may also not fiewcoverage of us because there were no brddalers who sold our stock in a public offe
that would be incentivized to follow or recommehd purchase of our common stock. The absence bfresearch coverage could limit
investor interest in our common stock, resultingéecreased liquidity. No assurance can be givanetstablished brokerage firms will, in the
future, want to cover our securities or conduct segondary offerings or other financings on ourdtfeh
Our stock price has been and may continue to beatitd, which could result in substantial losses favestors.

The market price of our common stock has been sfiklely to continue to be highly volatile and cddiluctuate widely in response to
various factors, many of which are beyond our ainincluding the following:

« technological innovations or new products and se/by us or our competitors;
« additions or departures of key personnel,

« sales of our common stock, particularly under agistration statement for the purposes of sellmgather securities,
including management shart

« limited availability of freely-tradable “unrestrad” shares of our common stock to satisfy purcloaders and demand,;
« our ability to execute our business plan;

« operating results that fall below expectations;

« loss of any strategic relationship;

« industry developments;

« economic and other external factors; and

o  period-to-period fluctuations in our financial résu

In addition, the securities markets have from ttmé@me experienced significant price and volumetlations that are unrelated to
operating performance of particular companies. &maarket fluctuations may also significantly affdet market price of our common stock.

We may be subject to penny stock rules which widlka the shares of our common stock more difficudtgell.

We may be subject to the Securities and Exchangen@ssion’s “penny stock” rules. Penny stocks galeare equity securities
with a per share price of less than $5.00. Thepstock rules require broker-dealers to delivstaadardized risk disclosure document
prepared by the Securities and Exchange Commisisadrprovides information about penny stocks aedniditure and level of risks in the pe
stock market. The broker-dealer must also prothéecustomer with current bid and offer quotatifsrghe penny stock, the compensation of
the broker-dealer and its salesperson, and moatidgunt statements showing the market value of pachy stock held in the customer’s
account. The bid and offer quotations, and thé&dralealer and salesperson compensation informatigst be given to the customer orally or
in writing prior to completing the transaction amdist be given to the customer in writing beforeviih the customer’s confirmation.

36




In addition, the penny stock rules require thabiptd a transaction the broker-dealer must makeeaial written determination that the
penny stock is a suitable investment for the pwsehand receive the purchaser’'s written agreemehgttransaction. The penny stock rules
are burdensome and may reduce purchases of amingffeind reduce the trading activity for shareswosfcommon stock. To the extent our
shares of common stock are subject to the penmck stibes, the holders of such shares of commorkstay find it more difficult to sell their
securities.

There is, at present, only a limited market for ooommon stock and we cannot ensure investors thatative market for our common stoc
will ever develop or be sustained.

Our shares of common stock are thinly traded. @uge illiquidity, the market price may not acataly reflect our relative
value. There can be no assurance that there evdhbactive market for our shares of common stahkrenow or in the future. Because our
common stock is so thinly traded, a large blockladres traded can lead to a dramatic fluctuatidhershare price and investors may not be
able to liquidate their investment in us at albba price that reflects the value of the businsaddition, our common stock currently trade:
the OTC Bulletin Board, which generally lacks tigpiidity, research coverage and institutional inge$ollowing of a national securities
exchange like the NYSE MKT, the New York Stock Eanbe or the Nasdaq Stock Market. While we interlgst@mur common stock on a
national securities exchange once we satisfy titialifisting standards for such an exchange, weerily do not, and may not ever, satisfy <
initial listing standards.

Our board of directors can authorize the issuancepoeferred stock, which could diminish the rightsf holders of our common stock, and
make a change of control of us more difficult evért might benefit our stockholders.

Our board of directors is authorized to issue shafgreferred stock in one or more series anitthé voting powers, preferences
and other rights and limitations of the preferremtk. Accordingly, we may issue shares of prefégtck with a preference over our common
stock with respect to dividends or distributionsligaidation or dissolution, or that may otherwagversely affect the voting or other rights of
the holders of common stock. Issuances of prafesteck, depending upon the rights, preferencegdesmnations of the preferred stock, may
have the effect of delaying, deterring or prevemtinchange of control, even if that change of admhight benefit our stockholders.

Offers or availability for sale of a substantial maber of shares of our common stock may cause thiegof our common stock to decline.

Sales of a significant number of shares of our comstock in the public market could harm the magtéte of our common stock a
make it more difficult for us to raise funds thrbufyiture offerings of common stock. There are 4,628 shares of our common stock issuable
upon the conversion of our outstanding convertildbentures and the exercise of our outstandingawgsirall of which are currently registered
for resale. In addition, there are 14,819,736 shaf®@ur common stock currently saleable under Rd#e The availability of these shares of
our common stock for resale in the public market the potential to cause the supply of our commaocksto exceed investor demand, thereby
decreasing the price of our common stock.

In addition, if our stockholders sell substansimlounts of our common stock in the public markparuthe expiration of any statutory
holding period under Rule 144, upon the expiratiblock-up periods applicable to outstanding shavesipon the exercise of outstanding
options or warrants, it could create a circumstairmwemonly referred to as an “overhang” and in d@odition of which the market price of our
common stock could fall. The existence of an oveghavhether or not sales have occurred or are dogyicould also make it more difficult
for us to raise additional financing through thke s# equity or equityrelated securities in the future at a time andeptfiat we deem reasona
or appropriate.

We do not expect to pay dividends in the future.adAsesult, any return on investment may be limitidthe value of our common stock.
We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on oumraon stock in the foreseeable future. The paymkdividends on our common
stock will depend on our earnings, financial coieditand other business and economic factors abaand of directors may consider relevant.

If we do not pay dividends, our common stock mayelss valuable because a return on an investmenirinommon stock will only occur if
our stock price appreciates.
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Risks Related to our Convertible Debentures

Our obligations to the holders of our convertibleldentures are secured by all of our assets, soefdgfault on those obligations, the
convertible debenture holders could foreclose orr assets.

The holders of our convertible debentures havecaritg interest in all of our assets and thosewfsubsidiaries. As a result, if we
default under our obligations to the convertibleelgure holders, the convertible debenture holdeutd foreclose on their security interests
and liquidate some or all of these assets, whichidvbarm our business, financial condition and ltesef operations.

Our convertible debentures and the associated siims purchase agreement contain covenants thatlddimit our financing options and
liquidity position, which would limit our ability ® grow our business.

The terms of our convertible debentures could mgative consequences to us, such as:

. we may be unable to obtain additional financinéuttd working capital, operating losses, capitalengitures or acquisitions
on terms acceptable to us, or at

. we may be unable to refinance our indebtedneseramstacceptable to us, or at all; and
. we may be more vulnerable to economic downturnsliamitiour ability to withstand competitive presssr

Additionally, covenants in our convertible debeetiand the associated securities purchase agreanperse operating and financial
restrictions on us. These restrictions prohibiirait our ability, and the ability of our subsidies, to, among other things:

. pay cash dividends to our stockholders;

. redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire more thi@manimis number of shares of our common stoatoonmon stock
equivalents

. incur additional indebtedness;

. permit liens on assets or conduct sales of assets;

. effectuate stock splits until April 5, 2013, excé@ptonnection with an initial listing on a natidis&curities exchange or to

meet the continued listing requirements of suctharge;

. cease making public filings under the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended;
. engage in transactions with affiliates; and
. amend our charter documents in a way that woul@nady and adversely affect any holder of our centible debentures.

These restrictions may limit our ability to obtadditional financing, withstand downturns in ousimess or take advantage of
business opportunities. Moreover, additional defatrfcing we may seek may contain terms that inciodee restrictive covenants, may reqt
repayment on an accelerated schedule or may imgibse obligations that limit our ability to grow iobusiness, acquire needed assets, or tak
other actions we might otherwise consider appropioa desirable.
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The conversion of our convertible debentures aneé txercise of the warrants issued to the purchasarseur convertible debentures would
have a dilutive impact on our existing stockholders

As of the date of this Transition Report on FormKIU, there were 1,748,312 shares of common stodetlying our convertible
debentures and 913,944 shares of common stocklyimgewarrants that were issued to purchasers gmement agents in connection with
issuance of the convertible debentures, for a tfta|662,256 shares of common stock. If and wkendd, these additional 2,662,256 shares
common stock will equal approximately 15.6% of then outstanding shares of common stock, and wiouttediately dilute our current
stockholders in terms of ownership percentage atidgy power. The terms of the convertible deberstared related warrants contain
provisions that restrict the amount of shares ddrotan receive upon conversion or exercise td’4.8Bthe then outstanding number of share:
of our common stock. However, these restrictionsaioprevent the holders from selling some of theidings and then receiving additional
shares. In this way, the holders could sell moas tihese limits while never holding more than thets. As a result, even with the restrictions,
the holders of these convertible debentures andawtr could ultimately convert and exercise, amah thell, the full amount issuable upon
conversion and exercise of the convertible debestand warrants, respectively, in which case otrentstockholders would suffer the full
amount of dilution.

The holders of our convertible debentures mightdigle to exert substantial influence over us in teeent that Sol J. Barer, Ph.D. ceases to
remain our chairman.

Under the terms of the securities purchase agregpuesuant to which our convertible debentures wgetd, if Sol J. Barer, Ph.D.
ceases to serve as our chairman due to Dr. Bas=ignation following a material adverse changgnécondition of Dr. Barer or any member
of Dr. Barer’'s immediate family or the vote or weit consent of independent stockholders, we woellcehuired to appoint two persons to our
board of directors designated by Genesis Capitalsdds LLC, the investment advisor to our lead stees in the convertible debenture
offering, and support the election of such persarig the convertible debentures are either repaidonverted in full. In addition, in the event
that Dr. Barer ceases to serve as our chairmaanfpother reason while the convertible debenture®atstanding, it would be an event of
default under the convertible debentures, whicHdcoesult in the acceleration of our convertibl®deletures at the election of the holders of
60% of the outstanding principal of the convertitddbentures, an amount that Genesis Capital AdvIS0€ presently controls. As a result,
Genesis Capital Advisors LLC, or its assigns, hineepotential to exert substantial influence ouarmanagement and governance in the evel
Dr. Barer ceases to serve as our chairman andlagyexert such influence in a manner that is nosistent with the best interests of our
common stockholders.

We may default upon our obligations under our comtible debentures.

The holders of our convertible debentures may requs to redeem our convertible debentures aftestiec 5, 2013 or upon the
occurrence of an event of a default under our cxitke debentures for 112% of the then outstangirigcipal amount, plus all accrued inter
In the event that we are required to redeem soradl of our convertible debentures, we may not hewféicient resources to do so and we may
have to seek additional debt or equity financingdeer the costs of redeeming our convertible dielses. Any additional debt or equity
financing that we may need may not be availableeams favorable to us, or at all. Because our akiligs under our convertible debentures
secured by a security interest in substantiallpBtur assets and properties, if we cannot repaybligations under our convertible
debentures, the holders of our convertible debestaray have claims against, and ultimately maycfose upon and take possession of,
substantially all of our assets and propertiesuich an event, the holders of our convertible dielves would have control of our company.

Risks Related to Our Intended Reverse Stock Split

There can be no assurance that we will be able tetnall of the requirements for listing our commatock on any national securities
exchange or to meet the continued listing standaadsany national securities exchange after a reverstock split.

Each national securities exchange has numeroua isting requirements applicable to the listioigour common stock and its
continued listing thereafter. We cannot assuretiiatiour common stock will be accepted for listotga national securities exchange follow
the reverse stock split or that we will maintairgiance with all of the requirements for our conmstock to remain listed. Moreover, there
can be no assurance that the market price of aummm stock after the reverse stock split will atjosreflect the decrease in common stock
outstanding or that the market price following aemse stock split will either exceed or remainxeeass of the current market price.

If the reverse stock split is implemented, the riisig per-share price may not attract institutional investrinvestment funds or brokers and
may not satisfy the investing guidelines of thesgéstors or brokers, and consequently, the tradiiggidity of common stock may not
improve.

While we believe that a higher share price may lelperate investor and broker interest in our comstock, the reverse stock split
may not result in a share price that will attratitutional investors or investment funds or $gatike investing guidelines of institutional
investors, investment funds or brokers. A declmthie market price of our common stock after therse stock split may result in a greater
percentage decline than would occur in the absehttes reverse stock split. If the reverse stodk &pimplemented and the market price of
our common stock declines, the percentage declmeba greater than would occur in the absenceeofeherse stock split. The market pric
our common stock is also based on our performandether factors, which are unrelated to the nurobshares of common stock
outstanding.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Transition Report on Form 10-K/T containsrfard-looking statements,” which include informatielating to future events,
future financial performance, strategies, expeatati competitive environment and regulation. Waish as “may,” “should,” “could,”
“would,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” “expets,” “anticipates,” “future,” “intends,” “plans,’believes,” “estimates,” and similar
expressions, as well as statements in future téhsetify forward-looking statements. Forward-loofistatements should not be read as a
guarantee of future performance or results andpsilbably not be accurate indications of when qeatiormance or results will be achieved.
Forward-looking statements are based on informatiernave when those statements are made or oulgergeat’'s good faith belief as of that
time with respect to future events, and are sultjeasks and uncertainties that could cause ageidbrmance or results to differ materially
from those expressed in or suggested by the forleaking statements. Important factors that cauddse such differences include, but are nc
limited to:

. adverse economic conditions and/or intense conitit

. loss of a key customer or supplier;

. entry of new competitors and products;

. adverse federal, state and local government regajah the U.S., Europe or Israel;
. failure to adequately protect our intellectual mp;

. inadequate capital;

. technological obsolescence of our products;

. technical problems with our research and products;

. price increases for supplies and components;

. inability to carry out research, development anchicercialization plans;

. loss or retirement of key executives and reseasigmssts and other specific risks; and

the uncertainty regarding the adequacy of our ditqyito pursue our complete business objectives.

You should review carefully the risks and uncetiasdescribed under the heading “Item 1A. Riskéat in this Transition Report
on Form 10-K/T for a discussion of these and otts#s that relate to our business and investirghares of our common stock. The forward-
looking statements contained in this Transition&®epn Form 10-K/T are expressly qualified in thestirety by this cautionary statement. We
do not undertake any obligation to publicly updatg forward-looking statement to reflect eventsioccumstances after the date on which any
such statement is made or to reflect the occurrehoaanticipated events.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.
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Item 2. Properties.

Our headquarters are located in Tel Aviv, Israd¢lere we currently have a 1,000 square meter dicitity and a 420 square meter
manufacturing facility that employs 26 manufactgrpersonnel and has the capacity to manufacturessemble 5,000 stents per month,
should we hire more employees. We believe thatauwent facility is sufficient to meet anticipatedure demand by adding additional shift:
our current production schedule.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we may be involved in litigatitirat arises through the normal course of businksef the date of this filing, we
are not a party to any material litigation nor aeaware of any such threatened or pending libgagxcept for the matters described below.

On November 2, 2010, Eric Ben Mayor, a former seaiployee of InspireMD Ltd., filed suit in Regidrabor Court in Tel Aviv,
claiming illegal termination of employment and \var$ amounts in connection with his terminationjuding allegations that he is owed salz
payments to pension fund, vacation pay, sick dsggerance pay, commission for revenues and otpestyf funds. In total, Mr. Ben Mayor
sought $428,000, additional compensation for hgldiack wages, and options to purchase 507,256sshfimeir common stock at an exercise
price of $0.004 per share. InspireMD Ltd. filedatice in Regional Labor Court indicating that theetjes rejected a court proposal for
mediation and a second preliminary hearing was deldovember 3, 2011. In June 2012, InspireMD tg¢dched a settlement agreement with
Mr. Ben Mayor, pursuant to which InspireMD Ltd. ga¥#r. Ben Mayor $88,000 in exchange for Mr. Ben Miagigning a mutual petition
requesting the dismissal of his suit. The mutuétipa dismissing Mr. Ben Mayor’s suit against limgglMD Ltd. was granted by the Regional
Labor Court on July 6, 2012.

Other than as set forth above, there are no mhprdeeedings in which any of our directors, offeer affiliates or any registered or
beneficial shareholder of more than 5% of our comistock is an adverse party or has a materialéatedverse to our interest.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure.

Not applicable.

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Ehty Securities.

Our common stock has been quoted on the OTC BulBdard since April 11, 2011 under the symbol NSFER. Prior to that date,
there was no active market for our common stodke fbllowing table sets forth the high and low piites for our common stock for the
periods indicated, as reported by the OTC BullBtdiard. The quotations reflect inter-dealer priegighout retail mark-up, mark-down or
commission, and may not represent actual transectio

Fiscal Year 2011 High Low

Second Quarte $ 115¢ $ 7.0C
Third Quartel $ 10.9¢ % 7.2C
Fourth Quarte $ 10.3¢ S 6.4(
Fiscal Year 2012 High Low

First Quartel $ 86( $ 4.4C
Second Quarte $ 74C % 2.4C

The last reported sales price of our common stocthe OTC Bulletin Board on September 10, 2012, $&6 per share. As of
September 10, 2012, there were approximately 1&&hoof record of our common stock.
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Dividend Policy

In the past, we have not declared or paid casldeids on our common stock, and we do not intepayoany cash dividends on our
common stock. Rather, we intend to retain futaeiegs, if any, to fund the operation and expamsioour business and for general corporat
purposes.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with “Part ll—ItemManagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtiems” and “Part Il—Financial Statements and Sepmntary Data.” The balance sheet
data at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, 2@1RA09 and the statement of operations data éosithmonths ended June 30, 2012 and
each of the three years ended December 31, 2010,&@ 2009 have been derived from the audited didased Financial Statements for
such years, included in and “Part Il—Financial &ta¢nts and Supplementary Data.” The balance dagett December 31, 2008 and 2007,
and the statement of operations data for eachedfitb years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 lerederived from our books and
records.

Statement of Operations Data

Six Months
Ended June Year Ended December 31
30, 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Revenue: 2,071 6,00¢ 4,94¢ 3,411 - -
Cost of Revenue 1,37 3,011 2,69¢ 2,291 404 32¢
Gross Profit (Loss 694 2,99: 2,25: 1,12C (4049) (329
Gross Margir 34% 50% 46% 33% 0 0
Total Operating Expens: 7,852 16,72: 5,472 3,831 5,621 5,90¢
Net Loss (7,08)) (14,66%) (3,420 (2,729 (6,495 (6,13¢)
Basic and Diluted loss per common sk (0.40 (0.9¢) (0.2¢) (0.29) (0.5€) (0.5¢€)

Basic and Diluted common shares outstant 17,044,222 15,359,92 12,308,63 11,914,71 11,591,18 10,661,78

Balance Sheet Data

June 30, December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 0720
Cash, Cash equivalents and short term dep 10,28¢ 5,094 63€ 37€ 1,571 2,71
Restricted Cas 37 91 25C 30z 30 34
Working Capital 10,75¢ 6,38¢ (53 (1,289 58¢ 2,62t
Total Asset: 16,01« 10,46¢ 4,35¢ 4,50¢ 4,44¢ 3,928
Long-Term Obligations 7,07¢ 27C 1,32¢ 484 89¢ 87
Sharehold¢'s Equity 5,38¢ 6,75¢ (9149) (1,339 134 2,94¢

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should bad in conjunction with the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial stat#s and related notes included elsewhere inTitaasition Report on Form 10-K/T.
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Overview

We are a medical device company focusing on theldpment and commercialization of our proprietagnsplatform technology,
MGuard™. MGuard™ provides embolic protection imsiteg procedures by placing a micron mesh sleeeg astent. Our initial products are
marketed for use mainly in patients with acute narg syndromes, notably acute myocardial infarcflweart attack) and saphenous vein graft
coronary interventions (bypass surgery).

On March 31, 2011, we completed a series of sharieamge transactions pursuant to which we acqaillexf the capital stock of
InspireMD Ltd., a company formed under the lawshef State of Israel, in exchange for an aggredai® 666,665 shares of our common
stock. As a result of these share exchange traosactnspireMD Ltd. became our wholly-owned sulzsigl we discontinued our former
business and succeeded to the business of InspitgMas our sole line of business.

The share exchange transactions were accounted frecapitalization. InspireMD Ltd. is the acquiior accounting purposes and
we are the acquired company. Accordingly, the hisabfinancial statements presented and the dison®f financial condition and results of
operations herein are those of InspireMD Ltd. aattively restated for, and giving effect to, thamioer of shares received in the share
exchange transactions, and do not include therfgatdinancial results of our former business. Heeumulated earnings of InspireMD Ltd.
were also carried forward after the share exch#magsactions and earnings per share have beeacttaly restated to give effect to the
recapitalization for all periods presented. Operatireported for periods prior to the share excharansactions are those of InspireMD Ltd.

On October 31, 2011, our stockholders authorizedhoard of directors to amend our amended andtegstartificate of incorporatic
to effect a reverse stock split of our common statcé ratio of one-for-two to one-for-four, at aime prior to our 2012 annual stockholders’
meeting, the exact ratio of the reverse stock splite determined by the board. All share numbrethis Amendment No. 1 have been change
to reflect the one-for-four reverse stock splitttvas effected by the Company on December 21, 2012.
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Critical Accounting Policies
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith generally accepted accounting principlethia U.S. requires managemen
make estimates using assumptions that affect frerted amounts of assets and liabilities, the d&ale of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the regamounts of sales and expenses during the nep@eiriods. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

As applicable to these consolidated financial stetets, the most significant estimates and assungptiate to inventory write-off,
provisions for returns, legal contingencies, estiameof the fair value of share-based compensatimhestimation of the fair value of warrants.

Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic environmentirich our operations are conducted is the U.Sad@!$” or “dollar”).
Accordingly, the functional currency of us and of subsidiaries is the dollar.

The dollar figures are determined as follows: teatiosns and balances originally denominated inadslare presented in their original
amounts. Balances in foreign currencies are traatsiato dollars using historical and current exg®@rates for non-monetary and monetary
balances, respectively. The resulting translati@ngor losses are recorded as financial inconexpense, as appropriate. For transactions
reflected in the statements of operations in for@grrencies, the exchange rates at transacti@s da¢ used. Depreciation and changes in
inventories and other changes deriving from non-gtemy items are based on historical exchange rates.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifglin an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

In determining fair value, we use various valua@@proaches, including market, income and/or gogtaaches. Hierarchy for inputs
is used in measuring fair value that maximizesuhe of observable inputs and minimizes the usaobservable inputs by requiring that the
most observable inputs be used when available.r@dsle inputs are inputs that market participantsiié use in pricing the asset or liability
developed based on market data obtained from seirdependent of us. Unobservable inputs are irthatseflect our assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pgitive asset or liability developed based on théib&smation available in the
circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down integtevels based on the reliability of inputs.

Concentration of credit risk and allowance for dotfbl accounts

Financial instruments that may potentially subjesto a concentration of credit risk consist ohc&sish equivalents and restricted
cash, which are deposited in major financial insitins in the U.S., Israel and Germany, and tradewunts receivable. Our trade accounts
receivable are derived from revenues earned frastomers from various countries. We perform ongairgglit evaluations of our customers’
financial condition and, generally, require no atdral from our customers. We also have a creslitramce policy for some of our customers.
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsikedde based upon the expected ability to colleetaccounts receivable. We review our
allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly by assgssdividual accounts receivable and all othdabees based on historical collection
experience and an economic risk assessment. Ietegrdine that a specific customer is unable to nteé&nancial obligations to us, we prov
an allowance for credit losses to reduce the ratdévto the amount our management reasonably lksligill be collected. To mitigate risks,
we deposit cash and cash equivalents with highitayedlity financial institutions. Provisions foodbtful debts are netted against “Accounts
receivable-trade.”
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Inventory

Inventories include finished goods, work in procasd raw materials. Inventories are stated ataiver of cost (cost is determined on
a “first-in, first-out” basis) or market value. Omventories generally have a limited shelf lifelare subject to impairment as they approach
their expiration dates. We regularly evaluate teying value of our inventories and when, in opingon, factors indicate that impairment has
occurred, we establish a reserve against the inxiest carrying value. Our determination that auadion reserve might be required, in additior
to the quantification of such reserve, requiretoustilize significant judgment. Although we makeeey effort to ensure the accuracy of
forecasts of future product demand, any significargnticipated decreases in demand could haveexiaiampact on the carrying value of our
inventories and reported operating results. Wigipeet to inventory on consignment, see “Revenuggration” below.

Revenue recognitiol

Revenue is recognized when delivery has occurréderce of an arrangement exists, title and risidsrawards for the products are
transferred to the customer, collection is reasynassured and product returns can be reliablyned&d. When product returns can be reliably
estimated a provision is recorded, based on histbexperience, and deducted from revenues. Thegiwo for sales returns and related costs
are included in “Accounts payable and accrualshe®tunder “Current liabilities” and “Inventory aonsignment,” respectively.

When returns cannot be reliably estimated, botitedlrevenues and costs are deferred, and presented“Deferred revenues” and
“Inventory on consignment,” respectively.

As of June 30, 2012, there are no deferred reveralat®d to sales for which the rate of return came reliably estimated.

Our revenue arrangements may contain deliveryegf firoducts upon the achievement of sales tafgeth period, we estimate the
amount of free products to which these distributaiisbe entitled based upon the expected achievemiesales targets and defer a portion of
revenues accordingly.

We recognize revenue net of value added tax.

Research and development co

Research and development costs are charged ttateenent of operations as incurred.
Share-based compensation

Employee option awards are classified as equity@svand accounted for using the grant-date fairevatethod. The fair value of
share-based awards is estimated using the Blacg&kSxchaluation model, which is expensed over tleisite service period, net of estimated

forfeitures. We estimate forfeitures based on hisabexperience and anticipated future conditions.

We elected to recognize compensation expense fardswith only service conditions that have gradesting schedules using the
accelerated multiple option approach.

We account for equity instruments issued to thadypservice providers (non-employees) by recordiegfair value of the options
granted using an option pricing model, at eachnt@mpperiod, until rewards are vested in full. Td¥gense is recognized over the vesting
period using the accelerated multiple option apghodhe expense relates to options granted to plairty service providers with respect to
successful investor introductions that are recomtdteir fair value in equity, as issuance costs.

In addition, certain of our share-based awardpar®rmance based, i.e., the vesting of these angedends upon achieving certain

goals. We estimate the expected pesting award probability, i.e., the expected likebd that the performance conditions will be agbi an
only recognize expense for those shares expectegsto
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Uncertain tax and value added tax positions

We follow a two-step approach to recognizing an@soeing uncertain tax and value added tax positibhe first step is to evaluate
the tax and value added tax position for recogmitip determining if the weight of available evidennadicates that it is more likely than not
that the position will be sustained on audit. Teeond step is to measure the tax and value adgdxtteefit as the largest amount that is more
than 50% and 75%, respectively, likely of beindireal upon ultimate settlement. Such liabilities alassified as long-term, unless the liability
is expected to be resolved within twelve monthsftbe balance sheet date. Our policy is to inclnterest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits within financial expenses

Results of Operations
Six month period ended June 30, 2012 comparedetsithmonth period ended June 30, 2011

Revenue For the six month period ended June 30, 2013l tevenue decreased approximately $0.6 millior2400%, to
approximately $2.1 million from approximately $2rillion during the same period in 2011. The $0.8ior decrease was attributable to a
decrease in sales volume, as described more felbyb The following is an explanation of the appnoately $0.6 million decrease in revenue
broken down by its main two components, a decri#ageoss revenues of approximately $0.5 million antkt decrease in deferred revenues
recognized of approximately $0.1 million.

For the six month period ended June 30, 2012, tptas revenue decreased by approximately $0.tomilbr 19.6%, to approximate
$2.0 million from approximately $2.5 million durirtge same period in 2011. This decrease in totessgrevenue is predominantly sales
volume based, with decreased sales volume accauiatirapproximately $340,000, or approximately ¥8,@nd price decreases to our repeat
distributors accounting for the remaining approxieha$150,000, or approximately 6.0%. With resgedndividual markets, this decrease in
gross revenue was mainly attributable to the ta&t e did not have any sales to our distributdndia during the six month period ended J
30 2012, compared to sales of approximately $1l@omito this distributor during the same period2®11, a decrease of approximately $0.2
million of gross revenue from our distributor ingdp, a decrease of approximately $0.1 million afsgrrevenue from our distributor in
Argentina, a decrease of approximately $0.1 milbbgross revenue from our distributor in Francd ardecrease of approximately $0.1
million of gross revenue from our distributor imdel. These decreases were partially offset byamease of approximately $0.5 million of
gross revenues from our distributor in Russianeneiase of approximately $0.2 million of gross rmefrom our distributor in Italy, an
increase of approximately $0.2 million of grosserewe from our distributor in Germany, an incredsapproximately $0.1 million of gross
revenue from our distributor in Poland, and anaase of approximately $0.1 million of gross revefram our distributor in Mexico, and an
increase of approximately $0.1 million from our @@mning distributors, all due to higher sales volsnethese distributors.

For the six month period ended June 30, 2012, efetricbd revenue recognized decreased by approxin®fiel million, or 66.8%, to
approximately $0.1 million from approximately $0rZllion during the same period in 2011. This deseewas almost entirely sales volume
based, partially offset by approximately $0.1 roifliin price increases to our repeat distributohe d@eferred revenue recognized during the si
month period ended June 30, 2012 was comprisecaghnof approximately $0.1 million of revenue tha¢ deferred from a shipment to India
in the first six months of 2011. Our net deferredenue for the six month period ended June 30, 26tdisted of approximately $0.1 million
of deferred revenue from our distributor in Inddfset by recognized revenue of approximately $6illion from our distributors in Israel,
approximately $0.1 million from our distributor Brazil, and approximately $0.1 million from othastlibutors.

Gross Profit. For the six month period ended June 30, 20I85gprofit (revenue less cost of revenues) dealeéb&%, or
approximately $0.5 million, to approximately $0.1lion from approximately $1.2 million during these period in 2011. Gross margin
decreased from 43.5% in the six month period eddeé 30, 2011 to 33.5% in the six month period érddme 30, 2012. In addition to our
decrease in sales, the primary reason for the dseri@ gross profit was a write-off of approximgai®0.4 million of slow moving inventory,
which accounted for approximately 89.7% of the dase mentioned above. We were able to partialgebthese decreases with reduced
production cost per stent driven by economies afesd-or the six month period ended June 30, 201Paverage selling price per stent
recognized in revenue was $584, and we recognieeddle of 3,548 stents, compared to an average @ii$541 per stent and 5,040 stents
recognized in revenue for the same period in 20Q4r cost of goods sold per stent increased fromvanage of $305 per stent recognized in
revenue for the six month period ended June 301 204An average of $388 per stent for the sameg@ari2012.
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Research and Development Expenger the six month period ended June 30, 20k2areh and development expense increased
138.5% or approximately $1.5 million, to approxielgt$2.6 million, from approximately $1.1 milliorudng the same period in 2011. The
increase in cost resulted primarily from highenidal trial expenses of approximately $1.2 milliattributable mainly to the MGuard for Act
ST Elevation Reperfusion Trial (MASTER Trial) (apgimately $0.7 million), the U.S. Food and Drug Aidistration clinical trial
(approximately $0.3 million) and the MGual¥ Carotid clinical trial (approximately $0.2 milliondn increase of approximately $0.1 millior
salaries, approximately $0.1 million in share-basaapensation and approximately $0.1 million inaalaneous expenses. Research and
development expense as a percentage of revenwagsct to 125.9% for the six month period ended 30n2012 from 40.1% in the same
period in 2011.

Selling and Marketing ExpenseFor the six month period ended June 30, 201ngand marketing expense increased 19.2%, or
approximately $0.2 million, to approximately $1.2lion, from approximately $1.0 million during tteame period in 2011. The increase in
selling and marketing expense resulted primardyrfrapproximately $0.2 million of additional salariend approximately $0.1 million of
additional share-based compensation principallynéwly hired sales personnel in connection withekgansion of our sales activities
worldwide, and approximately $0.2 million in advsirig expenses. This increase was partially offiged decrease of approximately $0.1
million of commissions pertaining mainly to ourdfitime shipment of approximately $1.2 million taralistributor in India during the six
month period ended June 30, 2011 (no such salareccin the same period of 2012), approximateld $fillion in share-based compensation
to consultants and approximately $0.1 million irsceillaneous expenses. Selling and marketing exgenagercentage of revenue increased
60.2% for the six month period ended June 30, 2 38.3% in the same period in 2011.

General and Administrative Expensé-or the six month period ended June 30, 2012 mg¢ and administrative expense increased
67.3%, or approximately $1.6 million, to approxielgt$4.0 million from $2.4 million during the sarperiod in 2011. The increase resulted
primarily from an increase in share-based comp@nrsaf $1.2 million, predominately related to dit@s’ compensation, an increase of
approximately $0.2 million in rent expense relaizdur move to a new location to support our exjpramndales activities, an increase of
approximately $0.1 million in audit fees to acconttate and comply with the reporting requirementthefSecurities and Exchange
Commission, approximately $0.1 million in legal $eeelated primarily to compliance with the repagtrequirements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, approximately $0.1 milliorfiess paid to consultants that was also relatedagifiyrto compliance with the reporting
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Conmnisand approximately $0.3 million in miscellans@xpenses. This increase was
partially offset by a decrease of approximatelyd$dillion in litigation expenses. General and adstmative expense as a percentage of rev
increased to 193.1% for the six month period enllee 30, 2012 from 87.7% in the same period in 2011

Financial (Income) ExpenseFor the six month period ended June 30, 20hanfiial expense decreased 113.9%, or approximately
$0.9 million, to approximately $0.1 million of finaial income from $0.8 million of financial expendering the same period in 2011. The
decrease in expense resulted primarily from appratély $1.3 million of financial income from theveduation of warrants pertaining to our
convertible debentures, partially offset by appnuedely $1.2 million of amortization expense peritagno the same convertible debentures an
their related issuance costs in the six month gegitded June 30, 2012, as compared to dinreefinancial expense recording of approxime
$0.6 million in the first six month period of 20p&rtaining to the revaluation of an outstandingvestible loan at fair value prior to redempt
and approximately $0.2 million for the favorablepiact of exchange rate differences for the six mpetiiod ended June 30, 2011. Financial
expense as a percentage of revenue was 28.9%efeixtimonth period ended June 30, 2011, comparbdB¥6 of financial income for the sa
period in 2012.

Tax Expenses Tax expense remained relatively flat at $32,faB@he six month period ended June 30, 2012, aypeced to $20,000
during the same period in 2011.
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Net Loss Our net loss increased by approximately $2.9anilor 70.7%, to $7.1 million for the six montennd ended June 30,
2012, from $4.2 million during the same period @12. The increase in net loss resulted primardynflan increase in operating expenses of
approximately $3.3 million (see above for explamatiand a decrease of approximately $0.5 milliogrimss profit (see above for explanation).
This increase was partially offset by a decreagmancial expense (income) of approximately $0illion (see above for explanation).

Twelve months ended December 31, 2011 compareeteet months ended December 31, 2010

Revenue For the twelve months ended December 31, 2014, tevenue increased approximately $1.1 millamm21.3%, to
approximately $6.0 million from approximately $4rfllion during the same period in 2010. The $1.1lior increase was attributable
primarily to an increase in sales volume, as dbedrmore fully below. The following is an explawatiof the approximately $1.1 million
increase in revenue broken down by its main twopmmments, an increase in gross revenues of apprtedyr2.5 million offset by a net
decrease in deferred revenues of approximately idillibn.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2011,dgodas revenue increased by approximately $2.Bomjlor 77.6%, to
approximately $5.7 million from approximately $3r@llion during the same period in 2010. This irase in total gross revenue was
predominantly sales volume based, with increasks s@lume accounting for approximately $2.3 millior approximately 72.5%, and price
increases accounting for the remaining approxirgai8l2 million, or approximately 5.1%. In genenak focused on opening new markets,
such as India, and also increasing sales in egistiarkets by presenting clinical data at confersroel individual presentations to doctors
about the merits of MGuard! . With respect to individual markets, this increds gross revenue is mainly attributable to thet fime
shipment of approximately $1.2 million to our distrtor in India during the twelve months ended Deber 31, 2011, an increase of
approximately $0.4 million of gross revenue fronm naw distributor in Russia, an increase of apprately $0.4 million of gross revenue fri
our distributor in Israel, an increase of approxeha$0.3 million of gross revenue from our distitibr in Brazil, an increase of approximately
$0.2 million of gross revenue from our distribut@iSpain, an increase of approximately $0.2 millidrgross revenue from our distributor in
Argentina, an increase of approximately $0.1 millaf gross revenue from our distributor in Southiéd, an increase of approximately $0.1
million of gross revenue from our new distributordkraine, an increase of approximately $0.1 millad gross revenue from our new
distributor in the Netherlands and an increaseppf@ximately $0.1 million of gross revenue from distributor in Mexico. This increase was
partially offset by a decrease of approximately2$@illion in gross revenue from our distributor@ermany, a decrease of approximately $0.2
million in gross revenue from our distributor inkdan, a decrease of approximately $0.2 millimnfrour distributor in Poland, a decrease of
approximately $0.1 million in gross revenue front distributor in Italy, and a decrease of approxeha$0.1 million in gross revenue to our
distributor in France, all due to lower sales voduto these distributors. We also shipped and razedrmgross revenue for approximately $0.2
million more from our remaining distributors durittge twelve months ended December 31, 2011, asa@upo the same period in 2010.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2011deafetred revenue recognized decreased by appradingit.4 million, or 83.8%,
to approximately $0.3 million from approximately.$million during the same period in 2010. The Keiyer of this decrease was a decrea:
the volume of revenue deferred to 2011 comparéldegwolume of revenue deferred to 2010, accouriingpproximately $1.3 million or
approximately 74.5%, with the remaining approxirha$9.1 million, or 9.3%, being driven by price deases in the revenue deferred to 2011
compared to the revenue deferred to 2010. Revesuggnition out of deferred income had less of guaich in 2011 as compared to 2010 dt
the fact that we deferred mainly shipments in 2808 2009 that were recognized in 2010. In 2010; ardmall set of customers had a large
portion of their revenues deferred until 2011.
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For the twelve months ended December 31, 2011Inetudeferred revenue consisted of approximatelg B0llion attributable to our
distributor in Israel, approximately $0.1 milliom our distributor in Brazil, and approximately $onillion to our distributor in Poland, offset
approximately $0.1 million deferred for a shipmemour distributor in India. Our distributor in &1 had a contractual right to return all
purchases to us within 18 months of the purchate &aue to our inability to accurately estimate dineount of future returns, all sales to this
distributor were deferred until this 18 month retperiod elapsed. On May 9, 2011, our distribiridsrael agreed to revoke its previous rights
to return purchases, resulting in all future shleisg final. The deferred revenue of approxima$gly?2 million recognized during the twelve
months period ended December 31, 2011 accountedl forevious purchases by the distributor thatdiséributor no longer had a contractual
right to return and were not yet recognized asmegs. Our distributor in Brazil has a contractigthtrto return all purchases for up to six
months from the delivery date. Due to our inabitdyaccurately estimate the amount of future retiyour distributor in Brazil, all sales made
to it were also deferred until the six month retpemiod elapsed. The deferred revenue of approrim&0.1 million recognized during the
twelve months period ended December 31, 2011 ateddar purchases made in December 2010 that weneeturned by the Brazilian
distributor and were not yet recognized as reverine®011, it was decided that due to lack of dateturns from the Brazilian distributor,
despite the clause in their contract, we will noger defer revenue pertaining to current shipmés.distributor in India made its first
purchase in 2011. Because of our inexperience thishdistributor, management decided to defer siggoof the shipment to 2012, when it
could better determine if a portion of it would fe¢urned.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 201Qjafetred revenue recognized of approximately $illfomwas comprised main
of shipments from 2008 and 2009 to our distribitdPoland of approximately $1.3 million, to ourtdisutor in Brazil of approximately $0.3
million, and to our distributor in Sri Lanka of apgimately $0.1 million. For the twelve months edd@ecember 31, 2010, our distributor in
Poland, subject to our sole discretion, had thiet ig return our products. Because we were urtalbdievelop estimates for the level of returns,
the $1.3 million worth of shipments made to therdisitor in Poland that we recorded as deferre@meres were only recognized during the
twelve months ended December 31, 2010 as reveAge®ted above, our distributor in Brazil has atcactual right to return all purchases for
up to six months from the delivery date. As alstedabove, due to our inability to accurately eatirthe rate of return by this distributor, all
sales made to it were also deferred until the sixtimreturn period elapsed. The deferred revenappfoximately $0.3 million recognized
during the twelve months period ended DecembeRB10Q accounted for purchases made in DecembertB@0%ere not returned and were
yet recognized as revenu

Gross Profit. For the twelve months ended December 31, 20bssgorofit increased 32.8%, or approximately $6illion, to
approximately $3.0 million from approximately $2r@llion during the same period in 2010. Gross nrangcreased from 45.5% in the twelve
months ended December 31, 2010 to 49.9% in thevéarabnths ended December 31, 2011. In additi@mtimcrease in sales, we were able tc
improve our gross profit because of reduced pradnaost per stent driven by reduction in price yeit from our subcontractor and econor
of scale. For the twelve months ended Decembe2@®l1, our average selling price per stent recognizeevenue was $571, and we
recognized the sale of 10,523 stents, compared varage price of $606 per stent and 8,171 steatgynized in revenue for the same period
in 2010. Our cost of goods sold per stent decteisen an average of $330 per stent recognizedvarrue for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2010 to an average of $286 per stethd same period in 2011. The higher price fatdor the twelve months ended
December 31, 2010 was effected by the price otstrid in 2008 and 2009 to one of our Europeaniloligors in Euros when the Euro was
much stronger than the U.S. dollar, at an averaige pf $997 when translated to U.S. dollars.

Research and Development Expenger the twelve months ended December 31, 2@kkarch and development expense increase
84.9%, or approximately $1.2 million, to approxielgt$2.5 million from approximately $1.3 million dng the same period in 2010. The
increase in cost resulted primarily from highenidal trial expenses of approximately $1.2 milliattyibutable mainly to the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration clinical trial (approximatel\09 million) and the MGuard for Acute ST ElevatiBeperfusion Trial (MASTER Trial)
(approximately $0.3 million), and an increase giragimately $0.3 million in salaries, offset by approximately $0.2 million reduction in
miscellaneous expenses and an approximately $0id@mreduction in share-based compensation. Rekesnd development expense as a
percentage of revenue increased to 41.2% for thlvéamonths ended December 31, 2011 from 27.0%eisame period of 2010.

Selling and Marketing ExpenseFor the twelve months ended December 31, 2@lling and marketing expense increased 59.6%, ¢
approximately $0.7 million, to approximately $2.@lion, from approximately $1.3 million during tteame period in 2010. The increase in
selling and marketing expense resulted primardynfrapproximately $0.3 million of additional salari@gnd approximately $0.4 of share-based
compensation principally for newly hired sales pargl in connection with the expansion of our salgsvities worldwide, and approximately
$0.1 million of commissions pertaining mainly tordiust time shipment of approximately $1.2 milliom our distributor in India. This increase
was partially offset by a decrease of approxima$@yl million in advertising expenses. Selling amarketing expense as a percentage of
revenue increased to 32.9% in 2011 from 25.0% 020

49




General and Administrative Expensé-or the twelve months ended December 31, 20driergl and administrative expense increase
323.6%, or approximately $9.4 million, to approxtelg $12.3 million from $2.9 million during the samperiod in 2010. The increase resulted
primarily from an increase in share-based comp@nrsaf $7.5 million, which predominately pertaimsdirectors’compensation, an increase
approximately $0.5 million in salary expenses (thuan increase in employee infrastructure to accodate and comply with the reporting
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Conmnijssn increase in investor related activitiesproximately $0.5 million (due to us
having been a publicly reporting company duringtthelve months ended December 31, 2011, but néngltine same period in 2010), an
increase of approximately $0.5 million in litigati@xpenses (primarily due to a provision for outeptial loss related to a threatened lawsuit
from a finder claiming a future success fee andro@sions for assistance in finding our distributoBrazil), approximately $0.3 million in
legal fees (also related primarily to compliancéwtihe reporting requirements of the Securities Bathange Commission), and approxima
$0.2 million in audit fees to accommodate and cgmyith the reporting requirements of the Securitied Exchange Commission. This
increase was partially offset by a decrease of@fiprately $0.1 million in miscellaneous expensesn&al and administrative expense as a
percentage of revenue increased to 204.4% in 2011 $8.6% in 2010.

Financial Expenses For the twelve months ended December 31, 20ddndial expense increased 506.5%, or approxim&@ky
million, to approximately $1.0 million from $0.2 Hn during the same period in 2010. The incraasexpense resulted primarily from a one-
time financial expense recording of approximatedye$million in the first quarter of 2011 pertainit@the revaluation of an outstanding
convertible loan at fair value prior to redemptamd approximately $0.2 million for the favorablepact of exchange rate differences for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2010 that diowmir during the twelve months ended December @11 2Financial expense as a
percentage of revenue increased from 3.1% in 20106.6% in 2011.

Tax Expenses Tax expense remained relatively flat at $2,08/Gtie twelve months ended December 31, 2011, mpaed to
$47,000 during the same period in 2010.

Net Loss Our net loss increased by approximately $1118amj or 328.8%, to $14.7 million for the twelveomths ended December
31, 2011 from $3.4 million during the same perio@010. The increase in net loss resulted prim&ndign an increase in operating expenses 0
approximately $11.2 million (see above for expl@rgtand an increase of approximately $0.8 milliofinancial expenses (see above for
explanation). This increase was patrtially offsetinyincrease in gross profit of approximately $@illion (see above for explanation).

Twelve months ended December 31, 2010 compareeteet months ended December 31, 2009

RevenuesFor the twelve months ended December 31, 2014, revenue increased approximately $1.5 milliard®.1%, to
approximately $4.9 million from approximately $3million in 2009. The $1.5 million increase in rewenwas primarily attributable to an
increase in the amount of net deferred revenuesgreézed during 2010.

For a description of the revenue deferred to 26&6,“Twelve months ended December 31, 2011 compaitedelve months ended
December 31, 2010” above.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2009jefetred revenue of approximately $0.1 million wamprised mainly of
shipments made in 2009 but deferred and recogmiz2@10 to our distributor in Brazil in the amowftapproximately $0.4 million, to our
distributor in Poland in the amount of $0.2 milliand to our distributor in Israel in the amoun$6f2 million, offset by shipments made in
2008 but deferred and recognized in revenue in 2@P8 our distributor in Italy in the amount of $0illion, and from our distributor in
Cyprus in the amount of $0.2 million. Because 260@8 our first year of sales and we were unabletarately estimate the amount of future
returns of our products, all revenues from shipmemade in 2008 were deferred and recognized in.Z0@® deferred revenue for each
distributor recognized during the twelve month pedréended December 31, 2009 accounted for the psestraade in the twelve month period
ended December 31, 2008 that were not returnedthosrelistributor and were not yet recognized agneles. See also “Twelve months ended
December 31, 2011 compared to twelve months end@edrmber 31, 2010” above for the reasons why suante was deferred and/or
recognized for certain of the distributors listdxbwae.
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Total gross revenue for the twelve months endeceBer 31, 2010 remained relatively flat in comparito the twelve months end
December 31, 2009, increasing by approximately@m5, This increase was predominantly sales voluasedb, with increased sales volume
accounting for approximately $263,000, offset biggdecreases in the amount of $217,000. The iser@asales volume was evenly
distributed among our distributors. The decreag@ites were due to our penetration of newly openadkets, namely Brazil, Slovakia and
Cyprus in 2010, which required reduced prices aspaved to 2009.

Gross Profit. For the twelve months ended December 31, 20838sgurofit (revenue less cost of revenues) incok&6&.2%, or
approximately $1.1 million, to approximately $2.2lion from approximately $1.1 million during th@me period in 2010. Our gross margin
percentage for the twelve months ended Decembe&t(31) increased to 45.5% of revenues, compared.8¥@during the same period in 20
In addition to an increase in sales, we were ablmprove our gross profit because of reduced prtoin cost per stent driven by reduction in
price per unit from our subcontractor and econorafescale. For the twelve months ended Decembe2@I), our average selling price per
stent recognized in revenue was $606, and we ré&zegjthe sale of 8,171 stents, compared to an gegmdce of $577 per stent and 5,910
stents recognized in revenue for the same peri@d@®. Our cost of goods sold per stent decreaseu dn average of $380 per stent
recognized in revenue for the twelve months endeceinber 31, 2009 to an average of $330 per stetlidsame period in 2010. The higher
price per stent for the twelve months ended Dece®be?2010 was affected by the price of stents soRD08 and 2009 to one of our
Europeans distributors in Euros when the Euro washnstronger than the U.S. dollar, at an averame pf $997 when translated to U.S.
dollars.

Research and Development ExpenBer the twelve months ended December 31, 20%@areh and development expense remained
relatively flat at approximately $1.3 million asmpared to the same period in 2009. Research arelgggment expense as a percentage of
revenue decreased to 27.0% in 2010 from 39.0% 0920

Selling and Marketing Expensé&or the twelve months ended December 31, 201ihgand marketing expense increased by
approximately $0.2 million, or 18.8%, to approxielgt$1.2 million from approximately $1.0 million dng the same period in 2009. The
increase in cost resulted primarily from an inceeafapproximately $0.2 million in advertising erges. Selling and marketing expense as a
percentage of revenue decreased to 25.0% in 20&030.5% in 2009.

General and Administrative Expensior the twelve months ended December 31, 20Itsrgkand administrative expense increasec
approximately $1.4 million, or 97.5%, to approxielgt$2.9 million from approximately $1.5 million dng the same period in 2009. The
increase resulted primarily from an increase inefmsed compensation of approximately $0.7 mil{@frwhich approximately $0.5 million
related to employees and $0.2 million related tealors), an increase of approximately $0.2 millioaudit fees (as we prepared for the
transition from Israel GAAP to U.S. GAAP), an inase of $0.1 million in salary expenses, and arease of approximately $0.4 million in
other expenses (due to our overall expansion). @eaad administrative expense as a percentagevehue increased to 58.6% in 2010 from
43.0% in 2009.

Financial Expenses (Incomelror the twelve months ended December 31, 20d48néial expense increased to approximately $0.2
million from income of $4,000 for the same periad2009. The increase in expense resulted primidip a one time financial income
recording of $0.3 million in 2009 pertaining to tbencellation of the conversion feature of a cotiblerloan that was repaid in the same year.
Financial expense as a percentage of revenue serid¢a 3.1% in 2010, compared to financial incosa percent of revenue of 1.2% in 2009.

Tax ExpensesTax expense remained flat at $47,000 for thewevelonths ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. Oensgp for
income taxes reflect primarily the tax liabilityelto potential tax exposure.

Net Loss Our net loss increased by approximately $0.7ionijlor 25.6%, to approximately $3.4 million in ZDftom approximately
$2.7 million during the same period in 2009. Theréase in net loss resulted primarily from an iaseein operating expenses of approximatel
$1.6 million (see above for explanation) and amease of approximately $0.2 million in financiabexses (see above for explanation). This
increase was partially offset by an increase isgmrofit of approximately $1.1 million (see abdeeexplanation).
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Six month period ended June 30, 2012 comparedetsithmonth period ended June 30, 2011

We have had recurring losses and negative casls fimm operating activities and have significaritife commitments. For the six
months ended June 30, 2012, we had losses of apyatety $7.1 million and negative cash flows fropeoating activities of approximately
$4.4 million. Our management believes that its waglcapital as of June 30, 2012 of approximately.8illion should enable us to continue
funding the negative cash flows from operatingwtatis until October 2013, when our convertible eietores are subject to a non-contingent
redemption option that could require us to makeyment of approximately $13.3 million, includingcaged interest. Since we expect to
continue incurring negative cash flows from openagiand in light of the potential cash requireniertonnection with our convertible
debentures, there is substantial doubt about alityatb continue operating as a going concern.

We will need to raise further capital at some fatpoint in time, through the sale of additionaliggsecurities or debt. Our future
capital requirements and the adequacy of our adaifainds will depend on many factors, including ahility to successfully commercialize
our MGuard™ products, our development of futuredpicis and competing technological and market dewedémts. However, we may be
unable to raise sufficient additional capital whemrequire it or upon terms favorable to us. Initald, the terms of any securities we issue in
future financings may be more favorable to new &ors and may include preferences, superior vatgigs and the issuance of warrants or
other derivative securities, which may have a frtilutive effect on the holders of any of ourties then outstanding. If we are unable to
obtain adequate funds on reasonable terms, wa@elll to curtail operations significantly, includipgssibly postponing or halting our U.S.
Food and Drug Administration clinical trials or eribg into financing agreements with unattractierts.

General. At June 30, 2012, we had cash and cash equisad¢m@ipproximately $10.3 million, as compared td%8&illion at June 30,
2011. The increase is attributable primarily toigsiance of senior secured convertible debenturésvarrants on April 5, 2012. We have
historically met our cash needs through a combinadf issuance of new shares, borrowing activiied sales. Our cash requirements are
generally for product development, clinical triatsarketing and sales activities, finance and adstrative cost, capital expenditures and
general working capital.

Cash used in our operating activities was approtéim&4.4 million for the six month period endechd@80, 2012, and approximately
$1.8 million for the same period in 2011. The pifat reasons for the usage of cash in our operaiitigities for the six month period ended
June 30, 2012 included a net loss of approxim#&@lg million and approximately $1.3 million in n@ash financial income related to the
revaluation of warrants pertaining to our convéetitbebentures, offset by approximately $1.9 milliemon-cash share-based compensation,
approximately $1.0 million in non-cash financiaperse related to our convertible debentures, a&dserin working capital of approximately
$0.9 million (driven primarily from a decrease iar@ccounts receivable of approximately $0.5 millgue to our decrease in sales and an
increase of approximately $0.5 million in other pbles due to accruals recorded pertaining to theidiéfor Acute ST Elevation Reperfusion
Trial (MASTER Trial) and the U.S. Food and Drug Aidistration clinical trial) and approximately $llion of all other adjustments.

Cash used by our investing activities was approteiga0.2 million during the six month period endkthe 30, 2012, compared to
approximately $0.1 million during the same perio®011. The principal reason for the increase ghassed in investing activities during 2012
was the purchase of approximately $0.2 million @vrequipment.

Cash flow generated from financing activities wppraximately $9.8 million for the six month periedded June 30, 2012, and $9.4
million for the same period in 2011. The principalirce of cash flow from financing activities dyyip012 was the proceeds from our
convertible debentures and warrants issued on Ap#D12 of approximately $9.9 million, offset lhetrepayment of a long-term loan in the
amount of approximately $0.1 million. The princigalurce of cash flow from financing activities dwithe six month period ended June 30,
2011 was the private placement conducted in cotipmavith the share exchange transactions on Matgt?011 and other private equity
issuances prior to and after the reverse mergieimggregate amount of approximately $10.6 millaffset by the repayment of a convertible
loan in the amount of approximately $1.0 milliordghe partial repayment of a long-term loan inaheunt of approximately $0.2 million.

As of June 30, 2012, our current assets exceedeehtliabilities by a multiple of 4.1. Current assincreased approximately $4.5
million during the six month period ended June ZM 2, mainly due to cash raised from the convertitdbenture and warrant offering, and
current liabilities increased by approximately $tillion during the same period. As a result, owrking capital surplus increased by
approximately $4.4 million to approximately $10.8limn during the six month period ended June 32

Long-Term Loan Prior to June 30, 2012, we had a long-term loahé amount of approximately $0.1 million beannigrest at the
three month U.S. Dollar LIBOR rate plus 4% per annlihe loan was payable in eight quarterly instatits during a period of three years tha
began in April 2010. According to the loan agreetnemcase of an “exit transactiondgfined as certain merger or sale transactionsn anitial
public offering), we were required to pay to thaban additional $0.25 million if the sum receivadhe transaction was higher than $100
million. The loan was repaid in January 2012.

Sales of Stock/Issuance of Debt and Securifies the six month period ended June 30, 2012sswed senior secured convertible
debentures due April 5, 2014 in the original aggtegrincipal amount of $11,702,128 and five-yearrants to purchase an aggregate of
835,866 shares of our common stock at an exercise pf $7.20 per share in exchange for aggregatesgroceeds of $11.0 million, with
corresponding net proceeds of approximately $91Bomi The convertible debentures were issued &if% original issuance discount, bear
interest at an annual rate of 8% and are converéiblny time into shares of common stock at diaimionversion price of $7.00 per share.
Upon conversion of the convertible debentures,stors will receive a conversion premium equal to@annum, with a limit of 12% for tt



term of the convertible debentures, of the prinicgmaount being converted. In addition, the investoay require us to redeem the
convertible debentures at any time after Octob2033 (18 months after the date of issuance) f@fd df the then outstanding principal
amount, plus all accrued interest, and we may prépaconvertible debentures after six months &% of the then outstanding principal
amount, plus all accrued interest. In connectiai wiis financing, we paid placement agent feeb84#8,750 and issued placement agents
warrants to purchase 78,078 shares of common sigttkterms identical to the warrants issued toitivestors.
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Twelve months ended December 31, 2011 compareateet months ended December 31, 2010

General. At December 31, 2011, we had cash and cash dgquotsaf approximately $5.1 million, as compare®®6 million at
December 31, 2010. The increase is attributablagily to the private placement conducted in coafiom with the share exchange
transactions on March 31, 2011 and other privatétyéssuances prior to and after the share exah&agsactions.

Cash used in our operating activities was approteip&6.0 million for the twelve months ended Debem31, 2011, and
approximately $2.7 million for the same period B12. The principal reasons for the usage of casluiroperating activities for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2011 included a nebfegsproximately $14.7 million and a decrease imkiviy capital of approximately $2.0
million, offset by approximately $9.6 million in necash share-based compensation, an approxima@éhndillion in non-cash financial
expenses related to the revaluation of a convertdan and approximately $0.2 million of all otlaefjustments.

Cash provided by our investing activities was agpnately $13,000 during the twelve months endeddbdwer 31, 2011, compared
approximately $46,000 of cash used by investinyiéies during the same period in 2010. The priatigason for the decrease in cash flow
from investing activities during 2011 was a decegasrestricted cash of approximately $160,000seaifby the purchase of approximately
$140,000 of new manufacturing equipment.

Cash flow generated from financing activities wppraximately $10.7 million for the twelve monthsded December 31, 2011, and
$3.0 million for the same period in 2010. The pifiat reason for the increase in cash flow fromfiiciag activities during 2011 was the private
placement conducted in conjunction with the shaohange transactions on March 31, 2011 and otlinaitprequity issuances and exercise of
options prior to and after the share exchange aictims in the aggregate amount of approximate® Bnillion, offset by the repayment of a
convertible loan in the amount of approximatelyO¥illion and the partial repayment of a long-tdaan in the amount of approximately $0.4
million.

As of December 31, 2011, our current assets exdeageent liabilities by a multiple of 2.8. Curreagsets increased approximately
$5.9 million during 2011, mainly due to cash raiexan the private placements in 2011, while curtettilities decreased approximately $0.5
million during the same period. As a result, ourkiag capital surplus increased by approximately$6illion to approximately $6.3 million
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011.

Long-Term Loan As of December 31, 2011, we had a long-term Inahe amount of approximately $0.1 million bearinggerest at
the three month U.S. Dollar LIBOR rate plus 4% @enum. See “Six month period ended June 30, 20daced to six month period ended
June 30, 2011 — Long-Term Loan.”

Convertible Loans Prior to December 31, 2011, we had a convertdda with an aggregate principal amount outstanding
approximately $1.58 million that bore 8% interésllowing the share exchange transactions on Mat¢t2011, $580,000 plus accrued inte
converted into shares of our common stock. The in@principle in the amount of $1.0 million, plafl accrued interest, was repaid on May
15, 2011.

Sales of StockFor the twelve months ended December 31, 201issued an aggregate of 3,078,786 shares of corstnok and

warrants to purchase 1,677,268 shares of commaoh &iogross proceeds of approximately $13.7 millkmd corresponding net proceeds of
approximately $12.1 million.
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Twelve months ended December 31, 2010 compareateet months ended December 31, 2009

General. At December 31, 2010, we had cash and cash dquotsaf approximately $0.6 million, as compare$®4 million at
December 31, 2009.

Cash used in our operating activities was approteip&2.7 million for the twelve months ended Debem31, 2010, and
approximately $1.5 million for the same period B02. The principal reasons for the increase in casld in operations in 2010 included a net
loss of approximately $3.4 million, a decreasepgraximately $1.6 million in deferred revenues effey approximately $1.6 million of non
cash share-based compensation expense, an inofegggroximately $0.4 million in other working cégdiand $0.3 million of other non cash
adjustments.

Cash used in investing activities was approxima$dl§,000 for the twelve months ended December 30 20id approximately $0.3
million for the same period in 2009. The principasons for the decrease in cash flow from invgdtivities included approximately
$81,000 for plant and equipment purchases offset thgcrease of approximately $52,000 in restricseth.

Cash flow generated from financing activities wapraximately $3.0 million for the twelve months eddDecember 31, 2010, and
approximately $0.7 million for the same period 002. The principal reasons for the increase in dashfrom financing activities during 20:
were the issuance of approximately $1.8 millioméw shares and the issuance of a convertible lbapproximately $1.5 million, offset by tl
repayment of a long-term loan in the amount of apipnately $0.3 million.

As of December 31, 2010, current assets were appabdaly equal with our current liabilities. Curreagsets decreased approximately
$0.2 million during the twelve months ended Decen@ie 2010 while current liabilities decreased ppraximately $1.5 million during the
same period. As a result, our working capital deficy decreased by approximately $1.2 million tpragimately $53,000 during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2010.

Newly Adopted Accounting Guidance

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8da-ASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update R@11-04, Fair Value
Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve ComiFair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirésriard.S. GAAP and IFRSs
(“ASU 2011-04"). ASU 2011-04 changes certain fatue measurement principles and clarifies the aaftin of existing fair value
measurement guidance. These amendments includegastiers, (1) the application of the highest agst lnse and valuation premise
concepts, (2) measuring the fair value of an imsénut classified in a reporting entity’s sharehaddequity and (3) disclosing quantitative
information about the unobservable inputs usediwitihe Level 3 hierarchy.

Effective January 1, 2012, we adopted ASU 2011Fb4. adoption of this accounting standards updatedi have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements.
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Factors That May Affect Future Operations

We believe that our future operating results wilhtnue to be subject to quarterly variations bagsah a wide variety of factors,
including the cyclical nature of the ordering patteof our distributors, timing of regulatory appats, the implementation of various phases of
our clinical trials and manufacturing efficiencitise to the learning curve of utilizing new materiahd equipment. Our operating results coulc
also be impacted by a weakening of the Euro amahgthening of the New Israeli Shekel, or NIS, baghinst the U.S. dollar. Lastly, other
economic conditions we cannot foresee may affestiorner demand, such as individual country reimbuesg policies pertaining to our
products.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our outstanding @sttial obligations as of June 30, 2012:

Payments due by period (amounts in thousand:

More
than
Less than 1-3 3-5 5

Contractual Obligation Total 1 year years years years
Convertible loan (1 $ 14,74 $ 708 % 14,04 0 0
Operating lease obligations ( $ 91 $ 40: $ 51C 0 0
Accounts Payable $ 1,98: $ 1,98: $ 0 0 0
Total $ 1764, $ 3,08¢ $ 14,55: $ — $ —

(1) Our convertible loan obligations as of JuneZM 2 consisted of senior secured convertible debesissued to certain investors on
April 5, 2012 in the aggregate amount of $11.7iomll Our convertible debentures bear annual intefe8% and are convertible at
any time into shares of common stock at an indttadversion price of $7.00 per share. The holdeuofconvertible debentures may
require us to redeem our convertible debenturasypoint 18 months after the date of issua

(2) Our operating lease obligations consist oflélase for our offices and manufacturing faciliied el Aviv, Israel and the leases for the
majority of our company car

Supplemental Disclosures

Due to the change in our fiscal year from Decen3deto June 30, we are providing on a voluntarysasgpplemental Management’s
Discussion and Analysis disclosures for the yeaded June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 (unaudithd)fifancial statement for these periods
are attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this Transitiond®epn Form 10-K/T.

Results of Operations
Twelve months ended June 30, 2012 compared tovtegt months ended June 30, 2011

Revenue For the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, tet@nue increased approximately $0.7 million, ab%} to approximately
$5.4 million from approximately $4.7 million durirtge same period in 2011. The $0.7 million incresas attributable to an increase in sales
volume of approximately $0.5 million, as descrilmedre fully below, and an increase in sales pridegpproximately $0.2 million, as describ
more fully below. The following is an explanatiohtbe approximately $0.7 million increase in reverroken down by its main two
components, an increase in gross revenues of appately $0.9 million, partially offset by a net dease in deferred revenues recognized of
approximately $0.2 million.

For the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, totelsgrevenue increased by approximately $0.9 mjlor20.5%, to approximately
$5.3 million from approximately $4.4 million durirte same period in 2011. This increase in to@$grevenue is predominantly sales vol
based, with increased sales volume accountingpiprcximately $0.8 million, or approximately 18.0&&d price increases to our repeat
distributors accounting for the remaining approxieha$0.1 million, or approximately 2.5%. With resp to individual markets, this increast
gross revenue was mainly attributable to saleeto distributors in Russia (approximately $0.8 roilliof gross revenue), Poland
(approximately $0.3 million of gross revenue) areddnd (approximately $0.1 million of gross revenaes well as an increase of approxime
$0.3 million of gross revenues from our distributoBrazil, an increase of approximately $0.2 roiliof gross revenues from our distributor in
Israel, an increase of approximately $0.2 millidmymss revenues from our distributor in Mexico,iaerease of approximately $0.2 million of
gross revenues from our distributor in South Afriga increase of approximately $0.1 million of grosvenues from our distributor in Belarus,
an increase of approximately $0.1 million of gromgenues from our distributor in Italy and an irae of approximately $0.1 million of gross
revenues from our distributor in Lithuania. Theseréases were partially offset by a decrease abappately $1.2 million of gross revenues
from our distributor in India (due to the fact thes did not have any sales to this distributor miyithe twelve months ended June 30 2012,
compared to sales of approximately $1.2 milliothis distributor during the same period in 2011Jearease of approximately $0.2 million of
gross revenue from our distributor in France adéaease of approximately $0.1 million of grosserawe from our distributor in Germar



For the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, netréeffeevenue recognized decreased by approximé@eB/million, or 84.0%, to
approximately $0.1 million from approximately $0r@llion during the same period in 2011. This deseewas entirely sales volume based,
partially offset by approximately $0.1 million imipe increases to our repeat distributors. Therregeecognized during the twelve months
ended June 30, 2012 was comprised primarily of@pprately $0.1 million of revenue that we deferfezin a shipment to India in the twelve
months ended June 30, 2011. Our deferred revegognized during the twelve months ended June 301 20nsisted of approximately $0.1
million of revenue recognized from our distribuborisrael, approximately $0.1 million of revenueagnized from our distributor in Brazil,
approximately $0.1 million of revenue recognizeshirour distributor in Poland and approximately $@illion of recognized revenue from all
others, partially offset by deferred revenue ofragpnately $0.1 million from our distributor in el

Gross Profit. For the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, gnadi (revenue less cost of revenues) increasetia,lor
approximately $0.2 million, to approximately $2.4lion from approximately $2.3 million during these period in 2011. Gross margin
decreased from 48.2% in the twelve months ended 30n2011 to 46.7% during the same period in 20h2.primary reason for the decrease
in gross margin was a write-off of approximately4sfillion of slow moving inventory, which causedraross margin to decrease
approximately 8.3%. We were able to partially offées decrease with reduced production cost et striven by economies of scale. For the
twelve months ended June 30, 2012, our averagegseliice per stent recognized in revenue was $&86 we recognized the sale of 9,131
stents, compared to an average price of $545 @et ahd 8,573 stents recognized in revenue fosahee period in 2011. Our cost of goods
sold per stent increased from an average of $28&tprt recognized in revenue for the twelve mosetided June 30, 2011 to an average of
$312 per stent for the same period in 2012.
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Research and Development ExpenBer the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, reflseand development expense increased 14
or approximately $2.3 million, to approximately @4nillion, from approximately $1.7 million duringé same period in 2011. The increase in
cost resulted primarily from higher clinical triekpenses of approximately $1.7 million, attribuéailainly to the MGuard for Acute ST
Elevation Reperfusion Trial (MASTER Trial) (approately $0.9 million), the U.S. Food and Drug Adrstration clinical trial (approximatel
$0.7 million) and the MGuart" Carotid clinical trial (approximately $0.2 milliopdn increase of approximately $0.4 million in sa@gand an
increase of approximately $0.2 million in shésa&sed compensation. Research and development exagaspercentage of revenue increas
74.6% for the twelve months ended June 30, 2018 86.5% in the same period in 2011.

Selling and Marketing Expensé&or the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, gadlid marketing expense increased 32.2%, or
approximately $0.5 million, to approximately $2.8lion, from approximately $1.7 million during theame period in 2011. The increase in
selling and marketing expense resulted primardyrfrapproximately $0.5 million of additional salariend approximately $0.2 million of
additional share-based compensation principallynéwly hired sales personnel in connection withekgansion of our sales activities
worldwide, and approximately $0.2 million in advsirig expenses. This increase was partially ofiged decrease of approximately $0.1
million of commissions pertaining mainly to ourdfitime shipment of approximately $1.2 million taralistributor in India during the twelve
months ended June 30, 2011 (no such sale occurtbd same period of 2012), approximately $0.lionlln share-based compensation to
consultants and approximately $0.2 million in mikgeeous expenses. Selling and marketing expenagarcentage of revenue increased to
40.6% for the twelve months ended June 30, 2012 86.2% in the same period in 2011.

General and Administrative Expensior the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, geamdsadministrative expense increased
232.4%, or approximately $9.7 million, to approxtelg $13.9 million from $4.2 million during the samperiod in 2011. The increase resulted
primarily from an increase in share-based comp@nrsaf $8.8 million, predominately related to dit@s’ compensation, an increase of
approximately $0.3 million in legal fees, relatathyarily to compliance with the reporting requiremeof the Securities and Exchange
Commission, an increase of approximately $0.2 anilin rent expense related to our move to a neatilme to support our expanding sales
activities, an increase of approximately $0.2 millin audit fees to accommodate and comply withréiperting requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, an increase of approxiyn®@el million of salary expense due to an incesiasemployee infrastructure to
accommodate and comply with Securities and Exch&@ugemission standards and reporting, an increasavel expense of approximately
$0.1 million and an increase of approximately $iillion in miscellaneous expenses. This increase patially offset by a decrease of
approximately $0.4 million in litigation expens&eneral and administrative expense as a percenfageenue increased to 259.5% for the
twelve months ended June 30, 2012 from 89.4% irs&inee period in 2011.

Financial (Income) Expensed-or the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, finahegpense decreased 95.8%, or approximately $0.9
million, to approximately $40,000 from $0.9 millialuring the same period in 2011. The decreaseparese resulted primarily from
approximately $1.3 million of financial income fratime revaluation of warrants pertaining to our caible debentures, partially offset by
approximately $1.2 million of amortization expenegtaining to the same convertible debentures lagid telated issuance costs in the twelve
months ended June 30, 2012, as compared to amediiancial expense recording of approximately6$fillion in the twelve months ended
June 30, 2011 pertaining to the revaluation of aistanding convertible loan at fair value priorédemption. Additionally, there was a
decrease of approximately $0.1 million in otheeiest expense and a net decrease of approxima&@diysllion in all other financial expenses
in the twelve months ended June 30, 2012 as comiparthe same period in 2011. Financial expenseacentage of revenue decreased to
0.7% for the twelve months ended June 30, 2018 ft6.5% in the same period in 2011.

Tax ExpensesTax expense remained relatively flat at $14,a0CGHe twelve months ended June 30, 2012, as caupar$37,000
during the same period in 2011.
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Net Loss Our net loss increased by approximately $11.4ianilor 184.9%, to $17.6 million for the twelve ntbs ended June 30,
2012, from $6.2 million during the same period @12. The increase in net loss resulted primardynflan increase in operating expenses of
approximately $12.5 million (see above for explangt This increase was partially offset by a daseein financial expense (income) of
approximately $0.9 million (see above for explamatiand an increase of approximately $0.2 millioigioss profit (see above for explanatic

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Twelve months ended June 30, 2012 compared tavdieet months ended June 30, 2011

We have had recurring losses and negative casls fimm operating activities and have significartife commitments. For the
twelve months ended June 30, 2012, we had lossspodximately $17.6 million and negative cash 8dvom operating activities of
approximately $8.6 million. Our management beliethed its working capital as of June 30, 2012 gdragimately $10.8 million should enable
us to continue funding the negative cash flows faparating activities until October 2013, when oonvertible debentures are subject to a
non-contingent redemption option that could requsdo make a payment of approximately $13.3 nmjliacluding accrued interest. Since we
expect to continue incurring negative cash flowsrfroperations and in light of the potential cagfuireement in connection with our
convertible debentures, there is substantial dabbtt our ability to continue operating as a gaiagcern.

We will need to raise further capital at some fatpoint in time, through the sale of additionaliggsecurities or debt. Our future
capital requirements and the adequacy of our édeifainds will depend on many factors, including ahility to successfully commercialize
our MGuard™ products, our development of futuredpicis and competing technological and market devedémts. However, we may be
unable to raise sufficient additional capital whemrequire it or upon terms favorable to us. Initald, the terms of any securities we issue in
future financings may be more favorable to new &ors and may include preferences, superior veigigs and the issuance of warrants or
other derivative securities, which may have a frilutive effect on the holders of any of ourw#tes then outstanding. If we are unable to
obtain adequate funds on reasonable terms, waeelll to curtail operations significantly, includipgssibly postponing or halting our U.S.
Food and Drug Administration clinical trials or eribg into financing agreements with unattractierts.

General. At June 30, 2012, we had cash and cash equigabé@ipproximately $10.3 million, as compared td%8illion at June 30,
2011. The increase is attributable primarily toidstiance of senior secured convertible debenturésvarrants on April 5, 2012. We have
historically met our cash needs through a combinadf issuance of new shares, borrowing activiied sales. Our cash requirements are
generally for product development, clinical triatsarketing and sales activities, finance and adstrative cost, capital expenditures and
general working capital.

Cash used in our operating activities was approtaéin&8.6 million for the twelve months ended J@0¢ 2012, and approximately
$3.3 million for the same period in 2011. The pifiat reasons for the usage of cash in our operatitigities for the twelve months ended J
30, 2012 included a net loss of approximately $47iléon, an increase in working capital of appnmetely $1.7 million (driven primarily fror
an increase in our accounts receivable of appraein&1.2 million due to our increase in sales) apgroximately $1.3 million in non-cash
financial income related to the revaluation of mais pertaining to our convertible debentures gbtly approximately $10.6 million in non-
cash share-based compensation, approximately $#lli@nn non-cash financial expense related to comvertible debentures, and
approximately $0.2 million of all other adjustments

Cash used by our investing activities was approtetgab43,000 during the twelve months ended Jun@3D2, compared to
approximately $0.2 million during the same perin@011. The principal reason for the decreasesh daw from investing activities during
2012 was the purchase of approximately $290,00@wof equipment and the funding of employee retirarierds of approximately $71,000,
partially offset by a decrease in restricted cdsipproximately $306,000 and proceeds from the aléguipment of approximately $12,000.
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Cash flow generated from financing activities wppraximately $11.1 million for the twelve monthsded June 30, 2012, and $11.2
million for the same period in 2011. The principalirce of cash flow from financing activities dyyip012 was the proceeds from our
convertible debentures and warrants issued on Ap#D12 of approximately $9.9 million and the of options of approximately $1.5
million, offset by the repayment of a long-termnda the amount of approximately $0.3 million.

As of June 30, 2012, our current assets exceedeentliabilities by a multiple of 4.0. Current assincreased approximately $3.5
million during the twelve months ended June 30,20dainly due to cash raised from the convertilelbathture and warrant offering, and
current liabilities increased by approximately $tilion during the same period. As a result, owrking capital surplus increased by
approximately $3.9 million to approximately $10.8limn during the twelve months ended June 30, 2012

Long-Term Loan Prior to June 30, 2012, we had a long-term loathé amount of approximately $0.1 million beanngrest at the
three month U.S. Dollar LIBOR rate plus 4% per annlihe loan was payable in eight quarterly instatits during a period of three years tha
began in April 2010. According to the loan agreetnemcase of an “exit transactiond€fined as certain merger or sale transactionasn anitial
public offering), we were required to pay to thekan additional $0.25 million (which did not octifrthe sum received in the transaction \
higher than $100 million. The loan was repaid inutay 2012.

Sales of Stock/Issuance of Debt and Securifies the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, wedssenior secured convertible
debentures due April 5, 2014 in the original aggtegrincipal amount of $11,702,128 and five-yearrants to purchase an aggregate of
835,866 shares of our common stock at an exercice @f $7.20 per share in exchange for aggregatesgoroceeds of $11.0 million, with
corresponding net proceeds of approximately $91Bomi The convertible debentures were issued &if% original issuance discount, bear
interest at an annual rate of 8% and are converéiblny time into shares of common stock at diaimionversion price of $7.00 per share.
Upon conversion of the convertible debentures,stors will receive a conversion premium equal to@annum, with a limit of 12% for the
term of the convertible debentures, of the prinicgmaount being converted. In addition, the investoay require us to redeem the convertible
debentures at any time after October 5, 2013 (18thsocafter the date of issuance) for 112% of tlea thutstanding principal amount, plus all
accrued interest, and we may prepay the convedidbentures after six months for 112% of the thestanding principal amount, plus all
accrued interest. In connection with this financiwe paid placement agent fees of $848,750 anddsglacement agents warrants to purchase
78,078 shares of common stock, with terms ident@éhe warrants issued to the investors.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk
We are exposed to market risk related to fluctuatio interest rates and in foreign currency exgbaates.
Interest Rate Exposure
Our exposure to market risk relates primarily torstterm investments, including funds classifiectcash equivalents. As of June 30,

2012, all excess funds were invested in time dépasid other highly liquid investments, therefoue interest rate exposure is not considert
be material.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Exposure

Our foreign currency exchange rate exposure coasino evolve as we grow internationally. Our expesa foreign currency
transaction gains and losses is the result oficem&enues and expenses being denominated imncigseother than the U.S. dollar, primarily
the Euro and the New Israeli Shekel. We do noteruily engage in hedging or similar transactionethuce these risks. Fluctuations in
currency exchange rates could impact our resultgpefations, financial position, and cash flows.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

The following financial statements are includegasd of this Report (See Item 15):

« Report of Kesselman & Kesselman, Independent RagidtPublic Accounting Firm

o Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 20X2niieer 31, 2011 and 2010

« Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Sixtlis Ended June 30, 2012 and the Years Ended becem
31, 2011, 2010 and 20(

« Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (@apificiency) for the Six Months Ended June 3Q,2@and
the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and

« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Sintlils Ended June 30, 2012 and the Years Ended ecem
31, 2011, 2010 and 20(

« Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account#s on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Management’s Conclusions Regarding Effectiveness Biisclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation of the effectivenesaiof'disclosure controls and procedures”, as defimg Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atednas of June 30, 2012, the end of the periodreohby this Transition Report on
Form 10-K/T. The “disclosure controls and procedlevaluation was done under the supervision aild the participation of management,
including our chief executive officer and chiefdincial officer. There are inherent limitations e effectiveness of any system of “disclosure
controls and procedures”. Accordingly, even effextidisclosure controls and procedures” can ontywjate reasonable assurance of achieving
their control objectives. Based upon this evalugtaur chief executive officer and chief finanaidficer have concluded that our “disclosure
controls and procedures” were effective at theaealle assurance level as of June 30, 2012.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigaring, as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchangeok 1934, as amended. Our internal control oiericial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaiicial reporting and the preparation of the ctidated financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with generallgpisd accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness of internal cohover financial reporting to future periods ateéject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions othbategree of compliance with the policies or pohres may deteriorate over time.
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Management, including our chief executive officed @ur chief financial officer, assessed the effectess of our internal control o\
financial reporting as of June 30, 2012. In makimg assessment, management used the criteriartiebly the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commissioiriternal Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on its assessment and those criteria,
management has concluded that we maintained eféeictiernal control over financial reporting aslahe 30, 2012.

Kesselman & Kesselman, Certified Public Accountattits independent registered public accounting fhvat audited our consolidat
financial statements included in this TransitiorpB& on Form 10-K/T, has issued an attestationnteggoour internal control over financial
reporting, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our internal cooen financial reporting during the transition periended June 30, 2012 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.
Not applicable.
PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporge Governance.

The following table sets forth information regamgliour executive officers and the members of ourdoédirectors.

Name Age Position

Ofir Paz 46  Chief Executive Officer and Direct

Craig Shore 51  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasi

Eli Bar 47  Senior Vice President of Research and DevelopmahtChief Technical Officer ¢
InspireMD Ltd.

Robert Ratin 50 Vice President of Sales and Marketing of InspireMB.

Sol J. Barer, Ph.C 65 Chairman of the Board of Directc

Asher Holzer, Ph.C 62 Director

James Barry, Ph.L 53  Director

Paul Stuke 57  Director

Eyal Weinsteir 57  Director

Our directors hold office until the earlier of thdieath, resignation or removal by stockholdersrdil their successors have been
qualified. Our directors are divided into threessles. Sol J. Barer, Ph.D. and Paul Stuka arelass t directors, with their terms of office to
expire at our 2012 annual meeting of stockholdésher Holzer, Ph.D. and Eyal Weinstein are oussdirectors, with their terms of office
to expire at our 2013 annual meeting of stockhald@fir Paz and James Barry, Ph.D. are our clase8tors, with their terms of office to
expire at our 2014 annual meeting of stockholdéitseach annual meeting of stockholders, commenwitigthe 2012 annual meeting,
directors elected to succeed those directors wteoses expire shall be elected for a term of offwexpire at the third succeeding annual
meeting of stockholders after their election, vatich director to hold office until his or her sussmr shall have been duly elected and quali

Our officers hold office until the earlier of theleath, resignation or removal by our board ofadoes or until their successors have
been selected. They serve at the pleasure of @udlwd directors.
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Executive Officers and Directors

Ofir Pazhas served as our chief executive officer andectbir since March 31, 2011. In addition, Mr. Pag $erved as the chief
executive officer and a director of InspireMD Lsince May 2005. From April 2000 through July 200R, Paz headed the Microsoft TV
Platform Group in Israel. In this capacity, Mr. Faanaged the overall activities of Microsoft TV &ss Channel Server, a server-based
solution for delivering interactive services andchisoft Windows-based content to digital cableteptboxes. Mr. Paz joined Microsoft in
April 2000 when it acquired Peach Networks, whiehftunded and served as its chief executive offider Paz was responsible for designing
Peach Networks’ original system architecture, tgkirfrom product design to product viability, atietn managing and leading the company u
to and after its acquisition, which was valuedmgraximately $100 million at the time of such aditibn. Mr. Paz currently serves on the
board of directors of A. S. Paz Investment and Menzent Ltd., S.P. Market Windows Israel Ltd. anddPeNetworks Ltd. Mr. Paz receive!
B.Sc. in Electrical Engineering, graduating cundiauand a M.Sc. from Tel Aviv University. Mr. Pazjsalifications to serve on the board
include his prior experience in successfully esshalblg and leading technology companies in Isréeladdition, as chief executive officer, Mr.
Paz’'s position on the board ensures a unity obmisietween the broader goals our company and gutodday operations.

Craig Shorehas served as our chief financial officer, secyetand treasurer since March 31, 2011. In addisam;e November 10,
2010, Mr. Shore has served as InspireMD Ltd.’s piesident of business development. From Febru2®@ zhrough June 2009, Mr. Shore
served as chief financial officer of World Groupp@al Ltd. and Nepco Star Ltd., both publicly trddsompanies on the Tel Aviv Stock
Exchange, based in Tel Aviv, Israel. From March@Qatil February 2008, Mr. Shore served as thefdtmancial officer of Cellnets Solutions
Ltd., a provider of advanced cellular public teleph solutions for low to middle income populatimfsdeveloping countries based in Azur,
Israel. Mr. Shore has over 25 years of experiendmancial management in the U.S., Europe anclskis experience includes raising capital
both in the private and public markets. Mr. Shai@dgated with honors and received a B.Sc. in Fiadrmn Pennsylvania State University ¢
an M.B.A. from George Washington University.

Eli Bar has served as InspireMD Ltd.’s senior vice predidénesearch and development and chief technitiako since February
2011. Prior to that, he served as InspireMD Ltdite president of research and development sirtel®r 2006 and engineering manager
since June 2005. Mr. Bar has over 15 years expazign medical device product development. Mr. B8 vast experience building a comp
research and development structure, managing tlamsthe idea stage to an advanced marketable ptode has been involved with many
medical device projects over the years and hasajee@ a synthetic vascular graft for femoral antboary artery replacement, a covered sten
and a fully implantable ventricular assist devide. Bar has more than nine filed device and metbaténts and he has initiated two medical
device projects. Mr. Bar is also a director of B&ugrgical Ltd., a medical device company basedradl. Mr. Bar graduated from New Haven
University in Connecticut with a B.Sc. in MechaniEagineering.

Robert Ratinihas served as InspireMD Ltd.’s vice president tdssand marketing in a full-time capacity sinceeldn2012 and
served in a part-time capacity from March 27, 20agl May 31, 2012. From April 2011 through Marc6, 2012, Mr. Ratini served as a
business consultant and the vice president of basidevelopment for Easy Med Services, Inc. in Gerigwitzerland, which focuses on
telemedicine software products, Stentys SA in P&riance, which focuses on self-expanding coroetagts, and Parvulus SA in Lonay,
Switzerland, which concentrates on intra annulartwalve repair rings. From October 2009 throgrch 2011, Mr. Ratini served as the
director of marketing for Orbusneich Medical, whigtoduces and sells interventional cardiology potsitand from October 2006 through
September 2009, Mr. Ratini served as vice presigletial marketing and EMEA sales for Biosensorermdtional, Switzerland, where he
established a global sales and marketing departamehted the launch of the Bio Matrix drug elutstgnt. Mr. Ratini has extensive cardiology
and vascular experience and has worked in the mledformation technology industry since 1989. Ratini graduated from the University
Applied Sciences in Bienne, Switzerland with a Mastf Computer Science.

Sol J. Barer, Ph.D.has served as a director since July 11, 2011 anddraed as our chairman since November 16, 201 Bdder
has over 30 years of experience with publicly tchdimtechnology companies. In 1980, when Dr. Baras with Celanese Research Company
he formed the biotechnology group that was subsetyugspun out to form Celgene Corporation. Dr. Bagent 18 years leading Celgene
Corporation as president, chief operating offiaedt ahief executive officer, culminating with hisitee as Celgene Corporation’s executive
chairman and chairman beginning in May 2006 ungilratirement in June 2011. Dr. Barer is also ador of Cerecor, Inc., Edge Therapeu
Inc., Medgenics, Inc., ContraFect Corporation, Ausid herapeutics, Inc. and Aegerion Pharmaceutitasand serves as a senior advisor to
number of other biotechnology companies. Dr. Begeeived a Ph.D. in organic chemistry from Rutdémgsersity. Dr. Barer brings to the
board significant scientific and executive leadgrsixperience in the U.S. biotechnology industrg prior service on the board of directors of
other publicly-held biopharmaceutical companiesyal as a unique perspective on the best methbgsowth for a biotechnology company.
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Asher Holzer, PhD, has served as our director since March 31, 2D.1Holzer served as our president from March 31, 12until
June 1, 2012 and served as our chairman from MakcB011 until November 16, 2011. In addition, Bolzer served as the president and
chairman of the board of InspireMD Ltd. from Ap2iD07 until June 1, 2012. Previously, Dr. Holzerfded Adar Medical Ltd., an investment
firm specializing in medical device startups, aadved as its chief executive officer from 2002 tigb 2004. Dr. Holzer currently serves on the
board of directors of Adar Medical Ltd., O.S.H.-The Israeli Society of Occupational Safety and Hekid., Ultra-Cure Ltd., GR-Ed
Investment and Enterprise Ltd., Vasculogix Ltd.efidcoat Ltd., Cuber Stent Ltd., 2to3D Ltd., and. Brket Windows Cyprus. Dr. Holzer
earned his PhD in Applied Physics from the Hebraviversity. Dr. Holzer is also an inventor and tesldf numerous patents. Dr. Holzer
brings to the board his more than 25 years of égpee in advanced medical devices, as well as &gpaovering a wide range of activities,
including product development, clinical studiegyukatory affairs, market introduction and the fineh aspects of the stent business.

James Barry, Ph.Dhas served as a director since January 30, 20L.2Bdiry has served as executive vice presidenthrel
operating officer at Arsenal Medical Inc., a meti@vice company focused on local therapy, singae®eber 2011. Dr. Barry also heads his
own consulting firm, Convergent Biomedical GroupQ,ladvising medtech companies on product developragrategy, regulatory challenges
and fund raising. Until June 2010, he was senime president, corporate technology developmeBbaton Scientific Corporation, where he
was in charge of the corporate research and develnpand pre-clinical sciences functions. Dr. Bgoiged Boston Scientific in 1992 and
oversaw its efforts in the identification and deyeghent of drug, device and biological systems fipligations with implantable and catheter-
based delivery systems. He currently serves om@euof advisory boards including the College afrBedical Engineering at Yale
University, the College of Sciences at Universitvassachusetts-Lowell, and the Massachusetts3dfence Center. Dr. Barry received his
Ph.D. in Biochemistry from the University of Mashasetts-Lowell and holds a B.A. degree in Chemifsign Saint Anselm College. Dr.
Barry brings to the board over 20 years of expeegan leadership roles in the medical device inguabd significant medical technology
experience, in particular with respect to interi@mal cardiology products.

Paul Stukahas served as a director since August 8, 2011.SMika has served as the managing member of @sirisers, LLC since
2000. Prior to forming Osiris Partners, LLC, Mtulga, with 30 years experience in the investmethistry, was a managing director of
Longwood Partners, managing small cap instituti@eabunts. In 1995, Mr. Stuka joined State StRestearch and Management as manag
its Market Neutral and Mid Cap Growth Funds. Frd®8@.to 1994, Mr. Stuka served as the general paofr8tuka Associates, where he
managed a U.S.-based investment partnership. Mka%tegan his career in 1980 as an analyst atifyiléhnagement and Research. As an
analyst, Mr. Stuka followed a wide array of indiestrincluding healthcare, energy, transportatiod, ladging and gaming. Early in his career
he became the assistant portfolio manager for thidaity Funds, including the Select Healthcaradrwhich was recognized as the top
performing fund in the U.S. for the five-year periending December 31, 1985. Mr. Stuka’s qualifmadito serve on the board include his
significant strategic and business insight fromyleiars of experience investing in the healthcadestiry.

Eyal Weinsteinhas served as a director since August 8, 2011.Winstein is the chief executive officer of LEOREXI., a
company developing and marketing Dermo Cosmetidymts. From 2001 to 2007, Mr. Weinstein worked asager-partner of C.1.G., an
economic and accounting consultancy, consultindgefading Israeli banks, including Leumi Bank, Hapona@Bank, Discount Bank and Bank
Hamizrachi. From 2000 to 2001, he was manager-paghExseed, a venture capital fund that investexhrly-stage companies. Beginning in
1996, Mr. Weinstein was a partner and founder éng$tablishment of three high-tech companies teat witimately sold, two to Microsoft
Corporation. Mr. Weinstein brings to the boarddossiderable management and business experieceea®cutive of several companies and
investment funds in Israel.

Family Relationships

We have no family relationships amongst our dinecémd executive officers.
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Agreements with Executive Officers
Ofir Paz

On April 1, 2005, InspireMD Ltd. entered into anoyment agreement with Ofir Paz to serve as ledpid Ltd.’s chief executive
officer. Such employment agreement was subsequantgnded on October 1, 2008 and March 28, 201%uBat to this employment
agreement, as amended, Mr. Paz was entitled tonghiga@ross salary of $15,367. Mr. Paz was alsdledtto certain social and fringe benefits
as set forth in the employment agreement, whicklédt25% of his gross salary, as well as a companyMr. Paz was also entitled to a
minimum bonus equivalent to three monthly grosarggbayments based on achievement of objectiveshendpproval of the board of
directors. Mr. Paz was eligible to receive stockas pursuant to this agreement following itsmsianth anniversary, subject to board appr¢
If Mr. Paz’'s employment was terminated with or weitth cause, he was entitled to at least six momitist notice and would have been paid his
salary and all social and fringe benefits in fulfidg such notice period.

On April 1, 2011, in order to obtain more favorata® treatment in Israel, the employment agreemthtMr. Paz was terminated a
InspireMD Ltd. entered into a consultancy agreemtit A.S. Paz Management and Investment Ltd.,rdityewholly-owned by Mr. Paz,
through which Mr. Paz was retained to serve asiles{D Ltd.’s chief executive officer. Pursuant tag consultancy agreement, Mr. Paz was
entitled to a monthly consultancy fee of $21,563. Rz was also entitled to a minimum bonus eqeitab three monthly gross salary
payments based on achievement of objectives anapiiv@val of the board of directors. The consulfeagreement also contains certain
confidentiality, non-competition and non-solicitatirequirements for Mr. Paz. If Mr. Paz's employineas terminated without cause, he was
entitled to at least six months’ prior notice analud have been paid his consultancy fee during satice period.

At the request of the compensation committee, Me &greed, effective as of December 1, 2011, wobgensated as an employee,
rather than as a consultant, on substantially dhgesterms as the consultancy agreement. Sincenibecel, 2011, Mr. Paz has been treated a:
an employee of ours and has received the samedéeempensationi(e., base salary and benefits) as was mandated uisdeorsultancy
agreement. We have otherwise complied with thesarhthe consulting agreement.

For a description of certain severance and permgments to which Mr. Paz was and will be entitieder his agreements, see “ltem
11. Executive Compensation—Potential Payments Umwmination or Change of Control.”

Craig Shore

On November 28, 2010, InspireMD Ltd. entered ima@aployment agreement with Craig Shore to sentasreMD Ltd.’s vice
president of business development. Pursuant tertfidoyment agreement, Mr. Shore was entitled tmathly gross salary of $8,750, which
amount increased to $10,200 upon consummationra$tmare exchange transactions on March 31, 201whiuh further increased to $10,620
as of July 1, 2011. Mr. Shore is also entitledddain social and fringe benefits as set fortthimémployment agreement. The consultancy
agreement also contains certain confidentiality;-oompetition and non-solicitation requirementsNbr Shore. Mr. Shore is also entitled to,
and received, a grant of options to purchase 11r@&icted ordinary shares of InspireMD Ltd. whigare converted into options to purchase
91,306 shares of our common stock following thescommation of our share exchange transactions ochvii, 2011; such options shall fully
vest if Mr. Shore’s employment is terminated in igection with a change of control. If Mr. Shore’sgayment is terminated without cause,
Mr. Shore shall be entitled to at least 30 daysimmotice and shall be paid his salary in full atidsocial and fringe benefits during such notice
period. If a major change of control of InspireMBrlLoccurs, Mr. Shore will be entitled to at 1ea80 days’ prior written notice and shall be
paid his salary in full and all social and fringenlefits during such notice period. If Mr. Shoréeisnminated for cause, he is not entitled to any
notice.

For a description of certain severance and permgments to which Mr. Shore is entitled under hiplyment agreement, see “ltem
11. Executive Compensation—Potential Payments Umwmination or Change of Control.”
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Eli Bar

On June 26, 2005, InspireMD Ltd. entered into apleyment agreement with Eli Bar to serve as Ingpideltd.’s engineering
manager. Pursuant to tlemployment agreement, Mr. Bar is entitled to a rhigngross salary of $8,750, which amount incredeebiL0,620 &
of July 1, 2011. Mr. Bar is also entitled to certsocial and fringe benefits as set forth in theokyment agreement including a company
car. If Mr. Bar's employment is terminated with@atuse, he is entitled to at least 60 day&r notice and shall be paid his salary in fultiall
social and fringe benefits during such notice pkrio

For a description of certain severance and permmgments to which Mr. Bar is entitled under his &ayment agreement, see “ltem
11. Executive Compensation—Potential Payments Umwmination or Change of Control.”

Robert Ratini

On March 27, 2012, InspireMD Ltd. entered into astdtancy agreement with Robert Ratini to servimggireMD Ltd.’s vice-
president of sales and marketing. Until May 31120Mr. Ratini provided services on a part-timei®asnd, beginning on June 1, 2012, he has
served as the full-time vice-president of salesrmadketing. Mr. Ratini is entitled to receive $200 per month in consideration for his
services, which was paid on a pro-rata basis ®hthurs he worked until May 31, 2012, and is alddled to receive a monthly phase-in
payment of $7,000 from June 1, 2012 to Decembe2@12. Mr. Ratini is eligible to receive variousrfprmance-based commissions, which
are dependent upon the levels of revenue geneogitbis sales activity. The consultancy agreemisiat @ontains certain confidentiality, non-
competition and noselicitation requirements for Mr. Ratini. The coltancy agreement has no termination date, but neagtminated witho:
cause by InspireMD Ltd. (i) upon 30 day prior weittnotice if such notice is submitted between Jyr#912 and August 31, 2012; or (ii) upon
90 day prior written notice if such notice is sutied after September 1, 2012.

Asher Holzer

On April 1, 2005, InspireMD Ltd. entered into anpoyment agreement with Asher Holzer, Ph.D. to sexy InspireMD Ltd.’s
president. Such employment agreement was subségaemnded on March 28, 2011. Pursuant to this eynpént agreement, as amended,
Dr. Holzer was entitled to a monthly gross saldr$15,367. Dr. Holzer was also entitled to ceragial and fringe benefits as set forth in the
employment agreement, which totaled 25% of hisgsagary, as well as a company car. Dr. Holzeralss entitled to a minimum bonus
equivalent to three monthly gross salary paymeaseth on achievement of objectives and the appodvbk board of directors. Dr. Holzer w
eligible to receive stock options pursuant to #gseement following its six month anniversary, sagbjo board approval. If Dr. Holzer’s
employment was terminated with or without causewhs entitled to at least six months’ prior noteel would have been paid his salary and
all social and fringe benefits in full during suehtice period.

On April 29, 2011, effective April 1, 2011, in ord® obtain more favorable tax treatment in Isrtted, employment agreement with
Dr. Holzer was terminated and InspireMD Ltd. entergo a consultancy agreement with OSH-IL, thad$rSociety Ltd., an entity wholly-
owned by Dr. Holzer, through which Dr. Holzer wasained to serve as InspireMD L&lpresident. Pursuant to this consultancy agreerbe!
Holzer was entitled to a monthly consultancy fe&2%,563. Dr. Holzer was also entitled to a minimonus equivalent to three monthly gr
salary payments based on achievement of objectivéshe approval of the board of directors. Thesatiancy agreement also contained
certain confidentiality, non-competition and nodigtation requirements for Dr. Holzer. If Dr. HaZs employment was terminated without
cause, he was entitled to at least six monthstpratice and would have been paid his consultaeeydfuring such notice period.

At the request of the compensation committee, tffe@as of December 1, 2011, Dr. Holzer agreecktttréated as an employee for
purposes of paying Dr. Holzer’s salary and beneditser than as a consultant under Dr. Holzer'sattancy agreement.

64




On June 1, 2012, Dr. Holzer, OSH-IL, the Israekigty of Occupational Health and Safety Ltd. amgbireMD Ltd. entered into a
separation agreement and release, pursuant to venadng other things, the consultancy agreemeteddss of April 29, 2011, by and betwe
InspireMD Ltd. and OSH-IL the Israeli Society Ltdlas terminated and Dr. Holzer resigned as presatahidirector of InspireMD Ltd. and
president of InspireMD, Inc. As part of the separatgreement, Dr. Holzer agreed to release upire¥D Ltd., and Inspire MD GmbH from
any and all claims, rights or demands arising faymelated to the previous agreement, the relatietween the parties or the termination
thereof.

On June 1, 2012, we entered into a consulting aggaewith Dr. Holzer, which terminates on NovemB@r 2012, pursuant to which
Dr. Holzer will provide us with consulting serviciesexchange for monthly payments of $20,337. As pithe consulting agreement, Dr.
Holzer released us and our affiliates from any ahdlaims other than those related to Dr. Holz@osition as a shareholder. Under this
consulting agreement, Dr. Holzer is not entitledy additional benefits, other than benefit planprograms that we provide to our directors
so long as Dr. Holzer remains on our board of dinesc

For a description of certain severance and pensyments to which Dr. Holzer was and will be eatitunder his agreements, see
“Iltem 11. Executive Compensation—Potential Paymelgsn Termination or Change of Control.”

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires ourctlims and officers, and persons who own more thampércent of our common
stock, to file with the Securities and Exchange @uossion initial reports of ownership and reportslonges in ownership of our common
stock. Directors, officers and persons who own ntloa® ten percent of our common stock are requiye8ecurities and Exchange
Commission regulations to furnish us with copieslbSection 16(a) forms they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on a review of th@es of such reports furnished to us, during ther®nths ended June 30, 2012,
each of our directors, officers and greater tharp&rcent stockholders complied with all Sectio(al éiling requirements applicable to our
directors, officers and greater than ten percerkstolders, except that Dr. Barry reported onesaation on a late Form 4 and Mr. Ratini filed
one late Form 3 reporting no beneficial ownersHipuwr securities and reported one transaction lateaForm 4.

Board Committees

Our board of directors has established an audintitiere, a nominating and corporate governance cti@ednd a compensation
committee, each of which has the composition asdaesibilities described below.

Audit Committee Our audit committee is currently comprised of btes Stuka and Weinstein and Dr. Barer, each ofnmvbor board
has determined to be financially literate and dyals an independent director under Section 56(®)ajf the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Mar
Mr. Stuka is the chairman of our audit committed guoalifies as a financial expert, as defined @mlt407(d)(5)(ii) of Regulation S-K. The
audit committee’s duties are to recommend to oardbof directors the engagement of independentansdio audit our financial statements
and to review our accounting and auditing princgplEhe audit committee will review the scope, tighand fees for the annual audit and the
results of audit examinations performed by therirabauditors and independent public accountantyding their recommendations to
improve the system of accounting and internal aisitr

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committg&@ur nominating and corporate governance comenigteurrently comprised of
Messrs. Stuka and Weinstein and Dr. Barer, eagrhoim qualify as an independent director under 8ed&605(a)(2) of the rules of the
Nasdaq Stock Market. Mr. Stuka is the chairmaouwfnominating and corporate governance commitfd® nominating and corpore
governance committee identifies and recommendsitdaoard of directors individuals qualified to beedtor nominees. In addition, the
nominating and corporate governance committee rewamds to our board of directors the members anidnoha of each board committee w
will periodically review and assess our code ofibess conduct and ethics and our corporate goveenguidelines. The nominating and
corporate governance committee also makes reconatiend for changes to our code of business corahatethics and our corporate
governance guidelines to our board of directonggres any other matters related to our corporategmnce and oversees the evaluation ¢
board of directors and our management.

65




Compensation Committe®ur compensation committee is currently compriseliessrs. Stuka and Weinstein and Dr. Barer, @fch
whom qualify as an independent director under 8ec605(a)(2) of the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Markr. Weinstein is the chairman of |
compensation committee. The compensation commigsdews and approves our salary and benefits gali¢ghcluding compensation of
executive officers and directors. The compensat@nmittee also administers our stock option plamsracommends and approves grants of
stock options under such plans.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics and business cbtid applies to our officers, directors and eapks, including our principal
executive officer and principal accounting officehich is posted on our website at www.inspire-rachcWe intend to disclose future
amendments to certain provisions of the code da€gtlor waivers of such provisions granted to ekgewfficers and directors, on this website
within five business days following the date ofls@mnendment or waiver.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Compensation Discussion and Analysis discusgegrinciples underlying our executive compensaiolicies and decisions
for our named executive officers. It provides quaive information regarding the manner in whiclmp@nsation is earned by our named
executive officers and places in context the de¢agnted in the tables that follow. In addition,adelress the compensation paid or awarded
during the six months ended June 30, 2012 anddbal fyear ended December 31, 2011 to our namezligxe officers: Ofir Paz, our chief
executive officer (principal executive officer),ay Shore, our chief financial officer, secretang dreasurer (principal financial and accoun
officer), Asher Holzer, Ph.D., our former presidesii Bar, the senior vice president of researath @evelopment and chief technical officer of
InspireMD Ltd., and Sara Paz, the former vice plesi of sales of InspireMD Ltd.

We formed a compensation committee on Septembe2@1l,. Prior to that date, all compensation denisior Mr. Paz and Dr.
Holzer were made by our board of directors. Mr. ®Wag responsible for the executive compensatiokaupes of Messrs. Shore and Bar and
Ms. Paz. Because of the potential conflict of iasty Dr. Holzer and Mr. Shore also reviewed and@ma Mr. Paz’s decision with respect to
Ms. Paz’'s compensation before it was implementéé. durrent compensation package of Mr. Paz anddimpensation package of Dr. Holzer
until his retirement were determined before ourslechange transactions on March 31, 2011, whepireMD Ltd. was a private Israeli
company. In accordance with Israeli law, their cemgation was submitted to and approved by the ktddkrs of InspireMD Ltd. on February
28, 2011. Our board of directors also reviewed gpgroved Mr. Shore’s compensation package afteshihee exchange transactions.

Going forward, the compensation committee of owarbaf directors will review at least annually atetermine the executive
compensation packages for Mr. Paz, including agpgpany grants of stock options. Mr. Paz will remegsponsible for making
recommendations to our compensation committee nggpect to the executive compensation packageddesrs. Shore and Bar, including
grants of stock options. The compensation commyegzrérmed its annual review of named executiveceffcompensation in F ebruary 2012.

In considering compensation for our named executffieers prior to 2012, the board of directorsedlupon the officer’s

performance and contribution to our developmentasidevements. We did not engage in any formal lracking or conduct or obtain any
formal surveys of executive compensation at pepmpamies. We also considered general compensaéindstr
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During the compensation committee’s review of nameecutive officer compensation for 2012, the conspéion committee
retained the services of a compensation consultéuet.consultant provided a report that includednfarbenchmarking of our named executive
officers’ compensation against that at companitecsed by the consultant and approved by our cosgiean committee. The peer group was
comprised of 16 U.S.-based public medical devioespanies and four Israel-based public medical @éearw biopharmaceutical companies
that were determined to have a comparable busareksfinancial profile to us, in terms of revenumpéoyee size and/or market value:

Antares Pharm Atricure Bacterin International Holdinc
BioLase Technolog Cardica Cerus

Conceptus Cutera Cytori Therapeutic

D Medical Industrie: Palomar Medical Technologit Pluristem Therapeutic
PROLOR Biotect Protalix BioTherapeutic SEQUENOM

STAAR Surgical Stereotaxis SurModics

Uroplasty Vision-Science:

The compensation consultant’s report and recommimdaprimarily called for increases in named exeeuofficer compensation.
However, in light of our current financial positioour long-term and short-term goals, the fact thahy of our named executive officers
received salary increases in 2011 and the signifiequity ownership of many of our named execubffieers, the compensation committee
determined to take only two actions with resped¢htoeases in named executive officer compensati@012, in the form of a stock option
grant to Mr. Shore, on the terms and for the reasi@scribed under “Named Executive Officer Compiémsa- Compensation of Chief
Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer” below a cash bonus to Mr. Bar, in the amount andhiferéason described under “Named
Executive Officer Compensation — Compensation oii@&eVice President of Research and DevelopmentGhidf Technical Officer of
InspireMD Ltd.” below. The compensation committég ot determine to target our overall compensapiackages, or elements of our
compensation packages, to fall within a certaircgetile of the comparator group above, althougtctimpensation committee may determine
to do so in the future.

We have entered into agreements with all of ourathexecutive officers. These agreements are sumedannder “Executive
Officers and Directors — Agreements with Executdfficers.” Mr. Paz and Dr. Holzer were compensatecsuant to consultancy agreements
beginning on April 1, 2011. However, at the requdshe compensation committee, Mr. Paz and Drzeloagreed, effective as of Decembe
2011, to be compensated as employees rather tinsnltants. Since December 1, 2011, Mr. Paz has laeenfrom December 1, 2011 until his
resignation, Dr. Holzer was, treated as an emplojesirs and received the same level of compensétie., base salary and benefits) as eacl
would have been entitled to under his consultamggement. We have otherwise complied with the tarhike consultancy agreements.

Philosophy of Compensatio

The goals of our compensation policy are to enthakexecutive compensation rewards managemehefping us achieve our
financial goals (increased sales, profitability. pand meet our clinical trial milestones and mdignanagement’s overall goals and objectives
with those of our stockholders. To achieve thesdgg@ur compensation committee and board of direaims to:

- provide a competitive compensation package thétleaais to attract and retain superior managenessbpnel;

« relate compensation to our overall performancejrttividual officer's performance and our assesdnoéthe officer’s future
potential;

« reward our officers fairly for their role in ourtdevements; and
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» align executives’ objectives with the objectivesstifckholders by granting equity awards to encaeiegecutive stock
ownership.

We have determined that in order to best meet tblefgetives, our executive compensation progranulshimalance fixed and bonus
compensation, as well as cash and equity compensais discussed below. Historically, there has lbeepre-established policy or target for
the allocation between either cash and non-cashat-term and long-term incentive compensatiorofarexecutive officers. We intend in the
future to solicit recommendations from our compéinsaconsultants with respect to the balance adimrnd bonus compensation for our
executive officers.

Components of Compensation

The principal components of compensation for oun@g executive officers are base salary/consultieg,fequity based grants,
personal benefits and perquisites and, potentialtiie future, cash bonuses.

Base Salary/Consulting Feeéghe primary component of compensation for our nameatutive officers is base salary (or consulting
fees for our named executive officers who are eggglursuant to consultancy agreements). Baseydalals for our named executive
officers have historically been determined baseshuam evaluation of a number of factors, includimgindividual officer’s level of
responsibility, length and depth of experience amdassessment of the officer’s future potentiahwur company, performance and, to the
extent available, general compensation levelsrofiaily situated executives and general compensdtends. Although our employment and
consultancy agreements with our named executiveenff set forth a fixed base salary, salaries haes reviewed periodically and changed,
when deemed appropriate, by oral or written amemdneethe applicable offices’agreement. For 2011, we generally increasedabe alarie
of our executive officers, in part as a reflectafrour becoming a publicly traded company in th&.land the accompanying increased
responsibilities for our executive officers. PriorApril 1, 2011, Ms. Paz was compensated on aniybasis, based on a fixed hourly
consulting fee. In 2012, the compensation commiegtermined not to make any changes to the baagesabf our named executive officers.

In the future, the compensation committee intendgtiew each named executive officer’'s base saangulting fee on an annual
basis. In addition to the factors described abowvsetting base salary, the compensation commiitteads to consider the recommendations of
our compensation consultant and more formal daarding the compensation levels of similarly sitgbéxecutives.

Equity Based Grant#\n additional principal component of our compermatpolicy for named executive officers consistg@nts
under the InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Pldunder this plan, among other awards, executifieess may be granted stock
options. Since its formation, the compensation cdtemof the board of directors has administeredgitants of awards under the InspireMD,
Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan, and prior to itsrfisation, the board of directors administered sweards. We believe that equity
ownership of our company by our named executivieaf§ will further align the interests of our extree officers with those of our
stockholders.

Prior to 2012, all equity incentive awards were madher (i) in accordance with negotiated terntgcagh in our employment or
consultancy agreements, at levels deemed necdssattyact or retain the executive at the timeunfhsnegotiations and determined taking into
account the recipient’s overall compensation paekayl the goal of aligning such executive’s intenath that of our stockholders, or (ii) at
the discretion of the board of directors or the pensation committee without reference to any fortaaets or objectives, when deemed
appropriate in connection with extraordinary effast results or necessary in order to retain tleewive in light of the executive’s overall
compensation package.

During its 2012 compensation review, the compeasatommittee determined to make only one equitgrnitige award, to Mr.
Shore , on the terms and for the reasons desanib@er “Named Executive Officer Compensation — Camspdon of Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer” below.

Our compensation committee intends to considendwiur annual compensation review whether to gegnity incentive awards to
our named executive officers, and the terms ofsarph awards, including whether to set any perfooadargets or other objective or
subjective criteria related to the final grant esting of such awards. The compensation committkalgo retain the flexibility to make
additional grants throughout the year if deemedkssary or appropriate in order to retain our naeetutive officers or reward extraordinary
efforts or achievements.
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Personal Benefits and Perquisite€ertain of our named executive officers are lttito additional personal benefits in accordance
with what we believe to be customary practice awvdih Israel, including contributions towards pemsand vocational studies funds, annual
recreational allowances, a company car, a dailg towance and a company phone. We believe thexsefits are commonly provided to
executives in Israel, and we therefore believe ithathecessary for us to provide these bendfitwder to attract and retain superior
management personnel.

Cash BonusUntil 2012, we had never paid cash bonuses to xerigives; however, our consultancy agreements MitHPaz and
Dr. Holzer provided for cash bonuses to be patti@tiscretion of our board of directors in an antawt less than three months’ salary. We
believe that cash bonus payments are an appropnedes to reward significant achievement and dmution to us by an executive officer,
especially for officers that already hold signifit@quity positions in our company. Therefore, gdiorward, cash bonuses may become a |
significant component of our compensation policydrecutive officers.

During its 2012 compensation review, the compeasatbommittee determined to make a cash bonus aveekdt,. Bar , in the
amount and for the reason described under “Namedive Officer Compensation — Compensation of @evlice President of Research and
Development and Chief Technical Officer of InspifeMtd.” below.

We intend to consider the amount of cash bonusathett of our named executive officers should bigledito receive in connection
with our annual compensation review, taking intocamt each executive’s total compensation packhgaecommendations of our
compensation consultant, and any more formal databtain regarding the compensation levels of sityilsituated executives. We will also
consider in connection with such review whetheddsignate certain financial or operational metoicsther objective or subjective criteria in
determining the final amounts of such awards.

Compensation of Named Executive Officers

Compensation of Chief Executive Offidduring the six months ended June 30, 2012, Mr.P&tal compensation was $153,597.
In 2011, Mr. Paz’s total compensation was $247,63%ompared to $219,160 in total compensatio®102Mr. Paz’s total compensation was
comprised of (i) salary payments from DecembeiOl,12through June 30, 2012, (ii) consulting feesl pairsuant to the consultancy agreemen
InspireMD Ltd. entered into with A.S. Paz Managetrerd Investment Ltd., an entity wholly-owned by.Naz, through which Mr. Paz was
retained to serve as InspireMD Ltd.’s chief exaaitifficer from April 1, 2011 through November 211, (iii) salary payments made during
December 2011, and (iv) benefits and perquisiesare fully discussed below. For the six monthdeeinJune 30, 2012, Mr. Paz’s salary
compensation was $121,327. In 2011, Mr. Paz’'s yaampensation was $42,425 under his employmeeeagent, $122,970 under the
consultancy agreement with A.S. Paz Managementrarg$tment Ltd and $15,371 as an employee in Deee@fiil 1, for a total of $180,766,
as compared to $89,197 under his employment agrgeand $78,491 under a consultancy agreement twaiweffect prior to his employme
agreement, for a total of $167,688, in 2010. Iredatning the compensation for Mr. Paz in 2011, lmeaird of directors evaluated the corporate
and organizational accomplishments of our comparB0iL0, as well as Mr. Paz’s individual accompligiits. Mr. Paz’s 2011 compensation
was also increased in anticipation of our compaggoming a publicly traded company in the U.S. dredadditional obligations that would
entail for our chief executive officer. Mr. Paz'smapensation package for 2011 was determined betorshare exchange transactions on
March 31, 2011, when InspireMD Ltd. was a privaeéli company. In accordance with Israeli law,dumpensation was submitted to and
approved by the stockholders of InspireMD Ltd. @bfuary 28, 2011. The compensation committee déterhthat no changes were neede
Mr. Paz’s compensation package during 2012.
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Mr. Paz also received various benefits as bottsalaried employee and our consultant, many of waittter are required by Israeli
law or we believe are customarily provided to I§ragecutives. These benefits included contribwitmhis pension and vocational studies
funds, an annual recreation payment, a companyaaall-phone and a daily food allowance. For tkeronths ended June 30, 2012, Mr. Raz
benefits compensation was $32,270. In 2011, Mr's”@mnefits compensation through payments madérak an employee and through
payments made to A.S. Paz Management and Investrittbitas $66,273, as compared to $51,472 in 2010.bOard of directors and
compensation committee determined that equity besegpensation would be inappropriate for Mr. Pa20t1 and 2012, in light of his curr
equity holdings in our company.

Compensation of Chief Financial Officer, Secretangl TreasurerMr. Shore was initially hired as InspireMD Ltd.’&ce president
of business development and became our chief fiabofficer, secretary and treasurer on March 31,12 During the six months ended June
30, 2012, Mr. Shore’s total compensation was $2Z83!,81 2011, Mr. Shors’total compensation was $419,433, as comparetixd §2 in tota
compensation in 2010, which represented compemsptim from the commencement of Mr. Shore’s empleytton November 24, 2010. Mr.
Shores total compensation was comprised of salary paysnerder his employment agreement with us, optiantg under the InspireMD, Ir
2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan, as more fully discusderlow, and benefits and perquisites, as more flifgussed below. For the six months
ended June 30, 2012, Mr. Shore’s salary compemsatis $76,717. In 2011, Mr. Shasednnual salary was $118,333, as compared to $&)!
2010. Pursuant to his employment agreement withMausShore’s monthly salary was automatically irasied during 2011, upon the
consummation of our share exchange transactiorsn Wy. Paz's recommendation, Mr. Shore’s salary fuaher increased as of July 1, 2011
by an additional $838 per month on July 1, 201Hdtermining to make such additional increase,Mz considered the corporate and
organizational accomplishments of our company sMceShore joined us, his role in such accomplishtsehis general performance, his
increased responsibilities as chief financial @&fi¢he desire to ensure that his compensatioiglisdnough to retain his services and the desir
to make his compensation consistent with what wetp@aur other senior executives. Mr. Paz recomradnend the compensation committee
agreed, that no changes were needed to Mr. Shayeipensation package during 2012 other than therogtant described below.

Mr. Shore also received various benefits, many littveither are required by Israeli law or we bedi@re customarily provided to
Israeli executives, including contributions to pension and vocational studies funds, an annuegation payment, a company car, a compan
cell phone, and a daily food allowance. For thensonths ended June 30, 2012, Mr. Shore’s benefitgppensation was $18,180. In 2011, Mr.
Shore’s benefits compensation was $35,280, as cethpa $3,250 in 2010.

On February 27, 2011, Mr. Shore was granted optioaiscurrently represent the right to acquireaip,306 shares of our comm
stock at an exercise price of $4.92 per share. &lard was part of the initial package negotiatét Wr. Shore in connection with his hiring
in November 2010. The number of shares for whiaihsaward was exercisable and the exercise price wrgginally set forth in Mr. Shore’s
employment agreement and related to shares ofredpi Ltd. The per share price was determined basetthe price at which InspireMD Ltd.
had most recently raised capital. The option waweded into an option to acquire the current nunabeshares at the current exercise price
through the share exchange transactions. The @pti@st on an annual basis over three years. Thhensgtad a fair market value of $260,554
as of February 27, 2011. In determining to grant $frore a significant portion of his compensatiothie form of options, our board of
directors believed that it was important to give Bhore an equity interest in us. Providing Mr. i@hwith an equity stake was viewed by our
board as important, as Mr. Shore previously didhadd any such stake in us, as opposed to Mr. RdDa. Holzer. In determining the number
of shares to award to Mr. Shore, Mr. Paz and oardbof directors considered the need to provideSfore with a compensation package thai
was sufficient to attract him to accept employmeith us, given that his base salary was believdaktteelatively low for his position, and the
desire to provide Mr. Shore with an equity positiorour company that was significant enough torahgs objectives with those of our
stockholders and allow Mr. Shore to share in oturion financial growth and the benefits of tharsfexchange and our becoming a U.S.
public company.

On May 20, 2011, Mr. Shore was awarded a warraptitohase 750 shares of our common stock at acisgerice of $7.20 per
share as a bonus payment for his work performesmmection with our share exchange transactions vildrrant had a fair market value of
$5,266 and vested immediately. The award was giveacognition of Mr. Shore’s extraordinary efforedated to our private placement
transaction on March 31, 2011.
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On May 25, 2012, Mr. Shore was granted optionstpuae up to 75,000 shares of our common stock aixarcise price of $3.20
per share. The options vest on an annual basistione® years. The options had a fair market vafi#189,499 as of May 25, 2012. The award
was given in recognition of Mr. Shore’s past cdmitions, to increase Mr. Shore’s equity stake imusrder to further align Mr. Shore’s
objectives with those of our stockholders and allom to share in our future financial growth ancttanpensate for Mr. Shore’s relatively low
salary for his position.

Compensation of Senior Vice President of ReseandiDevelopment and Chief Technical Officer of IrefdD Ltd.During the six
months ended June 30, 2012, Mr. Bar’s total comggerswas $112,432. In 2011, Mr. Bar's total congsion was $350,394, as compared to
$942,689 in total compensation in 2010. Mr. Bao®t compensation was comprised of salary paymerdsr his employment agreement with
us, a cash bonus awarded in 2012, as more fultpsis®d below, option grants under the InspireMDb, 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan, as
more fully discussed below, and benefits and peitps, as more fully discussed below. For the sixtims ended June 30, 2012, Mr. Bar's
salary compensation was $77,100. In 2011, Mr. Bamtsual salary was $122,760, as compared to $91n68#10. In determining the
compensation for Mr. Bar in 2011, Mr. Paz evaludtericorporate and organizational accomplishmeidsiocompany in 2010, particularly
with respect to the development of our productsy@$as Mr. Bar's individual achievements and cifmitions to such accomplishments. Mr.
Bar’s increase in salary during 2011 reflected hisiB@amt contributions to our success in 2010, anddesire to retain him going forward. |
2011 salary was increased to the level it had bredmgust 2008, prior to salary reductions througithe company. Mr. Paz recommended,
and the compensation committee agreed, that naggelsamere needed to Mr. Bartompensation package during 2012 other thanatste lmonu
described below.

Mr. Bar received a cash bonus of $12,850 in redanfor his efforts in achieving the successfuingdetion of enrollment of the
MASTER Trial during the six months ended June 31,2 The amount of the bonus was equal to an additmonth of salary for Mr. Bar.

Mr. Bar also received various benefits, many ofahirgither are required by Israeli law or we beliave customarily provided to
Israeli executives, including contributions to pension and vocational studies funds, an annusdagon payment, a company car, a compan
cell phone, and a daily food allowance. Duringshemonths ended June 30, 2012, Mr. Bar's benefitspensation was $22,482. In 2011, Mr.
Bar's benefits compensation was $42,459, as cordpar$32,496, in 2010.

On June 1, 2011, Mr. Bar was awarded options toieegp to 50,000 shares of common stock at arceseeprice of $11.00 per share
as a bonus payment for his significant contribwitmour company. In determining to make such awdrdPaz considered Mr. Bar's
continued exemplary performance and contributiorthé clinical development of our product and thsie to continue to retain his services
and keep his compensation consistent with whatayet@ our other senior executives. We determinatighanting Mr. Bar more of an equity
interest would further increase his opportunitghare in our future financial success and aligrohjectives with those of our stockholders.
The options vest on an annual basis over a threeperiod. The options had a fair market value2#85381 as of June 1, 2011. The exercise
price was the fair market value of our common stmckhe date of grant. On August 31, 2011, we dittéhese options and reissued an
option to purchase 50,000 shares of common stoahk akercise price of $7.72 because our boardre€tdirs determined that the $11.00
exercise price was too far out of the money toeahihe compensatory and incentive purposes afpitiens. The exercise price of the new
option was the fair market value of our common Istoc the date of grant. The fair value of the 50,60tions as of August 31, 2011 was
$185,175.
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Mr. Bar also received two option awards in July @0Ihe first award currently represents the righdid¢quire up to 152,177 shares of
our common stock at an exercise price of $0.004pare. The number of shares for which such awaslexercisable and the exercise price
originally related to shares of InspireMD Ltd. Tiper share price was set at $0.04 per share. Tlenopas converted into an option to acquire
the current number of shares at the current exeprise through the share exchange transactiorsss@tond award currently represents the
right to acquire up to 20,290 shares of our comstonk at an exercise price of $4.92 per share.nlingber of shares for which such award
was exercisable and the exercise price also otigirelated to shares of InspireMD Ltd. The perrgharice was determined based on the price
at which InspireMD Ltd. had most recently raisedita. The option was converted into an optionaquare the current number of shares at th
current exercise price through the share exchaagedctions. Both awards were made in recognitiddroBar’s contributions to our
corporate and organizational achievements. Thedwsird was related to Mr. Bar's performance ofierlong-term of his tenure with us and to
our desire to grant Mr. Bar an equity stake thatildaot be at risk. In particular, in determinirgrhake this award, the board of directors took
into account the fact that, from September 20080l 2009, Mr. Bar accepted several salary redungj which resulted in his monthly salary
being reduced from approximately $10,133 to appnately $7,387. Mr. Bar’s salary remained approxeftya$7,387 per month until August
2010, at which time his monthly salary was increlase$8,000. Furthermore, our board of directorsdksd that recognizing Mr. Bar’s efforts
and sacrifices through an equity award was the aygstopriate form of compensation, as it would aksve to give Mr. Bar an additional
equity interest in us. Providing Mr. Bar with arcieased equity stake was viewed by our board asriant, as Mr. Bar’s existing options were
deemed a very small stake in comparison to thak weMr. Paz and Dr. Holzer. The second award weenided as a more traditional annual
incentive award and related primarily to Mr. Baserformance in 2010 and our desire to grant Mr.tBatitional options whose value would
fluctuate depending on the performance of our comstock. Both option awards vest one-twelfth qurteommencing with the quarter in
which they were granted. The first award had arfarket value of $750,000 as of July 25, 2010. §éwond award had a fair market value of
$68,509 as of July 31, 2010.

Compensation of Former Presiderduring the six months ended June 30, 2012, Drzéttd total compensation was $189,290. In
2011, Dr. Holzer’s total compensation was $245,436;ompared to $209,592 in total compensatio®i®2Dr. Holzer's total compensation
was comprised of (i) consulting fees paid purstiaiihe consultancy agreement InspireMD Ltd. entémemlwith OSHIL, The Israeli Society
Ltd., an entity wholly-owned by Dr. Holzer , thrdugrhich Dr. Holzer was retained to serve as Ingpide_td.’s president from June 1, 2012
through June 30, 2012, (ii) salary payments froroddeber 1, 2011 through May 31, 2012, (iii) consgitiees paid pursuant to the consultanc
agreement InspireMD Ltd. entered into with OSHIbgTisraeli Society Ltd. from April 1, 2011 throublovember 30, 2011, (iv) salary
payments made during December 2011, and (v) bereafid perquisites, as more fully discussed befamwthe six months ended June 30, 2!
Dr. Holzer's salary compensation was $139,654 asnaployee, which includes a payout of his unusedtian days of $36,010, and
$14,474under the consultancy agreement with OSHHle, Israeli Society Ltd., for a total of $154,1282011, Dr. Holzer's salary
compensation was $42,425 under his employment ammete $122,970under the consultancy agreement@®HIL, The Israeli Society Ltd.,
and $15,371 as an employee in December 2011, tégakof $180,766, as compared to $89,197 undeerigsloyment agreement and $74,791
under a consultancy agreement that was in efféot fr his employment agreement, for a total of %288, in 2010. In determining the
compensation for Dr. Holzer in 2011, our board ioéctors evaluated the corporate and organizatiace@mplishments of our company in
2010, as well as Dr. Holzer’s individual accompimts and contributions to our accomplishments.l@ard of directors determined that an
increase in compensation for Dr. Holzer was appatgin 2011, in part, in anticipation of our compdecoming a U.S. publicly traded
company in 2011 and the increased responsibitiigswould result for our president. Dr. Holzerapensation package for 2011 was
determined before the share exchange transactidres) InspireMD Ltd. was a private Israeli companyaccordance with Israeli law, his
compensation was submitted to and approved byttlo&lsolders of InspireMD Ltd. on February 28, 20The compensation committee
determined that no changes were needed to Dr. H®lzempensation package during its 2012 compemsagiview.

Dr. Holzer also received various benefits as bathsalaried employee and our consultant, many a¢hwéither are required by
Israeli law or we believe are customarily providedsraeli executives. These benefits includedrioutions to his pension and vocational
studies funds, an annual recreation payment, a aoynpar and cell phone, and a daily food allowaRoe.the six months ended June 30, 201
Dr. Holzer's benefits compensation through paymemdsle to him as an employee and through paymerde t0aOSHIL, The Israeli Society
Ltd. was $35,163. In 2011, Dr. Holzer's benefitsnpensation through payments made to him as an gewknd through payments made to
OSHIL, The Israeli Society Ltd. was $64,640, as pared to $45,604 in 2010. Our board of directods @mpensation committee determined
that equity based compensation would be inapprapfaa Dr. Holzer in 2011 and 2012, in light of leigrrent equity holdings in our company.
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Compensation of Former Vice President of SaleagfiteMD Ltd.During the six months ended June 30, 2012, Ms.sRatal
compensation was $83,569. In 2011, Ms. Paz’'s tmtedpensation was $782,016, as compared to $7 71608l compensation in 2010. Ms.
Paz’s total compensation was comprised of (i) paysor consulting fees under a consultancy agreeimepireMD Ltd. entered into with
Ms. Paz which terminated on March 31, 2011 andigea/for the payment of a fixed hourly consultieg fof $45 for services provided in
Israel and a fixed daily consulting fee of $400dervices provided outside of Israel, and (ii) payts for consulting fees under a consultancy
agreement InspireMD Ltd. entered into with Sara Management and Marketing Ltd, an entity wholly-@drby Ms. Paz, through which Ms.
Paz was retained to serve as InspireMD Ltd.’s piasident of sales from April 1, 2011 until itsnténation on June 30, 2012, (iii) an option
grant under the InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Opti®lan, as more fully discussed below, and (iv)efitgshhand perquisites, as more fully
discussed below. Ms. Paz’s payments under her tansy agreements were $89,819during the six magrtided June 30, 2012. Ms. Paz’s
payments under her consultancy agreements werel86Li 2011 as compared to $77,603 in 2010. lardehing the compensation for Ms.
Paz in 2011, Mr. Paz evaluated the corporate agahizational achievements of our company in 20ith avparticular emphasis on our sales
growth, to which Ms. Paz’s work contributed, hentutions and perceived future potential on &tiohe basis and the compensation paid to
similarly situated executives within our company. Bolzer and Mr. Shore approved Mr. Paz’s deteatiam with respect to Ms. Paz's
compensation. Mr. Paz recommended, and the comii@msammittee agreed, that no changes were ndeddd. Paz's compensation
package during 2012.

In conjunction with InspireMD Ltd. entering intodftonsultancy agreement with Sara Paz Managemdr¥arketing Ltd, we
commenced paying Ms. Paz the benefits requiredtaeli law and comparable benefits to our othecetkees. As such, pursuant to the
consultancy agreement, in 2011 and 2012, Ms. Raved various benefits, including contributionder pension and vocational studies
funds, an annual recreation payment, a companyaa@mpany cell phone, and a daily food allowabBeeing the six months ended June 30,
2012, Ms. Paz’s benefits compensation was $24]A58011, Ms. Paz’s benefits compensation was $30,47

In addition, in recognition of Ms. Paz’s contribaris to our corporate and organizational achievesriar?010, particularly with
respect to the increased sales of our productkjrie 2011, our board of directors awarded Ms. PHarts to acquire up to 91,306 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $6.00 peresiTdre options vest on a monthly basis over a tyeae period. The options had a fair
market value of $639,407 as of June 1, 2011. Theuatnwas determined with reference to the awardent@dr. Shore during 2011, for an
approximately equal number of shares. The exeprise was the fair market value of our common stmckhe date of grant. We did not
consider the Black-Scholes valuation of the graiutrio making it. We did take into account theides$o provide Ms. Paz with an equity
position in our company, separate from that ofthesband, that would further align her objectivethwhose of our stockholders and allow her
to share in our future financial growth.

Impact of Tax Laws

Deductibility of Executive Compensati@enerally, under U.S. law, a company may not dedoictpensation of more than
$1,000,000 that is paid to an individual employgdh®e company who, on the last day of the taxabbe yeither is the company’s principal
executive officer or an individual who is among theee highest compensated officers for the taxgbde (other than the principal executive
officer or the principal financial officer). The $D0,000 limitation on deductions does not applgedain types of compensation, including
qualified performance-based compensation, and apjies to compensation paid by a publicly-tradegboration (and not compensation paid
by non-corporate entities). Because the compemsd#&ducted in the U.S. for each individual to whbis rule applies has historically been
less than $1,000,000 per year, we do not belieattlie $1,000,000 limitation will affect us in thear future. If the deductibility of executive
compensation becomes a significant issue, our cosgten plans and policies may be modified to maendeductibility if our compensation
committee and we determine that such action isiirbest interests.

Impact of Israeli Tax LawThe awards granted to employees pursuant toddetfi2 of the Tax Ordinance under the InspireMB, In
2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan may be designated by sig@proved options under the capital gains altemmatr as approved options under
the ordinary income tax alternative.

To qualify for the capital gains alternative, certeequirements must be met, including registratibthe options in the name of a
trustee. Each option, and any shares of commok sitguired upon the exercise of the option, mudtdde by the trustee for a period
commencing on the date of grant and deposit intst tvith the trustee and ending 24 months theneafte

Under the terms of the capital gains alternative mmay not deduct expenses pertaining to the opft@rax purposes.
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Under the InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plawe may also grant to employees options pursisa8ection 102(b)(3) of
the Israeli Tax Ordinance that are not requirededeld in trust by a trustee. This alternativeilevfacilitating immediate exercise of vested
options and sale of the underlying shares, wiljettithe optionee to the marginal income tax rétapato 45% as well as payments to the
National Insurance Institute and health tax ond#te of the sale of the shares or options. UndglnspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option
Plan , we may also grant to non-employees optiomsuant to Section 3(l) of the Israeli Tax Ordinandnder that section, the income tax on
the benefit arising to the optionee upon the egerof options and the issuance of common stoc&nemglly due at the time of exercise of the
options.

Allotment of these options may be subject to teofhe tax ruling that has been obtained by Indpidd_td. from the Israeli tax
authorities according to Section 103 of the Isrediordinance, with regard to the share exchafigeording to the tax predling, the exchanc
of shares and options of InspireMD Ltd. for shared options of our company pursuant to the shactkamge will not result in an immediate
tax event for InspireMD Ltd.’s former shareholddyst a deferred tax event, subject to certain dad as stipulated in the tax pre-ruling. The
main condition of the tax presling is a restriction on the exchanged share$woryears from December 31, 2010 for shareholdeiding ove
of 5%.

Termination Payments

Our agreements with Messrs. Paz, Bar and Shoréseaali law provide, and our agreements with Drlazdoand Ms. Paz provided,
for payments and other compensation in the evetdrofination under certain circumstances, as mdhg described under “Executive
Compensation — Potential Payments Upon Terminatiddhange of Control.” These provisions are conggtisf (i) notice periods of varying
length prior to a termination without cause (189sditor Mr. Paz and Dr. Holzer, 30 days in genenal 280 days following certain change in
control events for Mr. Shore, 60 days for Mr. Bad &0 days for Ms. Paz), (ii) severance payments@sred by Israeli law, (iii) vesting of
Mr. Shore’s, options upon his termination in contitwith a change of control and (iv) vesting of.Nhore’s, Mr. Bar's and Ms. Paz’s
options automatically upon a change of controuitsstock options are not assumed or substitutetidgurviving company. We believe that
having these provisions in our agreements withafficers enables our officers to focus solely oa plerformance of their jobs by providing
them with security in the event of certain termioias of employment. With respect to the notice Bions, we believe that these provide us
with a mechanism to ensure a successful transftioa have to replace one of our named executifieass. In addition, we have provided
these benefits to our officers because we belieigeniecessary for retention purposes, to attratt qualified and talented executives and, in
case of severance payments, to comply with IstaeliIn exchange for these protections, our offidesive agreed to be bound by certain
restrictive covenants, including confidentialitpmcompetition and non-solicitation provisions.

Risk Considerations in our Compensation Progral

Our compensation committee believes that risksrgrisom our policies and practices for compengpémployees are not reasonably
likely to have a material adverse effect on us@dmdot encourage risk taking that is reasonabBblyiko have a material adverse effect on us .
Our compensation committee believes that the straaif our executive compensation program mitigesés by avoiding any named
executive officer placing undue emphasis on antiqdar performance metric at the expense of o#ispects of our business.

Summary Compensation Table
The table below sets forth, for the transition pérand our last three fiscal years, the compensatined by Ofir Paz, our chief
executive officer, Craig Shore, our chief finanaéficer, secretary and treasurer, Eli Bar, InddieLtd.’s senior vice president of research

development and chief technical officer, Asher t¢ol£h.D., our former president, and Sara PazjregD Ltd.’s former vice president of
sales.
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All Other

Salary Bonus Option Compensatior Total

Name and Principal Position Year(*) ($)(1) ($)(1) Awards($)(2) ($)(1) ($)(1)

Ofir Paz(3)

Chief Executive Office 201z 121,32 - - 32,27((4) 153,59
2011 57,79¢ - - 189,24:(4) 247,03
201( 89,19° - - 129,96:(4) 219,16(
200¢ 76,52¢ - - 129,9044) 206,43:

Craig Shore

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary an

Treasurer 201z 76,71° - 139,49¢ 18,18((5) 234,39t
2011 118,33: - 260,55¢ 40,54¢(5) 419,43:
201(C 9,91: - - 3,25((5) 13,1646)

Eli Bar

Senior Vice President, Research anc

Development and Chief Technit

Officer of InspireMD Ltd 201z 77,10( 12,85( - 22,484(8) 112,43:
2011 122,76( - 185,1747) 42,45¢8) 350,39:
201C 91,68« - 818,50¢ 32,49¢(8) 942,68
200¢ 86,97: - - 38,58(8) 125,55¢

Asher Holzer, Ph.D.(3)

Former Presiden 2012 139,65« - - 49,637(9) 189,29:
2011 57,79¢ - - 187,61((9) 245,40t
201C 89,19° - - 120,39Y9) 209,59:
200¢ 73,52¢ - - 109,0549) 182,58(

Sara Paz

Former Vice President of Sales

InspireMD Ltd. 2012 - - - 83,56¢(10) 83,56
2011 - - 639,40° 142,60410) 782,01t
201C - - - 77,60%(10) 77,60:!
200¢ - - - 59,19(10) 59,19°

(*) 2012 refers to our transition period from Januatphrbugh June 30, 2012. Years 2009 to 2011 refeutoannual reporting periods
those years

(1) Compensation amounts received in hbS-. currency have been converted into U.S. dollesiang the average exchange rate fol
applicable year. The average exchange rate fo 2¢ds 3.80 NIS per dollar, the average exchangefaat2011 was 3.5781 NIS |
dollar, the average exchange rate for 2010 was38.RBS per dollar and the average exchange rat2do® was 3.9326 NIS per dolli

(2) The amounts in this column reflect the dollaroaints recognized for financial statement reportingposes with respect to the six months
ended June 30, 2012 and the years ended Decemliz0C8, 2010 and 2011, in accordance with FASB A8gic 718. Fair value is bas
on the Black-Scholes option pricing model usingfdievalue of the underlying shares at the measerd date. For additional discussion
of the valuation assumptions used in determiningksbased compensation and the grant date faievfalustock options, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operation — Critical Acnting Policies—Share-Based
Compensation” and Note 2—"Significant Accountindi€ies” and Note 10—"Equity (Capital Deficiency)f the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the Six Msfthded June 30, 2012 included her

(3) Both Mr. Paz and Dr. Holzer are directors but doreoeive any additional compensation for theiviees as director

75




(4) Mr. Paz’s other compensation consisted of $67 j6 consulting salary and $72,297 in benefit2009, $78,491 in consulting salary and
$51,472 in benefits in 2010 and $122,970 in comgybalary and $66,273 in benefits in 2011 and isted solely of benefits in 2012. In
each of 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, Mr. B&®Enefits included our contributions to his sereea pension, vocational studies and disal
funds, an annual recreation payment, a compangrahcell phone, and a daily food allowance. In 200€ carrelated benefits for Mr. P
were valued at $12,54

(5) Mr. Shore’s other compensation consisted salélyenefits in 2010 and 2012 and consisted of mambdaward valued at $5,266 and
$35,280 in benefits in 2011. In each of 2010, 284d 2012, Mr. Shore’s benefits included our contidns to his severance, pension,
vocational studies and disability funds, an anmeateation payment, a company car and cell phorkaalaily food allowanct

(6) Mr. Shore’s total compensation in 2010 représgiamounts paid beginning on November 24, 20E)d#te of the commencement of Mr.
Shoré¢s employment with us

(7) OnJune 1, 2011, Mr. Bar was awarded optioractpire up to 50,000 shares of common stock akarcise price of $11.00 per share as :
bonus payment for his contributions to our comp@an3010. The options had a fair market value @&2381. In August 2011, we
cancelled the option to purchase 50,000 sharesrofron stock that were awarded to Mr. Bar in Jurfel2dhd reissued an option to
purchase 50,000 shares of common stock at an sggydce of $7.72 because our board of directaesiokined that the $11.00 exercise
price was too far out of the money to achieve ttragensatory and incentive purposes of the optiofise new options had a fair market
value of $185,17¢

(8) Mr. Bar's other compensation in 2009, 2010,28hd 2012 consisted solely of benefits, includiog contributions to his severance,
pension, vocational studies and disability funasaanual recreation payment, a company car angbleelte, and a daily food allowan:

(9) Dr. Holzers other compensation consisted of $55,040 in ctingudalary and $54,014 in benefits in 2009, $74 irSconsulting salary ar
$45,604 in benefits in 2010, $122,970 in consulatary and $64,640 in benefits in 2011 and $14id t6nsulting salary and $35,163 in
benefits in 2012. In each of 2009, 2010, 2011 &122Dr. Holzer’s benefits included our contributiato his severance, pension,
vocational studies and disability funds, an anmeateation payment, a company car and cell phorkaalaily food allowanct

(10)Ms. Paz’s other compensation consisted of $59,A@pnsulting salary in 2009, $77,603 in consulsatary in 2010, $112,136 in
consulting salary and $30,473 in benefits in 2014 $60,000 in consulting salary and $23,569 in fieni@ 2012. In each of 2011 and
2012, Ms. Paz’s benefits included our contributitmBer severance, pension, vocational studiesiemadbility funds, an annual recreation
payment, a company car and cell phone, and a fiaily allowance

2012 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information regagligrants of plan-based awards to our named execatficers in the six months
ended June 30, 2012:

Option
Awards: Exercise or Grant Date
Number of Base Price of  Fair Value
Securities Option of
Grant Underlying Awards Options Option
Name Date #) ($/sh) Awards ($)
Ofir Paz
Chief Executive Office - - - -
Craig Shore
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasu 5/25/201. 75,00((1) 3.2C 139,49¢
Eli Bar (2)

Senior Vice President, Research and DevelopmenCéief Technical

Officer of InspireMD Ltd - - - -
Asher Holzer, Ph.D.

Former Presiden - - - -
Sara Paz

Vice President of Sales of InspireMD L - - - -
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(1)On May 25, 2012, Mr. Shore was granted optionstpuae up to 75,000 shares of our common stock a&xarcise price of $3.20 per share.
The options vest on an annual basis over threesy&he options had a fair market value of $139496f May 25, 2012. The award was
given in recognition of Mr. Shore’s past contrilous, to increase Mr. Shore’s equity stake in usrdter to further align Mr. Shore’s
objectives with those of our stockholders and allom to share in our future financial growth anattanpensate for Mr. Shore’s relatively

low salary for his positior

Outstanding Equity Awards at End of Transition Period

The following table shows information concerningexercised options outstanding as of June 30, 2@1&ach of our named
executive officers. There are no outstandingkstoeards with our named executive officers.

Number of securities
underlying
unexercised options

Name (#) exercisable
Ofir Paz -
Craig Shore 30,43t
Eli Bar 60,87(
91,30¢
101,45:
13,527
16,66
Asher Holzer, Ph.C -
Sara Pa: 30,43¢

Number of securities

underlying
unexercised options Option exercise price
(#) unexercisable $)
60,87:(1) 4.92
75,00((2) 3.2C
- 0.00¢
- 0.00¢
50,72¢3) 0.00¢
6,764(3) 4.92
33,33{(4) 7.72
60,87:(5) 6.0C

Option expiration
date

2/27/2021
5/25/2022

10/28/201¢
12/29/201¢
7/22/202C
7/28/202C
5/23/201€

6/1/2016

(1) These options were granted in February 2011vagtiannually, with 1/3 vesting on November 23, 2ZMNovember 23, 2012 and

November 23, 201:

(2) These options were granted on May 25, 2012 andavestally, with 1/3 vesting on May 25, 2013, May 2614 and May 25, 201

3 These options were granted in July 2010 and vestepy over three years, commencing with the auan which they were grante

(4) These options were granted in August 2011 andarestally, with 1/3 vesting on May 23, 2012, May 2813 and May 23, 201

(5) These options were granted in June 2011 and vasidy, with 1/3 vesting on April 8, 2012, April 8013 and April 8, 201«
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested
There were no stock options exercised by our naemedutive officers during the six months ended Bhe2012.
2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan

On March 28, 2011, our board of directors and diotders adopted and approved the InspireMD, Int120MBRELLA Option Plar
which was subsequently amended on October 31, 20h#ler the InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Optiona?l we have reserved
15,000,000 shares of our common stock as awairttie temployees, consultants, and service providdrspireMD, Inc. and its subsidiaries
and affiliates worldwide.

The InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan cuntly consists of three components, the primary placument that governs
all awards granted under the InspireMD, Inc. 20MBRELLA Option Plan, and two appendices: (i) Appen#é, designated for the purpose
of grants of stock options and restricted stockrd&#o Israeli employees, consultants, officers athér service providers and other non-U.S.
employees, consultants, and service providers(igmdppendix B, which is the 2011 U.S. Equity Imt&ve Plan, designated for the purpose of
grants of stock options and restricted stock awards.S. employees, consultants, and service pessigtho are subject to the U.S. income tax

The purpose of the InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA@n Plan is to provide an incentive to attract agigin employees, officers,
consultants, directors, and service providers wiseseices are considered valuable, to encouragasef proprietorship and to stimulate an
active interest of such persons in our developraadtfinancial success. The InspireMD, Inc. 2011BRELLA Option Plan is administered
by our compensation committee. Unless terminatelieedy the board of directors, the InspireMD, 12011 UMBRELLA Option Plan will
expire on March 27, 2021.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Catrol

Our agreements with Messrs. Paz, Bar and Shoréjd@zer and Ms. Paz as well as Israeli law proYatgpayments and other
compensation in the event of their termination change of control of us under certain circumstanas described below.

Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Mr. Paz’s consultancy agreemenpasgsess the right to terminate his employmentawith
“cause” (as such term is defined in the agreeme) at least 180 days prior notice to Mr. Paz.imusuch notice period, we will continue to
compensate Mr. Paz according to his agreement an®&z will be obligated to continue to dischargd perform all of his duties and
obligations under the agreement, and to cooperileus and use his best efforts to assist withintegration of any persons that we have
delegated to assume Mr. Paz’s responsibilities. béfieve that this arrangement will assist us imedng a successful transition upon Mr.
Paz's departure. Mr. Paz is entitled to termifeseemployment with us in the event that we dofalfill our undertakings under our
agreement, upon at least 30 days prior notice tduring which time we may cure the breach. Dusungh notice period, we will continue to
compensate Mr. Paz according to his agreement an@#&z will be obligated to continue to dischargd perform all of his duties and
obligations under the agreement.

If Mr. Paz’'s employment is terminated for any reasther than for cause, as a senior executive usdsgli law, he will also be
entitled to severance payments equal to the totauat that has been contributed to and accumuiateid severance payment fund. The total
amount accumulated in his severance payment funfl ame 30, 2012 was $86,408, as adjusted forersion from New Israeli Shekels to
U.S. Dollars.

We are entitled to terminate Mr. Paz's employmentidiately at any time for “cause” (as such termefined in the agreement and
the Israeli Severance Payment Act 1963), upon wlaifter meeting certain requirements under theiegipe law and recent Israeli Labor court
requirements, we believe we will have no furthdigation to compensate Mr. Paz and Mr. Paz will m@tentitled to the amount that has been
contributed to and accumulated in his severancenpayfund.
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Also, upon termination of Mr. Paz's employment &émy reason, we will compensate him for all unusachtion days accrued.

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and TreasureBubject to certain conditions, either party to employment agreement with Mr.
Shore may terminate the employment agreement witltause” (as such term is defined in Mr. Shorergyment agreement with us) upon
at least 30 days prior notice to the other partyrothe event of a major change of control in tewwhthe ownership of shares of our common
stock or our intellectual property, upon at lee&@ tlays prior notice. During such notice period,will continue to compensate Mr. Shore
according to his employment agreement and Mr. Shiltée obligated to continue to discharge andqren all of his duties and obligations
under his employment agreement, and to cooperaleusiand use his best efforts to assist withritegration of any persons that we have
delegated to assume Mr. Shore’s responsibiliti¥e. believe that this arrangement with Mr. Shore asbist us in achieving a successful
transition upon Mr. Shore’s departure. In additiopon termination without “cause,” we have thétigp pay Mr. Shore a lump payment
representing his compensation for the notice peaaimtiterminate Mr. Shore’s employment immediately.

If we terminate Mr. Shore’s employment without cauglr. Shore will be entitled, under Israeli law severance payments equal to
his last month’s salary multiplied by the numbeyeérs Mr. Shore has been employed with us. |eraalfinance this obligation, we make
monthly contributions equal to 8.33% of Mr. Shorgédary to a severance payment fund. The totabateccumulated in Mr. Shore’s
severance payment fund as of June 30, 2012 wa$@8 4s adjusted for the conversion from New Isi@kékels to U.S. Dollars. However, if
Mr. Shore’s employment is terminated without cawseaccount of a disability or upon his death, falune 30, 2012, Mr. Shore would have
been entitled to receive $ 15,498 in severancerdsdzeli law, thereby requiring us to pay Mr. Sh&r1,333 , in addition to releasing the $
14,165 in Mr. Shore’s severance payment fund. H@rother hand, pursuant to his employment agreem&nShore is entitled to the total
amount contributed to and accumulated in his sexerg@ayment fund in the event of the terminatiohisfemployment as a result of his
voluntary resignation. In addition, Mr. Shore webble entitled to receive his full severance paynueier Israeli law, including the total
amount contributed to and accumulated in his sexer@ayment fund, if he retires from our compangraifter age 67.

We are entitled to terminate Mr. Shore’s employniemhediately at any time for “causedq such term is defined in the agreemen
the Israeli Severance Payment Act 1963), upon whaifter meeting certain requirements under theiegiple law and recent Israeli Labor court
requirements, we believe we will have no furthdigation to compensate Mr. Shore.

In addition, pursuant to Mr. Shore’s employmenteagnent, in the event of a change of control ofamumpany, the majority of shares
of our common stock or our intellectual propertgitttesults in the termination of Mr. Shore’s emph@nt within one year of such change of
control, the stock options granted to Mr. Shoradnordance with the terms of his employment agreéthat were unvested will vest
immediately upon such termination. Furthermorespant to terms contained in Mr. Shore’s stockarptiward agreement, in the event of a
change of control of our company, the stock optigrasited to Mr. Shore that were unvested will weshediately upon such change of control
if such stock options are not assumed or subdtitoyethe surviving company.

Also, upon termination of Mr. Shore’s employment émy reason, we will compensate him for all unusschtion days accrued.

Senior Vice President of Research and DevelopnrehChief Technical Officer of InspireMD LtdSubject to certain conditions,
either party to our employment agreement with Mar Bray terminate the employment agreement withcaise” (as such term is defined in
Mr. Bar's employment agreement with us) upon asti&® days prior written notice to the other pamuring such notice period, we will
continue to compensate Mr. Bar according to hisleympent agreement and Mr. Bar will be obligatedoatinue to discharge and perform all
of his duties and obligations under his employnagmeement, and to cooperate with us and use higffeds to assist with the integration of
any persons that we have delegated to assume Ms. iBaponsibilities. We believe that our sevesaangement with Mr. Bar will assist us
in achieving a successful transition upon Mr. Baeparture. In addition, upon termination withtaguse,” we have the right to pay Mr. Bar a
lump payment representing his compensation fonthiiee period and terminate Mr. Bar's employmentiediately.
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If Mr. Bar’'s employment is terminated without caus#. Bar will also be entitled under Israeli lawvgeverance payments equal to his
last month’s salary multiplied by the number of gelslr. Bar has been employed with us. In orddmance this obligation, we make monthly
contributions equal to 8.33% of Mr. Bar’s salargleaonth to a severance payment fund. The totalatraccumulated in his severance
payment fund as of June 30, 2012 was $63,450,jastad for conversion from New Israeli Shekels t&\Dollars. However, if Mr. Bar's
employment was terminated without cause, on acoofuatdisability or upon his death, as of June281,2, Mr. Bar would be entitled to rece
$68,397 in severance under Israeli law, therebyirgg us to pay Mr. Bar $4,947, in addition toe@$ing the $63,450 in his severance pay
fund. In addition, Mr. Bar would be entitled taedve his full severance payment under Israeli iaaluding the total amount contributed to
and accumulated in his severance payment fune, iétires from our company at or after age 67.

We are entitled to terminate Mr. Bar's employmentriediately at any time for “cause” (as such termefined in the agreement and
the Israeli Severance Payment Act 1963), upon whaifter meeting certain requirements under theiegiple law and recent Israeli Labor court
requirements, we believe we will have no furthdigation to compensate Mr. Bar.

In addition, pursuant to terms contained in Mr.’Batock option award agreement, in the event dfaage of control of our compar
the stock options granted to Mr. Bar that were gia@ will vest immediately upon such change of it such stock options are not assume
or substituted by the surviving company. Also, mpermination of Mr. Bar's employment for any reasae will compensate him for all
unused vacation days accrued.

Former President Pursuant to Dr. Holzer’s consultancy agreemettt ws dated June 1, 2012, both Dr. Holzer and vesgss the
right to terminate the consultancy agreement fgrraason or for no reason upon at least 15 dags patice to other party. During such notice
period, we will continue to compensate Dr. Holzisrdonsulting fees according to his agreement andHblzer will be obligated to continue to
discharge and perform all of his duties and obidye under the agreement. In the event we termihateonsulting agreement without
“cause” (as such term is defined in the agreemem)shall pay Dr. Holzer his consulting fees far #ntire term of the consulting agreement,
which terminates November 30, 2012. Upon termimatibthe consulting agreement, we believe that wWiehave no further obligation to
compensate Dr. Holzer and Dr. Holzer will not bétérd to any additional compensation, other thaset forth above.

Former Vice President of Sales of InspireMD L&lubject to certain conditions, either party to cansultancy agreement with Ms.
Paz may terminate the agreement without “causesyak term is defined in her consultancy agreemgrth at least 30 days prior written
notice to the other party. During such notice @arive will continue to compensate Ms. Paz accortbrher consultancy agreement and Ms.
Paz will be obligated to continue to discharge pedorm all of her duties and obligations underdmrsultancy agreement, and to cooperate
with us and use her best efforts to assist withriteggration of any persons that we have delegat@dsume Ms. Paz’s responsibilities. We
believe that our severance arrangement with Mswilhassist us in achieving a successful transitipon Ms. Paz’s departure. Ms. Paz is
entitled to terminate her employment with us in¢lent that we do not fulfill our undertakings undar agreement, upon at least 30 days |
notice to us, during which time we may cure theabhe During such notice period, we will continaecompensate Ms. Paz according to her
agreement and Ms. Paz will be obligated to contioudischarge and perform all of his duties andgalions under the agreement.
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In addition, pursuant to terms contained in Ms.’ Paiock option award agreement, in the event diaage of control of our compar
the stock options granted to Ms. Paz that were stedewill vest immediately upon such change of it such stock options are not assur
or substituted by the surviving company.

We are entitled to terminate Ms. Paz’s employmemhédiately at any time for any reason, upon whiehbelieve we will have no
further obligation to compensate Ms. Paz underchasultancy agreement or Israeli law, except agigeo above.
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The following table shows, as of June 30, 2012e il payments to our named executive officers/égtous scenarios involving a
resignation, termination, change of control, retiemt, death or disability, using, where applicatiie,closing price of our common stock of
$4.24 (as reported on the OTC Bulletin Board a3unie 29, 2012). Compensation amounts to be paidriflJ.S. currency have been
converted into U.S. dollars using 3.923 NIS petatplvhich was the exchange rate as of June 3®.201

Termination
Not for
Voluntary Cause in
Resignatior Connection
Upon Termination with a Change of
Breach By Voluntary Termination Not for Change of Control (No
Type of Event Us Resignatior for Cause Cause Death Disability Control Termination)
Ofir Paz
Employment agreement payme $ 1987(1) $ 19,87(1) — $  119,23(2) — — $ 119,23{(2) —
Severance payments( $  86,40¢ $  86,40¢ — $ 86,40¢ $ 8640t $ 8640 $ 86,40¢ —
Accrued vacation payments( $ 61,52° $ 61,527 $ 61,527 $ 61,527 $ 61,527 $ 61,527 $ 61,527 —
Value of accelerated optiol — — — — — — — —
Craig Shore
Employment agreement payme $ 12365) $  12,36¢5) — 8 12,36¢(5) — — 3 74,2142) —
Severance paymer $ 14,16Y6) $  14,166) — $ 1549¢7) $ 1549¢7) $ 1549¢7) $  15,49¢7) —
Accrued vacation payments( $ 12,24. $ 12,24: $ 12,24. $ 12,24: $ 12,24: $ 12,24: $ 12,24. —
Value of accelerated optio — — — — — 3 78,00((8) $ 78,00((9)
Eli Bar
Employment agreement payme $  24,94(10) $  24,94(10) — $ 24,94(10) — — 3 24,94(10) —
Severance paymer — — — $ 68,39(7) $ 68,39%(7) $ 68,39(7) $ 68,397(7) —
Accrued vacation payments( $  40,59: $  40,59: $ 40,59 $ 40,59: $ 4059 $ 4059 $ 40,59: —
Value of accelerated optio — — — — — $ 214,87(11)$ 214,87411)
Asher Holzer
Employment agreement payme $ 10,16412) $ 10,16412) $ 10,16412) $ 101,68%(13) — — $ 101,68Y(13) —
Severance payments( — — — — — — — —
Accrued vacation payments( — — — — — — — —
Value of accelerated optio — — — — — — —
Sara Paz
Consultancy agreement payme $ — $ —

Severance paymer
Accrued vacation paymer
Value of accelerated optiol

13,49:5) $

13,49:5) $

13,49:(5) —
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1)

(@)

(3)
(4)
(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Represents total compensation for 30 days, durimighwtime we will continue to compensate the offigecording to his agreement and
officer will be obligated to continue to discharged perform all of his duties and obligations unitheragreement. In the event of mat
breach by us, we are permitted to cure our breathecagreement during the 30 day notice pel

R epresents total compensation for 180 days, duvinigh timewe will continue to compensate the officer accogdio his agreement a
the officer will be obligated to continue to disofp@ and perform all of his duties and obligationder the agreemer

Representthe total amount that has been contributed to andraulated in his severance payment f
Pursuant to Israeli law, the value of a vacatiopidaqual to gross salary divided by 22 workingdger montt

Represents total compensation for 30 days, durimghwtime we will continue to compensate the offiaecording to his or her agreen
and the officer will be obligated to continue teaharge and perform all of his or her duties aridjations under the agreeme

Representshe total amount that has been contributed to amdiraulated in his severance payment fund, to bd parsuant to h
employment agreemer

Represents the total amount to be paid under Iskaeglin the event of termination not for causelcatated based upon the officer’
monthly salary as of June 30, 2012, multiplied Byears of employment with u

Represents the vesting of options to purchase @5b8res of our common stock, multiplied by théedénce between the exercise pric
$3.24 andhe closing price of our common stock of $4.24rggsorted on the OTC Bulletin Board as of June 8122, which shall occi
upon termination of Mr. Sha's employment within one year of a change of con

Assumes that such stock options are not assumeabstituted by the surviving company and represhetyesting of options to purchi

75,000 shares of our common stock, multiplied ey difference between the exercise price of $3.2#tlad closing price of our comm
stock of $4.24 (as reported on the OTC Bulletin lBass of June 30, 201%
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(10)Represents total compensation for 60 days, durimighwtime we will continue to compensate the offiaecording to his agreement and
officer will be obligated to continue to dischamyed perform all of his duties and obligations urntieragreemen

(11)Assumes that such stock options are not assumsdbstituted by the surviving company and represiretsum othe vesting of optior
to purchase 50,726 shares of our common stockjptiedt by the difference between the exercise poic80.004 andhe closing price «
our common stock of $4.24 (as reported on the OU{=Bn Board as of June 30, 201

(12)Represents total compensation for 15 days, durimghwtime we will continue to compensate the offiaecording to his agreement and
officer will be obligated to continue to dischamyed perform all of his duties and obligations urntieragreemen

(13)Represents total compensation for the remaindtveoferm of Dr. Holz€' s consulting agreement, which terminates NovemBg2312
Director Compensation

The following table shows information concerning directors other than Mr. Paz and Dr. Holzer, dgithe six months ended June
30, 2012.

Fees Earned o All Other
Paid in Cash Option Awards(1) Compensatior  Total
Name (%) Stock Awards ($ (%) (%) $)
Sol J. Barer, Ph.C - 215,04« 215,04«
James Barry, Ph.L 129,69! 129,69!
Paul Stuke - 23,32: 23,32!
Eyal Weinsteir - 23,32: 23,32
Q) The amounts in this column reflect the dollaroaints recognized for financial statement reportingposes with respect to the six

months ended June 30, 2012, in accordance with FASB Topic 718. Fair value is based on the Bl&ckoles option pricing moc
using the fair value of the underlying shares atrtfteasurement date. For additional discussioneofaluation assumptions used in
determining stock-based compensation and the dedatfair value for stock options, see “Managensebiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation — i€ait Accounting Policies—Share-Based Compensatiomd Note 2—Significant
Accounting Policies” and Note 10—"Equity (Capita¢firiency)” of the Notes to the Consolidated Finah8tatements for the Six
Months Ended June 30, 2012 included her

We do not currently provide cash compensation tadectors for acting as such, although we magan the future. We reimburse
our directors for reasonable expenses incurredmmection with their service as directors. In &ddi during the six months ended June 30,
2012, we made the following option grants to tHefeing directors. Each grant was made under tispireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA
Option Plan, unless otherwise noted.
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Name

Shares Subjec
to Options

Grant Date Exercise Price

Fair Market
Value on Grant
Vesting Schedule Expiration Date

Sol J. Barer, Ph.C

James Barry, Ph.I

Paul Stuka

Eyal Weinstein

12,50((1)

June 18, 2012 $

25,00((2) January 30, 2012 $

12,50((1)

12,50((1)

12,50((1)

June 18, 2012 $

June 18, 2012 $

June 18, 2012 $

3.1¢€

7.8C

3.1¢€

3.1¢

3.1¢€

One-third annually in June 18, 2022 $ 23,32:
2013, 2014 and 201¢
on the anniversary of
the date of grant,
provided that Dr.
Barer is providing
services to us or our
subsidiaries or
affiliates on the
applicable vesting
date.

One-third annually in January 30, 2022 $ 106,37:
2013, 2014 and 201t
on the anniversary of
the date of grant,
provided that if Dr.
Barry is (i) not
reelected as a directc
at our 2014 annual
meeting of
stockholders, or (ii)
not nominated for
reelection as a direct
at our 2014 annual
meeting of
stockholders, the
option vests and
becomes exercisable
on the date of such
failure to be reelectec
or nominated

One-third annually in June 18, 2022 $ 23,32:
2013, 2014 and 201t
on the anniversary of
the date of grant,
provided that Dr.
Barry is providing
services to us or our
subsidiaries or
affiliates on the
applicable vesting
date.

One-third annually in June 18, 2022 $ 23,320
2013, 2014 and 201t
on the anniversary of
the date of grant,
provided that Mr.
Stuka is providing
services to us or our
subsidiaries or
affiliates on the
applicable vesting
date.

One-third annually in June 18, 2022 $ 23,32:
2013, 2014 and 201¢

on the anniversary of

the date of grant,

provided that Mr.



Weinstein is providin
services to us or our
subsidiaries or
affiliates on the
applicable vesting
date.

(1) This option was granted as the director’'s 2842ual director compensation.
(2) This option was granted in connection with éippointment of this person to our board of dirextor
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

We currently have directors’ and officers’ liahjlinsurance insuring our directors and officersiragtdiability for acts or omissions in
their capacities as directors or officers, subfeatertain exclusions. Such insurance also insusesgainst losses which we may incur in
indemnifying our officers and directors. In adadlitji we have entered into indemnification agreemeiitskey officers and directors and such
persons shall also have indemnification rights ugbplicable laws, and our certificate of incorpiima and bylaws.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partipation

During the transition period ended June 30, 2012sdvk. Stuka and Weinstein and Dr. Barer servedionompensation
committee. None of our executive officers curngstirves, or in the past year has served, as a erashthe board of directors or
compensation committee of any entity that has emaare executive officers serving on our boardicdators or compensation committee.

Compensation Committee Report

The compensation committee has reviewed and disdube Compensation Discussion and Analysis wigmtlembers of our
management and, based on such review and discas#iencompensation committee recommended to thel lwd directors that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be includgdignTransition Report on Form 10-K/T.

COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE

Eyal Weinstein, Chairma
Paul Stuke

Sol J. Barer, Ph.LC

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Stockholder Matts.
The following table sets forth information with pest to the beneficial ownership of our commonlstas of September 1, 2012 by:
« each person known by us to beneficially own moamth.0% of our common stock;
« each of our directors;
« each of the named executive officers; and
« all of our directors and executive officers as augr.

The percentages of common stock beneficially ovaredeported on the basis of regulations of thei®ézs and Exchange
Commission governing the determination of benefficvanership of securities. Under the rules of tiee8ities and Exchange Commission, a
person is deemed to be a beneficial owner of arggdithat person has or shares voting power,cltfincludes the power to vote or to direct
the voting of the security, or investment powerjalifincludes the power to dispose of or to dirbetdisposition of the security. Except as
indicated in the footnotes to this table, each Eeia& owner named in the table below has solengtind sole investment power with respec

all shares beneficially owned and each person’sesdds c/o InspireMD, Inc., 4 Menorat Hamaor B¢l Aviv, Israel 67448. As of September
1, 2012, we had 17,070,477 shares outstanding.

86




Number of

Shares Percentage

Beneficially Beneficially
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned(1) Owned(1)
5% Owners
Yuli Ofer (2) 1,129,57! 6.6%
Genesis Capital Advisors LLC(: 2,098,84.(4) 11.(%
Ayer Capital Management, LP( 1,309,42(6) 7.2%
Officers and Director:
Ofir Paz 2,603,98(7) 15.2%
Asher Holzer, Ph.C 2,575,10(8) 15.1%
Eli Bar 281,52(9) 1.6%
Craig Shore 30,43510) *
Sara Pa: 2,603,98(7) 15.2%
Sol J. Barer, Ph.D. (1: 1,156,25(12) 6.8%
James Barry, Ph.D. (1. 0 -
Paul Stuka (14 508,33{(15) 2.5%
Eyal Weinstein (16 2,085(17) *
All directors and executive officers as a groupé®sons 7,155,633 40.2%

*

(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)

Represents ownership of less than one per

Shares of common stock beneficially owned &medréspective percentages of beneficial ownershipmmon stock assumes the exercise
of all options, warrants and other securities cotilvie into common stock beneficially owned by syerson or entity currently exercisa
or exercisable within 60 days of September 1, 2@hares issuable pursuant to the exercise of sjgidns and warrants exercisable
within 60 days are deemed outstanding and helthéyolder of such options or warrants for computirgpercentage of outstanding
common stock beneficially owned by such personapeinot deemed outstanding for computing the pésge of outstanding common
stock beneficially owned by any other pers

Mr. Ofer's address is 36 Hamesila Street, Herzeliya, Is
Genesis Capital Advisors LL's address is 1212 Avenue of the Americas, 19thrFidew York, New York 1003€

Comprised of (i) 98,784 shares of common steskable upon the exercise of a warrant held by Hu@ding LLC, (ii) 206,619 shares of
common stock issuable upon the conversion of aexiime debenture held by HUG Funding LLC, (iii)8149 shares of common stock
issuable upon the exercise of a warrant held byeGierOpportunity Fund L.P., (iv) 667,537 sharesahmon stock issuable upon the
conversion of a convertible debenture held by Ger@pportunity Fund L.P., (v) 377,630 shares of mwn stock issuable upon the
exercise of warrants held by Genesis Asset Oppitytéiand L.P., (vi) 317,875 shares of common stisskiable upon the conversion of a
convertible debenture held by Genesis Asset Oppitytérund L.P., (vii) 25,000 shares of common stheld directly by Genesis Asset
Opportunity Fund L.P. and (viii) 86,250 shares @fitnon stock held directly by Genesis Life Scienaed-LP. Genesis Capital Advisors
LLC is the investment adviser to Genesis OpporjuRitnd L.P., Genesis Asset Opportunity Fund L.ll. @enesis Life Science Fund LP,
and, as such, may be deemed to beneficially owrisies owned by each of Genesis Opportunity Fuil LGenesis Asset Opportunity
Fund L.P. and Genesis Life Science Fund LP. Eadbeniesis Capital Advisors LLC and HUG Funding L€ eontrolled by Daniel Sat
Ethan Benovitz and Jaime Hartman, and, as suchesie@apital Advisors LLC may be deemed to beradficown securities held by
HUG Funding LLC. In addition, each of Daniel Sak#han Benovitz and Jaime Hartman have shared vatidgdispositive power over t
securities held by HUG Funding LLC, Genesis OppatyuFund L.P., Genesis Asset Opportunity Fund il Genesis Life Science Fu
LP. Each of the convertible debentures and wartagits by HUG Funding LLC, Genesis Opportunity FlnE. and Genesis Asset
Opportunity Fund L.P. have contractual provisiansting conversion and exercise to the extent statversion or exercise would cause
the holder, together with its affiliates or membefs “group”, to beneficially own a number of sbaiof common stock that would exceed
4.99% or 9.99% of our then outstanding shares wfnaon stock following such conversion or exercidee Shares and percentage
ownership of our outstanding shares indicated éntéible above as beneficially owned by Genesist@lahilvisors LLC do not give effect
to these limitations
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()
(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Ayer Capital Management, I's address is 230 California Street, Suite 600,ancisco, CA 9411

Comprised of (i) 247,455 shares of common steslable upon the exercise of a warrant held bgr Bapital Partners Master Fund, L.P.,
(ii) 517,580 shares of common stock issuable uperconversion of a convertible debenture held bgrAyapital Partners Master Fund,
L.P., (iii) 4,901 shares of common stock issualgleruthe exercise of a warrant held by Ayer Capttatners Kestrel Fund, LP, (iv) 10,252
shares of common stock issuable upon the conveasiarconvertible debenture held by Ayer Capitatias Kestrel Fund, LP, (v) 13,602
shares of common stock issuable upon the exertiwaroants held by Epworth-Ayer Capital, (vi) 28M8&hares of common stock issuable
upon the conversion of a convertible debenture hglBpworth-Ayer Capital, (vii) 454,813 shares ofranon stock held directly by Ayer
Capital Partners Master Fund, L.P., (viii) 8,384rgls of common stock held directly by Ayer Capgitattners Kestrel Fund, LP, and (ix)
23,991 shares of common stock held directly by EtiwAyer Capital. The investment advisor for eaEger Capital Partners Master
Fund, L.P., Ayer Capital Partners Kestrel Fund,alnld Epworth-Ayer Capital is Ayer Capital Manageméft, of which Jay Venkatesan
serves as managing member. Jay Venkatesan majotfeche deemed to beneficially own the shares ofrnon stock held by the Funds,
as he holds or shares voting and dispositive pawer such shares. Each of the convertible debentainéd warrants held by Ayer Capital
Partners Master Fund, L.P., Ayer Capital Partnezsti€l Fund, LP and Epworth-Ayer Capital have awitral provisions limiting
conversion and exercise to the extent such cororemsi exercise would cause the holder, togethdr igtaffiliates or members of a
“group”, to beneficially own a number of sharescofmmon stock that would exceed 4.99% or 9.99% otleen outstanding shares of
common stock following such conversion or exercidee shares and percentage ownership of our odtstashares indicated in the table
above as beneficially owned by Ayer Capital ManagetnLP do not give effect to these limitatio

This amount includes options to purchase 30st#es of common stock that are held by Sara@®fazRaz’s wife, that are currently
exercisable within 60 days of September 1, 20112is mount does not include 93,132 shares of constumk that Mr. Paz presently
holds as trustee for a family trust. Mr. Paz doeishave either voting power or dispositive powegrahese shares and disclaims all
beneficial ownership therein. Ofir Paz and Sara Ba husband and wife, share voting and investpmmér with respect to all shares
reported by Mr. Paz or Ms. Paz. On March 27, 20A2,Paz ceased to be an executive offi

This amount does not include 14,731 shareswingon stock that Dr. Holzer presently holds astéigor a family trust. Dr. Holzer does
not have either voting power or dispositive powegrahese shares and disclaims all beneficial ogimpitherein

Represents options that are currently exercisabéxercisable within 60 days of September 1, 2

(10)Represents options that are currently exercisabdxercisable within 60 days of September 1, 2!

(11)Dr. Bare's address is c/o InspireMD, Inc., 4 Menorat Han&tarTel Aviv, Israel 6744¢

(12)Comprised of (i) 975,000 shares of common stock(@ndptions to purchase 181,250 shares of comstook that are currently

exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of Septmi, 2012

(13)Dr. Barry's address is c/o InspireMD, Inc., 4 Menorat Hang&tgrTel Aviv, Israel 6744¢

(14)Mr. Stuké' s address is c/o Osiris Partners, LLC, 1 Liberty&8q, 5th Floor, Boston, MA 0210

(15)Mr. Stuka is the principal and managing member sifi® Investment Partners, L.P., and, as suchbaasficial ownership of the (i)

333,333 shares of common stock and (ii) currentBr@sable warrants to purchase 166,667 sharesnafion stock held by Osiris
Investment Partners, L.P. In addition, Mr. Stuk@dividually holds an option to purchase 8,333 shafecommon stock that is currently
exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of Septm, 2012

(16)Mr. Weinsteir's address is c/o Leorlex Ltd., P.O. Box 15067 Matdaifa, Israel 319C

(17)Represents options that are currently exercisabdx@rcisable within 60 days of September 1, 2

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides certain informationaislune 30, 2012 with respect to our equity corsptan plans under which our

equity securities are authorized for issuance:

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
Number of future
securities Weighted- issuance
to be issued average under equity



Plan Category
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers
Total

88

upon exercise
exercise of price of
outstanding outstanding
options, options,
warrants warrants
and rights and rights
(a) (b)
2,417,030 % 3.2C
964,6441) $ 6.3¢€
3,381,671 $ 4.12

compensatiot
plans
(excluding
securities
reflected in
column (a))
(€)

5,331,86'

0

5,331,86'




(1) Comprised of awards made to individuals outsidelnspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan, @sscribed below:

« Options issued to certain providers of finder sggsi from May 2005 through December 2010, we isspgidns to purchase an
aggregate of 74,849 shares of common stock tadiiferent finders who assisted in raising fundsder The exercise price of these
options range from par value to $4.92. All suckiays are fully vested. These options expire betw&pril 2012 through June 201

« Options issued to a consultant: in May 2006, weddsoptions to purchase 83,636 shares of commek 8ia consultant. The exerc
price of these options was $0.76. We believe thpsens have expired, but they are included atb®eause such expiration is
currently under legal disput

« Options issued to former directors: in August 204é issued options to purchase an aggregate o68%kHares of common stock to
David Ivry and Fellice Pelled. Both Mr. Ivry ait. Peled resigned as directors of InspireMD Ltd March 31, 2011. Pursuant to
terms of the directors’ vested options, the vesiaibns expired thirty days after the directorsigmations. However, in connection
with their resignation, we granted Mr. Ivry and NRelled each replacement options to purchase 4@/5&Es of common stock. The
exercise price of these options is $4.92 and tlpire on December 31, 201

« Options issued to current director: in November2@te issued options to purchase an aggregate5o®d@ shares of common stock
to Sol J. Barer, Ph.D., the chairman of our bodidirectors. For a description of these optiorieape see “ltem 11. Executive
Compensatic—Director Compensatio”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns, and Director Independence.

In accordance with our audit committee charter aih@it committee is required to approve all relgiadty transactions. In general,
audit committee will review any proposed transactimat has been identified as a related party actien under Item 404 of Regulation S-K,
which means a transaction, arrangement or reldtipris which we and any related party are partiotpan which the amount involved exceeds
$120,000. A related party includes (i) a directbrector nominee or executive officer of us, (iigecurity holder known to be an owner of more
than 5% of our voting securities, (iii) an immeeid&mily member of the foregoing or (iv) a corpaator other entity in which any of the
foregoing persons is an executive, principal oiilsintontrol person or in which such person ha&ads greater beneficial ownership interest.

On June 1, 2012, we entered into a consulting aggaewith Asher Holzer, Ph.D., our director andhier president, which terminates
on November 30, 2012, pursuant to which Dr. Holgéirprovide us with consulting services in excharfgr monthly payments of $20,337.

Director Independence

The board of directors has determined that DrseBand Barry and Messrs. Stuka and Weinstein gdhisfrequirement for
independence set out in Section 5605(a)(2) of thedislq Stock Market Rules and that each of thesetdins has no material relationship with
us (other than being a director and/or a stockmplde making its independence determinations bib&rd of directors sought to identify and
analyze all of the facts and circumstances relatrany relationship between a director, his imratdfamily or affiliates and our company ¢
our affiliates and did not rely on categorical stards other than those contained in the Nasdagqetdeenced above.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
The fees billed for professional services provitteds by Kesselman & Kesselman, Certified Publicdmtants, a member of

PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, iersix months ended June 30, 2012 and the fisealgreled December 31, 2011 and 2010
are described below.
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Audit Fees

Kesselman & Kesselman billed us audit fees in tigregate amount of $155,000 for the six months @éddee 30, 2012, $205,000
the year ended December 31, 2011 and $132,008doretar ended December 31, 2010. These fees teldte audit of our annual financial
statements, the review of our interim quarterhafinial statements and, in 2011 and 2012, Sarbaxlkey-@ct compliance work.

Audit-Related Fees

Kesselman & Kesselman billed us audit-related fedlse aggregate amount of $20,000 for the six m®ended June 30, 2012 and
$106,300 for the year ended December 31, 2011f&dtein 2011 related to our registration stateroarfform S-1 initially filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16,, 20ddndments thereto and documentation of procassksontrols related to Sarbanes-
Oxley Act compliance. The fees in 2012 relatedupregistration statement on Form S-1 initiallefilwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 16, 2011 and amendments th&esselman & Kesselman did not bill us for any &ueliated fees for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Tax Fees

Kesselman & Kesselman billed us tax fees in theegage amount of $44,000 for the six months endeéd 30, 2012, $26,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2011 and $29,000 for #wegyeled December 31, 2010. These fees relatefi@sgional services rendered for
compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

All Other Fees

Kesselman & Kesselman billed us other fees in gggegate amount of $0 for the six months ended 30n2012, $0 for the year
ended December 31, 2011 and $31,675 for the yeldeDecember 31, 2010. These fees relate to redfienvaudited pro forma financial
statements and to due diligence in connection thighshare exchange transactions.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 anddhen of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2fridr to our formation of the
audit committee, the board of directors considéhedaudit fees, audit-related fees, tax fees alner dees paid to our accountants, as disclose
above, and determined that the payment of suchWassompatible with maintaining the independerfdd®accountants. Our audit
committee pre-approves all auditing services, imdkcontrol-related services and permitted non{asetiices (including the fees and terms
thereof) to be performed for us by our independenditor, except for de minimis non-audit servidest tare approved by the audit committee
prior to the completion of the audit. The auditoittee may form and delegate authority to subcdiees consisting of one or more memt
when appropriate, including the authority to gnamg-approvals of audit and permitted non-auditisess provided that decisions of such
subcommittee to grant pre-approvals is presentéiaetéull audit committee at its next scheduled timge

PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduse
Documents filed as part of report:

1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements are includedeirer
» Report of Kesselman & Kesselman, Independent ReagdtPublic Accounting Fir
+ Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 201Rerember 31, 2011 and 2(

e Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Sixthls Ended June 30, 2012 and the Years Ended bec&h, 2011, 2010 and 2(
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (@gaeficiency) for the Six Months Ended June 3012G@Gnd the Years End
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Sirthis Ended June 30, 2012 and the Years Ended Decedh, 2011, 2010 and 2(
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

Financial Statement Schedules

None
. _Exhibits

See Index to Exhibit
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

INSPIREMD, INC.

Date: January 3, 2013 By: /s/ Ofir Paz
Ofir Paz
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Ofir Paz Chief Executive Officer and Director Januar®gl3
Ofir Paz (principal executive officer)
/sl Craig Short Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer January 3, 2013
Craig Shore (principal financial and accounting officer)
/sl Sol J. Bare Chairman of the Board of Directors January®,2
Sol J. Bare
/sl Asher Holze Director January 3, 2013
Asher Holzel
/s/ James Barr Director January 3, 2013
James Barr
/sl Paul Stuki Director January 3, 2013
Paul Stuke
/s/ Eyal Weinsteit Director January 3, 2013

Eyal Weinsteir

/s/ James Loughli Director January 3, 2013
James Loughlii
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Index to Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

21 Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of Decemb&020, by and among InspireMD Ltd., Saguaro Resauioe., and the
Shareholders of InspireMD Ltd. that are signatbtmréto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16. 5aguaro Resources, |
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissianJanuary 5, 201

2.2 Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dagbruiary 24, 2011 (incorporated by reference taltixh.2 to Current
Report on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiampril 6, 2011

2.3 Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreenfater] March 25, 2011 (incorporated by referendextabit 2.3 to Current
Report on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiampril 6, 2011

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incopmmgincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 tan@nt Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiom\pril 1, 2011)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporatefigrence to Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on F&i filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 1, 2!

10.1+ Amended and Restated 2011 Umbrella Optian hcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 tarf@€nt Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMNovember 4, 2011

10.2+ Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (irpmated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Currentdrepn Form 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Ap£i08,1)

10.3 Agreement of Conveyance, Transfer and Assign of Assets and Assumption of Obligations, dat®df March 31, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Catfeeport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities d&xthange Commission
on April 6, 2011)

10.4 Stock Purchase Agreement, by and betwe@iréhdD, Inc. and Lynn Briggs, dated as of March 3@11 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on F8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarApril 6, 2011

10.5 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated asaofiVB1, 2011, by and among InspireMD, Inc. anta@epurchasers set forth
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1i@.2smendment No. 1 to Registration Statement omF8r1 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2B61¥

10.6 Form of $7.20 Warrant (incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 10.6 to Current Report on Form 8k with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 6, 201

10.7 Form of $4.92 Warrant (incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 10.7 to Current Report on Form 8l&d with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 6, 201

10.8 $1,250,000 Convertible Debenture, dated 20)y2010, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Gen&sset Opportunity Fund,
L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.&wrrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secustand Exchange
Commission on April 6, 2011

10.9 Unprotected Leasing Agreement, dated Fep2@r2007, by and between Block 7093 Parcel 162ag2my Ltd. Private

Company 510583156 and InspireMD Ltd. (incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 10.9 to Current Report onnf 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Ap£i08,1)
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10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated &gy®2, 2010, by and among InspireMD Ltd. andaerpurchasers set forth
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1&d@mendment No. 1 to Registration Statement amF8-1 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2B61¥

Manufacturing Agreement, by and betweepitaMD Ltd. and QualiMed Innovative Medizinproduk®mbH, dated as of
September 11, 2007 (incorporated by reference hibix10.11 to Amendment No. 1 to Registration &taént on Form S-1
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioagust 26, 2011

Development Agreement, by and between @bt Ltd. and QualiMed Innovative MedizinproduktenBH, dated as of
January 15, 2007 (incorporated by reference tolkitxhD.12 to Amendment No. 1 to Registration Stateton Form S-1 filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Aug6, 2011

License Agreement, by and between Svel@iddeSystems, Inc. and InspireMD Ltd., dated aMafch 19, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Anmaedt No. 1 to Registration Statement on Forthfiled with the Securitie
and Exchange Commission on August 26, 2(

Agreement, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Oéiz,Rlated as of April 1, 2005 (incorporated byneriee to Exhibit 10.1
to Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarApril 6, 2011

Amendment to the Employment Agreementrixy between InspireMD Ltd. and Ofir Paz, datedfé@atober 1, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to @uatrReport on Form B-filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on April 6, 2011)

Second Amendment to the Employment Agreg¢nby and between InspireMD Ltd. and Ofir Pazedas of March 28, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to @ntrReport on Form B-filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on April 6, 2011)

Personal Employment Agreement, by and éatwnspireMD Ltd. and Asher Holzer, Ph.D., datedf@April 1, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to @uatrReport on Form B-filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on April 6, 2011)

Amendment to the Employment Agreementriny between InspireMD Ltd. and Asher Holzer, Phdated as of March 28,
2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18torent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secastiand Exchange
Commission on April 6, 2011

Personal Employment Agreement, by and éatwnspireMD Ltd. and Eli Bar, dated as of Jung2®®5 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Current Report omir8¢K filed with the Securities and Exchange Consiois on April 6,
2011)

Employment Agreement, by and between tebfd Ltd. and Bary Oren, dated as of August 25,200corporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Current Report onmni8¢K filed with the Securities and Exchange Consiois on April 6,
2011)

Employment Agreement, by and between tabfid Ltd. and Craig Shore, dated as of Novembe2P20 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Current Report omir8¢K filed with the Securities and Exchange Consiois on April 6,
2011)

Form of Indemnity Agreement between IreddiD, Inc. and each of the directors and executflieers thereof (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Amendment No. Remgistration Statement on Form S-1 filed with $eeurities and
Exchange Commission on August 26, 20
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10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30+

10.31+

10.32+

10.33

10.34

10.35

Agreement with Bank Mizrahi Tefahot LTDr #oloan to InspireMD Ltd. in the original principgamount of $750,000
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to @ntrReport on Form B-filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on April 6, 2011)

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Aprdf18, 2011, by and among InspireMD, Inc. andai® purchasers set forth
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0. Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Seties and Exchange
Commission on April 22, 201:

Form of Warrant (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filedth the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 22, 20:

Agreement by and between InspireMD Ltd. lslietko Laser Material Processing, dated as of AlBil2010 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Amendment No. 1 tgiBation Statement on Form S-1 filed with theB#&ies and Exchange
Commission on August 26, 201

Agreement by and between InspireMD Ltd. ldatec Medical Ltd, dated as of September 23, ZD@®rporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.27 to Amendment No. 1 to Registrat®tatement on Form S-1 filed with the Securitied BRchange
Commission on August 26, 201

Exclusive Distribution Agreement by andazsn InspireMD Ltd. and Hand-Prod Sp. Z 0.0, datedf December 10, 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Aament No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form ted fvith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October@®1).

Factoring Agreement by and between InsgirdMtl. and Bank Mizrahi Tefahot Ltd., dated as ebRuary 22, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Aaient No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form fed fvith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2B1¥

$6.00 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreemelated as of July 11, 2011, by and between Insgixeldc. and Sol J. Barer,
Ph.D. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Ctarent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secastiand Exchange
Commission on July 15, 201

Consultancy Agreement, dated as of AprdQiL1, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Ofir Bazorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.34 to Amendment No. 2 to Registratioat8ient on Form S-1 filed with the Securities ardnange Commission
on September 21, 201

Consultancy Agreement, dated as of A®jl2D11, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Ashelzélg Ph.D. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.35 to Amendment No. 2 tgiBtation Statement on Form S-1 filed with theB#&ies and Exchange
Commission on September 21, 20

Exclusive Distribution Agreement by andastn InspireMD GmbH. and IZASA Distribuciones Taxas SA, dated as of
May 20, 2009 (incorporated by reference to ExHibit36 to Amendment No. 3 to Registration Stateroarfeform S-1 filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on l@t@2, 2011

Amendment to the Distribution Agreementhg between InspireMD GmbH. and IZASA Distribucisfiecnicas SA, dated
as of February 2011 (incorporated by referencextatit 10.37 to Amendment No. 3 to Registrationt&taent on Form S-1
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiOatober 12, 2011

Exclusive Distribution Agreement by andasstn InspireMD Ltd. and Tzamakcobsohn Ltd., dated as of December 24,

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Aaient No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form ted fvith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on OctoberQ®l ).
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10.36

10.37+

10.38+

10.39

10.40

10.41+

10.42+

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

Exclusive Distribution Agreement by andasstn InspireMD Ltd. and Kirloskar Technologies ([®)., dated as of May 13,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38meendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Férinfiled with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on OctoberQ®l ).

Consultancy Agreement by and betweendali) Ltd. and Sara Paz, dated as of May 6, 200®(jporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.40 to Amendment No. 3 to Registratioat8ment on Form S-1 filed with the Securities ardhange Commission
on October 12, 201

Consultancy Agreement by and between InspireMD &tdl Sara Paz Management and Marketing Ltd., deted Septembe
1, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1GglAmendment No. 3 to Registration Statement aomF8-1 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on OctoberQ®l ).

Clinical Trial Services Agreement, dated as of ®@eto4, 2011, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and dahClinical Researc
Institute, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Eithil).1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed witretBecurities and Exchange
Commission on October 11, 201

Letter Agreement by and between InspireMd &nd Tzamal-Jacobsohn Ltd., dated as of Ma@p®] Zincorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.43 to Amendment No. 4 tgiRation Statement on Form S-1 filed with the8Bg&ies and Exchange
Commission on December 1, 20:

Stock Award Agreement, dated as of Noveritbe2011, by and between InspireMD, Inc. andBS@&arer, Ph.D.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Catiieeport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities ddhange Commission
on November 18, 201.:

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as oféinber 16, 2011, by and between InspireMD, Inc. @old]. Barer
Ph.D. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Ztorent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secastand Exchange
Commission on November 18, 20!

Amendment No. 1 to Securities Purchase égemnt, dated as of June 21, 2011, by and amongeMiD, Inc. and the
purchasers that are signatory thereto (incorporaye@ference to Exhibit 10.43 to Annual Reportammm 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1%

Amendment No. 2 to Securities Purchase ékgent, dated as of November 14, 2011, by and anmspireMD, Inc. and the
purchasers that are signatory thereto (incorporaya@ference to Exhibit 10.44 to Annual Reportamm 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1)

Consultancy Agreement, dated March 27, 268 2nd between InspireMD Ltd. and Robert Raimi¢rporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Fori-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiarpril 2, 2012

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Bp#i012, by and between InspireMD, Inc. and cenpairthasers set forth therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Catf@eport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities d&xthange Commission
on April 6, 2012)

Form of Senior Secured Convertible NotedadsApril 5, 2012 (incorporated by reference to iBiH0.2 to Current Report on
Form &K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgiarApril 6, 2012

Form of April 2012 $7.20 Warrant (incorpgechby reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Reporform 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 6, 2!
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10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58**

10.59**

10.60**

10.61**

10.62**

Registration Rights Agreement, dated AprR012, by and between InspireMD, Inc. and thelpasers set forth therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Catfe@eport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities d&xthange Commission
on April 6, 2012)

Security Agreement, dated April 5, 2012ahyg between InspireMD, Inc., InspireMD Ltd., InggMD GmbH and certain
purchasers set forth therein (incorporated by esfes to Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report on Form 8kd with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 6, 20

Intellectual Property Security Agreemenated April 5, 2012, by and between InspireMD, IhaspireMD Ltd., Inspire MD
GmbH and certain purchasers set forth therein (parated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Currenpéteon Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onl&p2012)

Deposit Account Control Agreement, dated April 812, among InspireMD, Inc., Bank Leumi USA and a®rpurchasers ¢
forth therein (incorporated by reference to Exhiffit7 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission on April 6, 201Z

Subsidiary Guarantee, dated April 5, 2032AnspireMD Ltd. and Inspire MD GmbH, in favor oértain purchasers set forth
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1i@.&urrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Setiss and Exchange
Commission on April 6, 201

Fixed and Floating Charge Debenture, daped 5, 2012, by and between InspireMD Ltd. andtam purchasers set forth
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.@urrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Setiss and Exchange
Commission on April 6, 201Z

Form of Lock-Up Agreement (incorporatedéference to Exhibit 10.10 to Current Report omnf8¢K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 6, 2!

Consulting Agreement, dated as of Jun®12 2by and between InspireMD, Inc. and Asher HplR&.D.(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on F8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiardune 5, 201z

Separation Agreement and Release, madeJas® 1, 2012, by and between InspireMD Ltd., QEHhe Israeli Society of
Occupational Health and Safety Ltd., Company N@3®B247 and Asher Holzer, Ph.D.(incorporated bgreafce to Exhibit
10.2 to Current Report on Forr-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiondune 5, 201:

Mutual Waiver and Release, dated as of July 222 264 and between InspireMD Ltd. and H-Prod Sp. Z o.c
Exclusive Distribution Agreement, dated as of Auguy2007, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Kafglia
Addendum to the Distribution Agreement, dated a3amiuary 18, 2011, by and between InspireMD Ltd. ardia Srl.

Exclusive Distribution Agreement, datesia May 13, 2010, by and between InspireMD Ltd] &uromed Deutschland
GmbH.

Exclusive Distribution Agreement, dated as of M&y 2011, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Bosgidiing Ltd.
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10.63** Addendum to the Distribution Agreement, dated a8wfust 29, 2011, by and between InspireMD Ltd. Bodti Trading Ltd

10.64** Omnibus Debenture Amendment, dated May2®1.2, by and between InspireMD, Inc. and the dilve holders set forth
therein.

10.65** Amendment No. 1 to Registration Rightsrégment, dated May 31, 2012, by and between Indpirénc. and the purchasers
set forth therein

21.1 List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by refeeto Exhibit 21.1 to Current Report on Form 8{Ed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 6, 201

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted PatgoeBection 906 of tt
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Fauant to Section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adbptesuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1* Supplemental Financial Informati«- Financial Statements for the Years Ended June@®(® and June 30, 2011 (unaudit

101** The following materials from InspireMD, Itris Transition Report on Form 10-K/T for the yeaded December 31, 2011,

formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reportingigaage), (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Clidasted Statements
of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Statements of igfes in Equity (Capital Deficiency), (iv) Consolidd Statements of Cash
Flows, and (v) the Notes to the Consolidated Firsr®&tatement

* Filed herewith.

** Filed previously.
+ Management contract or compensatory plan or geraent.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the shareholders of
InspireMD Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statenfenpeiations, changes in equity (capital
deficiency ) and cash flows present fairly, inraliterial respects, the financial position of IneMb Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
at June 30, 2012, December 31, 2011 and 2010 hanesults of its operations and its cash flowgHersix month period ended June 30, 2012
and for each of the three years in the period eflEmember 31, 201in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the Unit
States of America. Also in our opinion, the Compamgintained, in all material respects, effectiveiinal control over financial reporting as of
June 30, 2012, based on criteria establishédt@mnal Control - Integrated Framewoi&sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatid
the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's n&aneagt is responsible for these financial stateménmtsnaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assasat of the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting , included in the
accompanying “Management's Report on Internal @bRiver Financial Reporting” appearing under ItefA)9 Our responsibility is to expre
opinions on these financial statements and on trapgany's internal control over financial reportlragsed on our integrated audits (which wer
integrated audits in the six month period endea By 2012 and in 2011). We conducted our auditadcordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standards require that we plan arfidrpethe audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeat$e® of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our auwdfitse finan c ial statements included examinorga test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemeastessing the accounting principles used andfisanmt estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statementgméstion. Our audit of internal control over finalaeporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financigdagting, assessing the risk that a material weakegssts, and testing and evaluating the de
and operating effectiveness of internal controkllasn the assessed risk. Our audits also includgdrming such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdliat our audits provide a reasonable basisuoppinions.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieane been prepared assuming that the Companyamilintie as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated finantéksents, the Company has had recurring lossgatine cash flows from operating activit
and has significant future commitments that raigestantial doubt about its ability to continue agp@g concern. Management's plans in
regard to these matters are also described in Ndkhe financial statements do not include anystdjents that might result from the outcome
of this uncertainty.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readwaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Tel Aviv, Israel /sl Kesselman & Kesselm:i
September 11, 2012, except for Note 16 for which Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
the date is January 3, 2013 A member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Internationaited
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INSPIREMD, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

June 30 December 31
2012 2011 2010
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 10,28: $ 5,09¢ $ 63€
Restricted cas 37 91 25(
Accounts receivable
Trade 1,82« 2,28¢ 852
Other 264 11¢ 75
Prepaid expenst 93 72 3
Inventory:
On hanc 1,74« 2,061 1,70¢
On consignment 63 11C 371
Total current assets 14,30¢ 9,83( 3,891
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT , net 462 42C 282
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred debt issuance co 961 15
Fund in respect of employee rights upon retirement 282 21E 167
Total non-current assets 1,24: 21E 182
Total assets $ 16,01+ $ 10,46 $ 4,35¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

June 30 December 31
2012 2011 2010
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of lor-term loan $ 94 $ 35¢
Accounts payable and accrue
Trade $ 441 814 1,10
Other 2,92t 2,215 1,50¢
Advanced payment from custom 174 31¢€ 55¢
Loans from shareholde 2C
Deferred revenues 1C 39¢
Total current liabilities 3,55( 3,441 3,94¢
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term loan 75
Liability for employees rights upon retireme 354 27C 20¢€
Convertible loan: 5,01¢ 1,04¢
Contingently redeemable warrants 1,70¢
Total long-term liabilities 7,07¢ 27C 1,32¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  (Note 9)
Total liabilities 10,62¢ 3,711 5,26¢
EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)
Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; 129)00Ghares authorize:
17,040,040, 17,044,737 and 12,465,951 shares isswkdutstanding at Ju
30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and 2010, resphc 2 2 1
Additional paic-in capital 49,10¢ 43,39: 21,06:
Accumulated deficit (43,72 (36,64) (21,976
Total equity (capital deficiency) 5,38¢ 6,75¢ (919
Total liabilities and equity (less capital deficogn $ 16,01 $ 10,46¢ $ 4,35¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except per share data)

6 month period ende« Year ended December 3,
June 30, 201Z 2011 2010 2009
REVENUES $ 2,071 $ 6,00¢ $ 4,94¢ $ 3,411
COST OF REVENUES 1,37 3,011 2,69¢ 2,291
GROSS PROFIT 694 2,99¢ 2,258 1,12(
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and developmt 2,601 2,47¢ 1,33¢ 1,33(
Selling and marketin 1,24¢ 1,97: 1,23¢ 1,04(
General and administrative (including $1,454, $8,%B69 and $65 of
share-based compensation for the six month periddatJune 30,
2012 and the years ended December 31, 2011, 2@1P0A9,
respectively) 3,99¢ 12,27¢ 2,89¢ 1,46
Total operating expenses 7,852 16,72: 5,47 3,831
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (7,15¢) (13,729 (3,219 (2,719
FINANCIAL EXPENSES (INCOME), net (109) 934 154 (40
LOSS BEFORE TAX EXPENSES (7,049 (14,669 (3,379 (2,677
TAX EXPENSES 32 2 47 47
NET LOSS $ (708)$ (14669%  (3420% (2,729
NET LOSS PER SHARE- basic and diluted $ (0.4 $ (0.95) $ (0.29) $ (0.29)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES
USED IN COMPUTING NET LOSS PER SHARE - basic and
diluted 17,044,22 15,359,92 12,308,63 11,914,71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CAPIT AL DEFICIENCY)

Ordinary shares

Total
Additional equity
Number of Par paid-in Accumulated (capital
shares value capital deficit deficiency)
U.S. dollars in thousanc
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2009 11,765,48 $ 1 % 15,96 $ (15,83) $ 134
CHANGES DURING 2009:
Net loss (2,729 (2,729
Exercise of options by employe 114,68: * * *
Employee and non-employee share-based
compensation expens 594 594
Redemption of beneficial conversion feature of
convertible loar (309¢) (30¢)
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of $44 issuanste ci 204,43: & 96& 96%
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2009 12,084,59 1 17,21¢ (18,55¢) (1,339
CHANGES DURING 2010:
Net loss (3,420 (3,420
Employee and non-employee share-based
compensation expens 1,64( 1,64(
Issuance of warrants, net of $23 issuance ( 424 424
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of $97 issuansts c 381,35! * 1,781 1,781
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 12,465,95 1 21,06 (21,97¢) (919
CHANGES DURING 2011:
Net loss (14,66% (14,66%)
Employee and non-employee share-based
compensation expens 748,44t * 11,60¢ 11,60¢
Issuance of shares and warrants, net of $2,83&risg
costs 3,248,06 1 7,65:% 7,65¢
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of $185 issuansts 200,71 * 80% 80t
Exercise of options by employ: 250,00t * 1,50C 1,50¢
Conversion of convertible loans 131,55t & 76€ 76¢
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2011 17,04473 % 2 % 43,39: $ (36,64) $ 6,75¢
CHANGES DURING THE 6 MONTH PERIOD
ENDED JUNE 30, 2012:
Net loss (7,08)) (7,08))
Employee and non-employee share-based
compensation expens 1,94¢ 1,94«
Acquisition and cancellation of shat (4,699 * (22) (22)
Beneficial conversion feature of convertible loan 3,79( 3,79(
BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2012 17,040,04 $ 2 $ 49,10¢ $ (43,729 $ 5,38¢

* Represents an amount less than $1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.

F-6




INSPIREMD, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(U.S. dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss

Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to ashcused in operating activiti¢

Depreciation of property, plant and equipm

Loss from sale of property, plant and equipn
Change in liability for employees right upon retirent
Financial expenses (incom

Sharebased compensation expen

Loss (gains) on amounts funded in respect of eng@aights upon retirement,

net
Changes in operating asset and liability ite
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expel
Decrease (increase) in trade receiva
Decrease (increase) in other receiva
Decrease in inventory on consignm
Decrease (increase) in inventory on h
Increase (decrease) in trade paya
Increase (decrease) in deferred revel
Increase (decrease) in other payable and advayregnt from custome
Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease (increase) in restricted ¢
Purchase of property, plant and equiprn
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipi
Amounts funded in respect of employee rights umdinement, net
Net cash provided (used) in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of convertible loan andamésr net of issuance costs o

$1,132 in the six month period ended June 30, :

Proceeds from issuance of shares and warrantef isstuance costs of $1,014, $

and $11 in the years ended December 31, 2011, 2842009, respective
Exercise of option
Proceeds from lor-term loan, net of $41 issuance cc
Proceeds from convertible loan at fair value thiopgpfit or loss, net of $60
issuance cos!
Repayment of lor-term loan
Acquisition and cancellation of shat
Repayment of loans from sharehold
Repayment of convertible loans
Net cash provided by financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING O F
PERIOD
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERI OD

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Taxes on income paid

Interest paid

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Receivables on account of shares

6 month period ende(

Year ended December 3.

June 30, 201:

2011

2010

2009

$ (7,08) $ (14,669 $ (3,420 $ (2,729
69 89 91 89
15
84 58 42 42
(315) 897 94 (224)
1,94 959 1,62 562
(6) 8 11 (10)
(21) (69) 36 (32)
46C  (1,437) 337 (96¢)
(14€) (50) 9 27)
47 261 722 33C
317 (357) (758  (24))
(29  (37)) 19€ 612
10 (398) (1.57)  (507)
56€ 421 (91)  1,55¢
(4369 (6,009 (2,710 (1,545
54 15¢ 52 (272)
(199 (139 (81) (34)
41 4
(61) (48) (17) (44)
(200) 13 (46) (346
9,86¢
10,56: 2,24 97€
1,50(
41¢
1,07¢
(94 (375 (28]
(21)
(20) (20)
(1,000) (720)
9,75 _ 10,66¢ 3,03 655
- (221) (21) 41
519C  445¢ 26C (1,195
5,09+ 63€ 37€ 1571
$ 10,28 $ 509/ $ 636 $  37€
$ 374  37$ 568 -
$ 224$ 24% 30$ 88
$ -$ -$ - $ 20




Conversion of convertible loan into shares $ - $ 66E $ - $

Purchasing of property plant and equipment in ¢raad in consideration of shar
based payment $ -$ 144 % -$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

InspireMD, Inc., formerly Saguaro Resources, Iftbe “Company”), a public company, is a Delawargpooation formed on
February 29, 2008. On March 28, 2011, the Compaayged its hame to InspireMD, Inc.

On December 29, 2010, the Company entered intaaeeFxchange Agreement (the “Exchange Agreememtdnial among the
Company and InspireMD Ltd., a limited company inmmated under the laws of the State of Israel inl/&R005. Subsequent to t
date of execution of the Exchange Agreement, sloédels of InspireMD Ltd., holding 91.7% of Inspir@M_td.’s issued and
outstanding ordinary shares, executed a joinddrad=xchange Agreement and became parties théhetolispireMD
Shareholders”). Pursuant to the Exchange Agreemantarch 31, 2011, the InspireMD Shareholdersstiemed all of their
ordinary shares in InspireMD Ltd. to the Compangxechange for 11,617,977 newly issued shares oframmstock of the
Company (the “Initial Share Exchange”). In addititine remaining holders of InspireMD Ltd.’s ordipahares separately
transferred all of their ordinary shares of InspiEz Ltd. to the Company, in exchange for an aggregétl,048,689 newly issued
shares of common stock of the Company (the “FolimwShare Exchange”) and, together with the Inilahre Exchange, the
“Share Exchange”). As a result of the Share ExchahtspireMD Ltd. became a wholly owned subsidiafithe Company.

The Share Exchange was accounted for as a rewsagitalization, equivalent to the issuance oflstmclnspireMD Ltd. for the
net monetary assets of the Company. According®yhiktorical financial statements of the Comparfece the historical
operations and financial statements of InspireM. Lt

The Company, together with its subsidiaries, isealical device company focusing on the developmedtc@mmercialization of i
proprietary stent platform technology, MGuard™. MEl™ provides embolic protection in stenting praged by placing a
micron mesh sleeve over a stent. The Companyiglipitoducts are marketed for use in patients withite coronary syndromes,
notably acute myocardial infarction (heart attaahdl saphenous vein graft coronary interventionpdby surgery). The Company
markets its products through distributors in inggional markets, mainly in Europe and Latin America

In addition, the Company operates in Germany thingtgywholly-owned subsidiary, InspireMD GmbH, ar@ean limited liability
company incorporated in November 2007, where thmg@2my subcontracts the manufacturing of its stents.

The Company has had recurring losses and negatsreftows from operating activities and has sigaifit future commitments.
For the six months ended June 30, 2012, the Comipathjosses of approximately $7.1 million and niegatash flows from
operating activities of approximately $4.4 milliothe Companys management believes that its working capitalf dsiioe 30, 201
of approximately $10.8 million should enable itcantinue funding the negative cash flows from opegaactivities until October
2013, when its 2012 Convertible Debentures (defenadl described in Note 6a) are subject to a noimggemt redemption option
that could require the Company to make a payme#i8f3 million, including accrued interest. Sinbe Company expects to
continue incurring negative cash flows from openagiand in light of the cash requirement in corinaawith the 2012 Convertible
Debentures, there is substantial doubt about thepgaay’s ability to continue operating as a goingan. These financial
statements include no adjustments of the valuessdts and liabilities and the classification tbkrié any, that will apply if the
Company is unable to continue operating as a guangern.

The Company will need to raise further capitalanhs future point in time, through the sale of aiddil equity securities or debt.
The Company'’s future capital requirements and tfegjaacy of the Company’s available funds will depen many factors,
including the Company’s ability to successfully aoercialize the Company’s MGuaf¥' products, development of future
products, competing technological and market dgraknts, and the need to enter into collaboratiagtis ather companies or
acquire other companies or technologies to enhancemplement the Company’s product offerings. Havethe Company may
be unable to raise sufficient additional capitabwlthe Company will need it or with favorable terifise terms of any securities
issued by the Company in future financing may beenfavorable to new investors, and may includegregfces, superior voting
rights and the issuance of warrants or other dévigaecurities, which may have a further dilutéféect on the holders of any of
the Company’s securities then outstanding. If tbenGany is unable to obtain adequate funds on reat®terms, the Company
will need to curtail operations significantly, imding possibly postponing or halting the Comparnyrétes States of America
(“U.S.”) Food and Drug Administration clinical tisaor entering into financing agreements with waative terms.
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INSPIREMD, INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

Accounting principles

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatlgepted in the United
States (“U.S. GAAP”).

Use of estimate:

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make estiiusing
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etsssid liabilities, the disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reponteauats of sales and expenses during the reporériggs. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

As applicable to these consolidated financial statgs, the most significant estimates and assumgptilate to inventory
write-off, provisions for returns, legal contingées, estimation of the fair value of shdr@sed compensation and estimatic
the fair value of warrants.

Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic environment/iich the operations of the Company and its sudséd are conducted
is the U.S. dollar (“$” or “dollar”). Accordinglythe functional currency of the Company and of thiesidiaries is the dollar.

The dollar figures are determined as follows: teations and balances originally denominated inadslare presented in their
original amounts. Balances in foreign currenciesteanslated into dollars using historical and entiexchange rates for non-
monetary and monetary balances, respectively. &dting translation gains or losses are recorddihancial income or
expense, as appropriate. For transactions reflécténd statements of operations in foreign curies)che exchange rates at
transaction dates are used. Depreciation and ckangeventories and other changes deriving from-nmnetary items are
based on historical exchange rates.

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of the Company and of its subsidiariegra@mpany transactions

and balances have been eliminated upon consolidatio
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e.

INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmemiich include short-term bank deposits (up te¢hmonths from date of
deposit), that are not restricted as to withdraavalse, to be cash equivalents.

Restricted cash

The Company maintains certain cash amounts resirae$ to withdrawal or use, related to credit caRastricted cash is
denominated in dollars and New Israel Shekel (“NISkte also Note 9¢(2).

Concentration of credit risk and allowance for doutiful accounts

Financial instruments that may potentially subjeet Company to a concentration of credit risk csinsi cash, cash
equivalents and restricted cash, which are dembsitenajor financial institutions in the “U.S.” reeel and Germany, and trade
accounts receivable. The Company’s trade accoen&svable are derived from revenues earned frotoowess from various
countries. The Company performs ongoing credituatidns of its customers’ financial condition agdnerally, requires no
collateral from its customers. The Company alsogheedit insurance policy for some of its cust@n&he Company
maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts reaigler based upon the expected ability to collecattemunts receivable. T|
Company reviews its allowance for doubtful accouparterly by assessing individual accounts redd#é/and all other
balances based on historical collection experi@mcean economic risk assessment. If the Compamyrdetes that a specific
customer is unable to meet its financial obligagitmthe Company, the Company provides an allowéorceredit losses to
reduce the receivable to the amount managemertnahly believes will be collected. To mitigate Eskhe Company
deposits cash and cash equivalents with high cgedility financial institutions.

Provisions for doubtful accounts receivable ar¢éegengainst “Accounts receivable-Trade.”
Inventory

Inventories include finished goods, work in procasd raw materials. Inventories are stated alotlver of cost (cost is
determined on a “first-in, first-out” basis) or rkat value. The Company'’s inventories generally halienited shelf life and
are subject to impairment as they approach thgiraton dates. The Company regularly evaluates#ngying value of the
Company’s inventories and when, in the Companyisiop, factors indicate that impairment has ocadirtbe Company
establishes a reserve against the inventoriesyicgrvalue. The Company’s determination that a &atin reserve might be
required and the quantification of such reserveiregmanagement to utilize significant judgmenttiWespect to inventory
on consignment, see Note 2k.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at ceshfraccumulated depreciation and amortizatiomprBaation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimataful lives of the related assets: over three yasrsomputers and other
electronic equipment, five years for vehicles aawkes to fifteen years for office furniture and gamuent and machinery and
equipment (mainly seven years). Leasehold improvésnare amortized on a straight-line basis ovetdha of the lease,
which is shorter than the estimated life of the iayements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews its property, plant and equipnfa impairment whenever events or changes icuaistances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may notbeverable. If the sum of the expected future dasts (undiscounted and

without interest charges) of the property, plard aguipment is less than the carrying amount ofl sissets, an impairment
loss would be recognized, and the assets wouldritiemdown to their estimated fair values.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To date, the Company has not recorded any impairotearges relating to its property, plant and eopgpt.

Revenue recognitior

Revenue is recognized when delivery has occurreiderce of an arrangement exists, title and rishd @ewards for tt
products are transferred to the customer, colledsaeasonably assured and product returns caaliably estimated. Whe
product returns can be reliably estimated a prowiss recorded, based on historical experience daddicted from revenu
The provision for product returns and related casts included in “Accounts payable and accruale@thuinder ‘Curren

liabilities” and “Inventory-On consignment,” respisely.

When returns cannot be reliably estimated, botted|revenues and costs are deferred, and preserded“Deferred
revenues” and “Inventory-On consignment,” respexdyiv

As of June 30, 2012, there are no deferred reveralat®d to sales for which the rate of return cafe reliably estimated.
The Company’s revenue arrangements may contaivedlof free products upon the achievement of dalegts. Each
period, the Company estimates the amount of fredymts to which these distributors will be entitleased upon the expected
achievement of sales targets and defers a porfiewvenues accordingly.

The Company recognizes revenue net of value adoe@/AT).

Research and development cos

Research and development costs are charged ttateengnt of operations as incurred.

Share-based compensatiol

Employee option awards are classified as equity@svand accounted for using the grant-date fairevatethod. The fair
value of share-based awards is estimated usingl#tu-Scholes valuation model and expensed overethygisite service
period, net of estimated forfeitures. The Compastineates forfeitures based on historical experiemztanticipated future
conditions.

The Company elected to recognize compensation ergefor awards with only service conditions thatehgraded vestir

schedules using the accelerated multiple optiomcamh.
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

The Company accounts for equity instruments isgoetthird party service providers (n@mployees), by recording the 1
value of the options granted using an option pgamnodel, at each reporting period, until awards asted in full. Th
expense is recognized over the vesting period ubm@ccelerated multiple option approach.

However, when the grant relates to options grataetiird parties as consideration for introducingestors to the Compal
the costs are recorded as issuance costs, of tlreigdinancial instruments issued.

In addition, certain share-based awards of the Gmypare performance based and dependent upon exthe®rtain goals.
With respect to these awards, the company estintia¢esxpected pre-vesting award probability thatglrformance
conditions will be achieved. The Company only retings expense for the shares that are expectezkto v

Uncertain tax positions

The Company follows a two-step approach to recaggiand measuring uncertain tax positions. The $itep is to evaluate
the tax position for recognition by determiningh& weight of available evidence indicates thét ihore likely than not that
the position will be sustained on audit. If undee first step a tax provision is assessed to be fiilaly than not of being
sustained on audit, the second step is performmateruvhich the tax benefit is measured as the sa@mount that is more
than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate set#at. Such liabilities are classified as long-teamigss the liability is
expected to be resolved within twelve months fromltalance sheet date. The Company’s policy isdade interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitsimithinancial expenses (income)-net”.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred taxes are determined utilizing the “aaset liability” method based on the estimated futaseeffects of differences
between the financial accounting and tax basess#ta and liabilities under the applicable tax |samsl on tax rates
anticipated to be in effect when the deferred taxesexpected to be paid or realized. The Compasgsaes realization of
deferred income tax assets and, based on all biegaidence, concludes whether it is more likbnt not that the net
deferred income tax assets will be realized. A a@tn allowance is provided for the amount of defdrincome tax assets not
considered to be realizable.

The Company may incur additional tax liability letevent of intercompany dividend distributionsitsysubsidiary. Such
additional tax liability in respect of these foreigubsidiaries has not been provided for in thesm€ial statements as it is the
Company’s policy to permanently reinvest the subsigs’ earnings and to consider distributing dérids only when this can
be facilitated in connection with a specific taypoptunity that may arise.

Taxes that would apply in the event of disposaheéstments in the foreign subsidiary have not liakan into account in
computing the deferred taxes, as it is the Commmaimgention to hold, and not to realize, this irtweant.

Advertising
Costs related to advertising and promotion of potslare charged to sales and marketing expensewasead. Advertising

expenses were $361 thousand for the six monthgerided June 30, 2012, and $400 thousand, $463ahdwand $275
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2010, &84 2009, respectively.
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Net loss per share

Basic and diluted net loss per share is computediigling the net loss for the year by the weighawdrage number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Thautzaion of diluted net loss per share excludeepital ordinary shares as
the effect is anti-dilutive. Potential ordinary sbsare comprised of incremental ordinary shamsisle upon the exercise of
share options, warrants and convertible loans.

For the six month period ended June 30, 2012, #saw¢he years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 @@}, 211 ordinary
shares underlying outstanding options, warrantscangertible loans have been excluded from theutaion of the diluted
loss per share since their effect was anti-dilutivee total number of ordinary shares related tstanding options, warrants
and convertible loans excluded from the calculaiohdiluted loss per share were 8,117,577 fosstkenonth period ended
June 30, 2012, and 5,406,613, 2,375,528 and 14698 the years ended December 31, 2011, 201604, respectively.

Segment reporting
The Company has one operating and reportable seagmen
Factoring of receivables

The Company entered into factoring agreements atimguto $1,200 thousand and $942 thousand duriegy¢ars ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, witragelianking institutions on a non-recourse badi® factoring of trade
receivables under these agreements were accountad $ales. Under the terms of these factoringeagents, the Company
transferred ownership of eligible trade receivalléhout recourse to the respective banking instits in exchange for cash.
Proceeds on the transfers reflect the face valtieeodccount less a discount. The discounts, lizstnd and $37 thousand
during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 284fectively, were recorded to “Financial experfseopme)-net” within
the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The receivables sold pursuant to these factoringesgents are excluded from 'Accounts receivable&tan the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and are reflectedsaspeavided by operating activities on the Consdtd Statements of Cash
Flows. The banking institution had no recoursehto@€ompany’s assets for failure of debtors to pagmdue.

The related commissions on the sales of tradevalskes sold under these factoring agreements ammguat $23 thousand
and $4 thousand during the years ended Decemb@031,and 2010, respectively, were recorded todifdral expenses
(income)-net” within the Consolidated Statement®pérations.

Fair value measurement:

The Company measures fair value and disclosesdhie measurements for financial assets and liedsiliFair value is based
on the price that would be received to sell antamspaid to transfer a liability in an orderly misaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The accounting standard establishes a fair vakifdhy that prioritizes observable and unobseevatguts used to measure
fair value into three broad levels, which are dibgsct below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mearkieat are accessible at the measurement datsdets or liabilities. The
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priorityLivel 1 inputs.
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Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inpttguoted on active markets, but corroboratethbyket data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when littta@market data is available. The fair value higrg gives the lowest
priority to Level 3 inputs.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizesuatlon techniques that maximize the use of obségviaputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent plesaitdd considers counterparty credit risk in issegsment of fair value.

Put warrants

Put warrants that embody an obligation to repurelths Company’s equity shares, or are indexeddb an obligation, and
that require or may require the Company to sdtteabligation by transferring assets are withingbepe of Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC") 480-10-25-8, and ereognized as a liability and measured at faineat each reporting
date, with changes in fair value recorded in egisee Note 6a(4)(A

Beneficial conversion feature (“BCF”")

When the Company issues convertible debt, if theksprice is greater than the effective convergidoe (after allocation of
the total proceeds) on the measurement date, theecsion feature is considered "beneficial”" tohbéder. If there is no
contingency, this difference is treated as issugdty and reduces the carrying value of the hobt;dbe discount is accreted
as deemed interest on the debt. See Note 6a(4)(B).

Embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives in debt contracts that areleatly and closely related to the host debt #tedated and accounted for
separately. Those embedded derivatives are meaaufaid value each reporting date, with changdgaiinvalue recorded in
earnings. See Note 6a(4)(B).

Allocation of issuance proceed

The Company allocated proceeds from its issuancelatf that was sold with detachable warrants ttetkssified as liabilit
as follows: first to the warrants based on thdlirfair value; then to any embedded derivativethie debt that require
bifurcation at their fair values; then the residaidount of the proceeds to the debt. See Note (&@)(4)

Newly adopted accounting guidanci
Fair value measurement

In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standargddtie No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topi®):82
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasurerardtDisclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFR&SU
2011-04"). ASU 2011-04 changes certain fair vallemasurement principles and clarifies the applicabbexisting fair value
measurement guidance. These amendments includegaotirers, (1) the application of the highest a@st nse and valuation
premise concepts, (2) measuring the fair valuenahatrument classified in a reporting entity’s iglders’ equity and (3)
disclosing quantitative information about the urefable inputs used within the Level 3 hierarchy.

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted 2811L-04. The adoption of this accounting standapdiate did not have
a material impact on the Company’s consolidatearfaial statements.
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NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASURMENT
Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

a. The following table summarizes the balances fos¢hiinancial liabilities where fair value measuremseare estimated
utilizing Level 2 and Level 3 input

June 30 December 31
Level 2012 2011 2010
(% in thousands)
2010 Convertible Debentur: 3 $ - $ - $ 1,04«
2012 Warrants at fair valu 2 1,70¢
Embedded derivative 3 49
$ 1,758 $ - $ 1,04

b. The following tables summarize the activity for sledinancial liabilities where fair value measuratseare estimated utilizir
Level 3 inputs

Embedded Derivative Convertible Loan
($in thousands) (% in thousands)

Balance as of January 1, 201 $ -$ S
Issuance: 1,13
Total losses (gains) (realized and unrealizedluited in earningsFinancia

expenses (income), n (89)
Balance as of December 31, 20: - 1,04«
Total losses (gains) (realized and unrealizedluited in earningsFinancia

expenses (income), n 624
Convertion to Compar's shares of common sto (66¢)
Redemptior (1,000
Balance as of December 31, 20: - -
Issuance: 8
Total losses (gains) (realized and unrealizedluited in earningsFinancia

expenses (income), net 41
Balance as of June 30, 201 $ 48 $ =

Level 3 liabilities include an embedded derivatigtated to the Company’s senior secured convertiblenture due April 5,
2014, as described in Note 6a. The Company vaheekdvel 3 embedded derivative using an interrddlyeloped valuation
model, whose inputs include recovery rates, cigaiéads, stock prices, and volatilities, as desdritelow.
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In calculating the fair value of embedded derivaatithe Company used the following assumptions: Gomp credit spread ¢
23.1% and 26.5% for the transaction date and foe B0, 2012, respectively, Company’s recovery 0&#9.8% and 49.8%
for the transaction date and for June 30, 201peacs/ely, probability of non-financial event offdalt 5% and 5% for the
transaction date and for June 30, 2012, respegtivel

The credit spread is the yield to maturity of riddgnds over risk free bonds and was based on aagvef sample
comparable companies.

The recovery rate is the estimated amount to bevered through bankruptcy procedures in eventdsfault , expressed as a
percentage of face value .

A non{inancial event of default is a contractual eveidefault which does not result from a declininggiincial standing of tt
Company.

The fair value of the warrants included in Levé$ 2stimated using the Black & Scholes model.

In calculating the fair value of warrants, the Camy used the following assumptions: expected tdrfhamd 4.76 years for
the transaction date and for June 30, 2012, reispctexpected volatility of 66.1% and 69.6% foettransaction date and
June 30, 2012, respectively; risk-free interest oit1.01% and 0.72% for the transaction date andune 30, 2012,
respectively; and dividend yield of 0%.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments ideld in working capital approximate their fair vakither because these
amounts are presented at fair value or due todllagively short-term maturities of such instrumeifise carrying amount of
the Company’s other financial long-term assetsahdr financial longerm liabilities (other than the debentures) appmane
their fair value. The fair value of the Companyeh®r secured convertible debenture due April 3428pproximates the
carrying amount (after considering the BCF, as dlesd in Note 6a).

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a. Composition of assets, grouped by major classiticat is as follows

June 30 December 31
2012 2011 2010
($ in thousands)

Cost:
Vehicles $ - $ - 3 44
Computer equipmet 142 12¢ 75
Office furniture and equipmel 83 56 54
Machinery and equipme 59¢ 597 41€
Leasehold improvements 111 47 47
934 82: 63¢€
Less - accumulated depreciation and amortization (472) (403) (359)
Net carrying amour $ 462 $ 42C $ 282

b. Depreciation and amortization expenses totaledoapately $69 thousand for the six month periodezhdune 30, 2012, a
$89 thousand, $91 thousand and $89 thousand fgetirs ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200®atbsgly.

F- 16




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 5 - LIABILITY FOR EMPLOYEES RIGHT UPON RETIREM ENT

Israeli labor law generally requires payment ofesamce pay upon dismissal of an employee or ugaririation of employment in
certain other circumstances.

Pursuant to section 14 of the Israeli Severancepgeasation Act, 1963, some of the Company’s empkgee entitled to have
monthly deposits, at a rate of 8.33% of their mgn#lalary, made in their name with insurance cormgmrPayments in accordance
with section 14 relieve the Company from any futsegerance payments to these employees.

The severance pay liability of the Company for gt of its employees, which reflects the undistedimmount of the liability, is
based upon the number of years of service andatestimonthly salary. The severance pay liabiitgartly covered by insurance
policies and by regular deposits with recognizegsznce payment funds. The Company may only makelvewals from the
amounts funded for the purpose of paying severpageThe severance pay expenses were approxin$tél/thousand in the six
month period ended June 30, 2012, and $155 thoysktit¥ thousand and $78 thousand in the yearsidbeeember 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

Defined contribution plan expenses were $96 instkenonth period ended June 30 2012, and $197a88®82 in the years end
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelyn (d@gs) on amounts funded with respect to emploiges upon retirement
totaled to approximately $6 thousand for the sinthgeriod ended June 30 2012, and $(8) thous&hdl thousand and $10
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2010, &84 2009, respectively.

The Company expects contribution plan expenseisdalfyear 2013 to be approximately $198 thousand.
NOTE 6 - CONVERTIBLE LOANS

a. On April 5, 2012, the Company issued senior secaosertible debentures (the “2012 Convertible Deies”)due April 5,
2014 in the original aggregate principal amour$bf, 702,128 and five-year warrants (the “2012 Was3 to purchase an
aggregate of 835,866 shares of its common stoak akercise price of $7.20 per share in a priviaegment transaction in
exchange for aggregate gross proceeds of $11,008ahd. The 2012 Convertible Debentures bear sitatean annual rate
of 8% (payable quarterly beginning on July 1, 20412 are convertible at any time into shares ofrnomstock at an initial
conversion price of $7.00 per she

The relevant features of the 2012 Convertible Dalres and 2012 Warrants are summarized below:

1) 2012 Convertible Debenture:

A. Conversion and contingent convers

The 2012 Convertible Debentures, including acciingstest on such 2012 Convertible Debentures, angartible at any
time, in whole or part, at the option of the hokleto shares of common stock at an initial coneergrice of $7.00 per
share, subject to adjustment for stock splits, &mental transactions or similar events and an iadditconversion
adjustment described below.

The number of conversion shares issuable upon\gecsinn shall be determined by the quotient obthimedividing (x) the

sum of (a) the outstanding principal amount to &rverted, (b) at the option of the holder, a portio all of any accrued and
unpaid interest to be converted and (c) the comwedjustment amount by (y) the conversion price.
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The “conversion adjustment amount” is calculatedriutiplying the principal amount being convertedafraction, the
numerator of which is (a) the number of days eldgsam the original issue date multiplied by (b21@17808; and the
denominator of which is 100. The maximum numbedayfs elapsed to be used in calculating the cororeesijustment
amount will not be greater than 548 days regardiéfise actual number of days elapsed from thdmalgssue date.

The Company may force conversion of the 2012 CadiblerDebentures if the closing bid price of then@many’s common
stock equals or exceeds 165% of the conversioe [fwictwenty consecutive trading days, the minindaily trading volume
for such period is $1,100 thousand, all of the ulydteg shares during such period are either reggstéor resale with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or eligibledsale pursuant to Rule 144 and there is no egistient of default or
existing event which, with the passage of timehergiving of notice, would constitute an event efadilt during such period.

The 2012 Convertible Debentures contain certaiitditions on conversion. No conversion may be madster giving effect
to the conversion, any holder would beneifially owrexcess of 4.99% of the Company'’s outstandirageshof common
stock. This percentage may be increased to a pagenot to exceed 9.99%, at the option of suctidnpkbxcept any increase
will not be effective until the holder has given @dys’ prior notice to the Company.

The 2012 Convertible Debentures impose penaltigh@@Company for any failure to timely deliver ahares of its common
stock issuable upon conversion.

B. Events of default and holc' s contingent redemption optis

If there is an event of default as stipulated m dgreement, then by election of the holders hgldiieast 60% of the 2012
Convertible Debentures, the Company must redeeof tile 2012 Convertible Debentures in cash foRa 1 the
outstanding principal, together with all unpaid a@edrued interest, all interest that would havenlsyable through the
maturity date and any other amounts due under@h@ Zonvertible Debentures (such amount, the “Mamgdefault
Amount”). The Mandatory Default Amount will accrugerest at a rate of 24% per annum commencindefifth calendar
date following the relevant event of default.

C. Holder's noncontingent redemption opti

Commencing 18 months following the original issuadate of the 2012 Convertible Debentures, thednsithay require the
Company to redeem all or a portion of the 2012 @otite Debentures, for a price equal to 112% efdmount of principal

to be redeemed plus all accrued but unpaid intarebbther amounts due under the 2012 ConvertibebBtures.

D. Compan’s noncontingent redemption opti

Commencing 6 months following the original issuadage of the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the Compzay redeem all
or a portion of the 2012 Convertible Debenturesafprice equal to 112% of the amount of principabé¢ redeemed plus all

accrued but unpaid interest and other amounts dderuhe 2012 Convertible Debentures.

E. Covenant:

The 2012 Convertible Debentures contain certaireramats which prohibit or limit the Company’s arglsubsidiaries ability

to, among other things:
1. pay cash dividends to stockholde
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2. redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire morealie minimis number of shares of its common stwck
common stock equivalent

3. incur additional indebtednes

4. permit liens on assets or conduct sales of as

5. effectuate stock splits until April 5, 2013, eptin connection with an initial listing on a raatal securities
exchange or to meet the continued listing requirgmef such exchang

6. cease making public filings under the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amend

7. engage in transactions with affiliates; ¢

8. amend its charter documents in a way that wmatkrially and adversely affect any holder of t6&2
Convertible Debenture

F. Pro rata distributions

If the Company, at any time while the 2012 ConWetDebentures are outstanding, distributes tbhaters of common sto
evidences of its indebtedness or assets (incluthsf and cash dividends) or rights or warrantsibsaibe for or purchase
any security other than the common stock, thenngmy conversion of the 2012 Convertible Debentutesholder shall be
entitled to receive such distribution to the saxtert that the holder would have if the holder hattl the number of
conversion shares issued upon such conversioredf@h2 Convertible Debentures immediately befoeedidite on which a
record was taken for such distribution, or, if mels record was taken, the date as of which thedeeolders of shares of
common stock were determined for the participaitosuch distribution.

2) 2012 Warrants

A. Exercisability

The 2012 Warrants are immediately exercisable iarthe aggregate, entitle the holders to purchase 835,866 shares of
common stock. The 2012 Warrants have an initiat@se price of $7.20 per share payable in casthe 27012 Warrants

expire on April 5, 2017.

Similar to the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the22@farrants also contain limitations on exercisé Wauld cause the holc
to beneficially own in excess of 4.99% or 9.99%haf Company’s outstanding common stock.

B. Anti-dilution protection

The exercise price of the 2012 Warrants and thebeurof shares issuable upon exercise of the 2012aMa are subject
to adjustments for stock splits, combinations onilsir events.

C. “Most favored natic”
The 2012 Warrants are also subject to an adjustmestiant to which, in the event that the Companyés or is deem:

to have issued certain securities with terms thesaperior to those of the 2012 Warrants, excéptmgspect to exercise
price and warrant coverage, the superior termsautibmatically be incorporated into the 2012 Waan
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Contingent holder redemption opti

Upon the occurrence of a transaction involving angfe of control that is (i) an all cash transact{dpa “Rule 13e-3
transaction” as defined in Rule 13e-3 under thauBiges Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, orifiiiplving a person
or entity not traded on a national securities ergeathe holders of the 2012 Warrants will haveritjlet, among others,
to have the 2012 Warrants repurchased for a pueghrdse in cash equal to the Black-Scholes valub@then
unexercised portion of the 2012 Warrants.

Pro rata distributions

Similar to the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the22@farrants allow exercising holders to particigatpro rata
distributions.

Public information failure

If the Company fails for any reason to satisfy ¢herent public information requirement under Rud(t) then, in
addition to any other remedies available to theléid, the Company must pay to the holders, in qastial liquidated
damages as set forth in the agreement.

Transaction costs

In connection with the Transaction, the Company ji8uance costs, including placement agent arad fegs, of
approximately $1,200 thousand, and issued five-wearrants (2012 Placement Agents Warrants”) tapase 78,078
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exepcise of $7.20 per share to the placement agent.

Accounting treatment
2012 Warrants

The Company determined, based on the provisio#s@af 480-10-25-8, that equity classification is pueled because of
the redeemable option of the holders in the eveatalange in control (in certain conditions), whis an event that is
not within the Companyg’ control. Accordingly, the 2012 Warrants are éfaesbas a liability in the Consolidated Balar
Sheets and measured at fair value at each repgeingd. The fair value of the 2012 Warrants isnested using the
Black-Scholes valuation model. See Note 2u.

In calculating the fair value of the 2012 Warrafiteluding the 2012 Placement Agents Warrants) Gbmpany used tr
following assumptions: expected term of 5 and 4&&rs for the transaction date and for June 32 2@kpectively;
expected volatility of 66.1% and 69.6% for the saction date and for June 30, 2012, respectivislsfree interest rate
of 1.01% and 0.72% for the transaction date anddoe 30, 2012, respectively; and dividend yiel@%

2012 Convertible Debentur:

In accordance with ASC 470-20, “Debt with Convensamd Other Optionsthe Company determined that a BCF exi:
at the issuance date of the 2012 Convertible Debesit The BCF amounting to $3,790 thousand wasdeddn equity.

In addition, the Company analyzed the holders’ iog@nt redemption option based on the guidancelatipd in Topic
815, and concluded that the holders’ contingenémgation option is not clearly and closely relatedhte debt host
contract. Thus, the Company bifurcated and accduiateit separately as an embedded derivative &ausbified it,
together with the 2012 Convertible Debenturestdrsiatement of financial position. This embeddedvative will be
measured at fair value at each reporting perioé.fah value of the embedded derivative is estichatging the
binominal valuation model.
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In addition, the Company analyzed the holders’ matingent redemption option and determined thaptiepayment
options are clearly and closely related to the telst contract and should not be bifurcated froen2012 Convertible
Debentures.

The gross proceeds amounting to $11,000 thousandtire 2012 Convertible Debentures transaction aloeated as
follows:

« 2012 Warrants at fair value - $2,807 thousand basdtieir fair value;

« embedded derivative - $8 thousand based on itsdhie; and

« 2012 Convertible Debentures 8,385 thousand based on the residual amount h#eallocation of other compone
as described above. In addition, an amount of $Btfi@usand was recognized as a BCF against theQ6aertible
Debentures

The 2012 Convertible Debentures are subsequenthguned at amortized cost on the basis of the aféeitterest
method over the loan period until the maturity date

C. Transaction cost

Direct transaction costs of $1,394 thousand, whicluded the placement agents fees and the 20t2mknt Agents
Warrants valued at $262 thousand as of the trapsatate , as well as other issuance costs, whkreasd to the various
instruments associated with the 2012 ConvertibledDé&ures pro-rata to the amount such instruments veeorded as of
the transaction date. The amounts that were aéddatthe 2012 Warrants at fair value and embeddedative were
recorded in “Financial expenses” and the remaiadesunting to $1,037 thousand was recorded as “Befatebt
issuance costs” in the Consolidated Balance Slaeeksvill be amortized over the loan period usirgefffective interest
method until the maturity date.

In July 2010, InspireMD Ltd. entered into a secdesifpurchase agreement, pursuant to which InspirékMDissued (i) 8%
senior convertible debentures in the principal amad $1.58 million (the “2010 Convertible Debergst) and (ii) three year
warrants (the “2010 Warrants”) to purchase up t8,@88 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$d.82 per share (as
adjusted for the Share Exchange) in exchange fyneggte gross proceeds of $1.58 million. The 20a0v€Ertible Debenture
accrued interest at the annual rate of 8% and payable on the later of (i) two months followingegt by InspireMD Ltd.
of a tax ruling from the Israeli Tax Authority thifite issuance of shares of a U.S. “shell compamgxchange for securities
held by shareholders and option holders of InspDeld. would constitute a deferred tax event f@dimeMD Ltd. and/or its
security holders or (ii) the six month anniversafyhe issuance of the 2010 Convertible Debent(ites“Original Maturity
Date); provided however, that so long as the Compaas not in default under the 2010 Convertible &gbres, InspireMD
Ltd. had the right to extend the maturity datehaf 2010 Convertible Debentures to nine monthswiaiig the Original
Maturity Date (the* Second Maturity Da”).

If InspireMD Ltd. completed a qualified financing connection with a reverse merger prior to thegi@al Maturity Date, ¢

the Second Maturity Date, if applicable, the hoddef the 2010 Convertible Debentures had the optioconvert the 201
Convertible Debentures into shares of common std¢ke surviving corporation at $6.00 per sharberepaid in cash.
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In addition, provided that there was not an evémtedault, if InspireMD Ltd. completed a financifigr at least $3 million
prior to the Second Maturity Date, the 2010 CorikkrtDebentures would automatically convert intdioary shares of
InspireMD Ltd. at a 15% discount to the pricingtloé new financing.

Finally, if an event of default had not occurreddany 2010 Convertible Debentures were still amiging, following the
Second Maturity Date, such 2010 Convertible Delrestwould automatically convert into ordinary slsawé InspireMD Ltd.
(i) if InspireMD Ltd. completed a financing for kgast $3 million prior to the one year anniversaiiyhe Second Maturity
Date, at a 15% discount to the pricing of the nimarfcing, or (ii) or if InspireMD Ltd. did not cortgde a financing for at
least $3 million prior to the one year anniversairthe Second Maturity Date, at $10 per ordinagrsh

Upon an event of default under the 2010 Converfil#bentures, the holders had the right to demagheat of all then
unpaid principal and accrued but unpaid interedieuthe 2010 Convertible Debentures.

The Company elected to apply the fair value optegarding the 2010 Convertible Debentures in a@wd with ASC 825
(i.e. the 2010 Convertible Debentures were measatredch balance sheet date at fair value anchtmges in their fair value
were recorded in profit and loss). See Note 3.

The proceeds from the 2010 Convertible Debentuam3Jaction were allocated to the 2010 Convertibleebe&ures at their fe
value with the residual proceeds ascribed to tH®2Warrants as follows:

o 2010 Debenture at fair value - $1,133 thousand; and
o 2010 Warrants - $447 thousand, net of $23 thoudaedt transaction costs.

The issuance of the 2010 Warrants was recorddtkifdditional paid-in capital”, net of $23 thoushdirect transaction
costs allocated to the 2010 Warrants.

On March 31, 2011, holders of the 2010 Convertiédentures surrendered $667,596 of outstandingipahand interest
due under such debentures in exchange for shassswhon stock and warrants as part of the Compamipate placement
on such date (the “Debt Conversions”) as describ@tbte 10b.

As a result of the Debt Conversions, there was Biomof unpaid principal outstanding remainingdan the 2010
Convertible Debentures on March 31, 2011, which reaaid by the Company in May 2011, plus all acdrumerest thereon.

On January 4, 2011, InspireMD Ltd. entered intmavertible loan agreement with its distributor gndel (the “Lender”)in
the amount of $100 thousand subject to the follgwaanditions:

« the convertible loan did not bear annual interest;

« inthe event of a share exchange or similar traisaahe Lender would have, at its sole discrettbe option to
convert the loan into either (i) shares of the Canyps common stock at a price of $4.92 per shat®é (Sior to the
Share Exchange), or (ii) the Company’s product@ti@e of 400 euro per unit (which representedntiagket price
for the Lender)

« inthe event that the Company did not close a skerhange or similar transaction by June 1, 20iel| ender had
the right to extend the loan and its terms forapr additional 6 months (as noted in Note 1, thehBnge
Agreement was closed on March 31, 2011);

F- 22




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
« in no event was cash required to be repaid by thmagainy.

On June 1, 2011 the Lender surrendered the $1@@&nd convertible loan in exchange for 20,290 shafeommon stock
the Company.

In April 2008 InspireMD Ltd. entered into a conuble loan agreement with certain lenders. Undes #igreement, the lend
were issued convertible notes in the aggregateipahamount of $720 thousand, bearing annualéstesf 10%, in exchan
for $720 thousand. While the notes did not haveaturity date, they were repayable on demand upavant of default. Tt
notes were convertible, at any time, into ordinstigres of InspireMD Ltd. at the option of the hodd

The notes were automatically convertible into cadyinshares of InspireMD Ltd. if InspireMD Ltd. cotafed a financing that
resulted in at least $1 million (“qualified finang”), at the lower conversion price of: (i) $5.92;(ii) a discount of 30% on
the price per share in such qualified financing.

The notes were also automatically convertible ardinary shares of InspireMD Ltd. upon an initiabtic offering (“IPO”) or
upon a consolidation, merger or sale of all asseshares of InspireMD Ltd. (“exit transactiond},the lower conversion pri
of: (i) $5.92; or (ii) a discount of 20% on theg®iper share in such exit transaction.

In accordance with ASC 4720, "Debt with Conversion and Other Options", tr@r@any determined that a BCF existe
the issuance date of these notes, totaling $308stml. Because these notes did not have a stalehpéon date (except
an event of default), and could be converted byhthlider at any time, the BCF was recognized imnieljiaon the issuan
date under “Financial expenses (income)-net” inGbasolidated Statements of Operations.

In March 2009 these convertible notes were fullyaid (principal and accrued interest) due to adirex the covenants
InspireMD Ltd. InspireMD Ltd. allocated the proceepaid between the portion related to the redempafothe benefici:
conversion feature and that related to the corblertoan, based on the guidance in ASC 200The Company measured
portion allocated to the beneficial conversion deat based on the intrinsic value of the conversieature at th
extinguishment date, which amounted to $308 thadigeuich equals the original BCF since the pricdrspireMD Ltd.’s
shares on the issuance date and the redemptionveatthe same). Accordingly, the difference betwibenamount allocat
to the BCF plus the loas'carrying amount, and the cash paid, was recograsefinancial income in the Consolide
Statements of Operations.

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LOAN

In January 2009, InspireMD Ltd. signed a loan agweat with Mizrahi Tefahot Bank. According to theegment, InspireMD Ltd.
was entitled to receive the following:

1.

A loan (the “First Loan”) amounting to $750 tilsand, bearing annual interest (paid quarterly) etguidte London Interbank
Offer Rate plus 4%. The loan was payable in eiglatrgrly installments beginning in April 201

An additional loan (the “Second Loardinounting to $750 thousand, to be received no tater August 3, 2009, subject
certain terms. InspireMD Ltd. did not meet the $ji@terms and therefore was not able to receieeSkcond Loar

A credit line amounting to $500 thousand for thepmse of financing export shipments. The credi livas not utilized by ti
Company.
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In addition, InspireMD Ltd. was required to payadditional $250 thousand in the following events:
1. Aliquidity event of at least $100 million (as silpted in the agreement);
2. AnIPO in which the Compar's valuation was at least $100 millic
InspireMD Ltd. granted to the bank a floating l@mall of its assets, as well as a fixed lien droits intellectual property and
rights of future payments from the Compamglients. InspireMD Ltd. also committed to maintai its bank account a minimum
$250 thousand in order to support an estimated lwashrate of three months of activity based orrage monthly cash flow in the
preceding three months. This amount was recordéteilConsolidated Balance Sheets under “Restraast.”
On February 2009 InspireMD Ltd. received the Hiusan and in accordance with the loan agreemenige@58,704 ordinary shai
to the bank. Subsequently, InspireMD Ltd. estimadkexdfair value of the First Loan, the Second Ldha,credit line and the 58,7
ordinary shares issued to the bank using the fatigwassumptions:
1. Discount rate of 25.13% per year calculated byaqgitmar-Z score mode
2. Probability of realizing the Second Lo- 40%
3. Probability of realizing the credit lir- 80%
The relative fair value of each component basethervaluation report was as follows:
1. The First Loar- $540 thousan
2.  The Second Loan optic- $20 thousant
3. The credit line- $59 thousan
4. The 58,704 ordinary shares issued to the |- $290 thousani

The First Loan was subsequently measured at aradrtiast on the basis of the effective interest otetiver the loan period.

The Second Loan option and the credit line have beeorded in the Consolidated Financial StatemiaritSinancial expenses”
during 2009.

The 58,704 ordinary shares were recorded as egoityrding to their fair market value at the time.

Direct transaction costs of $41 thousand were ommbas deferred debt issuance costs in the CoasadidBalance Sheet and were
amortized over the First Loan period.

In November 2010, InspireMD Ltd. was asked by Mizreefahot Bank to grant it a fixed lien in the aimo of $300 thousand that
would replace the $250 thousand of restricted saste the actual cash burn rate was higher thaoca$ie amount maintained in 1
Company’s bank account. The transaction was effgetlin January 2011.

On July 20, 2011, Mizrahi Tefahot Bank approvedriease of a fixed lien in the amount of $300 #and. Following the
approval, $300 thousand of restricted cash wasiéiled to cash and cash equivalents.

In March 2012, following the complete repaymenttef loan, Mizrahi Tefahot Bank approved the relexdgbe floating lien.
NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
a. InJanuary 2009, InspireMD Ltd. signed a sub-leageement with a company controlled by the Compmasigareholders, for
a period of 12.5 months, for a monthly rent payn@#rgl thousand. In 2010, the rent period was eadrfor an additional

year, and the rent payments increased by 10%.1t,28e rent period was extended for an additigaat, through Februa
2012. The su-lease agreement was not renev
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On May 6, 2008, InspireMD Ltd. entered into a cdtawcy agreement (the “2008 Consultancy Agreemdnt’jnarketing
services with a member of the immediate familyhaf CEO. Pursuant to the 2008 Consultancy AgreenresgireMD Ltd.
paid a fixed hourly fee of $45 (154 NIS) in Israeld a fixed daily fee of $400 when traveling abreétth respect to the
consulting services. On September 1, 2011, effecjpril 1, 2011, the 2008 Consultancy Agreement teasinated and
InspireMD Ltd. entered into a new consultancy agreset (the “2011 Consultancy Agreement”) pursuamnttiach the
consultant was retained to serve as the Compaigespresident of sales. Pursuant to the agreersieatywas paid a monthly
consultancy fee of $12,500 from April 1, 2011 tigbuwune 30, 2011 and a monthly consultancy fed 5f300 thereafter. On
July 2, 2012, effective August 1, 2012, the 201 h€kdtancy Agreement was termainated and InspireMD éntered into a
new consultancy agreement (the “2012 Consultanagément”) pursuant to which the consultant wouldeiained for sale
services. Pursuant to the agreement, she wouldtiiked to a fixed fee of $625 (2,500 NIS) for edah working day and a
bonus fee up to $10,000 (40,000 NIS) upon 100%=aeient of set objectives. The 2012 Consultanceégent has a
termination date of September 30, 2012, but catetminated without cause by InspireMD Ltd. uporay4l notice, and may
be terminated with cause by InspireMD Ltd. immeeligtupon the occurrence of certain events, suéhkasach of fiduciary
duties owed to the Compar

During 2007, InspireMD Ltd received a loan of $#i0dsand from its controlling shareholders. Halthef loan was paid
during 2009, and the second half was paid duriridlz

On April 1, 2005, InspireMD Ltd. entered into emypieent agreements with the Company’s president sa€Cbmpany’s
CEO (both are directors and shareholders). Suctoyment agreements were subsequently amended ab@ct, 2008 (in
the case of the Company’s CEO) and March 28, 2ithé case of both the president and the CEOxURunt to these
employment agreements, as amended on March 28, 28dh officer was entitled to a monthly grossryatd $15,367. Each
officer was also entitled to certain social andde benefits as set forth in the employment agraegsmehich totaled 25% of
their gross salary, as well as a company car. Bffefer was also entitled to a minimum bonus eqlérato three monthly
gross salary payments based on achievement oftoigie@nd board of directors’ approval. If suchiadf’'s employment was
terminated with or without cause, he was entittedttleast six months’ prior notice, and would hbeen paid his salary and
all social and fringe benefits in full during sucttice period

On April 1, 2011, the employment agreements with@ompany’s president and CEO were terminated lmm€ompany
entered into consulting agreements with the Comgagmmgsident and CEO for a monthly consultancyde$21,563 each.

At the request of the compensation committee, th@@ny’s CEO and president agreed, effective &eotmber 1, 2011, to
be treated as employees for purposes of payingshkiry and benefits, rather than as consultardsrtheir consulting
agreements. In addition, the Company’s CEO andgeesagreed to formally terminate their consultigyeement upon the
execution of an employment agreement with the Compa substantially the same terms as their coascyt agreements. A
new employment agreement, however, was never ee@avith either party.

On June 1, 2012, the president of the Companymrredign connection with his resignation, effectivme 1, 2012, he remains
on the Company’s board of directors. In connectidth the resignation, the Company and the presidatdred into a
consulting agreement, pursuant to which, amongrdktiegs, the president agreed to provide the Campath consulting
services for a period of six months, terminating\mvember 30, 2012, in exchange for payments byCthmpany of $20
thousand per month.
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e. During the second half of 2008, InspireMD Ltd. dsxsed the salaries for most of its employees dtleeteconomic
slowdown. InspireMD Ltd. also decreased the sadasfehe former president and the CEO. Their sedaniere decreased
25%, and an additional 25% was accrued and recaond&tcounts payable-trade.” The accrued amourdgsaviully paid as
of December 31, 201
In September 2009, the 25% decrease in salariesiloed above was cancelled.

f.  InspireMD Ltd. entered into a license agreemenisi® a unique stent design developed by an Amecicanpany owned by a
former director of InspireMD Ltd.“MGuard Prim”). See Note 9t

g. Certain directors of the Company were granted optio purchase shares of the Com|'s common stock. See Note :
h. Balances with related partie

June 30 December 31
2012 2011 2010
(% in thousands)

Current liabilities:

Trade payabl $ - $ 2 % 3
Other accounts payak $ 45 $ 22 $ 121
Loans from shareholde $ - $ - 8 20
i . Transactions with related parti
6 month period ende( Year ended December 3.
June 30, 2012 2011 2010 2009

($ in thousands)

Expenses
Shar+based compensatic
Salaries and related expen
Consulting fee:
Financial expense
Rent income

1,365 $ 8,21z $ 23€ $ -
261 $ 147 $ 241 $ 152
10t $ 44t $ 22€ $ 194

$ 1
@289 (16) $ (19 % (13)

@ e R R

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a. Lease commitments
1) The Company is a party to two lease agreementssffacilities, which expire in March 2014 anéd@mber 2014. The
Company has the option, under both agreementste¢oe the agreements for two additional two yeaiops, for a
total of four years eacl
Rent expense included in the Consolidated Statentdrperations totaled approximately $167 fordixemonth

period ended June 30, 2012, and $119 thousand,tfitB8%and and $126 thousand for the years endeehiies 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate future minimeasé obligations for office rent under non-candelaperating
lease agreements were as follows:

(% in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2013 $ 34¢
2014 32C
2015 122

$ 787

2) The Company leases its motor vehicles unde-cancelable operating lease agreeme

As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate future minimeasé obligations for motor vehicles under non-dabie operating
lease agreements were as follows:

($ in thousands)

Year Ended June 3

2013 $ 58
2014 46
2015 22

$ 12€

License Agreement:

In March 2010, the Company entered into a new §eeagreement to use MGuard Prime, a unique steiggrddeveloped by
an American company owned by a former directomsplreMD Ltd. According to the agreement, the |s@nis entitled to
receive 7% royalties for sales outside the U.S.iaside the U.S. as follows: 7% royalties for thretf$10 million of net sales
and 10% royalties for net sales exceeding the $itSt million. Royalties accrued for these salesrrkided in “Accounts
payable and accruals -Other.” Royalties expengethéosix month period ended June 30, 2012 angidheended December
31, 2011 amounted to $136 thousand and $39 thousssuectively.

Liens and pledges

1) The Company’s obligations under the 2012 CoiislerDebentures (Note 6) are secured by a firstrityi perfected
security interest in all of the assets and propeif the Company and InspireMD Ltd., including $teck of InspireMD
Ltd. and InspireMD GmbH

2) As of June 30, 2012, the Company had fixed l@nsunting to $37 thousand to Bank Mizrahi in catioa with the
Compan’s credit cards

Litigation:
The Company is a party to various claims arisinthanordinary course of its operations in the aggie amount of $10
thousand. The Company has not recorded an expemgsipn related to damages in connection with éhestters because

management, after considering the views of itsllegansel as well as other factors, is of the apirthat a loss to the
Company is neither probable nor in an amount ogeaf loss that is estimable.
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In February 2011, representatives of a third paudicated that they intended to seek damages frenCbmpany in
connection with certain finders’ fees that theyirolare owed to them. The claimants’ demand wasjproximately $1
million. The claimants’ most recent settlement dechaonveyed in April 2011, was for a total of $266usand in cash and
62,500 shares of the Company common stock. To datiwsuit has been filed and the Company hasecwued a provision
in connection with this matter because the Commamganagement, after considering the views of galleounsel as well as
other factors, is of the opinion that a loss to@wenpany is neither probable nor in an amount egeaof loss that is estimak

In November 2010, a former senior employee subthatelaim against the Company in the total amot8t80 thousand ar
options to purchase 507,256 shares of the Compaoysnon stock at an exercise price of $0.004 paresim the
Magistrate’s Court in Tel Aviv, claiming unpaid bawages and commissions. The fair value of thosepwas valued
using the Black-Scholes valuation model at $2.%ionilas of the period he claimed to be entitleth®moptions. In June 2012,
the parties reached a settlement agreement foyragrat of $88 thousand by the Company to the pfatid following the a
mutual petition filed by the parties , on July 6,12 the Labor Court dismissed the claim. As of 382012, a provision of
$88 thousand was included in the Company’s Corat@diFinancial Statements.

In November 2010, an alleged founder and formeallagvisor of the Company submitted a claim agahestCompany for
options to purchase 124,014 shares of the Compaoysnon stock at an exercise price of $0.004 paresim the
Magistrate’s Court in Tel Aviv. The fair value dfdse options was estimated using the Black-Schealiestion model at $134
thousand as of the grant date. It was during 20@52806 that the Company first became aware oétleats that gave rise to
this litigation. Also, during this time, the Compalmad discussions with the plaintiffs on an infottoasis. The Company’s
management, after considering the views of itsllegansel as well as other factors, recorded aeshased compensation
expense of $134 thousand in 2006, in respect ofceer allegedly provided in 2005 and 2006.

In November 2010, a former legal advisor of the @any submitted in the Magistrate’s Court in Tel\Asiclaim against the
Company in the total amount of $53 thousand dwntalleged breach of employment promise. It wamdu2005 and 2006
that the Company first became aware of the eveatsgave rise to this litigation. Also during thime, the Company had
discussions with the plaintiff on an informal badike Company’s management, after considering ig&svof its legal
counsel as well as other factors, recorded a pmvig $53 thousand in 2006.

With respect to the two claims against the Commaymitted by an alleged founder and former legaisad of the Company
in November 2010, described above, following a gl held in January 2012, the parties reacheébtimving settlement
agreement: (i) the plaintiff shall be the owneppfions to purchase 48,697 shares of common stiotiedCompany and
withdraw their claim for the remaining 75,318 opigo and (ii) the Company would withdraw its counlaim against the
plaintiff. In January 2012, the District Court irlTAviv approved the settlement and a corresponflidgment was given by
the court. Following the settlement agreement fd@egember 31, 2011, the provision in the amour$&# thousand was
reversed.

In February 2011, a service provider submittecaintiagainst the Company in the amount of $327 thodisn the
Magistrate’s Court in Tel Aviv, claiming a futuraccess fee and commission for assistance in finttiegompany’s
distributor in Brazil. The Company’s managemerntgrfonsidering the views of its legal counsel aHl as other factors,
recorded a provision of $327 thousand in the fiferstatements in the first quarter of 2011. THatesl expense has been
recorded to “General and administratiweithin the Consolidated Statements of OperatiomsO®@tober 5, 2011, the Compa
filed a counter claim against the plaintiff in themount of $29 thousand.
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In August 2011, a former senior employee submitbettie Regional Labor Court in Tel Aviv a claim ags the Company for
(i) compensation of $118 thousand and (ii) a dettay ruling that he is entitled to exercise 122, 8tions to purchase sha
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise @ic&9.004 per share. After consulting with its llegdvisor, the Company
is unable to assess the probable outcome of s cl

In November 2011, a previous service provider splreMD Ltd. submitted to the Magistrate Court igl Aviv a claim
against the Company, InspireMD Ltd. and the Com{zgRyesident and the Company’s CEO for a declayatding that it is
entitled to convert options to purchase 13,650epireMD Ltd.’s ordinary shares at an exercisegpat$3.67 per share into
options to purchase 27,696 shares of the Compaoysnon stock at an exercise price of $1.80 perstaand to convert
options to purchase 4,816 of InspireMD Ltd.’s oedinshares at an exercise price of $10 per shw@ptions to purchase
9,772 shares of the Company’s common stock at arcise price of $4.92 per share. On July 30, 262parties held a
mediation which resulted in a settlement agreeraectrding to which the Company paid $7 thousand phlue added taxes
to the plaintiff and the plaintiff waived all of$iclaims to any options and agreed to the irreveadibmissal of the above
mentioned claim. On August 5, 2012, the court appdahe settlement and dismissed the claim.

In December 2011, a statement of claim againsCibmapany was submitted by an alleged finder of thengany, regardir
146,089 options to purchase the Compamshares. The Company filed its defense in thi® @as March 11, 2012. T
Company and the plaintiff agreed to refer the ¢aseediation. A second hearing in this case wasoseteptember 20, 201
After consulting the views of its legal counselveall as other factors, the Company is unable tessthe probable outco
of this claim.

In July 2012, a purported assignee of options apileMD Ltd. submitted a statement of claim agaihetCompany,
InspireMD Ltd., and the Company’s CEO and formersiRtent for a declaratory and enforcement ordéritleentitled to
options to purchase 83,637 shares of the Compaoysnon stock at an exercise price of $0.76 peresfidre Company must
file its defense to the abovementioned claim byt&aper 30, 2012. After consulting the views oféigal counsel as well as
other factors, the Company is unable to assegsrdimble outcome of this claim.

NOTE 10 — EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)

a.

Share capital

As of June 30, 2012, the Company has authorized@8M00 shares of capital stock, par value $0.@@0khare, of which
125,000,000 are shares of common stock and 5,00@@0shares of “blank check” preferred stock.

On October 31, 2011, the stockholders approvedditigorization of the board of directors, in itscdétion, to amend the
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatio® Company to effect a reverse stock split ef@mmpany’s common
stock at a ratio of one-for-two to one-for-fourchuratio to be determined by the board of direcftirs “Reverse Stock Split”),
which approval will allow the board of directorsdffect the Reverse Stock Split any time priott® €Company’s annual
meeting of stockholders in 2012.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had yet to effecReverse Stock Split.
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Share exchange and private placement agreemerasd share issuance

As noted in Note 1 above, in connection with thar8tExchange, the Company issued 12,666,666 shiitsscommon stock
in exchange for 6,242,754 ordinary shares of ledpD Ltd., which represented all of InspireMD Ltddatstanding shares,
resulting in InspireMD Ltd. became a wholly ownedbsidiary of the Company.

In connection with the Share Exchange, the Compédstyassumed all of InspireMD Ltd.’s obligationglaninspireMD Ltd.’s
outstanding stock options. Immediately prior to 8f@re Exchange, InspireMD Ltd. had outstandingkstptions to purchase
an aggregate of 937,256 ordinary shares, whichtandsg options became options to purchase an gagref 1,901,693
shares of common stock of the Company after gieiffiect to the Share Exchange. In addition, threm-yearrants to purchase
up to 125,000 ordinary shares of InspireMD Ltdamtexercise price of $10 per share were assumé#tebompany and
converted into warrants to purchase 253,625 sludribe Company’s common stock at an exercise mfié.92 per share.

In connection with the closing of the Share Exclernlje Company sold 1,613,501 shares of its constamk at a purchase
price of $6.00 per share and five-year warranfsutchase up to 806,750 shares of common stock etensise price of $7.20
per share in a private placement to accreditedshove (the “Private Placement”).

As part of the Private Placement, certain holdéte®2010 Convertible Debentures surrendered $8670f outstanding
principal and interest due under the 2010 ConVerfilebentures in exchange for 111,266 shares ofrmmmstock and
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 56,283 sbhoesnmon stock. The number of shares of commaorkstad warrants
issued in connection with the Debt Conversiondrarkeided in the aggregate figures for the Privdte@ment. As a result, the
Company received aggregate cash proceeds of $9®LB) the Private Placement.

In connection with the Share Exchange, the Comjpdsty entered into a stock escrow agreement witlaioestockholders,
pursuant to which these stockholders depositedPb3hares of common stock held by them and wartarurchase
208,125 shares of common stock into escrow. Thesees and warrants were to be released to the Gonipacancellation ¢
surrender to an entity designated by the Compaayldithe Company have $10 million in consolidaterdenue, as certified |
the Company’s independent auditors, during the fizsmonths following the closing of the Privata¢dment, yet fail, after a
good faith effort, to have the Company’s commortlstapproved for listing on a national securitiesh@ange. If the Company
failed to record at least $10 million in consolethtrevenue during the first 12 months following ¢fesing of the Private
Placement or have its common stock listed on anatisecurities exchange within 12 months followtng closing on the
Private Placement, these escrowed shares werertddased back to the stockholders.

As it appeared unlikely that the Company woulds$atihe revenue threshold set forth above, on Ndesri6, 2011, the
Company’s board of directors approved the rele&ee0253,906 shares of common stock and warrarsitchase 208,125
shares of common stock then held in escrow in dalénmediately increase the Company’s public float

In connection with the Share Exchange, the Compssued certain consultants five-year warrants tahmse up to an
aggregate of 625,000 shares of common stock atencise price of $6.00 per share in consideratiwrednsulting services
related to the Share Exchange, which warrants ada#g value of $1.5 million. The expenses relatethe issuance of the
warrants are recorded as share-based compensatidreated as issuance costs.
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In connection with the Private Placement, the Campzaid placement agent fees of approximately $860sand and issued
five-year warrants to purchase 93,435 shares oftrapany’s common stock at an exercise price &@ger share to the
placement agent. The fair value of the warran§2i2 thousand.

During the first quarter of 2011 and prior to tHea& Exchange, InspireMD Ltd. raised approxima$8l90 thousand and
issued approximately 200,873 ordinary shares thrquiyate placements.

On April 18, 2011, the Company issued 166,667 shafés common stock and five-year warrants tachase 83,333 shares
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise mfiy.20 per share, for an aggregate purchase pfrig&,000 thousand, in
a private placement.

On April 18, 2011, the Company issued 70,834 shafrés common stock and five-year term warrantpuochase 35,417
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exepcice of $7.20 per share, for an aggregate puechese of $425
thousand, in a private placement.

In connection with the above-referenced transastfoom April 18, 2011, the Company paid placemeara fees of
approximately $471 thousand, which were recordedsagmnce costs, and five-year term warrants tohase 14,250 shares of
the Company common stock at an exercise price @0HFer share to the placement agent. The faievalluthose warrants,
amounting to $67 thousand, is estimated using taekBScholes valuation model.

On April 21, 2011, the Company issued 8,333 shafrés common stock, and fiwgear term warrants to purchase 4,167 st
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise @fick.20 per share, for an aggregate purchase @fi$80 thousand, in a
private placement.

Share-Based Compensation

1. On March 28, 2011, the board of directors andldtolders of the Company adopted and approvethgpereMD,
Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan (the “Umbrella PIgnUnder the Umbrella Plan, the Company reserved
2,367,025 shares of the Company’s common stockvasda to the employees, consultants, and servimgdars to
the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliateddvade. At a special meeting of stockholders of @mmpany held
on October 31, 2011, the stockholders approvedrendment to the Umbrella Plan to add an additiai#82,975
shares of common stock for a total of 3,750,000esh

The Umbrella Plan currently consists of three congmts, the primary plan document that governsvedirds grante
under the Umbrella Plan, and two appendices: (pekglix A, designated for the purpose of grantsadlsoptions
and restricted stock to Israeli employees, constdiafficers and other service providers and otioerU.S.
employees, consultants, and service providers(igndppendix B, which is the 2011 US Equity Incamt Plan,
designated for the purpose of grants of stock optand restricted stock awards to U.S. employessuitants, and
service providers who are subject to the U.S. ineds.

The Umbrella Plan is administered by the compeosatdommittee of the board of directors. Unless ieated
earlier by the board of directors, the UmbrellanRAdll expire on March 27, 2021.

U.S. federal income tax consequences relatingadrémsactions described under the Umbrella Plusetrforth in
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188G mended (the “Code”) and treasury regulatio2904 to
regulate all types of deferred compensation. Ifrétiirements of Section 409A of the Code are atisféed,
deferred compensation and earnings thereon walibgect to tax as it vests, plus an interest chatgee
underpayment rate plus 1% and a 20% penalty tatail@estock options and certain types of restrictetk are
subject to Section 409A of the Code.
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Pursuant to the current Section 102 of the Ordiaawhich came into effect on January 1, 2003, ogtimay be
granted through a trustee (i.e., Approved 102 @glior not through a trustee (i.e., Unapproved @pgons).

On July 11, 2011, the board of directors of@menpany appointed Mr. Sol J. Barer as a new dirgtBirector A”),
with a term expiring at the Compary2012 annual meeting of stockholders. In conneatiih his appointmer
Director A was granted an option to purchase 25Dd}ares of the Compamsytommon stock at an exercise pric
$6.00 per share (the “$6.00 OptionThe $6.00 Option was exercisable immediately u®¢ptember 30, 2011.
calculating the fair value of the $6.00 Option, thempany used the following assumptions: dividereddyof 0%
and expected term of 0.11 years; expected volatifib3%; and ris-free interest rate of 0.17¢

In addition, in connection with his appointmentréitor A was granted an option to purchase 125sb@@es of
common stock at an exercise price of $10.00 peestize closing price of the common stock on thte dégrant (th
“$10.00 Option”), subject to the terms and condisi@f the 2011 US Equity Incentive Plan under thebklla Plan.
The $10.00 Option vests and becomes exercisalieer equal annual installments beginning on theeyaar
anniversary of the date of grant, provided thahmevent that Director A is either (i) not reeéztas a director at tl
Company’s 2012 annual meeting of stockholdersiiongt nominated for reelection as a directorreg Company’s
2012 annual meeting of stockholders, the optiotsvasd becomes exercisable on the date Directail\tb be
reelected or nominated. The $10.00 Option hasna ¢€r10 years from the date of grant. In calculatine fair value
of the $10.00 Option, the Company used the follgnassumptions: dividend yield of 0% and expecteni & 5.5-6
years; expected volatility of 62%-63%; and riskefiaterest rate of 1.67%-1.85%.

The fair value of the options granted to Directoruaing the Black-Scholes option pricing model, wpproximately
$1.7 million.

On September 28, 2011, Director A exercised the@@@ption to purchase 250,000 shares of commoik,stoc
resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of fltB6usand.

On November 16, 2011, the Companpoard of directors approved the appointment céd@dr A as the chairman
the board of directors. In connection with his d@pproent as chairman of the board of directors,Gbenpany issued
Director A 725,000 shares of common stock and dimopo purchase 725,000 shares of common stoak at
exercise price of $7.80 per share, the closingepfache common stock on the date of grant. Threviue of the
granted shares is approximately $5.7 million and re&orded as an expense in the Consolidated Fatanc
Statements ended December 31, 2011. In calculdtatnir value of these options, the Company ukeddllowing
assumptions: dividend yield of 0% and expected @5 years; expected volatility of 61.6%; argksfree interest
rate of 1.07%. The options have terms of 10 yaars the date of grant, and the vesting terms afellasvs: tranche
A vests and become exercisable in twenty four eouoadthly installments, tranches B and C vest arubine
exercisable upon meeting certain performance ciomgit The fair value of the options, using the Rt&choles
option-pricing model was approximately $3.1 million
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On June 18, 2012, the Compasiypoard of directors approved the extension ofitite by which the conditions to 1
vesting of tranches B and C must occur. As of diaite the performance condition of tranche B wasngekprobable
and the performance condition of tranche C was @elemot probable. The Company continues to recoperese
related to tranche B, in accordance with the falug that was caculated at the grant date. TraGohas treated as a
new grant, and the Company calculated the fairevafitthe new grant on the date of the extensiomgusie

following assumptions: dividend yield of 0% and egfed term of 5 years; expected volatility of 6@ risk-free
interest rate of 0.69%. The fair value using thadRtScholes option-pricing model was approxima$dlg2
thousand.

On August 5, 2011 and effective August 8, 2@é ,Board appointed another two new directors (€Etor B” and
“Director C"). Director B was appointed for a tegrpiring at the Company’s 2012 annual meeting afldtolders
and Director C was appointed for a term expirinthatCompany’s 2013 annual meeting of stockholder.
connection with their appointment, the directorseveach granted an option to purchase shares ahoonstock at
an exercise price of $7.80 per share, the closiitg pf the common stock on the date of grant {#780 Options).
The grant to Director B was for 25,000 shares arslibject to the terms and conditions of the 20$1Bduity
Incentive Plan.

The grant to Director C was for 6,250 shares arsdligect to the 2006 Employee Stock Option Plasukeplan of the
Company’s 2011 Umbrella Option Plan. The $7.80 @ystivests and become exercisable in two equal &nnua
installments beginning on the one-year anniversatiie date of grant. In the case of Directos Bption, in the eve
that Director B is either (i) not reelected as@ctior at the Company’s 2012 annual meeting ofk$tolders, or (ii)
not nominated for reelection as a director at thbenanys 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, the optasis/an
becomes exercisable on the date of Director Blar&ito be reelected or nominated. In the caseirgcibr C's
option, in the event that Director C is requireddsign from the board due to medical reasonspptien vests and
becomes exercisable on the date of Director Cigmasion for medical reasons. The $7.80 Optionsehavms of 10
years from the date of grant.

In calculating the fair value of the $7.80 Optiotiee Company used the following assumptions: divitigield of 0%
and expected term of 3-4 years; expected volatlit§7%-70%; and risk-free interest rate of 0.45%806.

The fair value of the options granted to the abamationed new directors, using the Black-Scholé®ogpricing
model, is approximately $118 thousand.

On August 5, 2011, options to purchase 81,1&teshof common stock were granted to former dirscba cash
exercise price of $4.92 per share replacing optioqmirchase 81,161 shares of common stock hefdrbyer
directors that expired during the second quart@0dfl. The options had terms of five years. Inwaking the fair
value of the options, the Company used the follgwarsumptions: dividend yield of 0% and expectent &&f 3.5
years; expected volatility of 69%; and rfree interest rate of 0.62¢

The fair value of the options granted to the fortieectors, using the Black-Scholes option-priangdel, is
approximately $424,000.

During 2011, the Company entered into investtations consulting agreements with investor reteticompanies to

provide investor relations services. Pursuant éoctimsulting agreements, in addition to monthl fieea range of
$3,000 to $16,500, the Company issued to the investations companie
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. a one-year warrant to purchase 20,290 shares ahoonstock of the Company at an exercise price (324
per share, valued at $21 thouse

. 12,500 restricted shares of the Company’s comnmmrkstalued at $62 thousand, and a fpear warrant t
purchase 12,500 shares of common stock of the Guoyrgtaan exercise price of $6.00 per share, vadtied
$30 thousand; an

. 6,250 shares of the Company’s common stock, vadti&é8.75 thousand.

The Company recorded share-based compensationsegpeh$181.75 thousand related to these issuances.

On January 30, 2012, the Company appointed adireator (“Director D”) to its board of directorth connection
with his appointment, the Company issued Direct@rpption to purchase 25,000 shares of its conmstauk,
which will vest one-third annually in 2013, 2014da2015 on the anniversary of the date of granyigea that if he
is (i) not reelected as a director at our 2014 ahmeeting of stockholders, or (ii) not nominatedreelection as a
director at our 2014 annual meeting of stockholdies option vests and becomes exercisable onateeod such
failure to be reelected or nominat:

Incalculating the fair value of these options, @@mpany used the following assumptions: dividereddyof 0% and
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatift$8-60%; and risk-free interest rate of 1.016%2 The options
have terms of 10 years from the date of grant,thedair value of the options, using the Black-Seb@ptionpricing
model, was approximately $106,000.

On June 18, 2012 the Companpbard of directors issued Directors A, B, C andpfions to purchase 12,500 she
of common stock at an exercise price of $3.16 pares the closing price of the common stock ordttte of grant.
In calculating the fair value of these options, @@mpany used the following assumptions: divideiattyof 0% and
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatiiftg5%-66%; and risk-free interest rate of 0.78%¢06. The
options have terms of 10 years from the date aftgemd become exercisable in three equal annsiliments. The
fair value of the options, using the Bli-Scholes optic-pricing model, was approximately $23 thousand e

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had reserved B832rdinary shares for issuance under the plamesacribe
above. The following table summarizes informatibowat warrants and share options to employ
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6 month period ended

Year Ended December 31

June 30, 201: 2011 2010 2009
Number Number Number
of of Weighted of Weighted Weighted
warrants Weighted warrants average warrants average Number of average
and average and exercise and exercise warrants exercise
options exercise prict options price options price and options price
Outstandin¢- beginning of perior 2,017,75 % 5.€ 875,52: $ 2.7¢ 514,35¢ $ 2.€ 611,79 $ 2.12
Granted* 333,75( 3.5€ 1,573,10. 7.6¢ 446,38! 2.4¢ 56,81: 3.1€
Forfeited (30,42) 6.3€ (180,87) 6.72 (85,219 2.€ (39,56¢) 3.4
Exercisec - - (250,000 6 - - (114,68)) -
Outstanding -end of period 2,321,088 $ 5.2¢ 2,017,751 $ 5.€ 875,52 $ 2.7¢ 514,35 $ 2.€
Exercisable at the end of the period 904,10¢ $ 3.52 717,11t $ 2.84 551,13 $ 2.9¢ 258,53: $ 1.2

* Including 140,000 and 362,500 options with pemiance conditions in the period ended June 30, a6dizhe year
ended December 31, 2011, respectively. See Note 2m.

The following table summarizes information aboutraats and share options to non-employees:

6 month period ended

Year Ended December 31

June 30, 201: 2011 2010 2009
Number Number Number

of of of Weighted Weighted

warrants Weighted warrants Weighted warrants average Number of average

and average and average and exercise warrants exercise

options exercise price options exercise price options price and options price

Outstanding- beginning of periot 2,100,50 $ 3.9z 1,174,40. $ 1.5€ 934,97¢ $ 0.8 84553( $ 0.4
Granted* 132,86: 4.9¢ 990,83: 5.92 269,86( 4.8¢ 89,44 4.2¢
Forfeited (109,42) 2.3¢ (64,726 2.4¢ (30,43¢) - - -
Exercisec - - - - - - - -
Outstanding- end of perioc 212394 $ 3.6 210050 $ 3.9z  1,17440 $ 1.5¢ 934,970 $ 0.8
Exercisable at the end of the per 2,056,711 $ 3.7¢€ 2,049,96! $ 3.84 1,158,891 $ 1.€ 859,98 $ 0.4¢

* Including 19,479 and 24,349 options with performoa conditions in the period ended June 30, 208iZtenyear
ended December 31, 2011, respectively. See Note 2m.

F- 35




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following table provides additional informatiabout all warrants and options outstanding andogsable:

Outstanding as of June 30, 201

Weighted
average
Warrants and remaining Warrants
Exercise options contractual and options
price outstanding life (years) exercisable
0-0.00< 976,53! 4.72 925,80¢
0.73: 51,25 3.41 51,25
0.75% 83,63’ 3.7¢ 83,63¢
2.92 126,25( 9.92
3.1¢€ 97,50( 9.97
3.2 75,00( 9.¢
3.9¢ 146,09( 5.7¢€ 146,08
4.9z 862,58: 4.5¢ 737,68:
6.0C 784,80! 3.7¢ 679,83
6.€ 3,65z 6.5 3,65z
7 20,29( 3.92 6,76¢
7.2 188,17¢ 4.2 188,17¢
7.72 53,75( 3.94 16,66
7.8 836,75! 9.3¢ 120,83
8.0C 10,00( 4.1¢
8.4 2,50( 9.t
10.0( 125,00( 9.04
10.¢ 1,25( 3.9¢ 41¢€
4,445,02 5.8t 2,960,81

The weighted average of the remaining contractfeabf total vested and exercisable warrants artbog as of June 30, 20
is 4.46 years.

The aggregate intrinsic value of the total exetdisavarrants and options as of June 30, 2012 ¥4®4housand.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised B&60 thousand for the year ended December 31, 281 bptions were
exercised during the six month period ended Jun@@02, and the years ended December 31, 2010 ecehiber 31, 2009.

The weighted average fair value of warrants antoptgranted was approximately $0.59 for the sixitihgeriod ended Jut
30, 2012, and $0.89, $0.82 and $0.96 for the yeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respactiMed weighted
average fair value of warrants and options grantesl estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pgicodel.

9. The following table sets forth the assumptidrat tvere used in determining the fair value of @ptigranted to

employees for the six month period ended June @12 2as well as the years ended December 31, 2010,and
2009:
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6 months ended Year ended December 3.
June 30, 2012 2011 2010 2009
Expected life 5.5-6.5 year 0.17-6.5 year 5.25-6 year. 5.54-6 year:
Risk-free interest rate 0.7%1.3% 0.03%-2.7<% 1.7%-2.6%% 1.7%-2.4%%
Volatility 58%-66% 55%-7%% 79%-80% 75%-79%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0%

The following table sets forth the assumptions tirate used in determining the fair value of warsaarid options granted to
non-employees for the six month period ended JOn@@&12, as well as the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009:

6 month period ende( Year ended December 3
June 30, 201: 2011 2010 2009
Expected life 2-10 year 1-10 year 9.7-10 year 9-10 year
Risk-free interest rate 0.3%-1.47% 1.02%-3.3%% 2.65%-3.01% 3.4%-3.5%
Volatility 47%-65% 53%-62% 87% 86%-91%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0%

The Company does not have sufficient historicat@ge data to provide a reasonable basis upon wibiektimate expected
term. Accordingly, as to plain vanilla options gieh the expected term was determined using thelified method, which
takes into consideration the option’s contractifaldnd the vesting periods (for non-employees gtkgected term is equal to
the option’s contractual life).

The Company estimates its forfeiture rate baseitsa@mployment termination history, and will continto evaluate the
adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on analystsnployee turnover behavior and other factors iffmn-employees the
forfeiture rate is nil). The annual risk-free rates based on the yield rates of zero coupon ndexifinked U.S. Federal
Reserve treasury bonds as both the exercise pritéha share price are in dollar terms. The Comygaexpected volatility i
derived from a blended volatility, based on itddrigal data and that of a peer group of public panies.

10. As of June 30, 2012, the total unrecognizedpmameation cost on employee and non-employee sabng, related
to unvested stock-based compensation, amountgaptoxamately $2,745 thousand. This cost is expettidie
recognized over a weighted-average period of apmiately 1.96 years. This expected cost does naidecthe
impact of any future sto-based compensation awar

The following table summarizes the allocation détshare-based compensation expense in the Cdatali Statements of
Operations:
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6 months endei Year ended December 3
June 30, 2012 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)

Revenue $ 68 $ - $ - $ -
Cost of revenue 35 35C 16C 49
Research and developmt 20¢ 267 53€ 35€
Sales and marketir 181 431 55 92
General and administrative 1,45¢ 8,54: 86¢ 65

$ 1,94¢ $ 9,59( $ 1,62 $ 562

The Company recorded $62 thousand of share-basepersation as part of Property, Plant and Equiprnethie year ended
December 31, 2011

d. Acquisition and cancellation of share:

Following a settlement agreement signed on Jug@Hl, the Company issued 4,697 shares of commok.sibe Company
issued a stock certificate in the name of the fifdiior such shares for the Company to hold irstrpending consummation of
the settlement terms under the settlement agree@aniune 10, 2012, both parties agreed to amensettiement agreement
to provide that the Company would pay $24 thousatiter than issue the shares. Whereas the shareseser released to
the plaintiff, and both parties agreed to cancelghare certificate evidencing the shares, the @agnpancelled the shares :
recorded $21 thousand as a deduction from equiitg.difference was recorded as “General and admatiigt” based on the
cash amount paid net of the fair value of the chetshares as of the cancellation date.

e. On April 5, 2012, the Company issued the 2012 Cdible Debenture and 2012 Warrants to purchaseggregate of
835,866 shares of its common stock at an exercise pf $7.20 per share in a private placemensaation. See Note

NOTE 11 - TAXES ON INCOME
a. Tax laws applicable to the Company and its subsidigées
Taxation in the United States
InspireMD, Inc. is taxed under U.S. tax laws.
Taxation in Israel
InspireMD Ltd. is taxed under the Israeli IncomexTardinance.
On December 6, 2011, the "Tax Burden Distributi@wl. Legislation Amendment (2011) was publishechim Official
Gazette. Under this law, the previously approvestigal decrease in the corporate tax rate was dadc&he Corporate tax
rate will increase to 25% beginning 2012.
Taxation in Germany
InspireMD GmbH is taxed according to the tax law&iermany. Accordingly, the applicable tax rates@rporate tax rate

15.825% and trade tax rate of 12.075%.
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Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragemenof Capital Investments, 1959 (the "Law"):

InspireMD Ltd. has been granted a “Beneficianydfprises” status under the Investment Law inclgdhmendment No. 60
thereof, which became effective in April 20(

The tax benefits derived from any such Beneficlanyerprise relate only to taxable profits attriliniéato the specific program
of investment to which the status was granted.

The main benefit, to which InspireMD Ltd. is ergd| conditional upon the fulfilling of certain catidns stipulated by the
above law, is a two-year exemption and five to ejgtars of reduced tax rate of 10% to 25% fromaiaincome derived from
their production facilities in Israel. The tax bénhperiod is twelve years from the years of impéartation.

The tax-exempt income attributable to the “BenafigiEnterprises” can be distributed to shareholdétsout imposing tax
liability on the Company only upon the completauladption of the Company. In the event of a disttitau of such tax-exempt
income as a cash dividend in a manner other th#reicomplete liquidation of the Company, the Conypaill be required to
pay tax at the rate of 10% to 25% on the amountilliged. In addition, these dividends will be sdijto 15% withholding

tax.

Should InspireMD Ltd. derive income from sourcdsentthan the “Beneficiary Enterprisedtiring the period of benefits, su
income shall be taxable at the regular corporatedte.

Conditions for entitlement to the bene:

The entitlement to the above benefits is conditiom®n InspireMD Ltd. fulfilling the conditions gtillated by the law,
regulations published thereunder and the instrusnefrpproval for the specific investments in apprbassets. In the event
of failure to comply with these conditions, the bBts may be cancelled InspireMD Ltd. may be reegito refund the amount
of the benefits, in whole or in part, with the adti of interest.

Amendment of the Law for the Encouragement of Gdyhitvestments, 19!

The Israeli Law for Encouragement of Capital Inuesstts, 1959 was amended as part of the EconomicyRa@w for the
years 2011-2012, which was passed in the Kneseetdqtaeli parliament) on December 29, 2010. Theratment became
effective as of January 1, 2011.

The amendment set alternative benefit tracks toties then in place, as follows: (i) an investnggants track designed for
enterprises located in national development zoa@d\(ii) two new tax benefits tracks (for preferesderprises and for
special preferred enterprises), which provide fipli@ation of a unified tax rate to all preferreddme of the company, as
defined in the amendment.

The tax rates at company level, under the law, @er®llows:

Development  Other Areas in

Years Zone A Israel
“Preferred enterpri”
2011-2012 10% 15%
201:-2014 7% 12.5%
2015 and thereafts 6% 12%
“Special Preferred Enterpr’” commencing 201 5% 8%

The benefits granted to the preferred enterprisse W be unlimited in time, unlike the benefitamged to special preferred
enterprises, which were to be limited for a pedd 0 years. The benefits were to be granted topeanes that qualified unc
criteria set in the amendment; for the most phdseé criteria were similar to the criteria that eveet in the law prior to its

amendment.

Under the transitional provisions of the amendmantlsraeli company was allowed to continue to etije tax benefits
available under the law prior to its amendmentluhé end of the period of benefits, as definethanlaw. The company was
allowed to set the “year of election” no later thar year 2012, provided that the minimum qualifyinvestment commenced
not later than the end of 2010. On each year duhiageriod of benefits, the company would havenkadsge to opt for
application of the amendment, thereby making allo itself the tax rates above. Company’s optorgapplication of the
amendment was irrecoverah



c. Carry forward tax losses

As of June 30, 2012, InspireMD Ltd. had a net céoryard tax loss of approximately $18 million. Usrdsraeli tax laws, the
carry forward tax losses can be utilized indefigittnspireMD, Inc. had a net carry forward taxdax approximately $10
million. Under U.S. tax laws, InspireMD, Ins.tax losses can be utilized two years back andtyweears forward. InspireMI
Inc.'s carry forward tax losses will begin to expin June 30, 2031.

d. Tax assessment

The Company and its subsidiaries have not beessex$éor tax purposes since incorporation.

e. Loss before income taxe

The components of loss before income taxes arellasvé:
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6 month period ende( Year ended December 3.
June 30, 2012 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)

Profit (loss) before taxes on incon

InspireMD, Inc. $ (2,226¢) $ (7,029 $ - $ -
InspireMD Ltd. (4,819 (7,636) (3,115 (2,629
InspireMD GmbH (9 2 (25¢€) (53

$ (70493 (14660 % (33798% (2670

Current taxes on income

Tax expenses in the amount of $32 thousand fositheonth period ended June 30, 2012, and $2, $girsand and $47
thousand thousand for the years ended Decemb@031, 2010 and 2009, respectively, are relatedmsUhS. operations.

Following is a reconciliation of the theoreticak taxpense, assuming all income were taxed at tidaetax rates applicable
to the Company in the U.S. (see c above), anddhmbtax expense:

6 month period endet Year ended December 31
June 30, 2017 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)

Loss before taxes on income, as reported in the

statements of operatio $ 7,04¢ $ 14,66: $ 3,37 $ 2,67
Theoretical tax benef (2,399 (4,985 (1,149 (910
Increase in tax benefit resulting from permanent
differences 863 601 431 92

Increase (decrease) in taxes on income resulting

from the computation of deferred taxes at a ra
which is different from the theoretical re (11€) 62 24
Increase (decrease) in uncertain tax posit- net (60) 30 30

Decrease in theoretical tax benefit resulting fron
subsidiaries different tax ra 434 1,38¢ 304 214
Change in corporate tax rates, see c al (54%) - 481
Change in valuation allowance 1,132 3,722 367 11€
$ 32 $ 23 47 $ 47

As of June 30, 2012, as well as December 31, 22010 and 2009, the Company determined that it wae fikely than not
that the benefit of the operating losses wouldb®otealized and consequently, management concthdeéull valuation
allowances should be established regarding the @oyp deferred tax assets.
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The changes in the valuation allowance for thergxth period ended June 30, 2012 and years endeghiber 31, 2011 and
2010 were as follows:

6 month period
ended Year ended December 3

June 30, 2012 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)

Balance at the beginning of the yi $ 6,91¢ $ 3,19¢ $ 2,82¢ $ 2,71:
Changes during the year 1,132 3,722 367 11€
Balance at the end of the year $ 8,05( $ 6,91¢ $ 3,19¢ $ 2,82¢

Accounting for Uncertain Tax position

Following is a reconciliation of the total amounfsghe Company’s unrecognized tax benefits durirggsix month period
ended June 30, 2012, as well as the years endezhibec 31, 2011 and 2010:

6 month
period ended Year ended December 31
June 30, 201 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)

Balance at beginning of peri $ - 3 60 $ 30 $ 0
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits as a reftaixo
positions taken during the ye 30 30
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits as a reftako
positions taken during a prior year (60)
Balance at end of period $ - 3 - 3 60 $ 30

All of the above amounts of unrecognized tax besefould affect the effective tax rate if recoguize

A summary of open tax years by major jurisdictismpiesented below:

Jurisdiction Years
U.S. 200¢-2011
Israel 200¢-2011
Germany 200¢&-2011

The Company and its subsidiaries applied for a gbani fiscal year for its tax filings to end in &80, 2012 in the different
territories.
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g. Deferred income tax:

6 month period endet Year ended December 3
June 30, 201Z 2011 2010
($ in thousands)

Shor-term:
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 54 $ 37 % 36
Provision for vacation and recreation pay 70 69 38
124 10€ 74
Long-term:
R&D expense: 74¢€ 522 531
Convertible debentur (1,25
Non cash issuance co: 89
Shar+based compensatic 693 27¢€
Carry forward tax losse 7,631 6,00( 2,582
Accrued severance pay, net 18 14 9
7,92¢ 6,81: 3,122
Less-valuation allowance (8,050 (6,919 (3,196
$ -$ - 9 -
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NOTE 12 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMA TION

Balance sheets:

a.

Accounts receivable:

December 31
June 30, 201 2011 2010
(% in thousands)

1) Trade:
Open account $ 2,03¢ $ 2,42¢ $ 99¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts (215 (142) (14¢€)
$ 1,82, § 2,28¢ 852
2) Other:
Due from government institutior $ 124 % 68 $ 5€
Advance payments to supplie 11¢€ 32
Fund in respect of employee right upon retiren 8
Miscellaneous 22 18 11
$ 264 $ 11€ $ 75

The changes in “Allowance for doubtful accountstidg the six month period ended June 30, 2012 haeg¢ars ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

6 month period

ended Year ended December 3.
June 30, 2012 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Balance at beginning of peri $ 142 $ 14€ $ 6 $ 6
Additions during the perio 78 14C
Exchange rate differences (5) (4
Balance at end of period $ 21t $ 14z $ 14€ $ 6
Inventories:
December 31
June 30, 201 2011 2010
($ in thousands)
Finished good $ 47¢ $ 741 3 957
Work in proces: 1,11¢ 1,04¢ 57¢
Raw materials and supplies 15C 27¢€ 174
$ 1,744 $ 2,061 $ 1,70¢

As of June 30, 2012, the Company recorded a pmvifgir slow moving inventory in the amount of $4#8usand.
Inventory on consignment
The changes in inventory on consignment duringsthenonths ended June 30, 2012, as well as the pealed December 31,

2011 and 2010, are as follows:
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6 month period

ended Year ended December 31
June 30, 2017 2011 2010 2009
(% in thousands)
Balance at beginning of peri $ 11¢ $ 371 $ 1,09 $ 1,42
Costs of revenues deferred during the pe 2C 11C 32¢€ 421
Costs of revenues recognized during the period (67) (371) (1,049 (750
Balance at end of period $ 63 $ 11C $ 371 $  1,09¢

As of June 30, 2012, December 31, 2011 and 20¥@ntory on consignment included an amount of $6a$and, $110
thousand and $371 thousand, respectively, relatpdoducts sales for which product returns couldbsoreliably estimated,
with the remainder relating to products sales fhicl returns were reliably estimated.

d. Accounts payable and accrua-other:

December 31

June 30, 201 2011 2010
(% in thousands)

Employees and employee institutions $ 43¢ $ 37¢ $ 37t
Accrued vacation and recreation pay 272 271 147
Accrued clinical trials expenses 607 124 35
Provision for sales commissions 194 212 36
Accrued expenses 1,197 93C 561
Due to government institutions 22 3 10C
Liability for employees rights upon retirement 7
Provision for returns 13¢ 231 15C
Taxes payable 56 69 98

$ 2,92t % 2217 $ 1,50¢

e. Deferred revenues

The changes in deferred revenues during the sixmmeriod ending June 30, 2012, and the years eddedmber 31, 2011
and 2010 are as follows:

6 month period

ended Year ended December 3.
June 30, 201- 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Balance at beginning of peri $ - $ 39¢ % 1,97 $ 2,48:
Revenue deferred during the per 25 32C 61€
Revenue recognized during the per (15) (399 (1,897) (1,127
Balance at end of peric $ 10§ - $ 39 § 1.97¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Operation:

f.  Financial expenses (income), ne

6 month period

ended Year ended December 3
June 30, 2012 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Bank commission $ 30 $ 63 $ 83 $ 18
Interest incomt (9 (36) 1) (1)
Exchange rate differenc: (40 177 (33 3C
1,232 73C 10t 221

Interest expense (including debt issuance costs)
Change in fair value of warrants and embedded dtvier (1,329

Redemption of beneficial conversion feature of
(309

convertible loan
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 13 - ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURES
The Company operates in one operating segment.
Disaggregated financial data is provided belowolisws:

(1) Revenues by geographic area and
(2) Revenues from principal customers.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas bastx docation of the customers. The following suanmary of revenues by
geographic areas:

6 month period ende( Year ended December 3
June 30, 2012 2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)

Russis $ 452 $ 36C $ 12 § 202
Germany 28t 29¢ 507 191
India 12C 1,08: - -
Israel 60 73C 11¢ -
Italy 17¢ 31z 39C 66¢
Cyprus 10 60 7 337
Pakistar - 5 19z 477
Poland 14C 26¢ 1,44¢ -
Other 82t 2,88 2,27¢ 1,53t

$ 2,071% 6,000 $ 494¢$ 3,417

By principal customers:

6 month period ende( Year ended December 3.
June 30, 201: 2011 2010 2009
Customer A 22% 6% -% 6%
Customer E 14% 5% 1C% 6%
Customer C 6% 18% -% -%
Customer C 3% 12% 2% -%
Customer E 9% 5% 8% 20%
Customer F -% 1% -% 10%
Customer C -% -% 4% 14%
Customer F 7% 4% 2%% -%

All tangible long lived assets are located in I&r
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 14 — TRANSITION PERIOD COMPARATIVE DATA
Six month period ended June 3|

2011
2012 (unaudited)

($ in thousands)

Operating Data:

Revenue! $ 2,071 % 2,72¢
Cost of revenues 1,37 1,53¢
Gross Profit 694 1,18
Operating expense
Research and developme 2,607 1,09:
Selling and marketin 1,24¢ 1,04t
General and administrative (including $1,454 anél 8share-based compensation fo
the six month periods ended June 30, 2012 and 204fectively) 3,99¢ 2,391
Total operating expenses 7,852 4,52¢
Loss from operation (7,159 (3,342
Financial expenses (income), net (109) 787
Loss before income tax (7,049 (4,129
Tax expenses 32 2C
Net loss $ (7,08) $ (4,149
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $ 0.4 $ (0.29)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares usedmputing net loss per share - basic
diluted 17,044,22 14,328,23
Cash Flow Data:
Net cash used by operating activit $ 4,369) $ (1,786)
Net cash used by investing activit (200) (144
Net cash provided by financing activiti 9,75: 9,35¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatnts 8
Net increase in cash and cash equival $ 519C $ 7,43¢

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
On August 20, 2012, the Company announced thatlé-cemter randomized trial of its MGuard™ embghiotection stent
demonstrated a positive outcome in treating patisutfering heart attacks when compared to comiagre&pproved bare metal
drug-eluting stents.

On August 1, 2012, the Company’s board of direcssed a consultant options with certain perforreazonditions to purchase
50,000 shares of common stock at an exercise ofi$d.72 per share, the closing price of the comstonk on the date of grant.

On August 27, 2012, the Company’s board of directesued a member of the immediate family of th©@Btions to purchase
60,871 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$6.80 per share, the closing price of the comstonk on the date of grant.
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On August 27, 2012, the Company's board of dirscpproved the extension of 30,435 options prelyaysinted to a member of
the immediate family of the CEO. Following the exg®n, the options can be exercised until Septei®dde?014.

NOTE 16 - REVERSE STOCK SPLIT:

On December 19, 2012, the Company filed with ther&ary of State of the State of Delaware a Cedtié of Amendment of the
Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of jpma@tion to effect a one-for-four reverse stochtsglits common stock (the
“Reverse Stock Split”), which decreased the nundb@ommon shares issued and outstanding from appedely 72.1 million
shares to approximately 18.0 million shares. Then@any’'s authorized common shares were not affdntdtie Reverse Stock
Split. All related share and per share data haea betroactively applied to the financial stateraetd their related notes for all
periods presented.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O RULE 13a-14(a)

I, Ofir Paz, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Transition Report on Forrn-KT/A of InspireMD, Inc. (the“registran”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistiie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatatnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15«15 (f)) for the registrant and ha\

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunegsaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@orting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rigggatide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes]j as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportiritat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr® that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewdent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controéofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarstinterna
control over financial reporting




Date: January 3, 2013

By: /s! Ofir Paz

Name: Ofir Paz
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Offige




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O RULE 13a-14(a)
I, Craig Shore, certify that:
| have reviewed this Transition Report on Forrn-KT/A of InspireMD, Inc. (the“registran”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistiie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatatnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15«15 (f)) for the registrant and ha\

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunegsaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@orting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rigggatide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes]j as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportiritat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr® that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewdent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controéofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarstinterna
control over financial reporting




Date: January 3, 2013

By: /sl Craig Shore

Name: Craig Shore
Title:  Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION FURNISHED PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002
This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies the

Transition Report on Form 10-KT/A (the “Form 10-KT) for the six months ended June 30, 2012 of Ire@dD, Inc. (the “Company”)., Ofir
Paz, the Chief Executive Officer of the Companytifyethat, based on my knowledge:

(1) The Form 1-KT/A fully complies with the requirements of Secti@3(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchacfeof 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Form KT/A fairly presents, in all material respects, flrncial condition and results of operati
of the Company as of and for the periods coverdtigreport.

Date: January 3, 2013

By: /s/ Ofir Paz
Name:Ofir Paz
Title: Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Offig¢

The foregoing certification is being furnished aseahibit to the Form 10-K pursuant to Item 601%2)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sctisns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitté 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FdrtaKT/A for purposes of Section 18 of the SecastExchange Act of 1934, as amended, an
is not incorporated by reference into any filingloéd Company, whether made before or after the lukerteof, regardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.




Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION FURNISHED PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002
This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies the
Transition Report on Form 10-KT/A (the “Form 10-KT) for the six months ended June 30, 2012 of IreddD, Inc. (the “Company”). |,
Craig Shore, the Chief Financial Officer of the Gumy, certify that, based on my knowledge:
(1) The Form 1-KT/A fully complies with the requirements of Secti@3(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchafcfeof 1934; anc
3) The information contained in the Form KT/A fairly presents, in all material respects, flrncial condition and results of operati
of the Company as of and for the periods coverdtigreport.

Date: January 3, 2013

By: /s/ Craig Shore
Name:Craig Shore
Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige

The foregoing certification is being furnished asexhibit to the Form 10-K/T pursuant to Item 60Q182) of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sctisns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitté 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FdrtaKT/A for purposes of Section 18 of the SecastExchange Act of 1934, as amended, an
is not incorporated by reference into any filingloéd Company, whether made before or after the lukerteof, regardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the shareholders of
InspireMD, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statenmfeopeiations, changes in equity (capital
deficiency) and cash flows present fairly, in aliterial respects, the financial position of InspiEg Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
at June 30, 2012, and the results of its operafondsts cash flows for the twelve months ended B 2012 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica. These financial statements are theorsipility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hfisancial statements based on our audit. We agirdwur audit of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Compacypunting Oversight Board (United States). Thetsendards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetathether the financial statements are free déri@ misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingutiheunts and disclosures in the financial statespaissessing the accounting principles use
and significant estimates made by management, aldating the overall financial statement presémtatVe believe that our audit provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigane been prepared assuming that the Companyawilintie as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated finant¢éksents, the Company has had recurring lossgatine cash flows from operating activit
and has significant future commitments that raigestantial doubt about its ability to continue agp@g concern. Management's plans in
regard to these matters are also described in Ndtae financial statements do not include any stdjents that might result from the outcome
of this uncertainty.

Tel Aviv, Israel /sl Kesselman & Kesselmi
January 3, 2013 Certified Public Accountants)Is
A member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Internationaited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Accounts receivable

Trade
Other
Prepaid expenst
Inventory:
On hanc
On consignment
Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT , net

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred debt issuance co
Fund in respect of employee rights upon retirement
Total non-current assets
Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.

INSPIREMD, INC.

(U.S. dollars in thousands)
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June 30
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
$ 10,28 8,07(
37 343
1,82« 614
264 18t
93 71
1,744 1,471
63 82
14,30¢ 10,83¢
462 304
961 8
282 19t
1,24: 203
$ 16,01« 11,34




INSPIREMD, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

June 30
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of lor-term loan $ 26¢
Accounts payable and accrue
Trade $ 441 76%
Other 2,92t 2,34«
Advanced payment from customers 174 544
Deferred revenues 10
Total current liabilities 3,55( 3,91¢
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Liability for employees rights upon retireme 354 264
Convertible loan: 5,01¢
Contingently redeemable warrants 1,70¢
Total long-term liabilities 7,07¢ 264
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  (Note 9)
Total liabilities 10,62¢ 4,18
EQUITY:
Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; 128)00Ghares authorized; 17,040,0<
and 16,046,290 shares issued and outstanding @t3Dyr2012 and 2011, respectiv 2 2
Additional paic-in capital 49,10¢ 33,28:
Accumulated deficit (43,727 (26,125
Total equity 5,38¢ 7,16(
Total liabilities and equity $ 16,01 $ 11,348

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)

REVENUES $ 534¢ $ 4,67(
COST OF REVENUES 2,84¢ 2,41¢
GROSS PROFIT 2,50( 2,251
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Research and developme 3,98¢ 1,65¢

Selling and marketin 2,17¢ 1,64<

General and administrative (including $9,549 an86@f share-based compensation fi

years ended June 30, 2012 (audited) and 2011 (iiedydespectively) 13,88 4,17

Total operating expenses 20,04¢ 7,47¢
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (17,549 (5,22%)
FINANCIAL EXPENSES (INCOME) , net 38 91z
LOSS BEFORE TAX EXPENSES (17,589 (6,140
TAX EXPENSES 14 37
NET LOSS $ (17,59) $ (6,177)
NET LOSS PER SHARE- basic and diluted $ (1.04) $ (0.4¢)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES USED IN

COMPUTING NET LOSS PER SHARE - basic and diluted 16,707,59 13,354,34

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CAPIT AL DEFICIENCY)

BALANCE AT JULY 1, 2010 (Unaudited)
CHANGES DURING 2011:
Net loss
Employee and nc-employee sha-based compensation expen
Conversion of convertible loz
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of $257 issuanste ¢
BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2011 (Unaudited)
CHANGES DURING 2012:
Net loss
Employee and nc-employee sha-based compensation expen
Acquisition and cancellation of shai
Exercise of options by employ
Beneficial conversion feature of convertible loan
BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2012 (Audited)

Ordinary shares

Total
Additional equity
Number of Par paid-in Accumulated (capital
shares value capital deficit deficiency)
U.S. dollars in thousanc
12,372,61 $ 1 3 19,30 $ (19,949 $ (647)
(6,177) (6,177)
3,94¢ 3,94¢
131,55¢ * 76¢ 76¢
3,542,11! 1 9,26¢ 9,27(
16,046,29 2 33,28 (26,12% 7,16(
(17,59 (17,597
748,44t * 10,55¢ 10,55¢
(4,69¢) * (21) (21)
250,00( * 1,50( 1,50(
3,79( 3,79(
17,040,04 2 3 49,10¢ $ (43,72) $ 5,38¢

* Represents an amount less than $1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

Year ended June 30

2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (17,59) $ (6,177)
Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to ashcused in operating activiti
Depreciation of property, plant and equipm 12C 8C
Loss from sale of property, plant and equipn 15
Change in liability for employees right upon retirent 72 124
Financial expenses (incom (65) 65¢
Sharebased compensation expen 10,55 1,90¢
Gains on amounts funded in respect of employeéasighon retirement, n D (9
Changes in operating asset and liability ite
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expel (22 18
Increase in trade receivabl (1,210 (67€)
Increase in other receivabl (93 (52)
Decrease in inventory on consignm 19 237
Increase in inventory on hai (273) (55¢%)
Increase (decrease) in trade paya (322) 232
Increase (decrease) in deferred revel 10 (309
Increase in other payable and advance paymentdustomers 22¢ 1,22¢
Net cash used in operating activities (8,580 (3,272)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease (increase) in restricted c 30¢ (88)
Purchase of property, plant and equipn (290 (75)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipt 12 29
Amounts funded in respect of employee rights umdinament, net (71) (80
Net cash used in investing activities (43 (219
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible loan andamésr net of issuance costs of $1,1.
in the year ended June 30, 2( 9,86¢
Proceeds from issuance of shares and warrantsf irestuance costs of $1,067, in the y
ended June 30, 20: 11,49t
Exercise of option 1,50(C
Proceeds from convertible loan at fair value thfopgpfit or loss, net of $60 issuance
costs 1,07:
Repayment of lor-term loan (2817) (375)
Acquisition and cancellation of shat (22)
Repayment of loans from sharehold (20
Repayment of convertible loans (1,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 11,06¢ 11,17¢
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (229) 13
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,21¢ 7,70(
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING O F PERIOD 8,07( 37C
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERI OD 10,28 8,07(
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Taxes on income paid $ 17 $ 45
Interest paid $ 22t $ 57

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1-

INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

InspireMD, Inc., formerly Saguaro Resources, Iftbe “Company”), a public company, is a Delawargpooation formed on
February 29, 2008. On March 28, 2011, the Compaayged its hame to InspireMD, Inc.

On December 29, 2010, the Company entered intaaeeFxchange Agreement (the “Exchange Agreememtdnial among the
Company and InspireMD Ltd., a limited company inmmated under the laws of the State of Israel inl/&R005. Subsequent to t
date of execution of the Exchange Agreement, sloédels of InspireMD Ltd., holding 91.7% of Inspir@M_td.’s issued and
outstanding ordinary shares, executed a joindtrad=xchange Agreement and became parties théhetolispireMD
Shareholders”). Pursuant to the Exchange Agreemarntarch 31, 2011, the InspireMD Shareholdersstiemed all of their
ordinary shares in InspireMD Ltd. to the Compangxechange for 11,617,977 newly issued shares oframmstock of the
Company (the “Initial Share Exchange”). In addititine remaining holders of InspireMD Ltd.’s ordipahares separately
transferred all of their ordinary shares of Inspii2 Ltd. to the Company, in exchange for an aggregétl, 048,689 newly issued
shares of common stock of the Company (the “FolimwShare Exchange”) and, together with the Iniilahre Exchange, the
“Share Exchange”). As a result of the Share ExchahtspireMD Ltd. became a wholly owned subsidiafithe Company.

The Share Exchange was accounted for as a rewm@gitalization, equivalent to the issuance oflstpclinspireMD Ltd. for the
net monetary assets of the Company. According®yhiktorical financial statements of the Comparfece the historical
operations and financial statements of InspireM. Lt

The Company, together with its subsidiaries, iseglical device company focusing on the developmedtc@mmercialization of i
proprietary stent platform technology, MGuard™. MEl™ provides embolic protection in stenting praged by placing a
micron mesh sleeve over a stent. The Companyiglipitoducts are marketed for use in patients withite coronary syndromes,
notably acute myocardial infarction (heart attaahdl saphenous vein graft coronary interventionpdby surgery). The Company
markets its products through distributors in inédional markets, mainly in Europe and Latin America

In addition, the Company operates in Germany thinatgywholly-owned subsidiary, InspireMD GmbH, ar@ean limited liability
company incorporated in November 2007, where thmg@2my subcontracts the manufacturing of its stents.

On December 19, 2012, the Company filed with ther&ary of State of the State of Delaware a Cedtié of Amendment of the
Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of jpma@tion to effect a one-for-four reverse stochtsglits common stock (the
“Reverse Stock Split”), which decreased the nunddeommon shares issued and outstanding from appedely 72.1 million
shares to approximately 18.0 million shares. Then@any’s authorized common shares were not affdntdtie Reverse Stock
Split. All related share and per share data haea betroactively applied to the financial staterseantd their related notes for all
periods presented.

The Company has had recurring losses and negatsreftows from operating activities and has sigatfit future commitments.
For the year ended June 30, 2012, the Companyoksadd of approximately $17.6 million and negataghcflows from operating
activities of approximately $8.6 million. The Conmy&s management believes that its working capgadfaJune 30, 2012 of
approximately $10.8 million should enable it to toue funding the negative cash flows from operattivities until October
2013, when its 2012 Convertible Debentures (defamedl described in Note 6a) are subject to a noimgget redemption option
that could require the Company to make a payme#i8f3 million, including accrued interest. Sinbe Company expects to
continue incurring negative cash flows from openagiand in light of the cash requirement in corinaawith the 2012 Convertible
Debentures, there is substantial doubt about tiep@ay’s ability to continue operating as a goingaan. These financial
statements include no adjustments of the valuaessdts and liabilities and the classification tbkriéany, that will apply if the
Company is unable to continue operating as a guangern.
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NOTE 2 -

INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company will need to raise further capitalahe future point in time, through the sale of addl equity securities or debt.
The Company'’s future capital requirements and tfezjaacy of the Company’s available funds will depen many factors,
including the Company’s ability to successfully aoercialize the Company’s MGuaf¥f products, development of future
products, competing technological and market dgraknts, and the need to enter into collaboratiagtis ather companies or
acquire other companies or technologies to enhancemplement the Company’s product offerings. Havethe Company may
be unable to raise sufficient additional capitabwlthe Company will need it or with favorable terifise terms of any securities
issued by the Company in future financing may beenfavorable to new investors, and may includegregfces, superior voting
rights and the issuance of warrants or other dévizaecurities, which may have a further dilutéféect on the holders of any of
the Company’s securities then outstanding. If tbenGany is unable to obtain adequate funds on reat®terms, the Company
will need to curtail operations significantly, inding possibly postponing or halting the Comparyrstes States of America
(“U.S.”) Food and Drug Administration clinical tisaor entering into financing agreements with waative terms.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

Accounting principles

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatlyepted in the United
States (“U.S. GAAP").

Use of estimate:

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make edtsusing
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etsssid liabilities, the disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reponteauats of sales and expenses during the reporériggs. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

As applicable to these consolidated financial statgs, the most significant estimates and assumgptilate to inventory
write-off, provisions for returns, legal contingées, estimation of the fair value of shdr@sed compensation and estimatic
the fair value of warrants.

Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic environment/frich the operations of the Company and its sudnséd are conducted
is the U.S. dollar (“$” or “dollar”). Accordinglythe functional currency of the Company and of tiesgdiaries is the dollar.

The dollar figures are determined as follows: teations and balances originally denominated inadslare presented in their
original amounts. Balances in foreign currenciesteanslated into dollars using historical and entiexchange rates for non-
monetary and monetary balances, respectively. @hgting translation gains or losses are recorddihancial income or
expense, as appropriate. For transactions refléctéd statements of operations in foreign curies)che exchange rates at
transaction dates are used. Depreciation and ckangeventories and other changes deriving from-nmnetary items are
based on historical exchange rates.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and of its subsidiariegrtampany transactions
and balances have been eliminated upon consolidatio

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmenitich include short-term bank deposits (up te¢hmonths from date of
deposit), that are not restricted as to withdraevalse, to be cash equivalents.

Restricted cash

The Company maintains certain cash amounts resiract to withdrawal or use, related to credit caRestricted cash is
denominated in dollars and New Israel Shekel (“NISkte also Note 9¢(2).

Concentration of credit risk and allowance for doultful accounts

Financial instruments that may potentially subjbet Company to a concentration of credit risk cetnsi cash, cash
equivalents and restricted cash, which are dembsitenajor financial institutions in the “U.S.” reel and Germany, and trade
accounts receivable. The Company’s trade accoentsvable are derived from revenues earned froitoewess from various
countries. The Company performs ongoing creditieatadns of its customers’ financial condition agdnerally, requires no
collateral from its customers. The Company alsoshaedit insurance policy for some of its custasn&he Company
maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts reaigir based upon the expected ability to collecattwunts receivable. Tl
Company reviews its allowance for doubtful accountarterly by assessing individual accounts red¢dévand all other
balances based on historical collection experiemcean economic risk assessment. If the Compamyrdigtes that a specific
customer is unable to meet its financial obligatibtmthe Company, the Company provides an allowéoroeredit losses to
reduce the receivable to the amount managemerdrrably believes will be collected. To mitigate Eskhe Company
deposits cash and cash equivalents with high cgedility financial institutions.

Provisions for doubtful accounts receivable ar¢egetgainst “Accounts receivable-Trade.”
Inventory

Inventories include finished goods, work in procasd raw materials. Inventories are stated aloiver of cost (cost is
determined on a “first-in, first-out” basis) or rkat value. The Company’s inventories generally healimited shelf life and
are subject to impairment as they approach theiratxon dates. The Company regularly evaluatec#ngying value of the
Company’s inventories and when, in the Companyigiop, factors indicate that impairment has ocadirtee Company
establishes a reserve against the inventoriesyiogrvalue. The Company’s determination that a &adun reserve might be
required and the quantification of such reserveliregmanagement to utilize significant judgmenttiWespect to inventory
on consignment, see Note 2k.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cesgfraccumulated depreciation and amortizatiomrBeation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimateful lives of the related assets: over three yearsomputers and other
electronic equipment, five years for vehicles aawkes to fifteen years for office furniture and gament and machinery and
equipment (mainly seven years). Leasehold improviésnere amortized on a straight-line basis ovetdha of the lease,
which is shorter than the estimated life of the iayements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews its property, plant and equignfa impairment whenever events or changes ituaistances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may noebeverable. If the sum of the expected future dasts (undiscounted and
without interest charges) of the property, plard eguipment is less than the carrying amount ofl sissets, an impairment
loss would be recognized, and the assets wouldritiemvdown to their estimated fair values.

To date, the Company has not recorded any impairoterges relating to its property, plant and eopgpt.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when delivery has occurreiderce of an arrangement exists, title and rigkd sewards for tt
products are transferred to the customer, colledaeasonably assured and product returns caalibély estimated. Whe
product returns can be reliably estimated a prowiss recorded, based on historical experience daddicted from revenu
The provision for product returns and related casts included in “Accounts payable and accruale@thuinder ‘Curren
liabilities” and “Inventory-On consignment,” respieely.

When returns cannot be reliably estimated, botted|revenues and costs are deferred, and preserded“Deferred
revenues” and “Inventory-On consignment,” respexdyiv

As of June 30, 2012, there are no deferred reveraleted to sales for which the rate of return cafe reliably estimated.
The Company’s revenue arrangements may contaivedlof free products upon the achievement of dalegts. Each
period, the Company estimates the amount of fredumts to which these distributors will be entitlibed upon the expected
achievement of sales targets and defers a portimvenues accordingly.

The Company recognizes revenue net of value adoe@{/AT).

Research and development cos

Research and development costs are charged ttateengnt of operations as incurred.

Share-based compensatiol

Employee option awards are classified as equity@svand accounted for using the grant-date fairevatethod. The fair
value of share-based awards is estimated usingl#uk-Scholes valuation model and expensed overetteisite service

period, net of estimated forfeitures. The Compastinetes forfeitures based on historical experiemzkanticipated future
conditions.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company elected to recognize compensation eggefior awards with only service conditions thatehgraded vestir
schedules using the accelerated multiple optiomcamh.

The Company accounts for equity instruments isgoetthird party service providers (n@mployees), by recording the 1
value of the options granted using an option pgamnodel, at each reporting period, until awards asted in full. Th
expense is recognized over the vesting period ubm@ccelerated multiple option approach.

However, when the grant relates to options grataetiird parties as consideration for introducingestors to the Compal
the costs are recorded as issuance costs, of tlreigdinancial instruments issued.

In addition, certain share-based awards of the Gmypare performance based and dependent upon exthe®rtain goals.
With respect to these awards, the company estintia¢esxpected pre-vesting award probability thatglrformance
conditions will be achieved. The Company only retings expense for the shares that are expectezkto v

Uncertain tax positions

The Company follows a two-step approach to recaggiand measuring uncertain tax positions. The $itep is to evaluate
the tax position for recognition by determiningh& weight of available evidence indicates thét ihore likely than not that
the position will be sustained on audit. If undee first step a tax provision is assessed to be fiilaly than not of being
sustained on audit, the second step is performmateruvhich the tax benefit is measured as the sa@mount that is more
than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate set#at. Such liabilities are classified as long-teamigss the liability is
expected to be resolved within twelve months fromltalance sheet date. The Company’s policy isdade interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitsimithinancial expenses (income)-net”.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred taxes are determined utilizing the “aaset liability” method based on the estimated futaseeffects of differences
between the financial accounting and tax basess#ta and liabilities under the applicable tax |eamsl on tax rates
anticipated to be in effect when the deferred taxesexpected to be paid or realized. The Compasgsaes realization of
deferred income tax assets and, based on all biegaidence, concludes whether it is more likbnt not that the net
deferred income tax assets will be realized. A a@tin allowance is provided for the amount of defdrincome tax assets not
considered to be realizable.

The Company may incur additional tax liability letevent of intercompany dividend distributionsitsysubsidiary. Such
additional tax liability in respect of these foreigubsidiaries has not been provided for in thesm€ial statements as it is the
Company’s policy to permanently reinvest the subsigls’ earnings and to consider distributing dérids only when this can
be facilitated in connection with a specific taypoptunity that may arise.

Taxes that would apply in the event of disposaheéstments in the foreign subsidiary have not liakan into account in
computing the deferred taxes, as it is the Commaimgention to hold, and not to realize, this irwesnt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Advertising

Costs related to advertising and promotion of potslare charged to sales and marketing expensewasead. Advertising
expenses were $590 thousand and $386 thousarttefgears ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively

Net loss per share

Basic and diluted net loss per share is computediigling the net loss for the year by the weighawdrage number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Thautaion of diluted net loss per share excludespital ordinary shares as
the effect is anti-dilutive. Potential ordinary sbsare comprised of incremental ordinary shamsisle upon the exercise of
share options, warrants and convertible loans.

For the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, éflawydshares underlying outstanding options, wasrand convertible loar
have been excluded from the calculation of theteduoss per share since their effect was anttidduThe total number of
ordinary shares related to outstanding optionstamés and convertible loans excluded from the datmns of diluted loss pe
share were 8,117,577 and 4,056,060 for the yeasdedune 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Segment reporting
The Company has one operating and reportable segmen
Factoring of receivables

The Company entered into factoring agreements atmmuto $1,200 thousand during the year ended 3002011, with
certain banking institutions on a non-recourseshagie factoring of trade receivables under thgseesments were accounted
for as sales. Under the terms of these factoringeagents, the Company transferred ownership obédigrade receivables
without recourse to the respective banking instihg in exchange for cash. Proceeds on the transfflect the face value of
the account less a discount. The discounts, oti§d2sand during the year ended June 30, 2011, weoeded to “Financial
expenses (income)-net” within the ConsolidatedeBtants of Operations. There were no such fact@gmgements for the
year ended June 30, 2012.

The receivables sold pursuant to these factoringesgents are excluded from “Accounts receivabla@tan the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and are reflectedsaspeavided by operating activities on the Consatd Statements of Cash
Flows. The banking institution had no recoursehedo@ompany’s assets for failure of debtors to pagmdue.

The related commissions on the sales of tradevablkeis sold under these factoring agreements ammguot $0 thousand and
$23 thousand during the years ended June 30, 2@2G411, respectively, were recorded to “Finanexgdenses (income)-net
within the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair value measurement:

The Company measures fair value and disclosegdhie measurements for financial assets and ligsiliFair value is based
on the price that would be received to sell antamspaid to transfer a liability in an orderly isaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The accounting standard establishes a fair valeiautuhy that prioritizes observable and unobseevatputs used to measure
fair value into three broad levels, which are diesat below:
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Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active me@rkieat are accessible at the measurement datsdets or liabilities. The
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priorityLvel 1 inputs.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inpttguoted on active markets, but corroboratechbyket data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when littte@market data is available. The fair value higrg gives the lowest
priority to Level 3 inputs.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizesuatlon techniques that maximize the use of obséviaputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent plesaifd considers counterparty credit risk in itse@sment of fair value.

Put warrants

Put warrants that embody an obligation to repureltas Company’s equity shares, or are indexeddb an obligation, and
that require or may require the Company to sdtteabligation by transferring assets are withingbepe of Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC") 480-10-25-8, and ereognized as a liability and measured at faineat each reporting
date, with changes in fair value recorded in egrisee Note 6a(4)(A

Beneficial conversion feature“ BCF")

When the Company issues convertible debt, if theksprice is greater than the effective convergiooe (after allocation of
the total proceeds) on the measurement date, theecsion feature is considered "beneficial" tohb&ler. If there is no
contingency, this difference is treated as issugdty and reduces the carrying value of the hobt;dbe discount is accreted
as deemed interest on the debt. See Note 6a(-

Embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives in debt contracts that areleatly and closely related to the host debt #tedated and accounted for
separately. Those embedded derivatives are meaaufaid value each reporting date, with changdgaiinvalue recorded in
earnings. See Note 6a(4)(B).

Allocation of issuance proceed

The Company allocated proceeds from its issuancelatf that was sold with detachable warrants ttetkssified as liabilit
as follows: first to the warrants based on thdlirfair value; then to any embedded derivativethie debt that require
bifurcation at their fair values; then the residaidount of the proceeds to the debt. See Note (&@)(4)

Newly adopted accounting guidanci
Fair value measurement

In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standargddtie No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topi®):82
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureraedtDisclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFR&SU
2011-04"). ASU 2011-04 changes certain fair vallemasurement principles and clarifies the applicabbexisting fair value
measurement guidance. These amendments includegaotirers, (1) the application of the highest a@st nse and valuation
premise concepts, (2) measuring the fair valuenahatrument classified in a reporting entity’s iglders’ equity and (3)
disclosing quantitative information about the urefable inputs used within the Level 3 hierarchy.
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Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted 2811L-04. The adoption of this accounting standapdiate did not have
a material impact on the Company’s consolidatearfgial statements.

NOTE 3- FAIR VALUE MEASURMENT

Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

a.

The following table summarizes the balances fos¢hiinancial liabilities where fair value measuremseare estimated
utilizing Level 2 and Level 3 input

Level June 30, 201:
(% in thousands)
2012 Warrants at fair valt 2 1,70¢
Embedded derivative 3 49
$ 1,75¢

The following tables summarize the activity for skdinancial liabilities where fair value measuratseare estimated utilizing
Level 3 inputs

Embedded Derivative Convertible Loan

(% in thousands) (% in thousands)
Balance as of July 1, 2010 (Unauditec $ = =
Issuance: 1,13¢
Total losses (gains) (realized and unrealizedluthed in earnings -

Financial expenses (income), | 53t
Conversion to Compar's shares of common sto (66¢)
Redemptior (1,000
Balance as of June 30, 2011 (Unaudite - -
Issuance: 8
Total losses (gains) (realized and unrealizedluthed in earnings -

Financial expenses (income), net 41
Balance as of June 30, 2012 (Auditel $ 49 $ S

Level 3 liabilities include an embedded derivatigtated to the Company’s senior secured convertibleenture due April 5,
2014, as described in Note 6a. The Company vaheekdvel 3 embedded derivative using an interrddlyeloped valuation
model, whose inputs include recovery rates, cigatiéads, stock prices, and volatilities, as desdritelow.

In calculating the fair value of embedded derivatithe Company used the following assumptions: Gamwyp credit spread ¢
23.1% and 26.5% for the transaction date and foe B0, 2012, respectively, Company’s recovery 0a#9.8% and 49.8%
for the transaction date and forJune 30, 2012 eagely, probability of non-financial event of defit 5% and 5% for the
transaction date and for June 30, 2012, respegtivel
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The credit spread is the yield to maturity of riddlgnds over risk free bonds and was based on aagvef sample
comparable companies.

The recovery rate is the estimated amount to bevered through bankruptcy procedures in eventdsfault , expressed as a
percentage of face value .

A non{inancial event of default is a contractual eveindefault which does not result from a declininggiicial standing of tt
Company.

The fair value of the warrants included in Levé$ 2stimated using the Black & Scholes model.

In calculating the fair value of warrants, the Camy used the following assumptions: expected tdrfhamd 4.76 years for
the transaction date and for June 30, 2012, reispctexpected volatility of 66.1% and 69.6% foettransaction date and
June 30, 2012, respectively; risk-free interest odt1.01% and 0.72% for the transaction date andidne 30, 2012,
respectively; and dividend yield of 0%.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments ideld in working capital approximate their fair vakither because these
amounts are presented at fair value or due toelagively short-term maturities of such instrumefiise carrying amount of
the Company’s other financial long-term assetsathdr financial longerm liabilities (other than the debentures) appnate
their fair value. The fair value of the Companyeh®r secured convertible debenture due April 3428pproximates the
carrying amount (after considering the BCF, as dlesd in Note 6a).

NOTE 4- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a. Composition of assets, grouped by major classiticat is as follows

June 30
2012 2011
(% in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Cost:
Computer equipmer 14z 99
Office furniture and equipmel 83 55
Machinery and equipme 59¢ 454
Leasehold improvements 111 47
934 65¢
Less - accumulated depreciation and amortization (472) (357
Net carrying amour $ 46z $ 304

b. Depreciation and amortization expenses totaledoapately $120 thousand and $80 thousand for thaesyended June 30,
2012 and 2011, respective

NOTE 5- LIABILITY FOR EMPLOYEES RIGHT UPON RETIREMENT

Israeli labor law generally requires payment ofesance pay upon dismissal of an employee or upamiration of employment in
certain other circumstances.
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Pursuant to section 14 of the Israeli Severancepgeasation Act, 1963, some of the Company’s empkgee entitled to have
monthly deposits, at a rate of 8.33% of their mbn#falary, made in their name with insurance congmriPayments in accordance
with section 14 relieve the Company from any futsegerance payments to these employees.

The severance pay liability of the Company for gt of its employees, which reflects the undistedimmount of the liability, is
based upon the number of years of service andatestimonthly salary. The severance pay liabisitgartly covered by insurance
policies and by regular deposits with recognizesgtsmce payment funds. The Company may only maktevawals from the
amounts funded for the purpose of paying severpageThe severance pay expenses were approxinfdté/thousand and $149
thousand in the years ended June 30, 2012 and &txlkctively.

Defined contribution plan expenses were $206 ari$the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, tesggcGain on amounts
funded with respect to employee rights upon reteentotaled to approximately $1 thousand and $@ghand for the years ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company expects contribution plan expenseisdalfyear 2013 to be approximately $198 thousand.
NOTE 6 - CONVERTIBLE LOANS

a. On April 5, 2012, the Company issued senior secaoewertible debentures (the “2012 Convertible Deines”) due April 5,
2014 in the original aggregate principal amoursbf, 702,128 and five-year warrants (the “2012 Weas3 to purchase an
aggregate of 835,866 shares of its common stoak akercise price of $7.20 per share in a privietegment transaction in
exchange for aggregate gross proceeds of $11,0808adhd. The 2012 Convertible Debentures bear sitatean annual rate
8% (payable quarterly beginning on July 1, 2012) are convertible at any time into shares of comstonk at an initial
conversion price of $7.00 per she

The relevant features of the 2012 Convertible Dalres and 2012 Warrants are summarized below:
1) 2012 Convertible Debenture:
A. Conversion and contingent convers

The 2012 Convertible Debentures, including acciinestest on such 2012 Convertible Debentures, angartible at any
time, in whole or part, at the option of the hokleto shares of common stock at an initial coneergrice of $7.00 per
share, subject to adjustment for stock splits, &mental transactions or similar events and an iadditconversion
adjustment described below.

The number of conversion shares issuable upongecsinn shall be determined by the quotient obthimedividing (x) the
sum of (a) the outstanding principal amount to &mverted, (b) at the option of the holder, a portio all of any accrued and
unpaid interest to be converted and (c) the comveadjustment amount by (y) the conversion pride

“conversion adjustment amount” is calculated bytiplying the principal amount being converted bfyaction, the
numerator of which is (a) the number of days eldgsam the original issue date multiplied by (b21917808; and the
denominator of which is 100. The maximum numbedayfs elapsed to be used in calculating the cororeesijustment
amount will not be greater than 548 days regardiéfise actual number of days elapsed from thdmalgssue date.
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The Company may force conversion of the 2012 CadiblerDebentures if the closing bid price of then@many’s common
stock equals or exceeds 165% of the conversioe [fwictwenty consecutive trading days, the mininuaily trading volume
for such period is $1,100 thousand, all of the ulyd®y shares during such period are either remgstéor resale with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or eligibledsale pursuant to Rule 144 and there is no egistient of default or
existing event which, with the passage of timehergiving of notice, would constitute an event efadilt during such period.

The 2012 Convertible Debentures contain certaiitditions on conversion. No conversion may be mgdter giving effect
to the conversion, any holder would beneifially owrexcess of 4.99% of the Company’s outstandirageshof common
stock. This percentage may be increased to a pagenot to exceed 9.99%, at the option of suctidnpkbxcept any increase
will not be effective until the holder has given @dys’ prior notice to the Company.

The 2012 Convertible Debentures impose penaltigh@@Company for any failure to timely deliver ahares of its common
stock issuable upon conversion.

B. Events of default and holc's contingent redemption optit

If there is an event of default as stipulated mdgreement, then by election of the holders hgldileast 60% of the 2012
Convertible Debentures, the Company must redeenf #ie 2012 Convertible Debentures in cash forRd 42 the
outstanding principal, together with all unpaid @edrued interest, all interest that would haventgyable through the
maturity date and any other amounts due under@h& Zonvertible Debentures (such amount, the “Mamgdefault
Amount”). The Mandatory Default Amount will accrugerest at a rate of 24% per annum commencindefifth calendar
date following the relevant event of default.

C. Holder's noncontingent redemption opti

Commencing 18 months following the original issuadate of the 2012 Convertible Debentures, thegnsithay require the
Company to redeem all or a portion of the 2012 @aiiivie Debentures, for a price equal to 112% efamount of principal
to be redeemed plus all accrued but unpaid intarebbther amounts due under the 2012 ConvertibebBtures.

D. Compan’s noncontingent redemption opti

Commencing 6 months following the original issuadage of the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the Compzay redeem all
or a portion of the 2012 Convertible Debenturesafprice equal to 112% of the amount of principabé¢ redeemed plus all
accrued but unpaid interest and other amounts dderuhe 2012 Convertible Debentures.

E. Covenant:

The 2012 Convertible Debentures contain certaieoamts which prohibit or limit the Company’s arglstibsidiaries ability
to, among other things:

1. pay cash dividends to its stockholde

2. redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire morealie minimis number of shares of its Common Stwck
Common Stock equivalent

3. incur additional indebtednes

4. permit liens on assets or conduct sales of as
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5. effectuate stock splits until April 5, 2013, eptin connection with an initial listing on a raatal securities
exchange or to meet the continued listing requirgmef such exchang

6. cease making public filings under the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amend

7. engage in transactions with affiliates; ¢

8. amend its charter documents in a way that woulcerizdly and adversely affect any holder of the Debees.

F. Pro rata distributions

If the Company, at any time while the 2012 ConWetDebentures are outstanding, distributes tbaters of common sto
evidences of its indebtedness or assets (incluthish and cash dividends) or rights or warrantsibsaibe for or purchase
any security other than the common stock, thenngmy conversion of the 2012 Convertible Debentutesholder shall be
entitled to receive such distribution to the saxtert that the holder would have if the holder hattl the number of
conversion shares issued upon such conversioredf@h2 Convertible Debentures immediately befoeedidite on which a
record was taken for such distribution, or, if mels record was taken, the date as of which therdewolders of shares of
common stock were determined for the participaitiosuch distribution.

2) 2012 Warrants

A. Exercisability

The 2012 Warrants are immediately exercisable iarthe aggregate, entitle the holders to purchase 835,866 shares of
common stock. The 2012 Warrants have an initiai@se price of $7.20 per share payable in casthe 2012 Warrants

expire on April 5, 2017.

Similar to the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the22@farrants also contain limitations on exercisé Wauld cause the holc
to beneficially own in excess of 4.99% or 9.99%taf Company’s outstanding common stock.

B. Anti-dilution protection

The exercise price of the 2012 Warrants and thebeurof shares issuable upon exercise of the 201r2aa are subject to
adjustments for stock splits, combinations or samdvents.

C. “Most favored natic”

The 2012 Warrants are also subject to an adjustmestiant to which, in the event that the Compasyeés or is deemed to
have issued certain securities with terms thasaperior to those of the 2012 Warrants, except reisipect to exercise price
and warrant coverage, the superior terms will aatisally be incorporated into the 2012 Warrants.

D. Contingent holder redemption optir

Upon the occurrence of a transaction involving angfe of control that is (i) an all cash transact{dha “Rule 13e-3
transaction” as defined in Rule 13e-3 under thauBiges Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, orifiiplving a person or
entity not traded on a national securities exchatigeholders of the 2012 Warrants will have tight;i among others, to have
the 2012 Warrants repurchased for a purchase ipricash equal to the Blackeholes value of the then unexercised portic
the 2012 Warrants.
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E. Pro rata distributions
Similar to the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the22@farrants allow exercising holders to particigatpro rata distributions
F. Public information failure

If the Company fails for any reason to satisfy ¢herent public information requirement under Rud(t) then, in addition t
any other remedies available to the holders, thmg2my must pay to the holders, in cash, partiaidigted damages as set
forth in the agreement.

3) Transaction costs

In connection with the Transaction, the Companyl [igsuance costs, including placement agent arad fegs, of
approximately $1,200 thousand, and issued five-yearants (“2012 Placement Agents Warrants”) tapase 78,078 shares
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise @fi&¥.20 per share to the placement agent.

4) Accounting treatment
A. 2012 Warrants

The Company determined, based on the provisioASaf 480-10-25-8, that equity classification is fpuded because of the
redeemable option of the holders in the eventafange in control (in certain conditions), whiclaisevent that is not within
the Company’s control. Accordingly, the 2012 Watsaare classified as a liability in the ConsolideBalance Sheets and
measured at fair value at each reporting perio@. falr value of the 2012 Warrants is estimatedg#fie Black-Scholes
valuation model. See Note 2u.

In calculating the fair value of the 2012 Warrafiteluding the 2012 Placement Agents Warrants) Gbmpany used the
following assumptions: expected term of 5 and 4&&s for the transaction date and for June 32 2@%kpectively; expect
volatility of 66.1% and 69.6% for the transacticaateland for June 30, 2012, respectively; risk-finéerest rate of 1.01% and
0.72% for the transaction date and for June 302 2@kpectively; and dividend yield of 0%.

B. 2012 Convertible Debentur

In accordance with ASC 470-20, “Debt with Convensémd Other Options,” the Company determined tHBCE existed at
the issuance date of the 2012 Convertible Debesntiiitee BCF amounting to $3,790 thousand was reddrdequity.

In addition, the Company analyzed the holders’ iogeint redemption option based on the guidancelatigd in Topic 815,
and concluded that the holders’ contingent redeanpiption is not clearly and closely related todlebt host contract. Thus,
the Company bifurcated and accounted for it sepgras an embedded derivative and classifieddggtteer with the 2012
Convertible Debentures, in its statement of finahposition. This embedded derivative will be meaduwat fair value at each
reporting period. The fair value of the embeddedvdéive is estimated using the binominal valuatinadel.

In addition, the Company analyzed the holders’ matiagent redemption option and determined thaptiepayment options
are clearly and closely related to the debt hostreot and should not be bifurcated from the 20@8v@rtible Debentures.
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The gross proceeds amounting to $11,000 thousandtfie 2012 Convertible Debentures transaction akoeated as
follows:

« 2012 Warrants at fair value - $2,807 thousand basédtieir fair value;

. embedded derivative - $8 thousand based on itsdhie; and

« 2012 Convertible Debentures 8,%$85 thousand based on the residual amount hfallocation of other compone
as described above. In addition, an amount of BtA@usand was recognized as a BCF against the @0dvertible
Debentures

The 2012 Convertible Debentures are subsequenthguned at amortized cost on the basis of the aféettterest method
over the loan period until the maturity date.

C. Transaction cost

Direct transaction costs of $1,394 thousand, whicluded the placement agents fees and the 20t2mknt Agents
Warrants valued at $262 thousand as of the trapsadate , as well as other issuance costs, whkreasd to the various
instruments associated with the 2012 Convertibledbéures pro-rata to the amount such instruments weeorded as of the
transaction date. The amounts that were allocatéliet 2012 Warrants at fair value and embeddedatere were recorded
“Financial expenses” and the remainder amountir§ft637 thousand was recorded as “Deferred dalame® costs” in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and will be amortized the loan period using the effective interesthod until the maturity
date.

In July 2010, InspireMD Ltd. entered into a sedesitpurchase agreement, pursuant to which InspirékdDissued (i) 8%
senior convertible debentures in the principal amad $1.58 million (the “2010 Convertible Debergsf) and (i) three year
warrants (the “2010 Warrants”) to purchase up 18,888 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$4.62 per share (as
adjusted for the Share Exchange) in exchange fyneggate gross proceeds of $1.58 million. The 20a0v€Ertible Debenture
accrued interest at the annual rate of 8% and peyable on the later of (i) two months followingegt by InspireMD Ltd.
of a tax ruling from the Israeli Tax Authority thifite issuance of shares of a U.S. “shell compamgxchange for securities
held by shareholders and option holders of InspDdMd. would constitute a deferred tax event fagmeMD Ltd. and/or its
security holders or (ii) the six month anniversafyhe issuance of the 2010 Convertible Debent(ites“Original Maturity
Date); provided however, that so long as the Compaas not in default under the 2010 Convertible &gbres, InspireMD
Ltd. had the right to extend the maturity dateh&f 2010 Convertible Debentures to nine monthsyiaiig the Original
Maturity Date (the* Second Maturity Da”).

If InspireMD Ltd. completed a qualified financing connection with a reverse merger prior to thegi@al Maturity Date, ¢
the Second Maturity Date, if applicable, the haddef the 2010 Convertible Debentures had the optioconvert the 201
Convertible Debentures into shares of common stét¢ke surviving corporation at $6.00 per sharberepaid in cash.

In addition, provided that there was not an evémtedault, if InspireMD Ltd. completed a financifigr at least $3 million
prior to the Second Maturity Date, the 2010 CoriklrtDebentures would automatically convert intdinary shares of
InspireMD Ltd. at a 15% discount to the pricingtloé new financing.

Finally, if an event of default had not occurreddany 2010 Convertible Debentures were still @aniding, following the
Second Maturity Date, such 2010 Convertible Delrestwould automatically convert into ordinary slsaoéInspireMD Ltd.
(i) if InspireMD Ltd. completed a financing for ktast $3 million prior to the one year anniversafryhe Second Maturity
Date, at a 15% discount to the pricing of the nimarfcing, or (ii) or if InspireMD Ltd. did not cortgie a financing for at
least $3 million prior to the one year anniversairthe Second Maturity Date, at $10 per ordinagrsh
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Upon an event of default under the 2010 Converfil#bentures, the holders had the right to demaypoheat of all then
unpaid principal and accrued but unpaid interegieuthe 2010 Convertible Debentures.

The Company elected to apply the fair value optemarding the 2010 Convertible Debentures in acurd with ASC 825
(i.e. the 2010 Convertible Debentures were measafredch balance sheet date at fair value andhtineges in their fair value
were recorded in profit and loss). See Note 3.

The proceeds from the 2010 Convertible DebentuagJaction were allocated to the 2010 ConvertibleeDeures at their fe
value with the residual proceeds ascribed to tH& 2Warrants as follows:

* 2010 Debenture at fair value - $1,133 thousand; a
e 2010 Warrants - $447 thousand, net of $23 thoigiirect transaction costs.

The issuance of the 2010 Warrants was recorddkif¥dditional paid-in capital”, net of $23 thoushdirect transaction
costs allocated to the 2010 Warrants.

On March 31, 2011, holders of the 2010 Convertilbédentures surrendered $667,596 of outstandingipahand interest
due under such debentures in exchange for shamsyfion stock and warrants as part of the Companmyate placement
on such date (the “Debt Conversions”) as describ@tbte 10b.

As a result of the Debt Conversions, there was Biomof unpaid principal outstanding remainingdan the 2010
Convertible Debentures on March 31, 2011, which reasid by the Company in May 2011, plus all acdrimerest thereon.

On January 4, 2011, InspireMD Ltd. entered intmavertible loan agreement with its distributor gmadel (the “Lender”)in
the amount of $100 thousand subject to the follgvdganditions:

- the convertible loan did not bear annual interest;

- inthe event of a share exchange or similar trarsgaahe Lender would have, at its sole discrettbe option to convert
the loan into either (i) shares of the Companysicmn stock at a price of $4.92 per share ($10 fpenesprior to the
Share Exchange), or (ii) the Compasiproduct at a price of 400 euro per unit (whigiresented the market price for
Lender);

« inthe event that the Company did not close a seserbange or similar transaction by June 1, 201el ] ender had the
right to extend the loan and its terms for up t@dditional 6 months (as noted in Note 1, the ErRgleaAgreement was
closed on March 31, 2011); a
« in no event was cash required to be repaid by tmagany.

On June 1, 2011 the Lender surrendered the $1@@&nd convertible loan in exchange for 20,290 shafeommon stock
the Company.

In April 2008 InspireMD Ltd. entered into a convbi® loan agreement with certain lenders. Undey dgreement, the lend
were issued convertible notes in the aggregateipahamount of $720 thousand, bearing annualéstesf 10%, in exchan
for $720 thousand. While the notes did not haveaturity date, they were repayable on demand upavant of default. Tt
notes were convertible, at any time, into ordinstigres of InspireMD Ltd. at the option of the hodd

The notes were automatically convertible into cadyinshares of InspireMD Ltd. if InspireMD Ltd. cotafed a financing that

resulted in at least $1 million (“qualified finang"), at the lower conversion price of: (i) $5.2®;(ii) a discount of 30% on
the price per share in such qualified financing.
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The notes were also automatically convertible ardinary shares of InspireMD Ltd. upon an initiabtic offering (“IPO”) or
upon a consolidation, merger or sale of all asseshares of InspireMD Ltd. (“exit transaction&), the lower conversion pri
of: (i) $5.92; or (ii) a discount of 20% on theg@iper share in such exit transaction.

In accordance with ASC 4720 "Debt with Conversion and Other Options",, tr@r@any determined that a BCF existe
the issuance date of these notes, totaling $308tml. Because these notes did not have a staleshpéon date (except
an event of default), and could be converted byhiider at any time, the BCF was recognized imntefliaon the issuan
date under “Financial expenses (income)-net” inGbasolidated Statements of Operations.

In March 2009 these convertible notes were fullyaid (principal and accrued interest) due to adired the covenants by
InspireMD Ltd. InspireMD Ltd. allocated the procsgquhid between the portion related to the redemmifdhe beneficial
conversion feature and that related to the corhlertban, based on the guidance in ASC 470-20.drapany measured the
portion allocated to the beneficial conversion dieatbased on the intrinsic value of the converfgature at the
extinguishment date, which amounted to $308 thali$ahich equals the original BCF since the pricénspireMD Ltd.’s
shares on the issuance date and the redemptiowdatihe same). Accordingly, the difference betwleramount allocated
to the BCF plus the loan’s carrying amount, andcdh paid, was recognized as financial incomberConsolidated
Statements of Operations.

LONG-TERM LOAN

In January 2009, InspireMD Ltd. signed a loan agweat with Mizrahi Tefahot Bank. According to theegment, InspireMD Ltd.
was entitled to receive the following:

1.

A loan (the “First Loan”) amounting to $750 tilsand, bearing annual interest (paid quarterly) etguidte London Interbank
Offer Rate plus 4%. The loan was payable in eiglatrgrly installments beginning in April 201

An additional loan (the “Second Loargnounting to $750 thousand, to be received no tatar August 3, 2009, subjeci
certain terms. InspireMD Ltd. did not meet the $fi@terms and therefore was not able to receieeSkcond Loar

A credit line amounting to $500 thousand for thepmse of financing export shipments. The credi livas not utilized by tt
Company.

In addition, InspireMD Ltd. was required to payadditional $250 thousand in the following events:

1. Aliquidity event of at least $100 million (as silpted in the agreement);

2.

An IPO in which the Compar's valuation was at least $100 millic

InspireMD Ltd. granted to the bank a floating l@mall of its assets, as well as a fixed lien droits intellectual property and
rights of future payments from the Compamglients. InspireMD Ltd. also committed to maintai its bank account a minimum
$250 thousand in order to support an estimated lmashrate of three months of activity based orrage monthly cash flow in the
preceding three months. This amount was recordéteilConsolidated Balance Sheets under “Restraast.”
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On February 2009 InspireMD Ltd. received the Higan and, in accordance with the loan agreemesue 58,704 ordinary
shares to the bank. Subsequently, InspireMD Ltiimased the fair value of the First Loan, the Setboan, the credit line and the
58,704 ordinary shares issued to the bank usinfptleeving assumptions:

1. Discount rate of 25.13% per year calculated bygigittmar-Z score mode
2. Probability of realizing the Second Lo- 40%
3.  Probability of realizing the credit lir- 80%

The relative fair value of each component basethervaluation report was as follows:

1 The First Loar- $540 thousani

2. The Second Loan optic- $20 thousant

3.  The credit line- $59 thousant

4 The 58,704 ordinary shares issued to the |- $290 thousani

The First Loan was subsequently measured at aradrtiast on the basis of the effective interest otethver the loan period.

The Second Loan option and the credit line have beeorded in the Consolidated Financial StatemerifSinancial expenses”
during 2009.

The 58,704 ordinary shares were recorded as eggityrding to their fair market value at the time.

Direct transaction costs of $41 thousand were oEmbas deferred debt issuance costs in the CoasadidBalance Sheet and were
amortized over the First Loan period.

In November 2010, InspireMD Ltd. was asked by MizrBefahot Bank to grant it a fixed lien in the amo of $300 thousand that
would replace the $250 thousand of restricted saste the actual cash burn rate was higher thaoas$te amount maintained in |
Company'’s bank account. The transaction was efféetlin January 2011.

On July 20, 2011, Mizrahi Tefahot Bank approvedriiease of a fixed lien in the amount of $300 #and. Following the
approval, $300 thousand of restricted cash wasifled to cash and cash equivalents.

In March 2012, following the complete repaymenttaf loan, Mizrahi Tefahot Bank approved the reladgbe floating lien.
NOTE 8- RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

a. InJanuary 2009, InspireMD Ltd. signed a sub-leageement with a company controlled by the Compaslgareholders, for
a period of 12.5 months, for a monthly rent payn@r$l thousand. In 2010, the rent period was eladrfor an additional
year, and the rent payments increased by 10%.1,28e rent period was extended for an additigaat, through Februa
2012. The su-lease agreement was not renev

b. On May 6, 2008, InspireMD Ltd. entered into a cdtaicy agreement (the “2008 Consultancy Agreement’jnarketing
services with a member of the immediate familyhaf CEO. Pursuant to the 2008 Consultancy AgreenresgireMD Ltd.
paid a fixed hourly fee of $45 (154 NIS) in Israeld a fixed daily fee of $400 when traveling abrueétth respect to the
consulting services. On September 1, 2011, effedpril 1, 2011, the 2008 Consultancy Agreement teasiinated and
InspireMD Ltd. entered into a new consultancy agreet (the “2011 Consultancy Agreement”) pursuanthah the
consultant was retained to serve as the Compaigespresident of sales. Pursuant to the agreersie@twas paid a monthly
consultancy fee of $12,500 from April 1, 2011 tlghwune 30, 2011 and a monthly consultancy fed 5800 thereafter. On
July 2, 2012, effective August 1, 2012, the 201 h<Edtancy Agreement was termainated and InspireMD éntered into a
new consultancy agreement (the “2012 Consultanagément”) pursuant to which the consultant woulddiained for sale
services. Pursuant to the agreement, she wouldtiiked to a fixed fee of $625 (2,500 NIS) for edah working day and a
bonus fee up to $10,000 (40,000 NIS) upon 100%eaehnent of set objectives. The Consultancy Agre¢imesna terminatic
date of September 30, 2012, but could be terminaitttbut cause by InspireMD Ltd. upon 7 days’ netiand may be
terminated with cause by InspireMD Ltd. immediatelgon the occurrence of certain events, suchbasach of fiduciary
duties owed to the Compar

F-24




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During 2007, InspireMD Ltd received a loan of $#i@usand from its controlling shareholders. Halfref loan was paid
during 2009, and the second half was paid duririd 2

On April 1, 2005, InspireMD Ltd. entered into emyheent agreements with the Company’s president ea€bmpanys CEC
(both are directors and shareholders). Such emm@ayagreements were subsequently amended on OdtoP@®d8 (in the
case of the Company’s CEQ) and March 28, 2011h@rcase of both the president and the CEO). Pursuémese
employment agreements, as amended on March 28, 28édh officer was entitled to a monthly grossryaté $15,367. Each
officer was also entitled to certain social andde benefits as set forth in the employment agrae&snwhich totaled 25% of
their gross salary, as well as a company car. BHader was also entitled to a minimum bonus eqlgnato three monthly
gross salary payments based on achievement oftogie@nd board of directors’ approval. If sucha#f’s employment was
terminated with or without cause, he was entitteditleast six months’ prior notice, and would hbeen paid his salary and
all social and fringe benefits in full during suehtice period

On April 1, 2011, the employment agreements with@ompany’s president and CEO were terminatedl@Company
entered into consulting agreements with the Comggmgsident and CEO for a monthly consultancydie$21,563 each.

At the request of the compensation committee, th@@ny’s CEO and president agreed, effective &eoember 1, 2011, to
be treated as employees for purposes of payingshkiry and benefits, rather than as consultardsntheir consulting
agreements. In addition, the Company’s CEO andgeesagreed to formally terminate their consultigyeement upon the
execution of an employment agreement with the Compa substantially the same terms as their coascytagreements. A
new employment agreement, however, was never ee@aevith either party

On June 1, 2012, the president of the Companymredign connection with his resignation, effectivme 1, 2012, he remains
on the Company’s board of directors. In connectiith the resignation, the Company and the presidatdred into a
consulting agreement, pursuant to which, amongrdttiegs, the president agreed to provide the Camyppéth consulting

services for a period of six months, terminatingNmvember 30, 2012, in exchange for payments byCthapany of $20
thousand per mont|

We anticipate that in the near term, Ofir Paz vélign from his position as our chief executiveceff. Mr. Paz intends to
remain in his position while we conduct a thorosglarch for an appropriate replacement. We havimeeta search firm to
assist in this process. Mr. Paz’s resignation cgdleur transition from a private medical deviaatstip company with a
promising new technology to a publicly traded compwith a successfully tested, commercialized, Ca&rivapproved
product. After his resignation, we anticipate thtt Paz will remain one of our directors and maimtais involvement with
us, as necessary, on a consulting b
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During the second half of 2008, InspireMD Ltd. dsssed the salaries for most of its employees dtleeteconomic
slowdown. InspireMD Ltd. also decreased the sadaofehe former president and the CEO. Their sedaniere decreased 2&
and an additional 25% was accrued and recordeddndunts payable-trade.” The accrued amounts wakegdaid as of June
30, 2011

In September 2009, the 25% decrease in salariesiloied above was cancelle

InspireMD Ltd. entered into a license agreements® a unique stent design developed by an Amecimaapany owned by a
former director of InspireMD Ltd.“MGuard Prim”). See Note 9k

Certain directors of the Company were granted ogtio purchase shares of the Com|'s common stock. See Note :

. Balances with related partie

June 30
2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Current liabilities:
Other accounts payak $ 45 $ 64

Transactions with related partie

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
(% in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Expenses
Shar+-based compensatic $ 9,517 $ 20¢
Salaries and related expen $ 30t $ 227
Consulting fee! $ 39¢ % 394
Rent income $ (21) $ (16)

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a.

Lease commitments:

1) The Company is a party to two lease agreemenissffacilities, which expire in March 2014 anéd@mber 2014. The
Company has the option, under both agreementst¢oe the agreements for two additional two yeaiops, for a
total of four years eacl

Rent expense included in the Consolidated Statentdr®perations totaled approximately $220 thousarti$133
thousand for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
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As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate future minimease obligations for office rent under non-candelaperating
lease agreements were as follows:

($ in thousands)

(Audited)
Year Ended June 3
2013 $ 34t
2014 32C
2015 122
$ 787

2) The Company leases its motor vehicles unde-cancelable operating lease agreeme

As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate future minimeasé obligations for motor vehicles under cancelable operatir
lease agreements were as follows:

($ in thousands)

(Audited)
Year Ended June 3
2013 $ 58
2014 46
2015 22
$ 12€

License Agreement:

In March 2010, the Company entered into a new iesaagreement to use MGuard Prime, a unique stsigrdéeveloped by
an American company owned by a former directomsplreMD Ltd. According to the agreement, the lm@mis entitled to
receive 7% royalties for sales outside the U.S.iasidle the U.S. as follows: 7% royalties for tiretf$10 million of net sales
and 10% royalties for net sales exceeding the$itét million. Royalties accrued for these salesrkided in “Accounts
payable and accruals -Other.” Royalties expensethéoyears ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 amowngaDi thousand and
$22 thousand, respective

Liens and pledges

1) The Company’s obligations under the 2012 CoiblerDebentures (Note 6) are secured by a firgirjyi perfected
security interest in all of the assets and propenif the Company and InspireMD Ltd., including $teck of InspireMD
Ltd. and InspireMD GmbF

2) As of June 30, 2012, the Company had fixed lamsunting to $37 thousand to Bank Mizrahi in carioa with the
Compan’s credit cards

Litigation:

The Company is a party to various claims arisinthaordinary course of its operations in the aggre amount of $10
thousand. The Company has not recorded an expemégsipn related to damages in connection with ¢éhmatters because
management, after considering the views of itsllegansel as well as other factors, is of the apirthat a loss to the
Company is neither probable nor in an amount ogeaf loss that is estimable.

In February 2011, representatives of a third piaudjcated that they intended to seek damages frenCompany in
connection with certain finders’ fees that theyirlare owed to them. The claimants’ demand wasp@roximately $1
million. The claimants’ most recent settlement dechaonveyed in April 2011, was for a total of $266usand in cash and
62,500 shares of the Company common stock. To datwsuit has been filed and the Company hasearued a provision
in connection with this matter because the Commamanagement, after considering the views of galleounsel as well as
other factors, is of the opinion that a loss to@wnpany is neither probable nor in an amount ngeaof loss that is estimak
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In November 2010, a former senior employee subthatelaim against the Company in the total amot8t80 thousand ar
options to purchase 507,256 shares of the Compaoysnon stock at an exercise price of $0.004 paresim the
Magistrate’s Court in Tel Aviv, claiming unpaid bawages and commissions. The fair value of thosepwas valued
using the Black-Scholes valuation model at $2.%ionilas of the period he claimed to be entitleth®moptions. In June 2012,
the parties reached a settlement agreement foyragrat of $88 thousand by the Company to the pfa@tid following the a
mutual petition filed by the parties , on July 6,12 the Labor Court dismissed the claim. As of J38®e2012, a provision of
$88 thousand was included in the Company’s Corat@diFinancial Statements.

In November 2010, an alleged founder and formeallagvisor of the Company submitted a claim agahestCompany for
options to purchase 124,014 shares of the Compaoysnon stock at an exercise price of $0.004 paresim the
Magistrate’s Court in Tel Aviv. The fair value dfdse options was estimated using the Black-Schealiestion model at $134
thousand as of the grant date. It was during 20@52806 that the Company first became aware oétleats that gave rise to
this litigation. Also, during this time, the Compalmad discussions with the plaintiffs on an infottoasis. The Company’s
management, after considering the views of itsllegansel as well as other factors, recorded aeshased compensation
expense of $134 thousand in 2006, in respect ofceer allegedly provided in 2005 and 2006.

In November 2010, a former legal advisor of the @any submitted in the Magistrate’s Court in Tel\Asiclaim against the
Company in the total amount of $53 thousand dwntalleged breach of employment promise. It wamdu2005 and 2006
that the Company first became aware of the eveatsgave rise to this litigation. Also during thise, the Company had
discussions with the plaintiff on an informal badike Company’s management, after considering iggsvof its legal
counsel as well as other factors, recorded a pmvig $53 thousand in 2006.

With respect to the two claims against the Commaymitted by an alleged founder and former legaisad of the Company
in November 2010, described above, following a ragel held in January 2012, the parties reacheébtimving settlement
agreement: (i) the plaintiff shall be the owneppfions to purchase 48,697 shares of common stiotiedCompany and
withdraw their claim for the remaining 75,318 opigo and (ii) the Company would withdraw its counlaim against the
plaintiff. In January 2012, the District Court irlTAviv approved the settlement and a corresponflidgment was given by
the court. Following the settlement agreement fd@egember 31, 2011, the provision in the amour$i&# thousand was
reversed.

In February 2011, a service provider submittecaintiagainst the Company in the amount of $327 thodisn the
Magistrate’s Court in Tel Aviv, claiming a futuraccess fee and commission for assistance in finttiegompany’s
distributor in Brazil. The Company’s managemerngrmfonsidering the views of its legal counsel aHl as other factors,
recorded a provision of $327 thousand in the firerstatements in the first quarter of the 201 Erder year. The related
expense has been recorded to “General and admathistrwithin the Consolidated Statements of Opgerat On October 5,
2011, the Company filed a counter claim againsptaatiff in the amount of $29 thousand.

F- 28




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In August 2011, a former senior employee submittetthe Regional Labor Court in Tel Aviv a claim agd the Company for
(i) compensation of $118,000 and (ii) a declaratoting that he is entitled to exercise 121,744apt to purchase shares of
the Company’s common stock at an exercise prig®9df04 per share. 20,290 of such options were isptited by the
Company. On October 21, 2012, the former seniorl@yep exercised 20,290 options. After considerirgiews of its legal
counsel as well as other factors, the Company’'sagement is of the opinion that a loss to the Comjimneither probable
nor in an amount or range of loss that is estimable

In November 2011, a previous service provider splreMD Ltd. submitted to the Magistrate Court igl Aviv a claim
against the Company, InspireMD Ltd. and the Com{zRyesident and the Company’s CEO for a declayatding that it is
entitled to convert options to purchase 13,65(epireMD Ltd.’s ordinary shares at an exercisegat$3.67 per share into
options to purchase 27,696 shares of the Compaoysnon stock at an exercise price of $1.80 perstaand to convert
options to purchase 4,816 of InspireMD Ltd.’s oedinshares at an exercise price of $10 per shw@ptions to purchase
9,772 shares of the Company’s common stock at arcise price of $4.92 per share. On July 30, 262parties held a
mediation which resulted in a settlement agreeraectrding to which the Company paid $7 thousand plue added taxes
to the plaintiff and the plaintiff waived all of$iclaims to any options and agreed to the irreveadibmissal of the above
mentioned claim. On August 5, 2012, the court appdahe settlement and dismissed the claim.

In December 2011, a statement of claim againsCirapany was submitted by an alleged finder of thengany, regardir
146,089 options to purchase the Compamshares. The Company filed its defense in thi® @as March 11, 2012. T
Company and the plaintiff agreed to refer the ¢aseediation. A second hearing in this case wasoseteptember 20, 201
After consulting the views of its legal counselveall as other factors, the Company is unable tessthe probable outco
of this claim.

In July 2012, a purported assignee of options gpireMD Ltd. submitted a statement of claim agaihetCompany,
InspireMD Ltd., and the Company’s CEO and formersiRtent for a declaratory and enforcement ordéritleentitled to
options to purchase 83,637 shares of the Compaoysnon stock at an exercise price of $0.76 persfidre Company filed
its defense in this case on November 8, 2012. Aifgén this case was set for February 21, 2018rAdonsulting the views
of its legal counsel as well as other factors,Goepany is unable to assess the probable outcothésaflaim.

In December 2012, a previous service provider spireMD GmbH submitted to the Labor Court in BueAa®s, Argentina
a claim in the amount of $193,378 plus interest {8%ollars or 18.5% in pesos), legal expensesfesl (25% of the award)
against InspireMD Ltd. and InspireMD GmbH. The Camyp has not yet engaged with a local law firm F& tepresentation
of the Company in these proceedings, however, doupto the local lawyers with whom the Company tiasussed the
lawsuit, the Company has to file its defense byr&raty 1, 2013. As the Company has yet to engagead law firm to
represent it in this claim, the Company cannotatal its potential exposure under this claim.

In December 2012, the State of Israel issued airaincomplaint to InspireMD Ltd., the Company’s CHOrmer President,
and Vice President of Research and Developmeegialy that the Company failed to operate its pradadacilities under an
appropriate business license. On January 3, 2B&3;ompany was granted a 3 month temporary lickmsts production
facility. The Company expects to receive a permahegnse within the next 30 days and is curreadigking a dismissal of
the criminal complaint. The Company does not exieatt this action by the State of Israel will resnlany material liability
to either the Company or the named individuals.
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NOTE 10 — EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)
a. Share capital

As of June 30, 2012, the Company has authorizedd@8@000 shares of capital stock, par value $0.@@0dEhare, of which
125,000,000 are shares of common stock and 5,00@y@0shares of “blank check” preferred stock.

On October 31, 2011, the stockholders approveaudittgorization of the board of directors, in itsadétion, to amend the
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Company to effect a reverse stock split ef@ompany’s common
stock at a ratio of one-for-two to one-for-fourchuatio to be determined by the board of direcftite “Reverse Stock Split”),
which approval will allow the board of directorsefiect the Reverse Stock Split any time priott® €ompany’s annual
meeting of stockholders in 2012.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had yet to effecReverse Stock Split.
b. Share exchange and private placement agreements aslare issuance

As noted in Note 1 above, in connection with thar8tExchange, the Company issued 12,516,666 shiitsscommon stock
in exchange for 6,242,754 ordinary shares of ledpD Ltd., which represented all of InspireMD Ltddatstanding shares,
resulting in InspireMD Ltd. became a wholly ownedbsidiary of the Company.

In connection with the Share Exchange, the Compéstyassumed all of InspireMD Ltd.’s obligationglaninspireMD Ltd.’s
outstanding stock options. Immediately prior to 8f@re Exchange, InspireMD Ltd. had outstandingkstptions to purchase
an aggregate of 937,256 ordinary shares, whichandsg options became options to purchase an gggref 1,901,693
shares of common stock of the Company after gieiffiget to the Share Exchange. In addition, thres-yearrants to purchase
up to 125,000 ordinary shares of InspireMD Ltdamtexercise price of $10 per share were assumétebompany and
converted into warrants to purchase 253,625 sludribe Company’s common stock at an exercise mfié.92 per share.

In connection with the closing of the Share Exclernlge Company sold 1,613,501 shares of its comstamk at a purchase
price of $6.00 per share and five-year warranfsutchase up to 806,750 shares of common stock etensise price of $7.20
per share in a private placement to accreditedsiove (the “Private Placement”).

As part of the Private Placement, certain holdéth@2010 Convertible Debentures surrendered $8&70f outstanding
principal and interest due under the 2010 ConVerfilebentures in exchange for 111,266 shares ofrmmmstock and
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 56,383 sbhoesnmon stock. The number of shares of commaorkstad warrants
issued in connection with the Debt Conversionsraekeided in the aggregate figures for the Privdse@ment. As a result, the
Company received aggregate cash proceeds of $9®1B) the Private Placement.

In connection with the Share Exchange, the Comjpadsty entered into a stock escrow agreement witlaioestockholders,
pursuant to which these stockholders depositedd®83hares of common stock held by them and wartarurchase
208,125 shares of common stock into escrow. THemees and warrants were to be released to the Gonipacancellation ¢
surrender to an entity designated by the Compaayldithe Company have $10 million in consolidaterdenue, as certified |
the Company’s independent auditors, during the fizsmonths following the closing of the Privata¢dment, yet fail, after a
good faith effort, to have the Company’s commorlstapproved for listing on a national securitiestenge. If the Company
failed to record at least $10 million in consolelhrevenue during the first 12 months following thesing of the Private
Placement or have its common stock listed on anatisecurities exchange within 12 months followtng closing on the
Private Placement, these escrowed shares werertddased back to the stockholders.
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As it appeared unlikely that the Company wouldsatihe revenue threshold set forth above, on Nderi6, 2011, the
Company’s board of directors approved the rele&ee0253,906 shares of common stock and warrarsitchase 208,125
shares of common stock then held in escrow in dalénmediately increase the Company’s public float

In connection with the Share Exchange, the Compmsued certain consultants five-year warrants tohmse up to an
aggregate of 625,000 shares of common stock atencise price of $6.00 per share in consideratiwrednsulting services
related to the Share Exchange, which warrants ada#g value of $1.5 million. The expenses relatethe issuance of the
warrants are recorded as share-based compensatidreated as issuance costs.

In connection with the Private Placement, the Campzaid placement agent fees of approximately $860sand and issued
five-year warrants to purchase 93,435 shares oftrapany’s common stock at an exercise price &@ger share to the
placement agent. The fair value of the warran§2i2 thousand.

During the first quarter of 2011 and prior to tHea& Exchange, InspireMD Ltd. raised approxima$8l90 thousand and
issued approximately 200,873 ordinary shares thrquiyate placements.

On April 18, 2011, the Company issued 166,667 shafés common stock and five-year warrants tachase 83,333 shares
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise mfiy.20 per share, for an aggregate purchase pfrig&,000 thousand, in
a private placement.

On April 18, 2011, the Company issued 70,834 shafrés common stock and five-year term warrantpucchase 35,417
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exepcice of $7.20 per share, for an aggregate puechese of $425
thousand, in a private placement.

In connection with the above-referenced transastfoom April 18, 2011, the Company paid placemeara fees of
approximately $471 thousand, which were recordedsagmnce costs, and five-year term warrants tohmse 14,250 shares of
the Company common stock at an exercise price @0$Fer share to the placement agent. The faievalluthose warrants,
amounting to $67 thousand, is estimated using taekBScholes valuation model.

On April 21, 2011, the Company issued 8,333 shafrés common stock, and fiwgear term warrants to purchase 4,167 st
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise @fick.20 per share, for an aggregate purchase @fi$80 thousand, in a
private placement.

Share-Based Compensation

1) On March 28, 2011, the board of directors andldtolders of the Company adopted and approvethpéreMD, Inc.
2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan (the “Umbrella Plan”). der the Umbrella Plan, the Company reserved 2,26750ares
of the Company’s common stock as awards to the@repk, consultants, and service providers to thepaoy and its
subsidiaries and affiliates worldwide. At a speamdeting of stockholders of the Company held oroet 31, 2011, the
stockholders approved an amendment to the Umbpdiato add an additional 1,382,975 shares of camstack for a
total of 3,750,000 share

The Umbrella Plan currently consists of three congmts, the primary plan document that governsvedirds granted
under the Umbrella Plan, and two appendices: (Dekglix A, designated for the purpose of grantdaflsoptions and
restricted stock to Israeli employees, consultafgiers and other service providers and otherdd®. employees,
consultants, and service providers, and (ii) AppeBd which is the 2011 US Equity Incentive Plaesijnated for the
purpose of grants of stock options and restrictedksawards to U.S. employees, consultants, andcgeproviders who
are subject to the U.S. income t
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The Umbrella Plan is administered by the compeosatommittee of the board of directors. Unless teated earlier by
the board of directors, the Umbrella Plan will eeppn March 27, 202:

U.S. federal income tax consequences relatingadrémsactions described under the Umbrella Plusetrforth in
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended (the “Codednd treasury regulations in 2004 to regu
all types of deferred compensation. If the requeata of Section 409A of the Code are not satisfieferred
compensation and earnings thereon will be subjetsbt as it vests, plus an interest charge atiidenpayment rate plus
1% and a 20% penalty tax. Certain stock optionscanthin types of restricted stock are subjectectisn 409A of the
Code.

Pursuant to the current Section 102 of the Ordieamtich came into effect on January 1, 2003, ogtimay be granted
through a trustee (i.e., Approved 102 Options)airthrough a trustee (i.e., Unapproved 102 Optic

On July 11, 2011, the board of directors of @menpany appointed Mr. Sol J. Barer as a new dirdtBirector A”), with
a term expiring at the Compasy2012 annual meeting of stockholders. In conneatith his appointment, Director
was granted an option to purchase 250,000 sharthe @ompanys common stock at an exercise price of $6.00 pee
(the “$6.00 Option”).The $6.00 Option was exercisable immediately us¢iptember 30, 2011. In calculating the
value of the $6.00 Option, the Company used tHevi@hg assumptions: dividend yield of 0% and expddierm of 0.1
years; expected volatility of 53%; and free interest rate of 0.17¢

In addition, in connection with his appointmentréitor A was granted an option to purchase 125sb@@es of common
stock at an exercise price of $10.00 per share;ltgng price of the common stock on the daterahg(the “$10.00
Option”), subject to the terms and conditions & 2011 US Equity Incentive Plan under the Umbielen. The $10.00
Option vests and becomes exercisable in three equialal installments beginning on the gmear anniversary of the de
of grant, provided that in the event that Diredas either (i) not reelected as a director at@wenpany’s 2012 annual
meeting of stockholders, or (ii) not nominatedfeelection as a director at the Company’s 2012 alrmeeting of
stockholders, the option vests and becomes exbteisa the date Director A fails to be reelected@minated. The
$10.00 Option has a term of 10 years from the daggant. In calculating the fair value of the 1@ Option, the
Company used the following assumptions: divideraddyof 0% and expected term of 5.5-6 years; expeadatility of
62%-63%; and ris-free interest rate of 1.67-1.85%.

The fair value of the options granted to Directoruaing the Blackscholes option pricing model, was approximately’
million.

On September 28, 2011, Director A exercised the@6ption to purchase 250,000 shares of commotk,stesulting in
gross proceeds to the Company of $1,500 thou:
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On November 16, 2011, the Company’s board of dirscapproved the appointment of Director A as taronan of the
board of directors. In connection with his appoiatrnas chairman of the board of directors, the Gompssued Directc
A 725,000 shares of common stock and an optiomutohase 725,000 shares of common stock at an sggydice of
$7.80 per share, the closing price of the commeocksbn the date of grant. The fair value of thented shares is
approximately $5.7 million and was recorded as»gerse in the Consolidated Financial Statementthéyear ended
June 30, 2012. In calculating the fair value oktheptions, the Company used the following assumstidividend yield
of 0% and expected term of 5.5 years; expectedilitplaf 61.6%; and risk-free interest rate of 79. The options have
terms of 10 years from the date of grant, and #wing terms are as follows: tranche A vests aicdiine exercisable in
twenty four equal monthly installments, trancheari8l C vest and become exercisable upon meetirgrc@erformance
conditions. The fair value of the options, using Blacl-Scholes optic-pricing model was approximately $3.1 millic

On June 18, 2012, the Company'’s board of dire@ppsoved the extension of the date by which thelitioms to the
vesting of tranches B and C must occur. As of dai® the performance condition of tranche B wasngekprobable and
the performance condition of tranche C was deeno¢g@mbable. The Company continues to record expeglated to
tranche B, in accordance with the fair value thas waculated at the grant date. Tranche C wagdreata new grant, a
the Company calculated the fair value of the neangon the date of the extension using the follpwaasumptions:
dividend yield of 0% and expected term of 5 yeargmected volatility of 66%; and risk-free interestie of 0.69%. The
fair value using the Bla-Scholes optic-pricing model was approximately $192 thouss

On August 5, 2011 and effective August 8, 2Qhé&,Board appointed another two new directors (€Etor B” and
“Director C”). Director B was appointed for a tearpiring at the Company’s 2012 annual meeting @fldtolders and
Director C was appointed for a term expiring at@wmpany’s 2013 annual meeting of stockholder.dimection with
their appointment, the directors were each graatedption to purchase shares of common stock exartise price of
$7.80 per share, the closing price of the commocksbn the date of grant (the “$7.80 Options”). Tinant to Director B
was for 25,000 shares and is subject to the temianditions of the 2011 US Equity Incentive P

The grant to Director C was for 6,250 shares asdligect to the 2006 Employee Stock Option Plasulaplan of the
Companys 2011 Umbrella Option Plan. The $7.80 Optionss/astl become exercisable in two equal annual inetats
beginning on the one-year anniversary of the daggamnt. In the case of Director B’s option, in #ent that Director B
is either (i) not reelected as a director at then@any’s 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, pnft nominated for
reelection as a director at the Company’s 2012 alnmeeting of stockholders, the option vests armbines exercisable
on the date of Director B’s failure to be reeleabedhominated. In the case of Director C’s optiorthe event that
Director C is required to resign from the board ttuenedical reasons, the option vests and becoregsisable on the
date of Director C’s resignation for medical reasdrhe $7.80 Options have terms of 10 years frardtie of grant.

In calculating the fair value of the $7.80 Optiotiee Company used the following assumptions: divitlgield of 0% and
expected term of 3-4 years; expected volatilit$ 6%-70%; and risk-free interest rate of 0.45%-0.78%

The fair value of the options granted to the abmetioned new directors, using the Black-Scholé®ogpricing model
is approximately $118 thousar

On August 5, 2011, options to purchase 81,161 shefreommon stock were granted to former direcbs cash exercis
price of $4.92 per share replacing options to paset81,161 shares of common stock held by formectdirs that expire
during the second quarter of 2011. The optionstlads of five years. In calculating the fair vabfehe options, the
Company used the following assumptions: divideraddyof 0% and expected term of 3.5 years; expeaétility of
69%; and ris-free interest rate of 0.62¢
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The fair value of the options granted to the fortieectors, using the Black-Scholes option-priangdel, is
approximately $424,000.

During 2011, the Company entered into investtations consulting agreements with investor refeticompanies to
provide investor relations services. Pursuant éoctinsulting agreements, in addition to monthlys fieea range of $3,000

to $16,500, the Company issued to the investotioela companies

a oneyear warrant to purchase 20,290 shares of comnogk sf the Company at an exercise price of $4.9:

share, valued at $21 thousa
12,500 restricted shares of the Company’s commarkstalued at $62 thousand, and a five-year watcan

purchase 12,500 shares of common stock of the Coyrgtean exercise price of $6.00 per share, vadti&30

thousand; an
6,250 shares of the Company’s common stock, vadtnéé8.75 thousand.

The Company recorded share-based compensationsegeh$181.75 thousand related to these issuances.

On January 30, 2012, the Company appointed adirestor (“Director D”)to its board of directors. In connection with
appointment, the Company issued Director D an agtigourchase 25,000 shares of its common stocichwhill vest
one-third annually in 2013, 2014 and 2015 on thewansary of the date of grant, provided that ifi16) not reelected as
a director at our 2014 annual meeting of stockhslder (ii) not nominated for reelection as a dioe@t our 2014 annual
meeting of stockholders, the option vests and besoemercisable on the date of such failure to blected or nominate:

In calculating the fair value of these options, @@mpany used the following assumptions: divideiattyof 0% and
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatiift§8-60%; and risk-free interest rate of 1.016%2 The options have
terms of 10 years from the date of grant, and direvhlue of the options, using the Black-Scholpsam-pricing model,

was approximately $106,000.

On June 18, 2012 the Company'’s board of diredssued Directors A, B, C and D options to pureht? 500 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $3.16 peresltlae closing price of the common stock on the dagrant. In
calculating the fair value of these options, thenpany used the following assumptions: dividenddyi 0% and
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatift§5%-66%; and risk-free interest rate of 0.78%7%6. The options
have terms of 10 years from the date of grant,emdme exercisable in three equal annual instateng@he fair value of
the options, using the Bla-Scholes optio-pricing model, was approximately $23 thousand e

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had reserved B83drdinary shares for issuance under the plauescribed abov
The following table summarizes information aboutnaats and share options to employs
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Year ended June 30,

2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

warrants and average warrants and average
options exercise price options exercise price
Outstandin¢- beginning of periot 1,098,63. $ 3.6( 636,09° $ 3.0C
Granted* 1,579,25 6.8( 510,21t 4.4¢
Forfeited (106,799 8.44 (47,687) 5.3¢€
Exercised (250,000 6.0C - -
Outstanding -end of period 2,321,08 $ 5.2¢ 1,098,63 $ 3.6(

Exercisable at the end of the
period 904,10t $ 3.04 595,60. $ 2.64
* Including 372,500 options with performance coiddis in the year ended June 30, 2012.
The following table summarizes information aboutr&ats and share options to non-employees:
Year ended June 30,
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

warrants and average warrants and average
options exercise price options exercise price
Outstanding¢- beginning of periot 1,999,10. $ 3.6C 918,23! $ 0.8¢
Granted* 239,08t 5.0¢ 1,136,711 5.7¢
Forfeited (114,24¢) 2.4¢ (55,849 2.3¢€
Exercised - - - -
Outstanding - end of period 2,123,94. $ 3.8( 1,999,10: $ 3.6(

Exercisable at the end of the

period 2,056,711 $ 3.7¢€ 1,966,89. $ 3.5¢

* Including 19,479 and 24,349 options with perforroa conditions in the years ended June 30, 2012@bd,

respectively. See Note 2m.
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The following table provides additional informatiabout all warrants and options outstanding andoisable:

Outstanding as of June 30, 201

(Audited)
Weighted
average
Warrants and  remaining Warrants
Exercise options contractual and options
price outstanding life (years) exercisable
0-0.004 976,53 4.7: 925,80¢
0.732 51,25: 3.41 51,25
0.752 83,63¢ 3.7t 83,63¢
2.92 126,25( 9.92
3.16 97,50( 9.97
3.20 75,00( 9.¢
3.96 146,08¢ 5.7¢ 146,08
4.92 862,58 4.5¢ 737,68:
6.00 784,80¢ 3.7¢ 679,83¢
6.90 3,65% 6.t 3,65%
7.00 20,29( 3.92 6,76¢
7.20 188,17¢ 4.2 188,17¢
7.72 53,75( 3.94 16,66
7.80 836,75! 9.3¢ 120,83
8.00 10,00( 4.1¢
8.40 2,50( 9.t
10.00 125,00( 9.04
10.40 1,25( 3.9¢ 417
4,445,02. 5.8t 2,960,81!

The weighted average of the remaining contractfeabf total vested and exercisable warrants arbog as of June 30,
2012 is 4.46 years.

The aggregate intrinsic value of the total exeldisavarrants and options as of June 30, 2012 #®4thousand.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised B&60 thousand for the year ended June 30, 2012phions were
exercised during the year ended June 30, 2011.

The weighted average fair value of warrants antoptgranted was approximately $4.24 and $3.3#®ears ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The weighitedage fair value of warrants and options grantasl estimated
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

9) The following table sets forth the assumptions thate used in determining the fair value of optigrented to employes
for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2(

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Expected life 0.17-6.5 year 2.84-6.37 year
Risk-free interest rate 0.03%-2.79% 0.19%-2.79%
Volatility 55%-71% 62%-80%
Dividend yield 0% 0%
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The following table sets forth the assumptions thete used in determining the fair value of warsaard options granti
to non-employees for the years ended June 30, 20d2011:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Expected life 2-10 year 0.2-10 year
Risk-free interest rate 0.3%-1.97% 0.19%-3.39%
Volatility 47%-65% 53%-87%
Dividend yield 0% 0%

The Company does not have sufficient historicat@ge data to provide a reasonable basis upon wbiektimate
expected term. Accordingly, as to plain vanillaiops granted, the expected term was determined isssimplified
method, which takes into consideration the opti@astractual life and the vesting periods (for remmployees, the

expected term is equal to the option’s contradifejl

The Company estimates its forfeiture rate baseitsa@mployment termination history, and will continto evaluate the
adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on analystenployee turnover behavior and other factors iffmn-employees the
forfeiture rate is nil). The annual risk-free rat#s based on the yield rates of zero coupon ndexifinked U.S. Federal
Reserve treasury bonds as both the exercise pricéha share price are in dollar terms. The Coiygaxpected
volatility is derived from a blended volatility, ¥ad on its historical data and that of a peer gafygublic companies.

10) As of June 30, 2012, the total unrecognizedpmation cost on employee and non-employee sfabng, related to
unvested stock-based compensation, amounted toxapyately $2,745 thousand. This cost is expectduktoecognized
over a weighted-average period of approximatel$ ¥€ars. This expected cost does not include tipadétnof any future

stock-based compensation awar

The following table summarizes the allocation dét@share-based compensation expense in the Cdatali Statements
of Operations:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
(% in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Revenue $ 68 $ -
Cost of revenue 192 63E
Research and developmt 37C 22(
Sales and marketir 37E 26¢
General and administrative 9,54¢ 78€
$ 10,65 $ 1,90¢
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The Company recorded $62 thousand of share-basepersation as part of Property, Plant and Equiprnethie year ended
June 30, 2011.

d. Acquisition and cancellation of share:

Following a settlement agreement signed on Ju2@El, the Company issued 4,696 shares of commaok. sithe Company
issued a stock certificate in the name of the pffiior such shares for the Company to hold irstrpending consummation of
the settlement terms under the settlement agree@eantune 10, 2012, both parties agreed to amensktiiement agreement
to provide that the Company would pay $24 thousatiter than issue the shares. Whereas the shareseser released to
the plaintiff, and both parties agreed to cancelshare certificate evidencing the shares, the @osnpancelled the shares i
recorded $21 thousand as a deduction from equiity.difference was recorded as “General and admatiigt” based on the
cash amount paid net of the fair value of the chedteshares as of the cancellation date.

e. On April 5, 2012, the Company issued the 2012 Cdible Debenture and 2012 Warrants to purchaseygregate of 835,8¢
shares of its common stock at an exercise pri&¥ &0 per share in a private placement transaciiea.Note €

NOTE 11 - TAXES ON INCOME
a. Tax laws applicable to the Company and its subsidiges
Taxation in the United States
InspireMD, Inc. is taxed under U.S. tax laws.
Taxation in Israel
InspireMD Ltd. is taxed under the Israeli Income<T2rdinance.
On December 6, 2011, the "Tax Burden Distributi@wl. Legislation Amendment (2011) was publishechim Official
Gazette. Under this law, the previously approvedigal decrease in the corporate tax rate was dadc&he Corporate tax
rate will increase to 25% beginning 2012.

Taxation in Germany

InspireMD GmbH is taxed according to the tax law&iermany. Accordingly, the applicable tax rates@rporate tax rate
15.825% and trade tax rate of 12.075%.

b. Tax rate applicable to the Company
Amendment of the Law for the Encouragement of Capil Investments, 1959
The Israeli Law for Encouragement of Capital Inuemhts, 1959 was amended as part of the EconomicyRa@w for the
years 2011-2012, which was passed in the Knedsetgtaeli parliament) on December 29, 2010. Thermiment became
effective as of January 1, 2011.
The amendment set alternative benefit tracks toties then in place, as follows: (i) an investnggants track designed for
enterprises located in national development zoa@d\(ii) two new tax benefits tracks (for prefererderprises and for

special preferred enterprises), which provide fipli@ation of a unified tax rate to all preferreddme of the company, as
defined in the amendment.
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The tax rates at company level, under the law, @sr®llows:

Development Other Areas
Years Zone A in Israel
“Preferred enterpri”
20112012 1C% 15%
201:-2014 7% 12.5%
2015 and thereafts 6% 12%
“Special Preferred Enterpr” commencing 201 5% 8%

The benefits granted to the preferred enterprisse wo be unlimited in time, unlike the benefitamged to special preferred
enterprises, which were to be limited for a pedd 0 years. The benefits were to be granted topeanes that qualified unc
criteria set in the amendment; for the most phdse criteria were similar to the criteria that eveet in the law prior to its
amendment.

Under the transitional provisions of the amendmantlsraeli company was allowed to continue to etije tax benefits
available under the law prior to its amendmentluhé end of the period of benefits, as definethanlaw. The company was
allowed to set the “year of election” no later thar year 2012, provided that the minimum qualifyinvestment commenced
not later than the end of 2010. On each year duhiageriod of benefits, the company would havenkadse to opt for
application of the amendment, thereby making allo itself the tax rates above. Company’s optorgapplication of the
amendment was irrecoverable.

Carry forward tax losses

As of June 30, 2012, InspireMD Ltd. had a net céoryard tax loss of approximately $18 million. Wsrdsraeli tax laws, the
carry forward tax losses can be utilized indefigittnspireMD, Inc. had a net carry forward taxdasf approximately $10
million. Under U.S. tax laws, InspireMD, Ins.tax losses can be utilized two years back andtywesars forward. InspireMl
Inc.'s carry forward tax losses will begin to expin June 30, 2031.

Tax assessment

The Company and its subsidiaries have not beesssdéor tax purposes since incorporation.

Loss before income taxe

The components of loss before income taxes arellasvé:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Profit (loss) before taxes on incon
InspireMD, Inc. $ (11,079 $ (504)
InspireMD Ltd. (6,509 (5,619
InspireMD GmbH (4) (18)
$ (17,589 $ (6,140

F- 39




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current taxes on income

Tax expenses in the amount of $14 thousand andh®gidand for the years ended June 30, 2012 and &Hdectively, are
related to non-U.S. operations.

Following is a reconciliation of the theoreticak @xpense, assuming all income were taxed at thdaetax rates applicable
to the Company in the U.S. (see c above), anddhmbtax expense:

Year ended June 30

2012 2011
($ in thousands)

(Audited) (Unaudited)

Loss before taxes on income, as reported in therstnts of operatiol $ 17,587 $ 6,14(

Theoretical tax benef (5,989 (2,089

Increase in tax benefit resulting from permaneiffeigznces 1,44¢ 49¢
Increase (decrease) in taxes on income resultorg the computation

of deferred taxes at a rate which is different frtbi theoretical rat (75) (32

Increase (decrease) in uncertain tax posit- net (72) 19
Decrease in theoretical tax benefit resulting fiurbsidiaries different

tax rate 1,40¢ 592

Change in corporate tax rates, see c al (24%) (54€)

Change in valuation allowance 3,53¢ 1,58

$ 14 $ 37

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company detethilrat it was more likely than not that the benefithe operating losses
would not be realized and consequently, manageoeruded that full valuation allowances shoulcebtablished regarding
the Company'’s deferred tax assets.

The changes in the valuation allowance for thesreaded June 30, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Balance at the beginning of the y: $ 4517 $ 2,93(
Changes during the year 3,53: 1,58
Balance at the end of the year $ 8,05( $ 4,517
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f.  Accounting for Uncertain Tax position

Following is a reconciliation of the total amounf¢he Company’s unrecognized tax benefits duriregytear ended June 30,
2012 and 2011:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Balance at beginning of peric $ 71 $ 52
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits as a restdixqositions taken

during the yea 19
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits as a retak gositions taker

during a prior yea (72)

Balance at end of period $ - 71

All of the above amounts of unrecognized tax besefould affect the effective tax rate if recoguize

A summary of open tax years by major jurisdictismpiesented below:

Jurisdiction Years
u.s. 200¢-2011
Israel 200¢-2011
Germany 200¢-2011

The Company and its subsidiaries applied for a gbani fiscal year for its tax filings to end in &80, 2012 in the different
territories.

g. Deferred income tax:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Shor-term:
Allowance for doubtful accoun 54 39
Provision for vacation and recreation pay 7C 73
124 112

Long-term:
R&D expense: 74¢€ 377
Beneficial conversion featu (1,25)) -
Non cash issuance co 8¢ -
Sharebased compensatic 69:¢ -
Carry forward tax losse 7,631 4,01(
Accrued severance pay, net 18 18
7,92¢ 4,40t
Less-valuation allowance (8,050 (4,517
$ - $ -
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NOTE 12 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMA TION
Balance sheets:
a. Accounts receivable:

Year Ended June 30

2012 2011
(% in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
1) Trade:
Open account $ 2,03¢ $ 76¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts (215 (155
$ 1,82¢ $ 614
2) Other:
Due from government institutior $ 124 $ 77
Advance payments to supplie 11¢€ 67
Miscellaneous 22 41
$ 264 $ 18E

The changes in “Allowance for doubtful accountstidg the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 dof@ss:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Balance at beginning of peri $ 15¢% 10
Additions during the perio 78 14C
Exchange rate differenc (18) (5)
Balance at end of peric $ 21t % 15¢
b. Inventories:
June 30,
2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Finished good $ 47¢ $ 10k
Work in proces: 1,11¢ 1,04¢
Raw materials and supplies 15C 317
$ 1,744 $ 1,471

As of June 30, 2012, the Company recorded a pavigir slow moving inventory in the amount of $4#i8usand.
c. Inventory on consignment

The changes in inventory on consignment duringydfas ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
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Year ended June 30,

2012 2011
(% in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Balance at beginning of peri $ 82 $ 31¢
Costs of revenues deferred during the

period 63 28¢
Costs of revenues recognized during tr

period (82) (525)
Balance at end of period $ 63 $ 82

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, Inventory on consagtrimcluded an amount of $63 thousand and $82tral) respectively,
related to products sales for which product retemsd not be reliably estimated, with the remamme¢ating to products sales

for which returns were reliably estimated.

d. Accounts payable and accruals-other:

Employees and employee institutic $
Accrued vacation and recreation
Accrued clinical trials expens:

Provision for sales commissio

Accrued expense

Due to government institutior

Provision for return:

Taxes payable

June 30,
2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
43¢ $ 434
27z 287
607 19:
194 14C
1,197 967
22
13¢ 18¢
5€ 134
$ 2,92t $ 2,34

e. Deferred revenues

The changes in deferred revenues during the yeaiagJune 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Year ended June 3(

Balance at beginning of peri $
Revenue deferred during the per
Revenue recognized during the per

Balance at end of period $

2012 2011
(% in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
- 354
25 21
(15) (375)
1C $ -
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Statements of Operation:
f.  Financial expenses, nel

Year ended June 30

2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Bank commission $ 50 $ 69
Interest income (40 (6)
Exchange rate differences 112 94
Interest expense (including debt issuance ci 1,23¢ 75E
Change in fair value of warrants and embedded dgvizs (1,322)

$ 38 $ 91z

NOTE 13 - ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURES
The Company operates in one operating segment.
Disaggregated financial data is provided belowolisws:

(1) Revenues by geographic area and
(2) Revenues from principal customers.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas bastn docation of the customers. The following suanmary of revenues by
geographic areas:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
($ in thousands)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Russia $ 81z -
India 12C $ 1,08:
Germany 44F 582
Other 3,972 3,00¢
$ 5,34¢ $ 4,67(

By principal customers:

Year ended June 3(

2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Customer A 15% -%
Customer E 2% 23%
Customer C 8% 12%

All tangible long lived assets are located in I&r
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NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS :

On August 1, 2012 the Company’s board of direc&sged a consultant options with certain perforreasanditions to purchase
50,000 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$d.72 per share, the closing price of the comstonk on the date of grant.

On July 2, 2012, effective August 1, 2012, Inspi2hMd. entered into a consultancy agreement (thest Eonsultancy
Agreement”) with a member of the immediate familytte CEO, pursuant to which the consultant wodddtained for sales
services. Pursuant to the agreement, she wouldtiiked to a fixed fee of $625 (2,500 NIS) for edah working day and a bonus
fee up to $10,000 (40,000 NIS) upon 100% achieveémieset objectives. The First Consultancy Agreemeas terminated on
September 30, 2012.

On August 27, 2012, InspireMD Ltd. entered int@aised consultancy agreement (the “Second ConsyltAgreement”) with a
member of the immediate family of the CEO, pursuamwhich the consultant would be retained for saled marketing services.
Pursuant to the agreement, she is entitled to mptio purchase 60,871 shares of common stocketemaise price of $5.80 per
share. The revised agreement also extended torSlepte2014 the exercise date on 30,435 options stdatb expire upon the
termination of the First Consultancy Agreement.

On October 22, 2012, the Company, InspireMD Ltdl #re licensor entered into the First Amendmerntitense Agreement (see
Note 9b), which amended the license agreementibesicabove. Pursuant to the amendment, amongsttbihgs, the licensor
agreed to reduce the royalty owed with respecaliessof MGuard Prime to 2.9% of all net sales Iiagide and outside the U.S. in
exchange for (i) InspireMD Ltd. waiving $85,000regulatory fees for the CE Mark that are owed lgylibensor to InspireMD
Ltd., (ii) InspireMD Ltd. making full payment of yalties in the amount of $205,587 due to the lice@s of September 30, 2012
and (iii) 215,000 shares of the Company’s commoanlstthat were valued at the closing price of themon stock on October 19,
2012 at $8.20 per share. The consideration ofrttresaction is to be recorded as intangible assetraprocess research and
development expenses based on the MGuard Primstragin status in the various territories.

On October 24, 2012, the Company announced thptagzrietary MGuard Embolic Protection Stent (ER&p shown to be
significantly superior when compared to standane Imaetal and drug eluting stents in achieving cetepST resolution and
restoring normal blood flow in a major study of 48&domized patients undergoing emergency coranggwention for
potentially fatal heart attacks.

On December 21, 2012 at the Annual Meeting of Stolders of the Company, it was voted to amend tbiélla Plan to
increase the total number of shares of common statthorized for issuance under such plan by 5anilihares and to permit the
awarding of incentive stock options pursuant toh®. portion of the plan.

From July 1, 2012 until the date of the report, @mnpany issued a total of 771,640 shares of itsnecon stock in connection with

the exercise of 771,640 options and warrants. Tdrafany received aggregate cash proceeds equabtoxapately $1 million in
connection with such exercises.
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